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Introduction of a litiga
tion reform bill was
planned by Senator
ChristopherJ. Dodd (DConn.), chairman of the Senate Securities
Subcommittee, just before Congress wrapped
up its work for 1993. Senator Dodd’s state
ment clearly demonstrates that the AICPA’s
July 1993 testimony (The CPA Letter, July/Aug.
1993) before the subcommittee was impor
tant in persuading the subcommittee that
Congress needs to address the problems
connected with litigating securities cases.
The statement by Senator Dodd, and a
related one by Senator Pete V. Domenici (RN.M .), who is also a member o f the Securi
ties Subcommittee, means an important
obstacle has been overcome and the crafting
o f legislative language to improve the cur
rent securities litigation system for investors
and CPAs can begin.
Senator Dodd said, “.. .It is apparent that
the securities litigation system is not working
as it should, and needs improvement.” Senator
Dodd said he intends to develop and intro
duce legislation to reform the current securi
ties litigation system, particularly with respect
to rule 10b-5 class action litigation. He added
that instead of relying on the threat of enor
mous monetaryjudgments underjoint and
several liability to ensure accountants are
doing theirjob, “a stronger and more direct
disciplinary system” should be considered.

Senator Dodd’s public commitment to
introduce a bill represents a critical advance
in the AICPA’s efforts to achieve securities
litigation reform.
State Progress on Limiting
Legal Liability Continues

A guide regarding implementation of a
program to close the “legal liability GAP”
was recently distributed to state CPA soci
eties. The AICPA Accountants’ Legal Lia
bility Subcommittee prepared the guide,
a first step in achieving an ideal uniform
legal liability environment.
The program addresses the actual and
ideal liability for accountants that can arise
from a wide range of state laws, regulations
and professional standards. To move from
the actual to the ideal legal environment, a
state society must “bridge the gap” between
the two—hence, the “GAP program.”
The purpose o f the legal liability
GAP program is to enable a state society
to develop a comprehensive state-specific
legal liability reform plan which will
become the foundation for all future
state society legal liability reform efforts.
In addition, a guide was recently dis
tributed explaining the different types o f
Alternative Dispute Resolution and how
state societies can set up ADR programs
in their states.

Communications Division, States Testing Electronic Bulletin Board
Enhancedpublic

The AICPA Communi
cations Division and 10
anticipated
state societies are partic
ipating in a test o f the
AICPA’s new public relations electronic
bulletin board. The bulletin board permits
two-way communication between the
AICPA and state societies, as well as among
the state societies themselves. During the
pilot program, the bulletin board will
enable users to send and receive messages;
retrieve AICPA time-sensitive items, includ
ing legislative updates; access and partici
relationsefforts

The next issue of
The CPA Letter will
be a combined
issue for the
months of Feb.
and Mar., to be
published the
beginning of Mar.

pate in an online media log data base that
summarizes what the AICPA and state soci
eties are communicating to key media con
tacts; and participate in quick, online
surveys or computer conferencing.
Geoff Pickard, AICPA vice-president—
communications, said the timely exchange
o f information should help both the AICPA
and state societies in their public relations
efforts. If the public relations bulletin
board trial is successful, the program will
be expanded to include all state societies
wishing to participate.

AICPA
News
Briefs
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White House Conference
on Small Business
Scheduled

The next White House Conference
on Small Business has been sched
uled for 1995. It will be held some
time between May 1 and Sept. 30,
With state conferences beginning on Mar. 1, 1994. Mem
bers interested in serving as delegates to the conference
should request appointments from their state governors,
or from one of the U.S. senators or representatives. The
president will also appoint 100 delegates. For more infor
mation about the conference, call the Small Business
Administration at 2 0 2 /2 0 5 -6 6 0 6 .

Directory ofState Tax Officials
Available Free
Tax practitioners and corporate tax professionals who
deal with state income taxes and sales taxes can now get
a free copy of the Directory of State Tax Officials. The direc
tory covers revenue departments in all states and the Dis
trict of Columbia and lists key personnel, mailing
addresses, telephone numbers and fax numbers.
Also included for all states are schedules of corpo
rate filing deadlines and due dates for extension requests
and estimate payments. To obtain a copy, write (on com
pany letterhead): State Taxation Institute, Attn: Leslie
Roberts, P.O. Box 81143, Atlanta, GA 30366. A selfaddressed, regular business-sized envelope with 52 ¢ in
postage must be provided.

Subchapter S Reform Bill
Introduced in Senate
A small business reform bill pushed by the AICPA would
assist more than 1.5 million of the nation’s small and
family owned S corporations by opening up new sources
of investment and simplifying the rules under which they
operate. Introduction of the S Corporation Reform Act
of 1993, S. 1690, on Nov. 19, 1993, represents more than
a year’s worth of effort by the AICPA and others.
The AICPA, the American Bar Association’s Com
mittee on S Corporations and the U.S. Chamber of Com
merce collaborated with the measure’s sponsors,
Senators David Pryor (D-Ark.) and John Danforth (RMo.), to develop the bill. Many of the provisions in S.
1690 were drawn from reform recommendations
suggested by the AICPA, the ABA and the Chamber.
Among S. 1690’s provisions are the following:
increase the allowable number of shareholders from 35
to 50; aggregate members of one family so they can be
counted as one shareholder; permit tax-exempt organi
zations, such as pension funds (including ESOPs) and
charities, to own shares of S corporation stock; expand
“safe harbor debt” to permit convertible debt, and per
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mit venture capitalists and lending institutions to hold
safe harbor debt; expand the types of trusts that can own
S corporation stock; remove tax traps by permitting the
Secretary of the Treasury to treat invalid elections as
effective and by providing for automatic waivers of cer
tain inadvertent terminations; and change the S corpora
tion laws so that S corporation shareholders are treated
the same as owners of regular corporations, with respect
to fringe benefits.
Senators Pryor and Danforth think it is possible to
pass S. 1690 as part of a tax bill later in 1994. The AICPA
will be continuing its campaign to have the legislation
enacted.

Firm Terminations from QR, PCPS
Effective O ct 5 , 1993, the enrollment of the firm of
Araki & Fujimori of Honolulu, Hawaii, in the AICPA’s
Quality Review Program was terminated because the firm
failed to revise its letter of response to its quality review,
thereby failing to cooperate with the entity administering
the review.
Effective Oct. 21, 1993, Robert S. Jacobs, Accoun
tancy Corporation, of Cupertino, Calif., was terminated
from membership in the Private Companies Practice Sec
tion for not submitting documentation evidencing com
pletion of the corrective actions deemed necessary by the
section’s Peer Review Committee as a result of its last
peer review.

Have You Moved or Changed Jobs?
So that all Institute records reflect a member’s current
status, please notify AICPA Membership Records about
any job, business affiliation or mailing address change.
Membership Records will ensure that address changes are
madefor publications included in your membership. Send a
notice of the above-mentioned changes to AICPA Mem
bership Records, Harborside Financial Center, 201 Plaza
Three, Jersey City, NJ 07311-3881; or send via fax to
2 0 1 /9 3 8 -3 1 0 8 .
Members who have purchased subscriptions should
also notify AICPA Customer Service at the same address.

Public Meeting Notices
For detailed agendas, call 8 0 0 /8 6 2 -4 2 7 2 (dept. #6)
three weeks prior to these meetings.
Accounting Standards Executive Comm ittee:
Jan. 18-19, New York
Auditing Standards Board:
Feb. 8-10, Long Boat Key, Fla.
Quality Review Executive Committee:
Jan. 24-25, San Antonio, Tex.

Certified Public Accountants, Inc. Postmaster Send address changes to The CPA Letter,
Circ. Dept, Harborside Financial Ctr., 201 Plaza Three, Jersey City, NJ 07311-3881.

Geoffrey L. Pickard
Vice-President—Communications

Ellen J. Goldstein
Editor
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Auditing &
Accounting
News

GASB to Issue Standards on Tax Revenues, Debt Refundings
defeasance of debt reported by proprietary activities. It
requires that the difference between the reacquisition
price and the net carrying amount of the old debt be
deferred and amortized as a component of interest
expense in a systematic and rational manner over the
remaining life of either the old or new debt, whichever is
shorter. The deferred amount would be reported as a
deduction from or an addition to the new debt liability.
The statement will be effective for periods beginning
after June 15.
To order copies of the statements, write: GASB
Order Department, P.O. Box 30784, Hartford, CT
06150. Price: $9 each. Some discounts may apply; call the
GASB Order Department at 2 0 3 /8 4 7 -0 7 0 0 , ext. 555. CT
orders must add 6% sales tax.

The Governmental Accounting
Standards Board has voted to issue
a final statement on accounting for
taxpayer-assessed tax revenues,
__________________ | such as sales and income taxes, in
governmental funds. It requires
that such revenue, net of estimated refunds, be recog
nized in the period the revenue becomes measurable
and available to finance the expenditures of the current
fiscal period. The statement will be effective for periods
beginning after June 15 (with earlier application
encouraged).
The GASB also approved a final statement that will
change the way state and local governments account for
current refundings and advance refundings that result in

FASB Issues Proposal on Asset Impairment
The Financial Accounting Standards Board issued a pro
posal that would specify the accounting for impairment of
long-lived assets, identifiable intangible assets, and the
goodwill related to those assets. If adopted as a final state
ment, the proposal would be effective for fiscal years
beginning after Dec. 1 5 , 1994. Comments on the proposal
are requested by Mar. 15. Public hearings will be held May
16 and 17 at the FASB’s offices in Norwalk, Conn.
For assets the entity expects to hold and use, an
impairment review would be required whenever there is
an indication that their carrying amounts might not be
recovered. In that case, the entity would estimate the
future net cash flows expected to result from operating

and eventually disposing of the assets. If the sum of
expected future net cash flows (undiscounted and with
out interest charges) is less than the carrying amounts of
the assets, the entity would be required to recognize an
impairment loss. Measurement of that loss would be
based on the fair value of the assets.
If the entity plans to dispose of assets, they would be
measured at the lower of cost or fair value less the cost to
sell, with certain exceptions.
To obtain one copy of the proposal without charge,
by Mar. 15 write: FASB Order Department, 401 Merritt 7,
P.O. Box 5116, Norwalk, CT 06856-5116; or call
2 0 3 /8 4 7 -0 7 0 0 , ext. 555.

Deliberations on Risks and Uncertainties SOP Continue
The Accounting Standards Executive Committee
received m ore than 300 com m ent letters on its Mar.
31, 1993, exposure draft of a proposed statement of
position, Disclosure of Certain Significant Risks and Uncer
tainties and Financial Flexibility ( The CPA Letter, Apr.

1993). AcSEC and its Risks and Uncertainties Task
Force are considering substantive changes to the pro
posed SOP, based on the comments received. A revised
draft is expected to be presented to AcSEC for discus
sion in Mar.

Highlights of Board of Directors' Recent Meeting
At its meeting on Nov. 18-19, 1993, the AICPA Board of
Directors:
■ Approved a revised Strategic Plan for the Institute that
has fewer objectives to achieve the AICPA’s mission and
fewer strategic thrusts or areas of immediate emphasis.
The reduction was possible because several strategic objec
tives were combined, and many previous thrusts have
resulted in additional emphasis in ongoing programs.
■ Approved a program of collaborative planning with the
state CPA societies designed to achieve common planning
assumptions to enhance service to members, and enable
the states and the Institute to avoid duplication in strategic
planning and in resulting programs and activities.
■ Received a report from the chairman of the Special
Committee on Financial Reporting on information
learned from users of financial statements. Such infor

mation will lead to recommendations for the benefit of
the FASB and others to improve financial reporting,
which will be presented to Council in the spring.
■ Approved appointment of a task force to develop a
response to the Report of the Special Committee on the
Future of CPE for presentation to Council in May. The
report had been referred to the Board at the fall Council
meeting. A consulting firm has been engaged to assist
the task force in its work.
■ Approved strategic plans of the Management Consult
ing Services and Personal Financial Planning executive
committees.
■ Authorized leasing o f additional space at the Harbor
side, N.J., facility to accommodate moving from New
York the shipping, printing, CPE course warehousing,
and CPA Examination grading operations.
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Compilation and Review Alert—1993 Issued by Auditing Standards Division
The Compilation and Review Alert—1993, a nonauthorita
tive practice aid designed to help accountants plan their
compilation and review engagements, has been issued.
The alert clarifies certain existing professional standards,
suggests ways of implementing statements on standards
for accounting and review services in unusual circum
stances, points out pitfalls that frequently occur in com
pilation and review engagements, and summarizes new
professional and accounting pronouncements that may
affect compilation and review engagements.
Some of the topics covered in the alert include:
■ Implementing Statement on Standards for Accounting
and Review Services No. 7—SSARS No. 7 is effective for
periods ending after Dec. 15,1993, and contains provi
sions, such as requiring a representation letter in a review
engagement, that change compilation and review practice.
The alert summarizes the provisions of SSARS No. 7 and
presents samples of compilation and review reports incor
porating the new wording established by SSARS No. 7.
■ Financial Statements Submitted Electronically—The
alert confirms that SSARSs are applicable in these circum
stances. It also provides guidance on the mechanics of
submitting a report when these media are used and on
dealing with prescribed forms in an electronic format.
■ Maintaining Independence When Providing Payroll
Services—CPAs may be asked to perform payroll prepa
ration services for compilation or review clients when the
employee responsible for payroll is away or when man
agement elects to have this service performed outside
the organization. The alert presents factors a CPA should
consider when providing payroll services to a client in an
engagement that requires independence.
■ Performing a Lower Level of Service—The alert indi
cates that an accountant may issue a compilation report

Disciplinary
Actions

As a result o f decisions by hearing
panels of the Joint Trial Board, the
following members have had their
memberships:
— Terminated from the AICPA
and a state CPA society:
■ Donald E. SwansonJr. o f East
Moline, Ill.—for failing to cooper
ate with the Illinois CPA Society ethics committee in a
disciplinary investigation of a complaint.
— Suspendedfrom the AICPA and their state CPA soci
eties for violating their codes of professional conduct:
■ Richard K. Vanlanduyt of Lake Geneva, Wis.—from
Sept. 2 , 1993, to Sept. 2 , 1994, upon pleading guilty to
violating the rules on professional competence, due pro
fessional care, and compliance with standards in his
examination o f an employee benefit plan. He is also
required to complete specified CPE courses within the
suspension period and to submit a list o f audits done
within the suspension period from which one engage
ment will be selected for review.
■William G. Samarzia o f White Bear Lake, Minn.—from
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on financial statements that omit substantially all disclo
sures when full-disclosure financial statements were pre
viously audited, reviewed or compiled and when the
omission of the disclosure is not undertaken with the
intention o f misleading financial statement users.
■ Engagement Letters—An engagement letter may help to
minimize liability claims against a CPA firm because it doc
uments the details of the agreement between the CPA and
the client The alert enumerates the elements that gener
ally should be included in an effective engagement letter.
■ RMA Prescribed-Form Financial Statements—Robert
Morris Associates, the association o f bank lending offi
cers, in conjunction with the AICPA’s Private Compa
nies Practice Section, has developed a Business Credit
Information Package to be used by small businesses when
applying for credit from financial institutions. The alert
provides an update on the package which features a pre
scribed form for financial statements that requires
selected disclosures rather than full disclosure and is tai
lored to the information needs of financial institutions.
■ GAAP for Compiled or Reviewed Financial Statements—
Although there are different reporting and performance
standards for compilation, review and audit engagements,
the accounting principles to be followed in compiled and
reviewed financial statements are the same as those in
audited financial statements. The alert identifies and
describes the publications that contain pronouncements
included in levels “a” through “d” of the GAAP hierarchy.
The alert also includes a copy of a pamphlet titled
The Representation Letter in a SSARS Review Engagement and
one titled Understanding Compilation, Review and Audit.
Product No. 060666CL. Price: $10. A copy may be
obtained through the AICPA Order Department (see
page 7).

Sept. 2 , 1993, to Sept. 2 , 1994, or sooner if he success
fully completes specified CPE courses, for violating the
independence rule by performing an audit o f an entity
in which he was an officer, director and shareholder.
Failure to complete the CPE by Sept. 2, 1994, will result
in automatic expulsion from membership.
—Admonished for violating the AICPA and state CPA
society codes of professional conduct:
■ Christian D. Engquist o f Troy, Mich.—for taking an
engagement which he could not reasonably expect to
complete with professional competence; for failing to
comply with standards; and for fa iling to follow standards,
procedures or other requirements in a governmental
audit He is also required to complete specified CPE
courses within one year and to submit a list of governmen
tal audits from which one engagement will be selected for
review. Failure to comply with the panel’s requirements
will result in automatic expulsion from membership.
■ Stephen J. Brown of Chicago—for violating the
Integrity and Objectivity rule by issuing an unqualified
report to a governmental agency while knowing that
such report omitted required disclosures.

AICPA
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The Auditor’s Responsibility to Detect Fraud
The auditor’s responsibility to detect fraud was discussed
in the May 1993 issue of The CPA Letter, but it is clear
some members are still confused about their responsibil
ity—and some commentators have objected to the posi
tion of the AICPA Board of Directors on the matter ( The
CPA Letter, June 1993).
In a nutshell, the public looks to the auditor to
detect material fraud, and Statement on Auditing Stan
dards No. 53, The Auditor's Responsibility to Detect and
Report Errors and Irregularities, recognizes that responsibil
ity. The SAS requires the auditor to assess the risk that
errors or irregularities may cause the financial state
ments to contain a material misstatement. Based on that
assessment, the auditor should design the audit to pro
vide reasonable assurance of detecting errors and irregu
larities that are material to the financial statements.
In a few cases, a client’s employees and its customers
and suppliers may act in collusion to hide the truth and
may provide auditors with false information and forged
documents. When that happens, a fraud may not be
uncovered. But when that happens, an auditor still will—
and should—be judged on whether everything that
should have been done in the circumstances was done.
Part o f the reason there is some confusion about the
auditor’s responsibility to detect fraud may stem from
old auditing standards that still are cited in some engage
ment letters. If a firm’s standard engagement letter says
something like “our examination is not primarily or
specifically designed, and cannot be relied upon, to
detect fraud, defalcations, and other irregularities,” it is
wrong. Auditing standards have not used that language
since 1977. An illustration o f appropriate engagement
letter language is contained in Exhibit 204-4 in the Man
agement of an Accounting Practice Handbook.
The AICPA’s Audit Risk Alert—1993 indicates that if
the risk that material errors and irregularities may exist is
determined to be high, the auditor should revise the
audit plan accordingly. Ordinarily, higher risk suggests a
need to assign more experienced personnel to the
engagement and to provide more supervision. Higher
risk also suggests the need to expand the extent o f audit
procedures applied, to perform them closer to the bal
ance sheet date, or to modify the nature o f the proce
dures to obtain more persuasive evidence. Most
important, higher risk should cause the auditor to exer
cise a heightened degree of professional skepticism
when conducting the audit In some situations, such as
when management integrity is in question, the auditor
may decide that the best course o f action is to withdraw
from the engagement.
Most client managements are of unquestioned
integrity and are forthright in responding to auditor
inquiries and requests for information. However, given
sufficient incentives and opportunity, a small number of
entities may intentionally misstate reported financial
condition and operating results. Such incentives may
include—
■ A public or private placement of securities in process
or contemplated in the near future.

■ A substantial portion of executives’ remuneration
dependent on operating results.
■ The entity being put up for sale.
■ Management undertaking an acquisition program
using the entity’s stock as consideration.
■ Indications that the entity will fall short of meeting its
own and securities analysts’ forecasts of earnings.
Examples of conditions that provide the opportunity
for fraudulent financial reporting include—
■ A chief executive officer who dominates the entity’s
board o f directors and others on his or her management
team, seeks and receives a great deal of press, and is pre
occupied with meeting and exceeding revenue and
profit forecasts at all costs.
■ A weak control environment as evidenced by a lack of
concern for basic controls, a blatant disregard of auditor
recommendations to improve controls, and weak
accounting and financial personnel relative to the size
and complexity of the entity. (Apart from any other con
siderations, this condition, particularly when prolonged,
may warrant careful evaluation of whether to continue
the client relationship.)
The presence of one or more of the above incentives
and opportunities alone may not necessarily be cause for
alarm. However, their presence, along with the existence
of factors such as the following, should raise concern.
■ Recent significant sales o f the entity’s stock by insiders.
■ Reported allegations o f management impropriety by
employees.
■ Recent changes in accounting principles that favorably
impact reported earnings.
■ Sale of real estate with complex or unusual terms.
■ Unusually large increases in year-end sales to a single
or a few customers.
■ Dramatic increases in sales and receivables along with
increases in gross profit margins inconsistent with past
experience or industry averages.
■ Certain sales o f merchandise that are billed to cus
tomers prior to delivery and held by the seller (bill-andhold transactions).
■ Significant and unexpected increases in inventories
(particularly in-transit inventories).
■Judgmental allowances (for example, bad debts, inven
tory obsolescence or product warranty) consistently esti
mated at or near the low end of reasonableness.
■ Delays in producing requested documents.
■ Unusual and material related-party transactions.
■ A significant number of postclosing adjustments that
increase reported income.
When there is concern about the possibility of fraud
ulent financial reporting, a heightened degree of skepti
cism should be brought to bear during the audit.
Auditors must fully understand the substance of the
transaction or event at issue, seek thorough explanations
from management, and obtain appropriate evidence to
corroborate management’s explanations. In addition,
consultation with others should occur whenever the
(over)
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audit team is unsure or does not fully understand the
complexity of a particular transaction or event and when
ever a question arises about management’s integrity. Finally,
for the high-risk areas o f the audit, the audit scope
should be expanded to reflect the audit team’s skepti
cism, and the work papers should document completely,
but concisely, the accounting and reporting issues in
question, the procedures performed, and audit evidence
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obtained to support the conclusions.
Additional guidance on fraud detection in the cur
rent economy can be found in the recently published
Audit Risk Alert— 1993 (No. 022099CL). Although the
risk alert is nonauthoritative, it is recommended that
professional staff performing audits read and study it. To
order a copy, contact the AICPA Order Department (see
page 7). Price: $10.

CPE Now Offered Based onJournal ofAccountancy Articles
A new CPE product—CPE Direct—is a subscription
series that enables members to earn CPE credit for read
ing certain Journal ofAccountancy articles and completing
a study guide. Up to 24 hours a year may be earned at a
cost of just $129.
The price includes four study guides, issued quar
terly, which are based on designated articles in the three
preceding monthly issues o f the Journal The articles will
cover information on a broad range o f subjects, includ
ing financial accounting, auditing, taxation, interna
tional business, consulting services and human
resources. CPE Direct study guides will also contain
other readings, checklists or practice aids to enhance
members’ insight. The study guides will be released in
Mar., June, Sept., and Dec.

CPE
News

The 1993-1994 AICPA Guide to
Preparing Form 1040 is the latest
edition of the best-selling course
that takes members through the
1040 form step-by-step. New this
year: the practical effects of the
1993 tax law on tax clients, with
down-to-earth examples of the most
important changes. Recommended CPE credit: 12 hours.
Format: 3 audiocassettes/workbook (No. 744237CLA),
$101.15; additional workbook (No. 744238CLA), $57.37.
Learn how the latest laws and regulations affect the
preparation of Form 1120 from the 1993-1994 AICPA
Guide to Preparing Form 1120. Recommended CPE
credit: 17 hours. Format: 2 audiocassettes/workbook
(No. 744351CLA), $135.15; additional workbook (No.
744352CLA), $70.12.
1993-1994 AICPA Guide to Solving Advanced 1040
Problems—Parts I and II—will arm members with
answers to more difficult tax situations. Highlights of
Part I: employee business expenses, passive loss rules,
interest expense, charitable contributions. Highlights of
Part II: stock and other securities transactions, casualty
gains and losses, sale o f residence, AMT. Recommended
CPE credit: 8 hours per part. Format: Part I: 2 audiocas
settes/workbook (No. 754002CLA), $92.65; additional
workbook (No. 754003CLA), $50.57. Part II: 2 audiocas
settes/workbook (No. 754022CLA), $92.65; additional
workbook (No. 754023CLA), $50.57. Parts I and II: 4
audiocassettes/2 workbooks (No. 754042CLA), $131.75;
2 additional workbooks (No. 754043CLA), $76.07.
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To receive CPE credit, members need to read the
designated articles, complete the study guide, answer the
questions and return the answer sheet for grading. A pass
ing grade affords the member an AICPA Certificate of
Completion stating that the member has earned 6 recom
mended CPE credits in a specified field of study. Six cred
its in specified fields of study will be given each time a
quarterly answer sheet is sent in, for a total of 24 credits.
Order now to receive the Mar. study guide. CPE
Direct (No. G01046CL) is available through the AICPA
Order Department (give operator code CLB and AICPA
membership number) and state CPA societies. Price:
$129. Recommended CPE credit: 24 hours.
For more information on CPE Direct, call the
AICPA’s CPE Division at 800/862-4272 (dept. #3).

Discounted prices have been provided for all tax
guide courses listed at left. To receive the 15% discount,
orders must be placed by Feb. 28. The courses are avail
able through either the AICPA Order Department or
state CPA societies.

Conference
National Industry Conference, Apr. 27-29, Phoenix. Rec
ommended CPE credit: 21 hours. For more information,
contact the AICPA Meetings and Travel Services Depart
ment at 201/938-3232.

Group Study
New from the AICPA this spring will be an eight-course
Business Valuation Certificate of Educational Achieve
ment Program. Participants will learn the skills necessary
to perform valuations for any client need, from estate
and gift planning and litigation support to buy—sell
agreements, mergers, condemnations and ESOPS. This
CEA program covers all the key aspects of business valua
tions, including writing the report. Developed by experts
with years of field experience for the Illinois CPA Foun
dation, this program has run successfully for the past
three years and will now be offered nationally through
the AICPA. Enrollment is limited to qualified CPAs with
an interest in growing their valuation services to new and
existing clients. Recommended CPE credit: 64 hours.
For complete information, including dates, locations,
costs and how to enroll and register, write: LaTanya
Junior, AICPA, Harborside Financial Center, 201 Plaza
Three, Jersey City, NJ 07311-3881.
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New
Products &
Publications

1993 Tax Practice Guides and Check
lists (No. 059507CL) contains more

than 350 pages, providing users
with invaluable material for prepa
ration and review of all principal
tax forms, letters o f transmittal to
clients, engagement letters and
other helpful guides. Return prepa
ration and review checklists for all the principal forms
are included. New to the 1993 edition are the Gift Tax
Return Checklist for Form 709, a 1041 Engagement Let
ter, additional organizers, and a section 704(b) practice
guide/sample worksheets. Price: $70.
The guides are also available in a software version—
APG 2 Tax Volume 1 (No. 016836CL)—which can be
used in conjunction with Audit Program Generator 2.0.
Price: $47.50. The paperback version, which will be avail
able Jan. 7, will automatically be sent to all Tax section
members free o f charge. APG 2 Tax Volume 1 will be
available Jan. 31.

Four Information Technology
Publications Available
Image Processing and Optical Character Recognition— How
They Work and How to Implement Them (No. 043000CL) is

a practice aid designed to help organizations implement
image processing and optical character recognition. It
includes a diagram o f an image processing system and a
description of the technical architecture used by one
organization. Image processing and OCR are two tech
niques that accounting professionals are encountering in
their daily operations, and they enable organizations to
become more efficient and to provide better customer
service. Price: $14.
Memory Management (No. 043001CL) is a technology
bulletin that will help accounting professionals under
stand the issue o f PC memory management and learn
how to take full advantage of their computer’s resources.
It explains the five types of memory and the most effi
cient means of optimizing memory. It contains sample
configurations and a glossary of the terminology used in
memory management. Price: $20.
Executive Information Systems (No. 043002CL) is
designed to inform accounting professionals about the
capabilities and features of today’s executive information

Mentors Sought for AICPA
Minority Scholarship Recipients
The Minority Educational Initiatives Committee is seek
ing CPA volunteers to serve as mentors to accounting
students who have been awarded AICPA Minority Schol
arships. Involvement with the student might include giv
ing advice on interviewing techniques, assistance with
resume writing, sharing personal experiences, and pro
viding insights into the profession.
Interested members should contact GregoryJohnson
of the Academic and Career Development Division at
212/596-6227.

AICPA
systems (EIS). The bulletin identifies ways EISs can bene
fit businesses and how such systems affect both internal
and external accountants. Price: $20.
Organizations will get help with implementing a
computer disaster recovery plan with Computer Disaster
Recovery Planning Guide (No. 043003CL). The author
discusses, among other things, general office/personnel
procedures, tape backup procedures, tape rotation and
virus protection software. In addition, the aid contains
several disaster recovery checklists: general checklist,
equipment listing, software listing, insurance evaluation,
backup control log and off-site location worksheet.
Price: $20 (available Jan. 15).
For information on these publications, which are
sent without charge to Information Technology section
members, call the Information Technology membership
section at 212/596-6010.
Professional Accounting in Foreign Countries is a series of
books providing current information on the business envi
ronment, professional accounting principles and prac
tices, and auditing procedures in foreign countries. New
to the series are books on Hong Kong (No. 010136CL)
and Singapore (No. 010135CL). Price: $30 each.
The International Federation of Accountants has released
a proposed study, Using the Work of OtherAuditors (No.
800063CL). The proposed study is a commentary on the
International Standard on Auditing No. 5, Using the Work
ofAnother Auditor, and ISA No. 10, Considering the Work of
InternalAudit The study clarifies the applicability of ISAs
5 and 10 to the audits of public sector entities, and identi
fies and provides guidance on particular issues which
arise in the public sector when using the work of other
auditors. Comments are due Jan. 31. Price: First copy is
free; each additional copy costs $5.

To order, write: AICPA Order Department, CL194,
P.O. Box 2209, Jersey City, NJ 07303-2209; order via
fax, 800/362-5066; or call 800/862-4272 (dept. #1).
Ask for Operator CL194. The best times to call are
8:30 to 11:30 a.m. and 2:00 to 5:30 p.m., EST. Orders
for exposure drafts must be written or faxed. Prices
do not include shipping and Handling-

Changes in 1994 CPA Exam Announced
The May 1994 Uniform CPA Exam will have four new
sections: Financial Accounting & Reporting; Accounting
& Reporting—Taxation, Managerial and N ot-for-Profit;
Business Law & Professional Responsibilities; and Audit
ing. The exam will take place over two days, and there
also will be new percentage ranges for multiple-choice
questions, other objective formats, and essays or prob
lems; assessment of writing skills; and use of calculators.
For more information, send a self-addressed, businesssized envelope with 29¢ in postage to: AICPA, P.O. Box
2207, Jersey City, NJ 07303-2207.
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The President’s Council on
Integrity & Efficiency Standards
Subcommittee has issued the Study
on Improving the Single Audit Process.

The report (stock number 065-00000615-4) is the result of a compre
hensive study on how to improve audits of federal funds
under the Single Audit Act of 1984. To order, write: U.S.
Government Printing Office, Superintendent of Docu
ments, Mail Stop: SSOP, Washington, D.C. 20402-9328;
or call 202/783-3238. Price: $7.50.

Form 5500 Notice from
Labor Department
The Department of Labor Pension and Welfare Benefits
Administration has announced that it will not reject
Form 5500 Annual Return/Report filings for the 1993
plan year solely because of a failure to file required
financial schedules in accordance with the format pre
scribed by Schedule G. Because service providers may be
unable to modify their computerized recordkeeping sys
tems in time to provide plan administrators with the
required information in the format prescribed by

Schedule G for the 1993 plan year filings, mandatory uti
lization of Schedule G has been deferred until the 1994
plan year. However, plan administrators should be aware
that while the use o f the Schedule G form is optional, the
information required by that schedule still must be
included in the filing.

Government Makes More
Information Available
Rescission of a 1981 rule by President Clinton will make
more information available to the public under the Free
dom of Information Act. The 1981 rule encouraged fed
eral agencies to withhold information whenever there
was “a substantial legal basis” for doing so. A new “pre
sumption of disclosure” standard will be applied instead.
New litigation guidance also was issued by the Justice
Department. Agencies were urged to review their current
FOIA practices and to reduce their FOIA backlogs.

SEC Issues Staff Accounting Bulletin
The Securities and Exchange Commission has issued
Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 93, which expresses certain
views of the staff regarding accounting and disclosures
related to discontinued operations. For more informa
tion, see the Federal Register, Nov. 9, 1993.
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A News Report to Members

A c co u n tan ts

Highlights of
What’s Inside

Highlights of Board of Directors’ Recent Meeting

Speech Endorsing
Securities Litigation
Reform Delivered at
Key Person
Conference
2
Statements of
Position 93-7, 93-8
Issued

3

Women and Family
Issues Committee
Testifies Before
Glass Ceiling
Commission
4
HUD Issues
Final Rule to
Implement OMB
Circular A-133

At its meeting on Feb.
■ Authorized appointment of a Special
3-4, the AICPA Board
Committee on Audit/Assurance to develop
of Directors:
a strategic plan for an expanded assurance
■
Decided
function
to discuss
and to
at act as a catalyst for change
the Mar. regional meetings of members of
to achieve its implementation.
Council:
■ Received an assessment of the CPE mar
—A revised proposal of the Special
ketplace from the consulting firm of Towers
AICPA Task Force on Specialization to
Perrin.
establish a uniform process for future
■ Received a report from the chair of the
accreditation.
Accounting Careers Subcommittee regard
—The recommendation o f the Task
ing its efforts to attract the highest quality
Force on Non-CPA Ownership that employ students into accountancy, as well as a pre
ees of a firm who are not CPAs be entitled
sentation on the changing demographics of
to participate in the ownership of that firm.
the future CPA pool.
■ Approved a request o f the Private Compa ■ Received reports from the chairs o f the
nies Practice Section to proceed with a
Financial Accounting Standards Board,
plan to implement the combination of the
Accounting Standards Executive Commit
peer review and quality review programs,
tee, the Professional Ethics Executive Com
which includes appointment o f a special
mittee and COSO (Committee of
committee to consider issues related to the
Sponsoring Organizations of the National
combination o f the PCPS peer review and
Commission on Fraudulent Financial
quality review programs.
Reporting—the "Treadway Commission”).
Topics setfor
meetings of
Council members
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The CPA Letter Surveys Its Readers
Members’
The CPA Letter’s second
suggestions are under readership survey was
consideration
conducted in the fall of

1993. Questionnaires
were mailed to 4,000 randomly selected
members in all membership groups. Follow
ing are some o f the key results.
Fully 87% o f the members surveyed gave
the newsletter an overall rating of “good” or
“excellent,” and an equal rating was given to
the quality of content. In fact, 88% of survey
respondents said The CPA Letter adequately
identifies important issues affecting mem
bers or the accounting profession. When
asked how many of the previous four issues
they looked through or read, 72% of mem
bers said all four, and 10% said three of four.

More than half the readers save the newslet
ter for future reference, pass it on to others,
or clip or copy items of interest.
Among several new questions added to
this second survey was one on the degree of
interest to read about human resources top
ics. For all the topics listed, such as salary
trends and interviewing skills, a clear major
ity said information about these subjects
would be useful to them. More than 6 in 10
respondents found the “Index of Selected
Articles” published for the first time last year
to be useful.
The responses and suggestions received
from the readership survey are under
review. Thank you for your suggestions and
continued interest in The CPA Letter.

AICPA
News
Briefs
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AICPA Offers New
Employee Benefit Plans
Conference

The Employee Benefit Plans
Accounting, Auditing, and Tax Con
ference will provide participants with
information on important aspects of
all types of employee benefit plans. This first-ever combined
conference will be held May 10-12 at theJ.W. Marriott
Hotel in Washington, D.C. Participants may choose a one-,
two-, or three-day format To obtain more information by
fax, including a registration form, dial 201/938-3787 on a
fax machine, follow the voice cues, and select document
No. 510. Information is also available by calling AICPA
Meetings & Travel at 201/938-3232. Recommended CPE
credit: one day, 8 hours; two days, 16 hours; three days, 24
hours; an additional hour is available on the third day.
Price: $395 for one day, $545 for two days, $645 for three
days; early-bird special expires Apr. 9; group discounts for
three or more available.

Women and Family Issues Conference
to Be Held
The AICPA Women and Family Issues Executive Com
mittee will be cosponsoring a one-day conference on
women and family issues in the accounting workplace
with the New York State Society of CPAs and with Cata
lyst, a non-profit research and advisory organization.
The first-ever conference will be held on June 13 at the
Sheraton New York Hotel and Towers in New York City.
Lynn Martin, former United States Secretary of Labor, will
be the keynote speaker. Both Catalyst and the AICPA
Women and Family Issues Executive Committee will pre
sent the results of their research on women and family
issues. Breakout session topics include building the busi
ness case for work/family initiatives, alternative work
schedules, gender dynamics in the workplace, and practice
development Members interested in receiving the confer
ence brochure or registration information should contact
Sherry Boothe at 212/596-6224. Attendance is limited.
On a related but separate issue, Apr. 28 will be the
second annual Take Our Daughters to Work Day. A mil
lion and a half girls (ages 9-15) are expected to accom
pany their parents or mentors to their workplaces across
the country next month. Started last year in a New York
City-wide public education campaign, the program,
which aims to boost girls’ self-esteem in adolescence,
was quickly embraced throughout the United States. For
more information or an organizer’s kit, call the MS
Foundation at 800/436-1800.

PCPS Expels Member Firm
The firm of Gerard L. Caron, Lynn, Mass., was expelled
from the Private Companies Practice Section effective
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Dec. 9 , 1993, because a PCPS hearing panel found the
firm violated the membership requirements of the sec
tion by failing to take actions required by the Peer Review
Committee as a result of the firm’s 1991 peer review.

Speech Endorsing Securities Litigation
Reform Delivered at
Key Person Conference
Senator Barbara Mikulski (D-Md.) delivered a rousing
endorsement of securities litigation reform legislation at
January’sAICPA Federal Key Person Coordinators’ Confer
ence and credited her AICPA Key Person and representa
tives of the Maryland Association of CPAs with convincing
her of the need for it Senator Mikulski said, “...They gave
me case examples of what it would mean to sectors of the
Maryland economy... [and] ...examples of what it would
mean...in terms of generating newjobs... As I listened, I
found out that accountants are being lumped into these
securities lawsuits that are filed at the courthousejust
hours after a change occurs in the stock price....Know that
I came to this position...because I listened to you....”
Senator Mikulski was not considered a likely supporter
of securities litigation reform because her Senate service
and committee involvement has not afforded her close
contact with securities issues or other Senate Banking
Committee business. However, her AICPA Key Person and
other Maryland CPAs successfully explained the economic
consequences of these lawsuits to vital sectors of the state’s
economy, as well as to the accounting profession, illustrat
ing the flaws of the present system in such a way the sena
tor was persuaded to support the profession’s position.

Supply and Demand Study Available
The 1993 edition of The Supply of Accounting Graduates
and the Demandfor Public Accounting Recruits (No.
G00099CL) shows that 9% more accounting graduates
were employed by public accounting firms in 1992 than
in 1991. New accounting recruits with master’s degrees
were especially in demand, with firms employing 51%
more of them in 1992 than in 1991. For a free copy of the
study, write or fax the AICPA Order Department (see
page 5). The 1994 edition of the study, which will look at
the new accounting graduates for the 1992-93 academic
year and new accounting recruits employed by firms dur
ing 1993, is expected to be issued by the summer.

Public Meeting Notices
For detailed agendas, call 800/862-4272 (dept. #6)
three weeks prior to these meetings.
Accounting Standards Executive Committee:
Mar. 1-3, New York; Apr. 19-20, Tempe, Ariz.
Auditing Standards Board:
Apr. 19-21, New York

Certified Public Accountants, Inc. Postmaster Send address changes to The CPA Letter,
Circ. Dept., Harborside Financial Ctr., 201 Plaza Three, Jersey City, NJ 07311-3881.
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P ractice A le r t
ABOUT THE PROFESSIONAL ISSUES TASK FORCE
n March 1993, the Public Oversight Board (PO B) of

I

responsible for accumulating and considering practice

the SEC Practice Section o f the A IC P A ’s Division for

issues that appear to present audit concerns for practitioners

CPA Firms issued a special report, “ In the Public

and for disseminating information, as appropriate, in the

Interest - Issues Confronting the Accounting Profession.”

form o f practice alerts. T h e task force will also refer

It contained recommendations for improving financial

matters that may require a reconsideration o f existing

reporting and the audit process that were directed to

standards to appropriate standard-setting bodies.

various bodies, including the SEC Practice Section. In

T h e P IT F is comprised of CPAs with diverse back

its June 1993 report, “ Meeting the Financial Reporting

grounds and legal representatives. It currently includes

Needs of the Future: A Public Commitment from the

representatives from the SECPS Executive Committee;

Public Accounting Profession,” the A IC P A Board of

Quality Control Inquiry Committee; SECPS and PCPS

Directors responded favorably to those recommendations.

Peer Review Committees; Auditing Standards Board;

In response to one o f the PO B’s suggestions for the
profession to facilitate the resolution o f emerging audit
practice issues by publishing information based on issues

Professional Ethics Executive Committee; and the legal
or related departments o f accounting firms.
T h e SECPS executive committee and the P IT F hope

arising in litigation, peer reviews and firm inspections,

you find this information beneficial and encourage its broad

the SECPS executive committee established a

dissemination among all professionals. T h e P I T F ’s initial

Professional Issues Task Force (P IT F ). T h e P IT F is

practice alert, “ Dealing with Audit Differences,” follows.

DEALING WITH AUDIT DIFFERENCES

n o

. 94-1

NOTICE TO READERS
This practice alert is intended to provide auditors with information that may help them improve the efficiency and effectiveness of their
audits. This document has been prepared by the SEC Practice Section Professional Issues Task Force and is based on the experiences
of the individual members of the task force, including issues arising from litigation and peer reviews. It has not been approved, disap
proved or otherwise acted upon by any committee of the AICPA.

Introduction

A

uditors often identify potential adjustments to

■ An agreement with management to waive “ hard”

client accounts as a consequence o f audit work

debit audit differences, including errors, because they

performed. Although auditors recognize the impor

have identified offsetting “ soft” credit differences can

tance o f identifying and accumulating audit differences,

result in problems. Experience has shown that soft

experiences, including those from litigation and peer reviews,

differences may not materialize, particularly when

suggest that audits can be more effective if auditors pay closer

they are discovered by management at the last

attention to this identification and accumulation process.

minute after being informed o f “ hard” differences.

Specifically, auditors should be mindful that:
■ T h e materiality of audit differences needs to be considered

■ Numerous audit differences trending in the same direc
tion might suggest bias on the part of management to

in light of various factors in addition to earnings and stock

achieve an earnings forecast. In the worst case, it could

holders’ equity, such as the impact on debt covenants.

be a possible prelude to fraud.
OVER

■ Accumulated unrecorded audit differences that are not

part o f management. In considering that possible bias, as

material can often become more significant when condi

well as aggregated unadjusted audit differences, the

tions change or an entity changes management or own

auditor is well advised to bear in mind that the financial

ership, particularly if the purchase price is based on

statements still could be materially misstated due to

book value or a multiple o f earnings.

differences that have not been detected.

■ Audit committees and outsiders (attorneys, regulators,

Audit differences are ordinarily accumulated in

other auditors, etc.) who become aware o f waived audit

order to assess their effects on significant components of

differences sometimes question why those differences

the financial statements. T h e accumulated audit differ

were not recorded, especially if they are marginally

ences should include both known differences (e.g., math

below materiality thresholds, are errors and/or are clear

ematical mistakes, omissions, errors in classifying or

deviations from generally accepted accounting princi

recording balances or transactions) and likely differences

ples. Audit committees may become upset that they

(e.g., projected total misstatements from sampling

were not previously informed o f these differences.

applications, differences between an estimate recorded
by the client and the auditor’s assessment o f the closest

Evaluating Audit Differences

reasonable amount).

Auditing standards require the auditor to consider
whether aggregated uncorrected misstatements, in relation

Communicating Audit Differences

to individual amounts, subtotals or totals in the financial

Encouraging management to record audit differences,

statements, materially misstate the financial statements

even if they are not material to the current year financial

taken as a whole. Experience indicates that auditors also

statements, sends a clear message about management’s

may need to give closer consideration to the effects on

responsibility for the accounting records and financial

compliance with debt covenants, widely used ratios, finan

statements. There is usually a much greater likelihood

cial statement disclosures and whether they may be

management will record appropriate adjustments when

indicative o f an irregularity or illegal act. (See SAS No. 47,

those adjustments are brought to their attention early in

“Audit Risk and Materiality in Conducting an Audit,” AU

the audit process. Recording such differences assures that

Section 312.27-32.) T h e internal control implications o f

future financial statements will not be affected by an

identified audit differences should also be carefully

accumulation o f unadjusted differences. An accumulation

considered.

o f immaterial unadjusted differences may take on

Auditors should exercise great care when netting

increased significance if an entity or a business segment is

“ hard” debit differences and “soft” credit differences

sold, a new management team is appointed or if those

because the soft differences may never materialize. For

differences become subject to scrutiny by third parties

example, the auditor should be careful if a client proposes

such as attorneys, regulators or other auditors. In the

to reduce inventory obsolescence reserves in order to

event that audit differences are not recorded and are

offset proposed physical inventory test count differences

assessed as immaterial, the auditor should work towards

that decrease inventory. Last-minute entries oftentimes

an agreed plan for management to record such items in

need an even higher degree o f audit challenge, particular

the succeeding year.

ly if they seem to offset unfavorable proposed audit
differences.
Also, even when individual accounting estimates

Finally, auditors are reminded o f their obligation to
inform the audit committee, or other formally designated
oversight body, o f adjustments arising from the audit

included in the financial statements are within acceptable

that could, in their judgment, have a significant effect

boundaries, the auditor should consider whether the trend

on the entity’s financial reporting process. (See SAS No.

o f the differences between those estimates and the audi

61, “ Communication with Audit Committees,”

tor’s best estimates might suggest a possible bias on the

AU Section 380.09.)

Comments or questions on this a le rt should be directed to the AICPA Division fo r CPA Firms at 1-800-C P A -FIR M .
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Spring National Industry Conference Returns to Phoenix
The newly form ed CPE Liaison Subcommittee o f the
Members In Industry Executive Committee is proud to
sponsor the AICPA 1994 Spring National Industry Con
ference, April 27-29,1994 at The Pointe Hilton Resort at
Tapatio Cliffs, Phoenix, Arizona.
The Spring Conference will follow the same success
ful format as prior Fall and Spring National Industry
Conferences. Within two and one-half days you can earn
up to 21 hours o f CPE credit while sharing experiences
with more than 700 o f your fellow industry CPAs.
One very special addition to this year’s conference
will be the presentation o f the first annual AICPA OUT

STANDING CPA IN BUSINESS
AND INDUSTRY AWARD. The
Members In Industry Executive
Committee developed this
award to properly recognize the
achievements o f the CPA
employed in business and indus
try and to promote the CPA
designation as the premier pro
fessional credential for financial
managers. The award will be
presented, during Wednesday’s
luncheon, and we hope to see
Barry Asmus
all o f you there to help us honor
this distinguished individual.
The featured speakers and presentations at the con
ference include:
Dr. H. James Maxmin, CEO o f Laura Ashley H old
ings, PLC, who will share with us his views on Leadership
and Change;
Dr. Barry Asmus, Senior Economist at the National
Center for Policy Analysis, who will discuss opportunities
in the Global Economy;
Somers White, a dynamic professional speaker and
management consultant, who will open the confer

ence with his presentation on Pride, Professionalism
and Productivity.
Edmund L. Jenkins, Chairman o f the AICPA Special
Committee on Financial Reporting, who will conduct a
session on the new proposed financial reporting model;
John Hunnicutt, AICPA Vice President o f Govern
ment Affairs and Dennis Eckart, form er U.S. Congress
man and public member o f the AICPA’s Board o f
Directors, who will conduct a special session addressing
the legislative and regulatory challenges facing the
accounting profession today.
A sample o f other concurrent session titles:
■ What Controllers Need to
Know but are Never Taught;
■ Managing People;
■ Assuring a Return on your
Total Quality Investment;
■ Developing a Computer
Strategy for the ’90s;
■ Benchmarking the Finance
Function;
■ Is Price Based Costing
Practical?

Jim Maxmin

REGISTRATION
INFORMATION

The registration fee for the
conference is $520, and includes general and concurrent
sessions, handout materials, three continental breakfasts,
two luncheons, refreshment breaks, a cocktail reception,
and our own “Downhome Cowpoke Rodeo.” I f three or
more register from the same company at the same time, the
registration fee will be $465 each (that’smore than 10% o ff
the total registration).
AICPA members in industry should receive a
detailed conference brochure by mid-March. I f you did
not get one and would like one, call the AICPA Meetings
& Travel Division at 201-938-3232.

NEW! CPE DIRECT—A CPE Subscription Series — Earn 24 hours o f CPE Credit for only $129
A new subscription service from the AICPA CPE Division and the Journal ofAccountancy — CPE DIRECT — offers you a simple
and economical way to earn CPE credits!
Just by reading selectedJournal ofAccountancy articles and successfully completing the quarterly study guides, you can earn
24 CPE credits a year.
Subscribe to CPA D i r e c t and receive quarterly study guides based on selected articles from theJournal ofAccountancy.
Highlights of the March ’94 study guide include: Financial Accounting Update; What NAFTA means for CPAs; Employment
Law: Keeping Out o f Harm’s Way.
The study guides will also contain other readings, checklists, or practice aids to enhance your grasp o f important issues.
To receive CPE credit, read the articles, complete the study guide, successfully answer the questions and return the answer sheet
for grading.
To order call the AICPA Order Department at 1-800-862-4272 (Select sub-menu #1) Ask for CPE Direct G01046CLD.
The cost is $129. For more information, select sub-menu #3, CPE Information.
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How The Changing Times Might Change Accounting
by William Reeb, CPA
How many o f you are ready to convert your company’s
books to triple entry accounting? Well, if you are like most
CPA financial managers, the thought has never crossed
your mind. And the reality is, triple entry accounting
won’t be a serious discussion item in your working life
time. However, i f you are like me, the thought o f this kind
o f upheaval is fairly unsettling.
What follows is based on an article by Robert K.
Elliott entitled “The Third Wave Breaks on the Shores o f
Accounting” from the June 1992 issue o f Accounting Hori
zons. Let me take some o f the mystery out o f this concept
and discuss its relevance to today’s changing environment.
Single entry accounting was sufficient when trans
actions and events moved at a very slow pace. I f you lived
in ancient Egypt, there were a couple o f things you could
count on. First, that the sun was going to rise, and second,
that Nile was going to flood at least one a year. And when
you needed to know how much grain you had, you
weighed it. Accounting was based on answering the
question, “What are my assets and obligations at a specific
point in time?”: the Balance Sheet. During the industrial
revolution, double entry accounting became neces
sary. Because transactions increased in frequency
and complexity, this era had the requirement to not
only monitor where you were, but additionally, the
changes that occurred between reporting periods: the
Income Statement.

Triple entry accounting annexes a third element; the
thrust of that change. Why? Because many feel that the
success or failure o f companies in the 21st century will
hinge on their ability to gather, process, analyze, filter
and timely react to an overabundance o f information.
Technology, and how well a company utilizes it, will be a
major factor influencing this synthesis. Triple entry
accounting is a theoretical tool which would help man
agement and outsiders evaluate how well a company is
managing this technological evolution.
Triple entry accounting also challenges some o f the
corporate regimentation that double entry accounting
facilitates. For example, cross-communication and evolv
ing processes. The accounting systems we now use focus
on cost centers, departments and generally a hierarchical
form o f organizational structure. This structure facilitates
the idea that people work for departments, and depart
ments work toward corporate goals. The problem is
that people, and I ’m referring to all the people, includ
ing every jo b level within the company, need to be
working toward the goals o f the organization. The com
munication process has to be one which flows in every

direction simultaneously, not just up or within a cell
o f workers.
As an example, when someone in R&D comes up
with an idea, rather than fully developing that idea and
then presenting it as a package to the next department
for scrutiny, engineering, production, accounting and
marketing need to be in on the ground floor o f its
creation. This not only allows you to arrive at better
products, but significantly shortens the delivery cycle. As
an example, using this approach, Hewlett Packard has
been able to reduce their printer delivery cycle from
4.5 years to 22 months. Honda used to take 5 years to
take a product from inception to the showroom floor,
now 3 years. The communication process is critical to
this evolution.
Another change from the past is the idea o f “evolv
ing” processes. Traditionally, the corporate approach has
been to find the most efficient way o f producing a prod
uct, or delivering a service, then locking that process into
place by utilizing the organizational structure and control
systems. The problem is that in our ever changing, rapidly
reconfiguring marketplace, this methodology often
becomes outdated soon after implementation due to
such forces as a shifting economy, new information, com
petition, and much more. Rather than a company using
the time and motion study (often called the “best way”)
approach, the future will require all o f our workers to
constantly assess, reevaluate, and reengineer the way work
is performed.
A great deal o f this may seem like smoke and mir
rors, but the underlying philosophy isn’t. Yes, while triple
entry accounting, dynamic multidirectional communi
cation, and continuous process evolution are all just
theories, at one time, so was air travel. The old adage “I f it
ain’t broke, don’t fix it” is outdated, and tomorrow, the
working reality will more likely resemble the title o f a
best-selling book, “I f it ain’t broke, break it.” Successfully
competing in the 21st century will require that we
challenge all the paradigms and methodologies operat
ing within our organizations, and that even includes
those are the foundation o f our past success. Times are
changing and nothing is sacred, especially market share
and profits.
William L. Reeb is a shareholder in thefirm of Winters, Winters
and Reeb with offices in Austin and Fort Worth, Texas. Bill is
a member of the AICPA’s Information Technology Executive
Committee, and will be speaking at the AICPA Spring Industry
Conference in Phoenix.
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Programs, 1211 Avenue of the Americas, New York, NY 10036-8775.
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How Your Company Can Profit From Export Sales
byJames E. Denny, CPA
Many U.S. based businesses, of all sizes and in a wide range
of industries, are beginning to realize the profit potential of
exporting toforeign markets. With 95 % of the world’s consumers
living outside our borders, and with the emergence of market
economies in manyformer communist and socialist nations,
exporting might make eminent sensefor your company.
Thefollowing guidancefor the novice exporter is excerpted
from How U.S. Companies Can Profit in Foreign Markets,
the AICPA’s new self-study CPE course, written byJim Denny.
Denny, a Chicago-based CPA and international business and
taxation consultant, w ill be speaking at the Spring National
Industry Conference on April 29 in Phoenix.
Before beginning the process o f selling beyond the water’s
edge, the exporter needs to identify which foreign mar
kets will be the better prospects for a particular product.
While the U.S. market is relatively homogeneous and
products are almost universally accepted in most areas,
the same is not true for the remainder o f the world. Given
the size o f the global market, it is extremely important for
the beginning exporter to target his or her exports. The
process o f selecting the best markets involves four basic
steps: product assessment, information gathering, com
parison shopping, and market analysis. This issue will
focus on product assessment and information gathering.

(The May issue of FMR will cover comparison shopping
and market analysis.)
Product Assessment
The first step is an introspective analysis o f your com
pany and the product itself. For example:
■ Which product(s) o f your product line can be exported?
■ What are the primary selling features o f the product(s)?
■ Is this a product that has mass market appeal, or is
it a new product that fills a certain void in a specific
industry sector?
■ Is the product competitive in quality and price? For
example, certain customers and import regulations may
require products to be manufactured in accordance with
ISO 900 regulations.
■ Does the company have sufficient productive capacity
and personnel to devote to exporting?
After assessing what your product can contribute
to the market and what level o f commitment to exporting
your company is willing to undertake, it is time to
begin the process o f gathering information on all poten
tial markets.

Information Gathering
The second step in choosing the best export markets
is information gathering. The exporter can tap a variety
o f sources, both public and private.
■ International Trade Administration. The best way to
begin any research project is to seek expert advice. Many
potential exporters start the process through the coun
seling services provided by the local District O ffice o f
the International Trade Administration (IT A ) o f the
U.S. Department o f Commerce (USDOC).
■ U.S. and Foreign Commercial Service. A division o f the
IT A is the U.S. and Foreign Commercial Service
(USFCS), which consists o f a network o f “trade
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specialists” in 67 cities in the U.S. and 126 cities
overseas. Trade specialists offer individual counseling to
exporters and the organization serves as an information
clearinghouse for trade information gathered from
overseas USFCS posts. The trade specialists can also
access the Commercial Information Management
System (CIM S), which is the electronic link for all
market information gathered by the USFCS offices
around the world. The local trade specialist thus serves
as your local contact point for communicating with the
foreign offices.
■ USDOC Desk Officers. In addition to these local offices,
there are legions o f industry experts in Washington,
D.C. known as “desk officers,” they are valuable
information sources for specific industries. There are
over 500 industry and commodity experts in the
USDOC and the Department o f Agriculture who can
answer questions by telephone.
There are also desk officers at the USDOC in Wash
ington for each country. These people are probably the
best place to begin when you have a specific question
about doing business in a certain country. For example,
the desk officer for Germany should know where to find a
directory o f international trade shows in that country.
■ Small Business Administration. The U.S. Small Business
Administration (SBA) is the branch o f the federal
government dedicated to filling the needs o f small and
minority businesses. In addition to financial, technical
and management services, the SBA also offers individual
export consulting through the Service Corps o f
Retired Executives (SCORE), which includes over
600 form er exporters.
■ State Governments. Most state governments are now
very active in promoting international businesses and
offer individual consulting to potential exporters.
Many states maintain representative offices in foreign
countries, conduct trade missions, and provide
individual assistance to exporting companies. Some
states have foreign representative offices which can
provide in-country assistance for business people
traveling to those jurisdictions. For example, a foreign
office can set up a schedule o f appointments for a trip
and provide office services while business people are in
the country.
■
Private Sector. In addition to these public sector
information sources, there are many other authorities on
marketing o f most products internationally. Industry
trade associations can be among the best sources since
many have made special efforts to promote exports o f
their members. For example, the American Hardware
Manufacturers Association has an International Trade
Committee, and the National Machine Tool Builders
Association has its own export trading company. Trade
associations usually publish trade journals which often
include articles about selling overseas.
Foreign offices o f accounting firms, foreign-based
banks, and advertising agencies, among others, can give
local business information to a prospective exporter,
Continued on page 4
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Industry Member Survey to Guide Future Programs
The Members in Industry Executive Committee (MIEC)
o f the AICPA recently conducted a comprehensive survey
o f members employed in business and industry. You may
have been among the 4,000 members who received the
survey. The survey report is based on an outstanding
response rate o f about 44%.
The survey results shows the diversity o f the over
125,000 AICPA industry members. For example, while
42% are employed by companies with under 250 employ
ees, another 42% work for businesses with over 1000
employees. Forty-five percent identified their primary
jo b function as Controller or CFO, another 26% chose
Financial Accounting. Thirty-two percent chose other
categories, including 6% — President/CEO/COO and
7% — Internal Audit.
As far as industry groups, manufacturing took the
lead with 27%, financial services accounted for 21% o f
the members and other services (encompassing health
care and communications among others) came in at
21%. Significantly, women accounted for 26% o f the
respondents, up from 12% in a comparable 1987 survey.
In the survey, members were asked about the Insti
tute’s performance and policies, asked to indicate their

awareness and level o f use o f current programs and
services and asked to provide suggestions for future pro
grams and services.
While a majority o f the respondents has a favorable
opinion o f the performance o f the AICPA, it is clear that
there remains substantial room for improvement in the
Institute’s responsiveness to the needs o f industry mem
bers. The most requested future services included “a
national registry o f jo b openings for CPA financial man
agers” and more “management” courses, conferences
and workshops.
Other questions were used to identify the high prior
ity legislative and regulatory issues for CPAs in industry
and for the profession as a whole.
Tax simplification and SEC reporting matters were
identified as the most important issues for industry CPAs,
while liability issues and auditor responsibilities were
recognized as the top priority items for the profession.
A task force o f the Members in Industry Executive
Committee is reviewing the survey and will recommend
changes in AICPA programs and services to respond
to its findings. Future issues o f FMR will report on
those recommendations.

New CPE Self-Study Programs fo r Industry Members!
Selected Readings For Financial Executives —
SERIES 2
The AICPA Members in Industry Executive Committee
has selected over 40 recent articles for the new edition o f
this popular and highly acclaimed course. The articles
capture the latest management and technical wisdom on
a wide array o f key financial management topics. This
course is a must for all executives who want to stay on top
o f the latest issues.

your performance and efficiency. But, to succeed, you do
have to stay informed about what’s available. This course
consolidates relevant computer trends and techniques in
easy-to-understand language, so that you can effectively
apply them in your business. It’s based on over 30 care
fully selected articles on timely, strategic computer topics
from leading computer and business magazines.
Recommended CPE Credit: 8 hours
Format: Text (Product# 730465CLD) $79.00

Recommended CPE Credit: 8 hours
Form at: Text (Product# 731451CLD) $79.00

Computerwise Executive — Selected Readings
You don’t have to be an expert in computers to improve

To order call the AICPA Order Department at
1-800-862-4272 (select sub-menu #1). CPE courses are
also available through your state CPA society.

How Your Company Can Profit From Export Sales
Continuedfrom page 3
particularly if they believe they may be helping a prospec
tive client. The Chamber o f Commerce o f the United
States, based in Washington, D.C., and foreign-based
trade associations, especially those in Europe, are also
good sources for foreign market information. For
example, the International Office Products Association,
based in Zurich, Switzerland, is a good source o f infor
mation about the market for various office products
throughout Europe.
■ Market research reading. In addition to these “people”
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resources, there are also numerous published infor
mation sources, both in the public and private sectors.
A number o f the more useful publications available
through by calling the U.S. Department o f Commerce
at 202-377-1986.
How U.S. Companies Can Profit in Foreign Markets (Prod
uct No. 731475CLD), is available by calling the AICPA Order
Department 1-800-862-4272 (select sub-menu #1). The cost
is $119 and the recommended CPE credit is 8 hours. CPE
courses are also available through your state CPA society.
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MANAGEMENT ACCOUNTING FAX SURVEY
In late 1993, the AICPA established the Management Accounting Division to work with the Management
Accounting Executive Committee to serve the technical needs o f AICPA members employed in industry and
practicing management accounting. To accomplish this objective we need information about you and your
company, the work you do and the management accounting concepts and practices that you use in your work.

We urge you to complete this survey and fax or mail it to us as indicated:
1.

Which o f the following most closely describes your primary jo b function or responsibility?
□
□
□
□

2.

President/CEO
Financial Officer/CFO
Other O fficer
Financial/Accounting Management

□ Financial/Accounting Staff
□ Internal Auditor
□ Other Staff

To what extent is your accounting and finance function involved in the strategic decision-making for
your company?
□ Very involved
□ Somewhat involved
□ Somewhat uninvolved

3.

□ N ot at all involved
□ D on’t know/No Opinion

To what extent does your company employ the following conventional financial analysis tools in managing costs:
To a
Great
Extent
Planned or Std. Costs
□
Budgets
□
Variances
□

4.

To a
Moderate
Extent
□
□
□

To a
Minor
Extent
□
□
□

N ot
At All
□
□
□

D on’t Know/
N o Opinion
□
□
□

To what extent does your company employ the use o f non-financial measures in conjunction with financial mea
sures o f performance?
□ To a great extent
□ To a moderate extent
□ To a minor extent

□ N ot at all
□ Don’t know/No Opinion

5a. Has your company, overall, committed greater resources, fewer resources, or about the same amount o f resources
to its finance and accounting function within the last five years?
□
□
□
□

Greater resources
Fewer resources
About the same amount o f resources (skip to question 6)
D on’t know/No opinion (skip to question 6)

5b. In what specific areas within the finance and accounting function did your company commit greater/fewer
resources (e.g., employees, office space, computer support) within the last five years?

6a. Has your company adopted activity-based costing?
□ Yes (skip to question 7)

6b. Does your company plan to adopt activity-based
costing within the next three years?

□ No

7a. Is your company aware o f ISO 9000?
□ Yes

□ N o (skip to question 8)

□ Yes

□ No

7b. Is your company ISO 9000 certified?
□ Yes (skip to question 8)

□ No

7c. Does your company plan to become ISO 9000 certified?
□ Yes
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□ No
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8a. Does your company currently employ competitive
benchmarking as a method o f determining
comparative cost data?
□ Yes (skip to question 9)

8b. Does your company plan to employ benchmarking
as a method o f determining comparative cost data
within the next three years?

□ No

9a. Has your company “reengineered” its finance and
accounting function within the last five years?
□ Yes (skip to question 10)
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□ Yes

□ No

9b. Does your company plan to “reengineer” its
finance and accounting function within the next
three years?

□ No

□ Yes

□ No

10. What do you consider to be the biggest challenge you currently face in management accounting?

11. What technical challenges do you currently face in your work?

THANK YOU FOR YOUR PARTICIPATION
Please fax
your completed
survey to:

AICPA
Management Accounting Division
201-938-3660

or send to:

AICPA
Management Accounting Division
(cc: 424)
Harborside Financial Center
201 Plaza Three
Jersey City, NJ 07311-3881

1 9 9 4 A IC P A Investm ent P lan n in g C on feren ce
Sheraton Desert Inn — Las Vegas, N V
May 26-27,1994

The AICPA Management Accounting Division is teaming up with the Personal Financial Planning
Division to offer the first AICPA Investment Planning Conference. For the management accountant,
the conference will provide you with ideas and strategies to assist you in making decisions on investing
corporate assets, assets of employee benefit plans, 401-k plan assets, and developing your personal
investment strategy.
Specific topics discussed by nationally recognized experts include:
• Developing Investment Policy
• Practical Considerations in Portfolio Management
• Investment Management Options
• Investing Excess Cash for Maximum Return
• Implementing Investment Decisions
Early-bird registration discounts are available until April 2 0 , 1994 for $495, a $50 savings from the
regular conference registration fee. For a conference brochure, call the AICPA Meetings & Travel
Department on 201-938-3232.
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THE IMPACT OF NAFTA AND GATT ON RECIPROCITY
FOR QUALIFIED ACCOUNTANTS
by Rick Elam
he United States has recently approved the
North American Free Trade Agreement
(NAFTA) and appears likely to approve the
General Agreement on Trade and Tariffs
(GATT). If approved by our Congress, the GATT
Agreement goes into effect July 1, 1995.
Both agreements require countries to set regulations that are
not discriminatory or burdensome between the signatories and
to establish and consistently apply criteria for licensure to
applicants from any NAFTA or GATT country. This means that
state boards of accountancy will need to eliminate, over the
next several years, residency or citizenship requirements and
have a procedure for evaluating applicants for CPA certificates
from signatory countries. States may set any qualifications for
those applicants as long as they are not more burdensome
than necessary to assure the quality of the service and are
applied consistently to applicants from all the countries.
The American Institute of CPAs and the National
Association of State Boards of Accountancy have jointl y
established the United States International Qualification
Appraisal Board ( u s - iq a b ) to assist state boards of
accountancy with advice on how to deal with foreign
applicants and to work with countries wishing to create
reciprocal licensure agreements.

Criteria for Evaluating Individual Applicants
Applicants from GATT or NAFTA countries who are not
currently certified in their home country will probably be
evaluated by state boards using the same criteria and
procedures applied to United States CPA candidates. This will
involve evaluation of the applicants transcripts for appropriate
education and review of their relevant experience. Boards
will often need to use the services of a professional transcript
translator in order to understand how the foreign applicant’s
education equates to the US jurisdiction’s requirements. The
applicants will be required to pass the Uniform CPA
Examination.
Applications from qualified (certified or chartered) foreign
accountants will, in most cases, be treated the same as
unlicensed candidates from within a board’s jurisdiction.

Qualified foreign applicants will be required to make up
education deficiencies and to pass the Uniform CPA
Examination. The only exceptions will be for qualified
applicants from countries with which the state board has a
reciprocal agreement.

Reciprocal Agreements for Foreign Qualified Accountants
A few of the g a t t countries have expressed interest in
creating reciprocal agreements which would allow qualified
professionals from that country to practice in the United
States without the necessity of meeting all the specific
requirements for U.S. CPAs. The US-IQAB will assist state
boards by reviewing the education and experience
requirements for becoming a qualified accountant and making
recommendations to boards regarding reciprocal agreements
for those countries.
Principles for a reciprocal agreement have been created for
the United States and Canada. Twenty-one states have
approved the use of the special examination prepared by the
AICPA specifically to test Canadian Chartered Accountants
desiring to practice in one of those states. The first
examination was administered during November 1993.
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Facing the Future

Good News/Bad News
The latest survey of students starting college indicates that
interest in majoring in business subjects continues to decline.
The graphic below shows that since 1985, the percentage of new
college students interested in majoring in accounting has declined
from 6.5 percent to 4.4 percent. That decline is worrisome for
accounting educators but may not be so bad when considered in
the context of the 80 major choices the students were offered.
Only nursing, elementary education, and psychology were
chosen by more students. Interestingly, 4.9 percent of women
students surveyed chose accounting, compared with only 3.9
percent of men. Over the past few years, students’ interest has
declined for all business majors and increased dramatically in
allied-health majors. The bad news from this survey is declining
interest in accounting; the good news is that accounting continues
to be one of the top choices among new students and seems to
be declining less rapidly than other business disciplines.

in number of high school graduates is finally over. The number
of diplomas awarded will climb rapidly for the next dozen or
more years. Those high school graduates are expected to attend
college at the same rate as in the early 1990s. Unfortunately,
colleges and universities are very unlikely to increase capacity
to meet the demand from those desiring to attend. For
accounting departments this means that in spite of declining

HIGH SCHOOL DIPLOMAS
MILLION DIPLOMAS

FRESHMAN MAJOR CHOICE
PERCENT CHOOSING MAJOR

1985
■ GEN.BUS

O ACCOUNTING

Chronicle of Higher Education, October 13, 1993

1993
□ MANAGEMENT ■ MARKETING □ FINANCE

UCLA, The American Freshman

There is also good news from the high schools. The decline

A New Direction for the
KPMG Peat Marwick Foundation
The KPMG Peat Marwick Foundation has turned its attention
from research and other support for faculty, students, and
institutions to more pressing challenges facing business schools
and the accounting profession. Foundation-supported programs
such as Research Opportunities in Auditing, Tax Research
Opportunities, Research Fellowships, and Faculty Fellowships
have been discontinued so that funds may be redirected,
principally to the area of diversity.
In January 1994, the foundation invited academicians,
business people, and doctoral students to participate in a
workshop focused on ways to increase the number of AfricanAmerican accounting professors in the belief that, by serving as
role models, they would attract members of this minority group
to accounting. The program outlined at the workshop was

2

interest as a percentage of the entire freshman class, there will
most likely be more students desiring an accounting degree than
there are seats available.
Most accounting programs will have little problem operating at
full capacity in terms of number of majors. The problem for
accounting faculty will be to attract and retain the best possible
students, not only from those committed to accounting but also
from other majors.
For a good overview of the most recent freshman survey, see
the January 26, 1994 issue of the Chronicle of Higher
Education. The American Freshman: National Norms for Fall
1993 is available from the Higher Education Research Institute,
UCLA Graduate School of Education, 405 Hilgard Avenue, Los
Angeles, CA 90024-1521.
approved by the foundation’s trustees in early February.
Trustees mandated that the program be offered for the 1994-95
school year to hasten its impact. The foundation will also fund
the formation of a National Organization for African-American
Accounting Doctoral Students, to include an annual meeting.
Up to 10 scholarships per year in the amount of $10,000
renewable for up to five years will be awarded to selected
African-American students. The doctoral-granting institution
will be required to provide an annual $5,000 stipend and
teaching and research assistantships, as is customary for their
doctoral program, and waive all tuition and fees.
Applicants should send their curriculum vitae, along with a
letter describing their current status including the institutions
they are attending, have been accepted by, or have applied to
African-American Accounting Doctoral Support Program, c/o
Bernard J. Milano, Secretary, KPMG Peat Marwick Foundation,
Three Chestnut Ridge Road, Montvale, NJ 07645-1834.
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AICPA Academic and Career Development Division Announces

1994 C P E W o r k sh o p s fo r A c c o u n t in g E d u c a to r s
IMPROVING TEACHING EFFECTIVENESS

COOPERATIVE LEARNING AND ASSESS
MENT IN THE ACCOUNTING CLASSROOM

150-H0UR CURRICULUM DEVELOPMENT

in cooperation with the Southwest,
Southeast and Western Regions of the
American Accounting Association

in cooperation with the Mid-Atlantic,

in cooperation with the

Midwest and Ohio Regions of the
American Accounting Association

Northeast Region of the
American Accounting Association

□ April 2 8 , 1994 in Louisville, Kentucky
□ May 5 , 1994 in Portland, Oregon

□ March 3 1 , 1994 in Atlantic City, New Jersey
□ April 1 4 , 1994 in Omaha, Nebraska
□ May 5 , 1994 in Columbus, Ohio

□ April 28, 1994 in Buffalo, New York

The morning workshop will cover class
management techniques and team-building skills
that enhance learning in the accounting classroom.
Participants will learn how to implement specific
and practical cooperative learning structures at the
basic and advanced levels.
The highly interactive program will be presented
by Philip G. Cottell, Jr., DBA, and Professor o f
Accountancy at Miami University, Oxford, Ohio.
A hands-on workshop focusing on the effective
design o f student centered performance assessments
will be presented in the afternoon. Faculty from
Alverno College which is internationally recognized
for assessment will lead the workshop. Accounting
educators who want to develop or refine assessment
processes within their courses or as broader
comprehensive student learning experiences will
benefit tremendously from this innovative program.
Topics include: assessing the accounting major, inclass and outside-class assessment, faculty-designed
criteria, self-assessment for students, teaching/
assessing to develop student outcomes, and using
results for improvement.

Over half the jurisdictions in the United States have
now adopted the 150-hour education requirement.
An issue o f emerging importance at this point is the
restructuring and development o f the accounting
curriculum to meet the objectives o f the new
requirement. 150-Hour Curriculum Development is
a hands-on workshop developed by the A IC P A ’ s
Curriculum and Instruction Subcommittee to assist
faculty and departmental planners as they initiate
their work in this area. This innovative program
focuses on the structural considerations involved in
curriculum design in the 150-hour environment.
Participants will work with colleagues from
schools o f similar demographic characteristics. This
work will be facilitated by a number o f faculty
members from schools o f various types who will
lead small group discussions and explorations o f
implementation strategies. Specific facilitators will
differ at each meeting.

Effective teaching in today’ s classroom requires a
range o f skills and expertise far beyond knowledge
o f the subject matter. Even the most capable and
dedicated teachers can become disheartened when
faced with challenges and frustrations with which
their training has not equipped them to deal
effectively. Improving Teaching Effectiveness is a
hands-on workshop developed from Yezdi Bhada’ s
highly successful Master Teacher Program. This
innovative program focuses on the pedagogical
skills necessary to increase and improve teaching
effectiveness in today’s environment.
Yezdi Bhada is Professor o f Accounting at
Georgia State University. He received his M BA
from Bowling Green University and his Ph.D.
from the University o f Florida. He has received
national recognition for presentations and seminars
he developed in the United States and abroad. He
has received faculty recognition awards for
teaching and for service, and is an active member
of
several
professional
and
scholastic
organizations.

All Programs: 8:30 am-5:00 pm
Recommended CPE: 8 hours

Registration & General Information
Mail entire page to : AICPA Meetings Registration, P. O. Box 2210, Jersey City, NJ 07303-2210

Please check workshop you plan to attend in the box (□ ) provided above.
Registration: $90/AICPA Members
$120/Non-member s
M y check for $________ is enclosed.
registration.)

(Full payment must accompany

First

Registrant’s Last Name

Ml

Nickname

Fee includes the workshop session, materials, lunch, and two refreshment
breaks. Hotel accommodations and other meals are not included. Full
payment must accompany your registration. A confirmation letter will be
sent to you upon receipt o f your registration form and payment. Please mail
this page early, as these conferences are expected to reach capacity quickly.
The A IC P A is not responsible for checks or letters lost or delayed in the
mail.
HOTEL i n f o r m a t i o n : Please reserve your hotel accommodations directly.
For more information, refer to the accommodations section o f the
promotional material for the appropriate A A A Regional Meeting.

College or University Name or Affiliation

c a n c e l l a t i o n p o l i c y : Full refunds will be issued on written cancellation

Street Address

requests received by three weeks before the specific workshop for which
you are registered. Written cancellations received up to one week before
the workshop will be issued a refund less a $25 administrative charge. No
refunds will be issued on cancellation requested received within the seven
days immediately preceding the workshop for which you are registered.

Suite

P. O. Box
AIRLINE DISCOUNT: Several airlines are offering discounts for the A A A

City

State

Zip Code

Regional Meetings. For more information, consult the promotional material
for the specific destination to which you will be traveling.
You will be informed o f the specific location o f your meeting.

Total Amount Enclosed

Area Code & Business Telephone

AICPA Membership Number - (Required for Discounted Registration)

B A T E S # __________________________
___________________ (AICPA use only)

AN INTERVIEW WITH LUCA PACIOLI
The following interview with Luca
Pacioli was conducted by FYI through the
Time-Warp node of Internet.
FYI: Friar Pacioli, what is the purpose
of your book Summa de Arithmetica
Proportioni et Proportionalita?
Pacioli: The Summa is intended as a

textbook for use in the new mathematics
departments of the universities here.
FYI: Why have you included a treatise
on bookkeeping in your new book?
Pacioli: I received a grant for this
’project from His Illustrious Highness,
the most magnanimous
Duke of Urbino. My
proposal was to create
for his subjects a book
with all the rules that a
good merchant needs. I
have compiled in it
everything with regard
to accounts and their keeping. And
thereby I wish to give them enough rules
to enable them to keep all their accounts
and books in an orderly way.

hardly be carried on.
The second thing necessary in business
is to be a good bookkeeper and ready
mathematician. To become such I have
given in the earlier sections of the book
rules and canons necessary to compute
each transaction. Any diligent reader can
understand it all by himself. If one has
not understood the earlier sections on
mathematics well, it will be useless for
him to read the treatise on bookkeeping.
The third, and last thing, is to record
all transactions in such a systematic way
that one may understand each of them at

understand the procedure well, we will
take the case of one who is just starting
in business, and tell how he must proceed
in keeping his accounts and books so that
at a glance he may find each thing in its
place. For, if he does not put each thing
in its own place, he will find himself in
great trouble and confusion as to all his
affairs, according to the familiar saying,
‘Ubi non est ordo, ibi est confusio

FYI: Please stick to English. What did
that last phrase mean?
Pacioli: Where there is no order, there
is confusion.
FYI: Ok. But what
about double-entry?

Ubi non est ordo, ibi est confusio.
Where there is no order, there is confusion.

FYI: So this treatise is only focused on
business recordkeeping?
Pacioli: My intention was to create one
text which would contain all the
information necessary to maintain
business records including mathematics.
I also felt it important to present a very
brief introduction to business in the
beginning of the bookkeeping treatise.
FYI: Did you create the concepts
described in your treatise?
Pacioli: No. I simply observed how
businesses in and around Venice operate
and keep their records. The treatise is
about what I observed.
FYI: What are some of the aspects of
business that you included?
Pacioli: There are three things needed
by anyone who wishes to carry on
business. The most important of these is
cash or any equivalent, according to that
saying, "Unun aliquid necessarium est
substantia. " Without cash, business can

Pacioli: Please let
me continue reading:
"For each one of all the
entries that you have

a glance. This is very essential to
merchants because, without making the
entries systematically, it would be
impossible to conduct their business.
They would have no rest and their minds
would always be troubled.
FYI: What do you suggest in your
treatise that will ease the merchants’
troubled minds?
Pacioli: The treatise adopts the system
used in Venice, which is certainly to be
recommended above all the others, for by
using it, one can find his way in any
other recordkeeping system. I have
written a step-by-step method for making
all sorts of entries. Although I cannot
write out every essential detail for all
possible cases, a careful mind will be
able, from what is written, to make
application to any particular business
transaction.
FYI: How do you approach explaining
the double-entry system?
Pacioli: Let me read you a passage:
"He who wants to know how to keep a
ledger and its journal in due order must
pay strict attention to what I shall say. To

made in the Journal you will have to
make two in the Ledger. That is one, in
the debit (in dare ) and one in the credit
(in havere). In the Journal the debtor is
indicated by ‘per’, the creditor by ‘a’, as
we have said. In the Ledger you must
have an entry for each of them. The
debitor entry must be at the left, the
creditor one at the right; and in the
debitor entry you must indicate the
number of the page of the respective
creditor. In this way, all the entries of the
Ledger are chained together and you must
never make a credit entry without making
the same entry with its respective amount
in the debit. Upon this depends the
obtaining of a trial balance (bilancio) of
the Ledger."
FYI: Friar Pacioli, what would you
say if I told you that for the next 500
years, textbooks are going to teach
bookkeeping using your approach?
Pacioli: I would ask where to find a
good copyright lawyer.
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Accounting
& Auditing
News

Statements of Position 93-7, 93-8 Issued

The Accounting Standards Execu
tive Committee has issued State
ment of Position 93-7, Reporting on
Advertising Costs (No. 014804CL).
The SOP requires expensing all
advertising costs, other than certain
direct-response advertising costs, in the periods in which
those costs are incurred, or the first time the advertising
takes place. Direct-response advertising whose primary
purpose is to elicit sales to customers who could be shown
to have responded specifically to the advertising, and that
results in probable fu ture economic benefits, should be
capitalized and amortized over the estimated period of
the benefits. Also, the SOP requires disclosure of certain
information. SOP 93-7 is effective for fiscal years begin
ning after June 15,1994.
This SOP does not alter the accounting guidance
found in certain Financial Accounting Standards Board
or Accounting Principles Board pronouncements or

interpretations. Advertising that is covered by those pro
nouncements should continue to be accounted for in
conformity with the respective guidance, regardless of
the guidance in this SOP. The following SOPs are
amended by SOP 93-7: SOP 88-1, paragraph 22; SOP 895, paragraph 55; and SOP 90-8, paragraph 15.
The AICPA Insurance Companies Committee and
the Auditing Standards Board issued SOP 93-8, The Audi
tor’s Consideration ofRegulatory Risk-Based Capitalfor Life
Insurance Enterprises (No. 014811CL). The SOP provides

guidance regarding the auditors’ responsibility that arises
from the regulatory risk-based capital requirements
imposed on life insurance enterprises. It addresses audit
planning, going-concern considerations, and other
reporting considerations. The SOP is effective for audits
of life insurance enterprises’ financial statements for peri
ods ending after Dec. 15,1993.
For copies of the SOPs, contact the AICPA Order
Department (see page 5). Price: $6 each.

GASB Issues Proposal on Accounting for Grants
The Governmental Accounting Standards Board has
issued an exposure draft that proposes accounting
requirements for certain grants and other financial assis
tance— specifically pass-through grants, food stamps, and
“on-behalf” payments. The proposal is the first in a series
of standards that will address grants issues, according to
the GASB. If adopted as a final statement, the proposal
would become effective for periods beginning after June
15,1995. Comments are due by Mar. 31.
Pass-through grants are those received by a recipient
government to transfer to or spend on behalf of another.
Generally, the exposure draft would require recipients to
recognize all cash pass-through grants as revenue and
expenditures in a governmental, proprietary or trust fund.
For food stamps, state governments would report their
distributions as revenue and expenditures either in the
general or a special revenue fund. Employer governments
would have to recognize revenue and expenditures for onbehalf payments for fringe benefits and salaries, which are
direct payments made by One entity to a third-party

recipient on behalf of another, legally separate, employer.
To obtain one copy of the exposure draft, available
without charge until Mar. 31, write: GASB Order Depart
ment, 401 Merritt 7, P.O. Box 5116, Norwalk, CT
06856-5116; or call 203/847-0700, ext 555.

FASB Proposes Technical Bulletin on SFAS #115
The Financial Accounting Standards Board has pro
posed a technical bulletin that clarifies the scope of its
Statement 115, Accountingfor Certain Investments in Debt
and Equity Securities. The proposed bulletin makes it
dear that Statement 115 applies to a loan restructured
in a troubled-debt restructuring involving a modifica
tion o f terms if the restructured loan meets the defini
tion of a security in Statement 115. A final bulletin
would be effective on issuance. One copy is available
without charge until Mar. 5, when comments are due,
by contacting the FASB Order Department (same
address and telephone number as GASB above).

OMB Issues New Accounting Standards and Concepts Statements
The Office of Management and Budget has issued three
statements applicable to federal financial statements.
The statements were recommended by the Federal
Accounting Standards Advisory Board.
Statement o f Federal Financial Accounting Concepts
No. 1, Objectives ofFederalFinancial Reporting (Stock no.
041-001-00412-2), focuses on the uses, user needs and
objectives o f financial reporting in the federal govern
ment and describes federal financial reporting objectives
in budgetary integrity, operating performance, steward
ship, and systems and control.
Statement o f Federal Financial Accounting Stan
dards No. 2, Accountingfor Direct Loans and Loan Guaran
tees (Stock no. 041-001-00416-5), establishes accounting

standards for direct loans and loan guarantees made
before and after passage o f the Federal Credit Reform
Act of 1990. The standards require that direct loans
obligated and loan guarantees committed after Sept. 30,
1991, be accounted for on a present-value basis.
SFFAS No. 3, Accountingfor Inventory and Related Prop
erty (Stock no. 041-001-00415-7), prescribes accounting
standards for inventory held for resale, operating materi
als and supplies, stockpile materials, seized and forfeited
property, foreclosed property, and goods held under
price support and stabilization programs.
Price: SFFAC No. 1, $6; SFFAS No. 2, $6; SFFAS No.
3, $3.50. For a copy, call the Government Printing Office
at 202/783-3238.
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Women and Family Issues Committee Testifies Before Glass Ceiling Commission
Acknowledging a “dearth o f women represented at
senior levels,” Marguerite R. Griffin, a member o f the
A IC P A ’s W om en and Family Issues Executive Commit
tee, told the Glass Ceiling Commission o f the Depart
ment o f Labor how the Institute is addressing wom en’s
upward mobility and helping the profession balance
work and family life. The testimony was given on Feb. 11
at a hearing regarding elimination o f artificial barriers to
the advancement o f minorities and women to manage
ment and decision-making positions in business.
Griffin stated Institute reports published in the past
four years have identified obstacles to wom en’s advance
ment and the need for alternative work schedules— parttime, flex-time, compressed work schedules, seasonal
work and jo b sharing— in breaking down the barriers to
their upward mobility. “W e recognize that wom en’s
upward mobility and balancing work and family are
linked, and we are aware that work and family issues are
not exclusively wom en’s issues,” she said.

Disciplinary
Actions

As a result o f decisions by a hearing
panel o f the Joint Trial Board, the
following members have had their
memberships:
— Terminated from the A IC PA
and the Massachusetts Society o f
CPAs:
■ Henry J. Griswold o f Palm City,
Fla. (formerly o f Wellesley Hills, Mass.)— for failing to
comply with rules on integrity and objectivity, profes
sional competence and compliance with standards in
connection with his report and financial statements o f a
client’s savings plan.
— Terminated from the A IC P A and the New York
State Society o f CPAs:
■Matthew P. Schimmenti o f Sunnyside, N.Y.— for failing
to cooperate with the state society’s professional ethics
committee in connection with disciplinary investigations.
— Suspended from the A IC P A and their state societies
for violating their codes o f professional conduct:
■ Kenneth H. Westgate o f Allentown, Pa.— for two years,
for failing to exercise due professional care, failing to
comply with professional standards, and failing to com
ply with G AAP in connection with an audit o f an
employee’s pension plan. Also, he is required to com
plete 80 hours o f specified CPE courses during the sus
pension period and to submit for review the financial
statements and working papers o f an engagement
selected by the Institute’s Professional Ethics Division
from a list o f audits, or the highest level o f engagements
performed during the first year o f suspension.
■Alan Warner o f Westport, Conn.— for two years, for violat
ing the independence rule by issuing an audit opinion on a
company while owning stock in the company. H e is also
required to complete a course on professional ethics.
■Jerome L. Schwartz o f N ew York City— for one year, for
failing to cooperate with the New York State Society’s
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T o help the profession in its continuing efforts to
improve the num ber o f senior-level women, the commit
tee promotes awareness and recognition o f the need to
remove barriers, provides information about women’s
status and progress, provides guidance in developing
programs and policies, and supports and monitors
A IC P A efforts to increase wom en’s participation in the
Institute. Specific activities o f the committee, such as a
survey o f 5,000 public accounting firms, a state CPA
society liaison program, conference sessions on related
issues, and a resource data base, were discussed as well.
Griffin also pointed to a subcommittee which works with
the Institute’s Washington, D.C., office to monitor and
address relevant legislative and policy concerns.
Griffin also addressed the A IC PA ’s minority recruit
ment efforts. Am ong other activities underway in that
area are an awareness campaign targeted at minority high
school and college students, and financial assistance pro
grams for undergraduates and doctoral candidates.

Professional Ethics Committee in connection with disci
plinary investigations, and was admonished to cooperate
with fu ture ethics committee inquiries.
U n d er the automatic disciplinary provisions o f the
Institute’s bylaws, the following members had their
memberships:
— Terminated because o f final convictions o f crimes
punishable by imprisonment for more than one year:
■Alejandro S. Martinez o f Poth, Texas, on Dec. 22,
1993—-following a District Court o f Appeals’ decision
affirming his conviction for murder. Mr. Martinez’s
membership had been suspended pending the appeal o f
his conviction ( The CPA Letter, June 1992).
■Robert L. Bailer o f Morganville, N.J., on Dec. 13,
1993— following his plea o f guilty o f conspiracy to com
mit bank fraud.
■ Gabriel J. Marian o f Seattle, Wash., on Dec. 6 , 1993—
following his plea o f guilty o f “conspiracy to manufacture
marijuana.”
— Terminated following revocation o f their C P A
certificates by their state accountancy boards:
■James Desmond Mitchell o f Baton Rouge, La., on Oct.
2 9, 1993— for violating Louisiana’s revised statutes by indi
cating on his 1992 certificate and license registration that
he completed the required CPE when he did not, and for
violating the Louisiana administrative code by failing to
respond in a timely manner to board communications.
■James M. Wallace o f Greenville, S.C., on Oct. 29,
1993— for violating the state’s Codes o f Laws and Profes
sional Ethics by committing acts discreditable to the pro
fession and for professional misconduct.
— Suspended following revocation o f his C P A certifi
cate by his state accountancy board:
■James I. Mills o f Laguna Beach, Calif., from Nov. 17,
1993, to Dec. 1 7 , 1993— for “gross negligence in the
practice o f accounting” in violation o f the state’s Busi
ness and Professions Code.
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CPE
News

Self-Study Courses

Investment Strategies in the ’90s is a
new course that equips the CPA,
who generally is not an investment
specialist, with a working knowl
edge of investment strategies in
today’s economy. Course highlights
include what investment advice a
CPA can and cannot give, when and how to register with
the SEC as an investment advisor; model portfolios for
each investor risk type; how to evaluate fixed income
investments, common stocks and mutual funds; strategies
to predict and time the market; and a summary of rele
vant 1993 tax law changes. Recommended CPE credit: 8
hours. Format: Text (No. 735915CLD), $119. Benefit
Plans for the Small Business, also a new course, provides
the information CPAs need to advise their small business
clients and to make compensation decisions. Course
highlights include cafeteria plans, nonqualified deferred
compensation plans, simplified employee pensions, Sec
tion 401 (k) plans, statutory fringe benefit exclusions, and
taxation of specific noncash benefits. The course includes
a checklist of specific noncash benefits, case studies and
clear explanations and analyses. Recommended CPE
credit: 8 hours. Format: Text (No. 732520CLD), $119.
These courses are available through the AICPA Order
Department as well as through state CPA societies.

Conferences
PCPS Conference, May 1-4, Fla.; recommended CPE
credit: 21 hours (call AICPA Meetings & Travel at
201/938-3232 for information). Tax Strategies for the

High Income Individual, May 5-6, Las Vegas and May
23-24, Nashville; recommended CPE credit: 16 hours. For
more information on these conferences, call the AICPACPE Division at 800/862-4272 (dept #3).
Having its fourth successful year is the Tax Planning
and Advising for Closely Held Businesses Certificate of
Educational Achievement Program. Participants in this
program will receive the knowledge needed to provide
complete tax planning services. Gain hands-on skills that
translate into effective and efficient identification and
resolution of complex tax issues in the formation, opera
tion, restructuring and termination of closely held busi
nesses—plus the background to advise closely held
clients on employee benefits and compensation and suc
cession planning. All in a fully integrated seven-course
program offered around the country.
The Personal Financial Planning Process CEA Pro
gram returns after a successful first year. This five-course
program is designed for CPAs who want to add this grow
ing practice area to their services or be able to offer addi
tional services. It is based on the “life cycle” approach
and covers such key items as how to manage and finesse
PFP engagements, prepare the individual components of
a financial plan, and advise on the transfer of an estate
or closely held business.
New this year, members may take the first course in
either series before enrolling in these programs. For more
information, call Marie Mikolajczyk at 201/938-3580; for a
brochure with complete details, including presentation
information and enrollment and registration forms, write:
LaTanyaJunior, CPE Marketing, AICPA, Harborside Finan
cial Center, 201 Plaza Three, Jersey City, NJ 07311-3881.

AICPA Offers First Investment Planning Conference
The AICPA Personal Financial Planning Division, in con
junction with the Management Accounting Division, is
sponsoring a new conference on investment planning.
Participants will learn ideas and strategies for assisting
investors in making investment decisions.
Technical seminars are geared toward members in
private practice who assist clients in monitoring invest
ment performance, making investment decisions, or in

New
Products &
Publications

Booklet on Settling
Estates Published
To help educate clients about
estate administration and estate
planning techniques, Settling an
Estate: Understanding Probate and
Estate Administration (No.

009152CL) has been produced.
The booklet provides a simple, concise overview of what
is required to manage the affairs of a deceased person,
and covers the potentially dangerous areas where an
executor can become personally liable because of mis
takes in judgment or failure to take actions that are
timely or in the best interests of the estate and beneficia

other investment matters; members in industry who
make decisions regarding the investment of treasury
funds or funds in employee benefit plans; or members
who want to refine their personal investment strategies.
The conference will be held on May 26-27 in Las
Vegas. Recommended CPE credit: 16 hours. Price: $545,
with early-bird and group discounts. For a conference
brochure, call AICPA Meetings 8c Travel at 201/938-3232.

ries. It also outlines advantages and disadvantages of
avoiding probate, techniques to simplify the estate settle
ment process, and how to pick the right estate adminis
tration team. Helping clients understand the probate
process will help them protect their heirs from needless
taxes and expenses. Price: $2.
To order, write: AICPA Order Department, CL394,
P.O. Box 2209, Jersey City, NJ 07303-2209; order via
fax, 800/362-5066; or call 800/862-4272 (dept. #1).
Ask for Operator CL394. The best times to call are
8:30 a.m. to 11:30 a.m. and 2:00 to 5:30 p.m., EST.
Orders for exposure drafts must be written or faxed.
Prices do not include shipping and handling.
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The U.S. Office o f Management
and Budget has issued a final revi
sion to OMB Circular A-110, Uni
form Administrative Requirementsfor
Grants and Agreements with Institu
tions of Higher Education, Hospitals
and Other Non-Profit Organizations. The provisions o f the

circular affecting federal agencies were effective Dec.
29,1993; the provisions affecting grantees will be
adopted by agencies in codified regulations by May 30,
although earlier implementation is encouraged. For
details, see the Federal Register, Nov. 29,1993.

HUD Issues Final Rule to Implement
OMB Circular A-133
The U.S. Department o f Housing and Urban Development
issued a final rule that implements OMB Circular A-133,
Audits ofInstitutions ofHigher Education and Other Nonprofit
Institutions, which establishes uniform requirements for

audits o f awards provided to such institutions. HUD previ
ously announced adoption o f the circular in an interim
rule in July 1992 (The CPA Letter, Sept. 1992). The final rule
was effective Feb. 18 and extends Circular A-133 coverage
to non-university-affiliated hospitals that receive HUD assis
tance as a matter o f HUD policy. The final rule also
extends coverage to four programs: Part 92—Home Invest

ment Partnerships Program; Part 572—Hope for Home
ownership of Single Family Homes Program (HOPE 3);
Part 889—Supportive Housing for the Elderly; and Part
890—Supportive Housing for Persons with Disabilities. For
more information, see the Federal Register,Jan. 19.

Student Financial Assistance Lender
Audit Deadline Extended
The deadline for initial-year compliance audits o f lenders
participating in the Federal Family Education Loan Pro
gram has been extended because the Department of Edu
cation has not yet completed the program audit guide ( The
CPA Letter, Sept 1993). The new deadline will be six months
after issuance of the final guide and receipt by the lender;
issuance is expected later this month or next month. Also
announced was that the federal statute governing lender
audit requirements does not provide the department with a
basis to change the frequency of the annual audit require
ment for certain lenders. The department plans to accept a
compliance audit of a third-party servicer with which a
lender contracts for any services the lender would otherwise
be required to include as part o f the annual lender audit
provided certain requirements are met

New Phone Number for OMB Report
The telephone number to receive the OMB’s 1993Federal
Financial Management Status Report, and Five-Year Plan ( The
CPA Letter, Dec. 1993) has changed to 202/395-6190.
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Citing the critical need for accountability
and public disclosure of all health care costs,
the AICPA commended Congressional Bud
get Office Director Robert Reischauer’s rec
ommendation to Congress that health care
reform costs be included in the federal bud
get. It was the Institute’s first step in joining
the national health care debate.
“While other methods for full and fair
disclosure may exist, the conventional way to
ensure such accountability is to require that
all health care expenditures, either under
taken or mandated by the federal govern
ment, be shown in the federal budget,”
stated Woodrin Grossman, chair of the
AICPA Health Care Reform Task Force, in
a statement issued following Reischauer’s
testimony.
“While the Congressional Budget Office
has concluded that payments to health
alliances are ‘government receipts,’ we believe
the real issue is that Americans are entitled to
an annual accounting of health care dollars
and that all costs and revenues must be made
plain to the public,” he said. Grossman added
that the Institute has neither endorsed nor
opposed any of the health care reform plans
pending before Congress.
Following issuance of the press release
announcing the AICPA’s support for includ
ing health care costs in the federal budget,
the Institute leadership was invited to attend
a meeting at the White House with other
professional organizations for an explana
tion of the Clinton health care plan by the
President’s staff. Clinton Administration
officials were receptive to suggestions from
those attending the meeting and encour
aged an ongoing debate in the months
ahead as the plan works its way through
Congress. CBO Director Reischauer met
with AICPA representatives to discuss health
care reform and welcomed an offer of assis
tance from the Institute.
The second phase of the AICPA’s effort
on health care reform was launched when
the AICPA wrote the sponsors of the major
health care proposals before Congress. The
sponsors were asked to reply to questions

focusing on the cost, control and efficiency,
and availability aspects of each proposal (see
box). The Institute plans to publish replies to
the questions in the Journal ofAccountancy,
share them with state CPA societies, and
release them to the media.
Questions on Health Care Proposals
1. What is the estimated minimum and
maximum total annual premium for a
health care policy under your proposal
for an individual? For a family of four?
2. Under your proposal, who will pay that
premium—the employer, the individual,
and/or the government?
3. Under your proposal, who will
determine:
■ Hospital fees?
■ Doctor fees?
■ Drug prices?
■ Benefits to be provided under the basic
benefit package?
4. How will your plan control current
and future health care costs?
5. How will your proposal reduce the
related paperwork burden?
6. Will changes in tax laws be required by
your proposal?
7. Since some patients may not pay their
deductible or coinsurance amounts, who
will pay those costs?
8. Will the revenues and expenditures relat
ing to your health care plan be accounted
for “on” or “off” the federal budget?
9. Does your proposal eliminate current
government programs that may be
duplicative?
10. Given that malpractice litigation and
so-called “defensive medicine” are con
tributing factors to the high cost of
health care, how will your plan control
malpractice suits?
11. What options will businesses have to
provide supplemental benefits beyond
the standard health care package?
12. Will individuals be able to purchase
health care services outside of the pro
gram specified in your proposal?

AICPA
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Briefs
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Benchmarking Project
Reports Initial Results

Preliminary results are becoming
available from the AICPA bench
marking program sponsored jointly
with The Hackett Group ( The CPA
Letter, Apr. 1993). The data offer
compelling indicators of the direc
tion in which finance needs to move for ensured success
in the future.
The data about overall finance costs are an example.
For the 80-plus companies with final data in, cost as a
percent of revenue ranges from 0.5% to 7.1%—a multi
ple of nearly 15 times from lowest to highest. The cost
calculation includes labor, systems and overhead, and
the average is 1.5% of revenue. By employing best prac
tices, these 80-plus companies could save $500 million to
$800 million annually.
Costs are significantly lower for larger companies.
Scale economies begin to make an impact at about the $5
billion revenue point. Costs in the service sector are much
higher than those in manufacturing, at 2.7% and 1.2% of
revenue, respectively, chiefly driven by lower-dollar-value
transactions.
While data are in for 80-plus companies, an addi
tional 180 companies are in the process o f data collec
tion, with more signing up weekly. The Management
Accounting Division will publish the overall findings in
conjunction with the AICPA’s Financial Management
Symposium on June 2 (see “News Brief" below).
The benchmarking project was launched to provide
critical information for organizations seeking to improve
the productivity of their financial management func
tions. The data base contains extensive information on
27 core finance processes.
Companies interested in participating in the bench
mark study may contact John Morrow o f the AICPA Man
agement Accounting Division at 201/938-3011. The data
base includes companies with revenues from $50 million
to almost $50 billion; participation is most meaningful
for companies in that range.

First Financial Management
Symposium to Be Held
The AICPA’s first Financial Management Symposium for
senior financial executives will be held on June 2 in New
York City. The symposium will address the challenges
facing corporate finance today and into the future. Fea
tured speakers include Joel Stem, Lacy Hunt, John
Shank, Walter Schuetze and Jim Leisenring. Creation of
shareholder value, the new finance function, and finan
cial derivatives and strategic equity considerations are
among the topics to be discussed. For more information
or a brochure, call AICPA Meetings 8c Travel Services at
201/938-3232. Price: $425; discounts available for multi
ple registrants from the same company.
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GASB Issues Proposals on Pensions
The Governmental Accounting Standards Board has
issued three exposure drafts: financial reporting for
defined benefit pension plans and disclosures for
defined contribution plans, employers’ accounting for
pensions, and financial reporting for postemployment
health care plans administered by defined benefit pen
sion plans. Comments are requested byJune 30.
The pension plan exposure draft would require
defined benefit pension plans to present two financial
statements: (a) a statement of net assets available for
benefits, and (b) a statement of changes in net assets
available for benefits. Two multi-year schedules of
required supplementary information would also be
required: (a) a schedule of funding progress, and (b) a
schedule of employer contributions.
The employer exposure draft would require employ
ers participating in single-employer and agent multipleemployer defined benefit pension plans to measure and
disclose an amount for annual pension cost on the
accrual basis of accounting, regardless of the amount
recognized as pension expenditures/expense on the
modified accrual or accrual basis. For employers partici
pating in cost-sharing multiple-employer plans, measure
ment o f pension expenditures/expense would be based
on the employer’s contractually required contributions.
For all employers, recognition would be on the modified
accrual or accrual basis, depending on the fund type
used to report pension contributions.
Finally, the third exposure draft would require
defined benefit pension plans that administer postem
ployment health care plans to present information about
health care assets and benefits in financial statements
similar to those required for pension assets and benefits.
One copy of each proposal is available without
charge until June 30 from the GASB Order Department,
401 Merritt 7, P.O. Box 5116, Norwalk, CT 06856-5116;
telephone, 203/847-0700, ext. 555.

SECPS Expels Member Firm
The firm of Roger G. Castro o f Oxnard, Calif., was
expelled from membership in the SEC Practice Section
effective Dec. 23,1993, for failure to cooperate with the
SECPS Peer Review Committee, a violation of the mem
bership requirements for the section. A hearing panel
deemed that the firm had not taken the actions required
as a result of firm’s 1991 peer review.

Public Meeting Notices
For detailed agendas, call 8 00/862—4272 (dept. #6) three weeks
prior to these meetings.
Accounting Standards Executive Committee:
Apr. 19-20, Tempe, Ariz.
Auditing Standards Board: Apr. 19-21, New York
Quality Review Executive Committee: Apr. 28-29, Bal Harbour, Fla.
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Dept., Harborside Financial Ctr., 201 Plaza Three, Jersey City, NJ 07311-3881.
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REPORT OF THE NOMINATIONS COMMITTEE
To: Members of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants
Pursuant to Article VI, Section 6.1.6. and 3.3. of the bylaws, the following report of the Nominations Committee
is submitted.
Donald J. Schneeman, Secretary
March 3, 1994
The Nominations Committee hereby proposes the following nominees as Officers, Members of the Board of Direc
tors, Members of Council-at-Large, elected Members of Council, Members of the Joint Trial Board, and Members of
the Quality Review Executive Committee.
■ Chair of the Board: The Committee affirmed the nomination of the following as Chair of the Board of the Institute
for 1994-95:
Robert L. Israeloff, New York
■ Vice Chair of the Board: The Committee nominated the following as Vice Chair of the Board of the Institute for
1994-95:
Ronald S. Cohen, Indiana
Upon election, the candidates will serve in the positions indicated from the Annual Members Meeting in 1994 until
the Annual Members Meeting in 1995 or until their successors shall be elected.
■ Board ofDirectors: The Committee nominated the following for election as members of the Board of Directors for
three-year terms ending in 1997:
Robert K. Elliott, New York
W. Thomas Cooper Jr., Kentucky
Kathy G. Eddy, West Virginia
Gaylen N. Larson, I llinois
Jerrell A. Atkinson, New Mexico
■ Council Members-at-Large: The Committee nominated the following as Council Members-at-Large for three-year
terms ending in 1997:
Carol T. Barnes, Louisiana
James O. Glauser, Missouri
Michael P. Bohan, Ohio
G. Fred Streuling, Utah
Raymond L. Dever, New York
GaryJ. Wolfe, North Carolina
Denise L. Devine, Pennsylvania
The Committee nominated the following as Council Member-at-Large to fill a vacancy for a one-year term ending
in 1995:
Jack S. Oppenheimer, Florida
■ Elected Members of Council: After consideration of the recommendations submitted by the state CPA societies, in
accordance with the provisions o f Article VI, Section 6.1.5 o f the bylaws, the Committee nominated the following
57 members from 40jurisdictions as directly elected members o f Council. Unless otherwise noted, upon election
nominees will serve three-year terms commencing in the fall of 1994 and ending in 1997:
Alaska — Kevin Branson
Arkansas — R. Stanley Peebles
California — S. Thomas Cleveland
JohnJ. Costello
Reed Cowan
Everett P. Harry
Colorado — Philip E. Doty
Connecticut — Ralph J. Takala
Florida — Wayne “Skipp” Fraser
James M. Lane
William D. Pruitt Jr.
Georgia — Edward H. Rudert
Guam — Daniel S. Fitzgerald
Hawaii — Kent K. Tsukamato
Illinois — Gary L. Fish
Jerome A. Harris
Myra A. Swick

Indiana — Dale L. Gettelfinger
Maine — David E. Olsen
Maryland — M. Kathryn Burkey
Massachusetts — Walter S. Goldstein
Michigan —Julius A. Otten
Leslie J. Patterson
Minnesota — Erling Dokken
Missouri — Harry J. Otto
Montana — Gary F. Demaree
Nebraska — William V. Strain
Nevada — Leland D. Pace
New Hampshire — Maurice P. Gilbert
NewJersey — Bernard R. Gingras
James P. Hannon
New Mexico — Katherine M. Rowe
continued
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Elected Members of Council (continued):

New York — William R. Brown
Arthur I. Gordon
Stuart Kessler
Marilyn A. Pendergast
North Carolina — John R. Hodge III
North Dakota — Frank Kadlec
Ohio — James T. Martin
Fred B. Miller
Oklahoma — J.H. Engelbach
Pennsylvania — Thomas Bunting III
James C. Stalder
South Carolina — Zeno H. Montgomery
South Dakota — Rodney McGinnis

■

Tennessee — Grady P. Williams
Texas — Arthur Greenspan
Bruce J. Harper
Ronnie Rudd
Alan L. Stinson
Vermont — John J. Weixel III
Virginia — Percy S. CurryJr.
Virgin Islands — Francisco Depusoir
Washington — Adele Brady Bolson
West Virginia — William M. EllisJr.
Wisconsin — Richard K. Sprain
Wyoming — Roger A. Schreiner

Joint Trial Board: The Committee nominated the following to serve on the Joint Trial Board for three-year terms

ending in 1997:
Patricia B. Bissell, Maryland
Gary S. Burroughs, Oregon
Robert Ford, California
Fred H. Gage, Indiana
Daniel Goldfarb, Nevada
Gerald W. Hepp, Michigan

Patrick W. Jacobs, Minnesota
Robert J. Minkler, Missouri
EdwardJ. O ’Grady, Pennsylvania
Rowland D. Pattillo, Texas
Thomas H. Richardson, Washington
Burney R. Rivenbark, North Carolina

■ Quality Review Executive Committee: The Committee nominated the following members to fill six vacancies on the
Quality Review Executive Committee and to add an additional member to the Committee for three-year terms end
ing in 1997:
William E. Balhoff, Louisiana
John T. Fisher, Washington
B. Brad Floyd, Tennessee
Bruce W. Hartley, Iowa

Stephen M. McEachern, Texas
Daniel T. Monahan, South Carolina
Walter H. Webb, Oklahoma

The Committee will nominate the Officers, Directors, Council Members-at-Large, Elected Members of Council,
Members of the Joint Trial Board, and the Quality Review Executive Committee at the Council Meeting on Monday,
October 24,1994, in Boston, Massachusetts. No nominations from the floor will be recognized. However, indepen
dent nominations may be made by any 20 members o f Council if filed with the Secretary byJune 24, 1994, which is
four months prior to the Annual Members Meeting of the Institute to be held in Boston on October 24, 1994.
Pursuant to the bylaws, balloting for directly elected Council members in any state where vacancies shall arise will
occur only if a contest for one or more seats develops as a result of submission of independent nominations to the
Secretary by any 20 Institute members in the state at least four months prior to October 24, 1994. In the absence of
any contest, all Council nominations will be declared elected by the Secretary and they will assume office at the
Council meeting on October 24,1994.
Respectfully submitted,
Nominations Committee

Jake L. Netterville, Louisiana, Chair
Davis A. Berenson, District of Columbia
James Castellano, Missouri
Lamar W. Davis, Georgia
Larzette G. Hale, Utah
Olivia F. Kirtley, Kentucky
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U.J. LeGrange, Texas
Robert A. Petersen, California
Richard E. Piluso, New York
Leonard Podolin, Illinois
Joseph H. Todd, North Carolina
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CPE
News

Self-Study Courses

Employment Law: Selected Issues
will help CPAs learn how to com
pensate employees legally at an
acceptable cost, how to avoid costly
discrimination suits, and how to
save money by handling most
EEOC investigations without out
side counsel. Highlights of this revised course include
employment relationships, such as contract labor; dis
crimination on race, sex, religion, or physical or mental
disabilities; equal pay for equal work versus “comparable
work”; age discrimination; minimum wage; overtime
standards; and exemptions. Recommended CPE credit:
10 hours. Format: Text (No. 731226CLE), $129.
Accounting Standards Update Audiocourse provides
members the convenience of earning CPE while at home,
in the office, or in transit.The course covers the most
recent pronouncements of the FASB (through SFAS #117)
and the AICPA’s AcSEC, and pinpoints their practical
applications. Also discussed are the significant changes
in the GAAP hierarchy of accounting pronouncements.
Recommended CPE credit: 8 hours. Format: 2 audiocas
settes/study guide (No. 730523CLE), $79.
To order these courses, call 800/862-4272 (dept. #1),
fax to 800/362-5066, or write: AICPA Order Depart
ment, P.O. Box 2209, Jersey City, NJ 07303-2209. The
courses are also available through state CPA societies.

Conferences
AICPA/University of Virginia Banking School, Char
lottesville, Unit I—May 15-20, recommended CPE
credit: 40 hours; Executive Update— May 12-13, recom
mended CPE credit: 24 hours. Marketing & Managing a
Successful Tax Practice Workshop, May 19-21, Phoenix,
recommended CPE credit: 16-20 hours. Conference on
Matrimonial Disputes (formerly the Divorce Confer
ence), June 6-7, New Orleans, recommended CPE
credit: 16 hours. For information, call the AICPA-CPE
Division at 800/862-4272 (dept #3). Tax Symposium,
June 3-4, Denver, recommended CPE credit: 11 hours
(call AICPA Meetings 8c Travel at 201/938-3232).

Seminars
New this year are AICPA “Power Packs,” a series of three
to five one-day seminars, being offered in conjunction
with many state societies. Courses covering government
accounting/auditing, and tax topics will be taught by
highly rated speakers. Each Power Pack will be held in
one or more locations within the state, giving members
the opportunity to get their CPE in single courses or in
blocks when and where it is needed. The new 1994-95
AICPA/CPE Seminar Catalog is in the process of being
mailed, so members can easily begin to select the AICPA
seminars that are offered by the state society of their
choice. Anyone who does not receive a copy by Apr. 20
should write: LaTanyaJunior, AICPA, Harborside Finan
cial Center, 201 Plaza Three, Jersey City, NJ 07311-3881.

Proposals to Be Issued on Mutual Life Insurance, Loan Impairment,
Mortgage-Servicing Rights, and Derivatives
As The CPA Letterwent to press, four exposure drafts were
expected to be issued for public comment.
The AICPA and the Financial Accounting Standards
Board will jointly issue an exposure draft that would
extend the requirements o f FASB Statements 60, 97 and
113, all dealing with insurance company issues, to
mutual life insurance enterprises. Included in the FASB
exposure draft is an AICPA exposure draft o f a pro
posed statement of position on accounting for certain
insurance activities o f mutual life insurance enterprises
that provides guidance on financial reporting for insur
ance contracts that have the following characteristics:
(1) they are long-duration participating contracts that
are expected to pay dividends to policyholders based on
actual experience of the insurance enterprise, and (2)
annual policyholder dividends are paid in a manner that
identifies divisible surplus and distributes that surplus in
approximately the same proportion as the contracts are
considered to have contributed to divisible surplus
(commonly referred to as the contribution principle).
The FASB and AICPA proposals would be effective for
calendar-year 1995 financial statements.
The FASB plans to issue three other proposals by
early Apr. One would amend FASB Statement 114 on
loan impairment. The proposal would simplify Statement
114 by eliminating the provisions that describe how a

creditor should recognize income on an impaired loan.
The proposal would not change the basic provisions of
Statement 114 and generally would affect only the classifi
cation of income (or expense) on impaired loans. It
would be effective on issuance of a final statement.
A FASB proposal on the accounting for mortgageservicing rights would amend Statement 65, which
addresses mortgage-banking activities. If adopted as a final
statement, the proposal, under which the accounting
distinction between purchased and originated mortgageservicing rights would be eliminated and a mortgage
servicer would recognize all rights to service loans for
others as assets, would be effective for calendar-year 1996
financial statements (with earlier application encouraged).
Finally, the FASB expects to issue an exposure
draft that would require more complete disclosures of
information about derivative financial instruments,
such as forward, futures, swap and options contracts
( The CPA Letter, Sept. 1993). The proposal is expected
to be effective for calendar-year 1994 financial state
ments, with a one-year delay for entities with less than
$150 million in assets.
One copy of each proposal will be available without
charge through its comment period. Write: FASB Order
Department, 401 Merritt 7, P.O. Box 5116, Norwalk, CT;
or call 203/847-0700, ext. 555.
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The Rural Electrification Adminis
tration has issued a final rule, Policy
on Audits of REA Borrowers, that
revises and clarifies current regula
tions requiring CPAs to state
whether an electric borrower has
complied with certain provisions of its loan and security
instruments. The rules were published in the Jan. 6 Fed
eral Register and are applicable to audits for years ending
Dec. 31,1993, and thereafter.

OCC Seeks CPAs for Fellowship
The Office of the Comptroller of the Currency is accept
ing applications for its two-year Professional Accounting
Fellowship Program. Fellows participate in the study and
development of accounting and reporting policy for
national banks, perform research and evaluation of spe
cific bank practices, and provide assistance to national
bank examiners and the industry on bank accounting
and reporting issues. Applications are due May 31. For
more information, call the OCC at 202/874-5180.

Dates Set for White House Conference on
Small Business
The U.S. Small Business Administration has released
dates for the state and regional conferences leading up
to the National White House Conference on Small Busi
ness (The CPA Letter, Jan.). The National Conference will
be held June 11-15,1995, in Washington, D.C.
The various state conferences begin in June 1994
and will continue through Apr. 1995. A total o f 1,130 del
egates will be elected and 695 appointed; the number of
delegates elected at each state conference will be twice
the state’s electoral college vote, with a minimum of 10
delegates in smaller states. Conference participants qual
ify as delegate candidates if they are residents o f the
states in which the conferences are being held; are

owners, employees or corporate officers of small busi
nesses employing fewer than 500 people; and are willing
to pay all expenses to the national conference or are in
need of financial reimbursement for expenses. Six
regional conferences will be held in May 1995.
For dates and locations of the state and regional con
ferences, call a local SBA office or, to receive information
via fax, call the AICPA at 201/938-3787 on a fax machine.
Follow the voice cues, and select document No. 520.

AICPA Supports Home Office Deduction Act
The AICPA has endorsed proposed legislation to liberal
ize the home-office deduction following the 1993
Supreme Court case that narrowed availability of the
deduction. In Commissioner v. Soliman, the Supreme
Court raised serious questions as to whether a deduction
is allowable unless 1) the customers of the home-based
business physically visit the home office, and 2) the busi
ness revenue is produced within the home office. In let
ters to the sponsors of the bill, Rep. Peter Hoagland
(D-Neb.) and Senator Orrin Hatch (R-Utah), the AICPA
said it believes the proposed legislation “upholds the
original intent of the home-office deduction, but pro
vides standards that reflect the realities o f the business
world.” Under the bill, a home-office deduction would
be allowed in circumstances where management activi
ties carried on from the home office are a significant
part of the entire business.

How to Obtain the Federal Register
Articles in The CPA Letter often refer members to the Fed
eral Register. The publication may be purchased from the
U.S. Government Printing Office by calling 202/783-3238
or by writing New Orders, Superintendent of Documents,
P.O. Box 371954, Pittsburgh, PA 15250-7954. Individual
copies cost $6; yearly subscriptions cost $444. Telephone
orders may be paid for with VISA or MasterCard; written
orders must include a check or money order made
payable to the Superintendent of Documents. Most public
libraries also have copies of the Federal Register.
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The AICPA Board o f Directors has over
whelmingly endorsed The Private Securities
Litigation Reform Act of 1994, which was
recently introduced in the U.S. Senate by
Senators Christopher Dodd (D-Conn.) and
Pete Domenici (R-N.M.) (The CPA Letter,
Jan). The bill, S. 1976, contains proposals
for litigation reform that the board consid
ers essential and in the public interest.
According to AICPA President Phil
Chenok, “We will do all we can to support
the enactment of a bill that effectively
reduces abusive securities litigation and
ensures that a private sector profession
remains just that.”
The AICPA board was eager to support
the legislation because it incorporates many
key principles that would help restore bal
ance and fairness to the litigation system.
The board believes that S. 1976 will discour
age the filing o f baseless suits that is cur
rently diverting precious resources from the
productive business sector of the U.S. econ
omy and inhibiting the voluntary disclosure
of important information by U.S. compa
nies for the benefit o f the investing public.
The Institute will continue to work with
Congress to clarify provisions as to which
there is uncertainty.
In other matters at its Apr. 21-22 meet
ing, the board:
■Decided to request that the governing
Council approve a task force’s recommenda
tions to permit ownership in firms by nonCPA employees.
■Approved the recommendations of the
task force on specialization and agreed to
seek Council’s approval at its May meeting.

Chenok Will Not Seek Reelection as
AICPA President
Saying “the time had come to move on to
new challenges,” AICPA President Phil
Chenok told the board at its Apr. meet
ing that he would not seek reelection
when his current contract expires June
30,1995. Chenok called his service as
president “a dream come true,” and said
that with the exception of his family, serv
ing as the Institute’s president has been
the most personally and professionally
satisfying activity o f his life.
Chenok added that five years ago,
when his current contract was under
review, the sense o f the board at the time
was that 15 years should be the practical
limit for anyone serving in the capacity of
president. “I have decided to follow that
good advice,” he said.
“The Institute has achieved a solid
record o f progress and service to the pro
fession and the public during Phil’s years
as president,” said AICPA Chair Dominic
Tarantino. “He will be missed.”
Chenok was elected president in July
1980. For three years prior to that, he
served as chair of the AICPA Auditing
Standards Board while he was a partner
of Main Hurdman. He also had served
on the governing Council, the Account
ing Standards Executive Committee, and
numerous other Institute committees,
and is currently a member of the AICPA
Board o f Directors and chair of its Strate
gic Planning Committee.

Subchapter S Reform Bill Introduced in House
The AICPA’s campaign to assist small and
family-owned S corporations advanced another
step with the introduction of H.R. 4056 in the
House by Rep. Peter Hoagland (D-Neb.). The
bill is identical to a bill introduced last fell in
the Senate ( The CPA Letter,Jan.), except for the
effective date. The legislation would make S
corporations more attractive investment vehi

cles for venture capitalists and make it easier to
pass family-owned businesses to younger gener
ations, as well as remove traps and unnecessary
tax burdens that cause small business owners to
avoid forming S corporations.
The AICPA will continue lobbying for
enactment of the legislation, which has broad
bipartisan support.
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AICPA’s First
Outstanding CPA in
Industry Award Given

More than 700 senior financial
managers representing corporate
America witnessed the presenta
tion o f the AICPA’s first Outstand
ing CPA in Business and Industry Award at the
Institute’s 1994 Spring National Industry Conference.
The recipient, Charles T. Fisher III, now retired, was
chair, president and chief executive officer of NBD
Bancorp, a $26 billion bank holding company head
quartered in Detroit.
Mr. Fisher is credited with doubling the corpora
tion’s assets, increasing the market capitalization from
$336 million to $2.1 billion, acquiring 23 banks,
expanding into new lines o f business, developing
scores o f new products, and moving interstate into
Indiana and Illinois—while keeping credit quality
high, capital ratios strong and expenses in check.
Among other accomplishments, he also diversified the
corporation from primarily being a lender to large cor
porate customers to being a consumer and small- and
middle-market lender, developed an acquisition strat
egy that emphasized well-managed banks with good
asset quality, and established NBD as a leading hightechnology bank.
Contributions by Mr. Fisher to national organiza
tions include serving as president of the Federal Advisory
Council of the Federal Reserve Board as well as on the
boards of directors of American Airlines, Inc. and Gen
eral Motors Corporation. He also is a former director
and current trustee of a nonprofit corporation that sup
ports efforts to improve urban conditions, particularly
for African-Americans and other minorities.

Report on Financial Reporting to Be
Issued in August
The AICPA Special Committee on Financial Reporting
has informed the Institute that it now plans to issue its
final report at the end of Aug. The committee had ini
tially expected to present its recommendations at the
May meeting of the governing Council, but stated that it
requires more time to integrate information learned
from users and preparers of financial statements into the
external reporting model.

Former AICPA President Earns
McCloy Award
Wallace E. Olson, head of the AICPA from 1972-1980, was
selected as this year’s recipient of theJohnJ. McCloy
Award. The award is given by the Public Oversight Board
to honor a CPA who has made outstanding contributions
to the improvement of auditing in the United States. Olson
received the award at the AICPA’s recent SEC Conference.
The CPA Letter (ISSN 0094-792x), May 1994, is published monthly, except bimonthly
Feb/Mar. and July/Aug. Publication and editorial office: 1211 Avenue of the Americas,
New York, NY 10036-8775, 212/596-6200. Second-class postage pod at New York,
NY and at additional mailing offices. Copyright © 1994, American Institute of Certified
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Top Ten Technologies List for 1994
Compiled by AICPA
Using a group decision support system methodology, 19
members of the AICPA Information Technology
Research Subcommittee and the Practices Subcommittee
identified technologies either in use today or in the near
future that will affect the accounting profession and busi
ness in general. Consensus was reached by having mem
bers make electronic selections on GDSS software about
various technologies and their impact on four particular
areas: productivity and quality improvement, audit, con
sulting, and general business awareness.
On an overall basis, the top 10 technologies are (1)
electronic data interchange (electronic execution of rou
tine business transactions); (2) area networks (computers
at different locations linked by data communications
technology to share computer resources); (3) cooperative
and client/server computing (distribution of processing
functions among computers); (4) image processing (the
process of converting, through scanning, paper images
into electronic documents); (5) quick response (business
strategy that attempts to meet the demands of customers
by maximizing the efficiency o f moving merchandise
from raw material suppliers to customers while reducing
inventory in the merchandise pipeline); (6) distributed
data base technology (a repository of logically related
data distributed over geographically disbursed locations);
(7) relational data base technology (a set of tables related
to each other through the use of keys); (8) communica
tions technologies (i.e., ATM, frame relay, T-Span); (9)
LAN interoperability (interconnection o f networks via
bridges, routers and gateways); and (10) automatic identi
fication (a method of providing instantaneous knowledge
o f material flow from receiving, through manufacturing,
and on to shipping (i.e., bar coding)).
More information on this subject can be found in
the Winter issue of InfoTech Update. For a copy, call
Nancy Cohen of the Information Technology member
ship section at 212/596-6010.

Dell Expands Affinity Offering
Dell Computer Corporation has added its “Dimension”
line to the AICPA’s member group-buying program. The
Institute’s program now includes all of Dell’s hardware
and software products. For more information or to
order, call Dell at 800/568-8313.

Public Meeting Notices
For detailed agendas, call 800/862-4272 (dept. #6)
three weeks prior to these meetings.
Accounting Standards Executive Committee:

June 7-8, New York
Auditing Standards Board: June 14-16, New York
Council: May 23-25, Scottsdale, Ariz.
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Accounting
& Auditing
News

Statement of Position 94-1, Two Exposure Drafts
of Proposed Statements of Position Issued

The AICPA has issued statement of
position 94-1 (No. 014812CL) on
inquiries of state regulators. The
SOP, which was prepared by the
Insurance Companies Committee,
addresses the auditor’s consideration of regulatory exam
inations as a source of evidential matter in conducting
an audit o f an insurance enterprise’s financial statements
and the auditor’s evaluation o f material permitted statu
tory accounting practices applied by insurance enter
prises. It is effective for audits o f financial statements for
periods ending on or after Dec. 15,1994. Price: $6.
The AICPA also has issued an exposure draft of a
proposed statement of position on disclosures of certain
matters in the financial statements of insurance enter
prises (No. 800067CL). The proposed SOP requires
insurance enterprises, where applicable, to make the fol
lowing disclosures in financial statements prepared in
conformity with GAAP: (1) information about their regu
latory risk-based capital, (2) the accounting methods used
in their statutory financial statements that are permitted
by state insurance departments that are not prescribed
statutory accounting practices, and (3) information about
their liabilities for unpaid property and casualty insur
ance claims and claim adjustment expenses.
The proposed SOP would be effective for financial
statements issued for fiscal years ending after Dec. 15,
1994. Comments are due July 20.
Also issued was an exposure draft of a proposed state
ment of position, Accountingfor Certain Distribution Costsfor
Investment Companies (No. 800068CL), that would amend
the audit and accounting guide Audits ofInvestment Compa
nies to provide additional guidance on financial reporting

for financing the distribution of shares by mutual funds
under plans pursuant to Rule 12b-1 of the Investment
Company Act of 1940. The proposed SOP would be effec
tive for annual financial statements for fiscal years begin
ning after Dec. 15,1994, and for interim statements for
periods in such years. The proposed SOP would require
that investment companies recognize liabilities under cer
tain 12b-1 plans when the distributor incurs costs with a
corresponding charge to expenses, would state how such
liabilities should be computed, and would require certain
financial statement disclosures regarding 12b-1 plans.
Comments are due July 22.
Members who are not on the standing order list for
exposure drafts (The CPA Letter, Jan. 1993) should con
tact the AICPA Order Department for copies (see page
4). Price: First copy of each free, each additional $5.

PB 11 Issued by Accounting Standards Division
The AICPA has issued Practice Bulletin 11, Accounting
for Preconfirmation Contingencies in Fresh-Start Reporting
(No. 033156CL), which is effective for adjustments of
preconfirmation contingencies made after Mar. 31,
1994. Preconfirmation contingencies are contingencies
of an entity that emerges from Chapter 11 reorganiza
tion and applies fresh-start reporting and that exists at
the date of confirmation of the plan of reorganization.
A preconfirmation contingency can be a contingent
asset, a contingent liability, or a contingent impairment
of an asset PB 11 is an interpretation of Statement of
Position 90-7, Financial Reporting byEntities in Reorgani
zation Under the Bankruptcy Code. Price: $6. Contact the
AICPA Order Department (see page 4).

Financial Accounting Standards Board to Address Earnings Per Share
The Financial Accounting Standards Board has voted to
add addressing earnings per share to its project agenda.
The project will be pursued concurrently with a similar pro
ject of the International Accounting Standards Committee.
Issuing a proposal late in 1994 is the board’s goal.

The proposal, which would lead to a final statement in
1995, would focus on the denominator of the earningsper-share calculation and would consider the basic—
rather than primary—and fully diluted approaches used
in most other countries.

Exposure Draft on Proposed Statement on Responsibilities in PFP Practice Issued
The Personal Financial Planning Division has issued an
exposure draft o f a proposed Statement on Responsibil
ities in Personal Financial Planning Practice No. 4,
Monitoring and Updating Engagements—Functions and
Responsibilities (No. 800066CL). The proposed SRPFP
provides guidance to CPAs who have been engaged to
monitor and/or update a client’s financial plan.
In addition to describing various levels at which CPAs
may become involved in monitoring financial plans, the
proposed SRPFP identifies certain monitoring activities
that should be undertaken, indicates that CPAs should
monitor financial plans using the same criteria used to
develop the plans, and recommends that the CPA com
municate the results of monitoring procedures to clients.

The proposed SRPFP explains that updating a
client’s financial plan is essentially similar to developing
personal financial planning recommendations; there
fore, CPAs should look to SRPFP No. 1, Basic Personal
Financial Planning Engagement Functions and Responsibili
ties, for guidance as they plan and execute an updating
engagement. It also clarifies that CPAs updating a
financial plan should consider how updating one finan
cial planning recommendation may affect other aspects
of the plan.
A copy of the exposure draft has been mailed to
each PFP section member. Others may contact the
AICPA Order Department (see page 4) for copies. Price:
First copy free, each additional $5.
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CPE Now Offered Based
onJournal of Accountancy
Articles

CPE DIRECT, the new AICPA sub
scription series that enables members
to earn CPE credit for reading cer
tainJournal ofAccountancy articles and
completing a study guide, proved to be a popular choice
with the membership ( The CPA Letter,Jan.). The $129 sub
scription series offers members up to 24 hours of CPE a year.
The price includes four study guides, issued quar
terly, which are based on designated articles in the three
preceding issues of the Journal. The articles will cover
information on a broad range of subjects, including
financial accounting, auditing, taxation, international
business, consulting services and human resources.
To receive CPE credit, members need to read the
designated articles, complete the study guide, answer the
questions, and return the answer sheet for grading. A
passing grade affords the member an AICPA Certificate
of Completion stating that the member has earned 6 rec
ommended CPE credits in a specified field of study.
Since CPE requirements vary from state to state, mem
bers should contact their state boards of accountancy for
information concerning the state requirements as to the
number of CPE credit hours that need to be earned and
the acceptable fields of study.
Members who order now will automatically receive
the June Study Guide, CPE DIRECT (No. G01048CLF).
To start with the Mar. issue (No. G01046CLF), give the
AICPA Order Department the Operator Code CLF and
AICPA membership number, or contact state CPA soci
eties. The course level for CPE DIRECT is “update.” For
more information on CPE DIRECT, call the AICPA-CPE
Division at 800/862-4272 (dept. #3).

Self-Study Course
Environmental liability is a new course that will enable
both outside and staff accountants of business enterprises to
recognize environmental problems, measure and account

for clean-up costs, and find and apply relevant accounting
and audit guidance. Included is the new AICPA survey,
“Illustrations of Accounting for Environmental Costs.”
Author: Michael Ramos, CPA. Recommended CPE
credit: 8 hours. Format: 3 audiocassettes/workbook
(No. 740912CLF), $119. Additional workbook (No.
740913CLF), $69.50. Contact the AICPA Order Depart
ment or state CPA societies.

Conferences
The CPA and the Older Client, June 20-21, San Fran
cisco, recommended CPE credit: 16 hours. MICR094:
The AICPA Microcomputer Technology Conference,
June 26-29, Las Vegas, recommended CPE credit: 24
hours. National Accounting and Auditing Advanced
Technical Symposium, June 27-28, Atlanta, recom
mended CPE credit: 16 hours. For more information,
call the AICPA-CPE Division at 800/862-4272 (dept. #3,
option #2).

Government and Nonprofit Seminars
Three new seminars this year are in the government and
nonprofit area. They are the Nonprofit Auditing and
Accounting Update, Governmental Auditing and
Accounting Update, and Cost Principles for Nonprofit
Organizations Under OMB Circular A-133. All are writ
ten by W.A .Broadus Jr., CPA, who has years of experi
ence as an official with the U.S. General Accounting
Office and is one of the AICPA’s most popular speakers.
Mr. Broadus, along with other highly rated instructors,
serve as discussion leaders at these and 11 related semi
nars. Norman Lorch, CPA, co-authored the course on
cost principles for NPOs.
Additionally, now entering its fifth year is the Govern
mental Accounting and Auditing Certificate of Educational
Achievement Program. New this year, members may take
the first course of the four-course program beforeenrolling.
Individuals who have not yet received a brochure
providing complete details on these courses, as well as
registration information, should contact: LaTanya
Junior, Group Study Marketing, AICPA, 201 Plaza Three,
Jersey City, NJ 07311-3881; 800/862-4272.

Second Annual Not-for-Profit Industry Conference to Be Held
The Second Annual AICPA Not-for-Profit Industry Con
ference will be held July 7-8 in Washington, D.C. The
conference is geared toward both CPAs who audit
NPOs and financial executives in NPOs. During the
two-day program, participants will explore the many
accounting, auditing, and tax developments and opera
tional business challenges, as well as learn practical
implementation guidelines and decision-making tools

New
Products &
Publications
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The Accounting Profession in
Australia, Second Edition (No.

010138CL) describes Australian
accounting and auditing standards
and compares them to those gener
ally accepted in the United States.
Price: $30.

for success in the NPO arena.
Conference highlights include an in-depth look at
FASB Statements 116 and 117 and keynote addresses
from the president and chief executive officer of the U.S.
Committee for UNICEF and the CEO of Offitbank.
Recommended CPE credit: 16 to 18 hours. Registra
tion fee: $445. For a conference brochure, call the AICPACPE Division at 800/862-4272 (dept. #3, option #2).

To order, write: AICPA Order Department, CL594, P.O.
Box 2209,Jersey City, NJ 07303-2209; order via fax,
800/362-5066; or call 800/862-4272 (dept #1). Ask for Oper
ator CL594. The best times to call are 8:30 to 11:30 a.m. and
2:00 to 5:30 p.m., EST. Orders for exposure drafts must be writ
ten or faxed. Prices do not indude shipping and handling.
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First AICPA Symposiumfo r Senior Executives
The AICPA is pleased to announce the date and location
o f its first Financial Management Symposium for senior
financial executives o f large companies. Sponsored by
the Members In Industry Executive Committee, this high
level program will be held Thursday, June 2, 1994 at the
Waldorf-Astoria Hotel in New York City.
Conference sessions have been structured to
encourage a dialogue between the participants and our
distinguished roster o f speakers.
In keeping with the theme o f this year’s program,
“Addressing the Challenges o f the Future,’’John Shank
will explore the finance function o f tomorrow using
insight from the best practices benchmark study o f
finance cosponsored by the AICPA and The
Hackett Group. This will be the first time the results o f
this study will be shared with the public and its findings
are enlightening. Dr. Shank is Noble Professor o f
Management Accounting at the Amos Tuck School o f
Business at Dartmouth College and Chair o f the AICPA’s
Management Accounting Executive Committee.
Joel M. Stern, the Managing Partner o f Stern Stewart
& Company will be on hand to explain the benefits o f
adopting an EVA™ (Economic Value Added) framework
for financial management and incentive compensation.

This framework was recently cited by Fortune magazine
as “today’s hottest financial idea and getting hotter.”
Alan Scheuer, a Principal with Morgan Stanley & Co.,
will discuss the uses o f equity derivatives to address a
variety o f corporate finance issues.
Walter Scheutze, Chief Accountant o f the Securities
and Exchange Commission and James Leisenring, Vice
Chairman o f the Financial Accounting Standards Board,
will discuss the challenges they face in the increasingly
complex world o f financial reporting.
Our special luncheon speaker will be Lacy Hunt,
Chief Economist o f the H ong Kong Shanghai Bank
Corp, who will share his views on the state o f the
global economy.
The accounting and finance function o f today must
take a quantum leap to reach its optimum performance
level for the year 2000 and beyond. We believe The Finan
cial Management Symposium will help provide you with
the tools you need to guide your company into the future.

The conference registration fee is $425 for the first
registrant, $350 for each additional person from the
same company. For more information or to obtain a
conference brochure, contact the AICPA Meetings and
Travel Department at 201-938-3232.

The Alternative Minimum Tax Doesn’t Apply to My Company (Or Does It??)
A speaker at a recent AICPA conference session entitled
“What You See is N ot Always What You Get — Traps for
the Unwary in the Business Tax Environment,” warned
the audience o f CPA financial managers to familiarize
themselves with the murky sections o f the Internal Revenue
Code that relate to the Alternative Minimum Tax (A M T ).
Speaking at the 1994 Spring National Industry Con
ference, Roy C. (Chuck) Thornton, CPA, a Phoenix tax
specialist and seminar leader, reviewed the history o f
what might be referred to as “the flat tax on economic
income,” described its basic concepts and computation,
and discussed an extensive list o f adjustments and prefer
ences that make the A M T applicable to more businesses
than business owners and executives might want to believe.
According to Thornton, financial managers in busi
ness and industry need to have a working knowledge o f
the code’s provisions on the A M T in order to determine
if certain business transactions could give rise to it’s appli
cation. The following is a partial list o f some o f the items
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to look out for according to Thornton:

Preference items
■ Pre-87 real estate for which an accelerated depreciation
method is used. Excess over straight line is a preference
item. But, note, that when excess method is less than
straight line, there is no “reversal.”
■ Accelerated depreciation on leased personal property
owned by a personal holding company.
■ Amortization o f pre-1987 pollution control facilities
to the extent that the special five year life exceeds
useful life.
■ Percentage depletion greater than cost.
■ Excess intangible drilling costs above 65% o f net
income from drilling properties. Excess IDC is the
excess o f the current deductions over what it would be

Continued on page 2
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State Society Programs Expand to Meet Your Needs
Volunteer leaders and state society staff representing
26 states met in Phoenix on April 29-30 at the AICPA’s
annual Conference for State Society Industry Committee
Chairs. The materials collected for the conference
illustrate the growth o f programs and services delivered
by state societies that are designed to meet the needs o f
CPA financial managers. What follows isjust a sample
o f the ongoing projects at a number o f state societies.
■ Conferences — Many state societies sponsor annual
business and industry (B&I) conferences and some are
beginning to offer specialized programs. One example
is Minnesota’s CFO Forum for senior executives o f small
to medium sized businesses. Another example takes
place in Louisiana, where they are building on the
success o f the annual B&I conference by offering
industry specific conference programs in such industries
as health care and financial institutions.
■ Networking— Opportunities to network with fellow
CPA financial managers are important. Therefore, many
state societies sponsor industry member forums,
periodic “get-togethers” for CPAs united by either
industry or geography. States with sparsely populated
areas face a real challenge. Idaho, for one, is trying to
meet that challenge with monthly breakfast meetings in
the southeastern part o f the state complemented by
quarterly meetings in the northern part o f the state.
■ Outreach — Getting to know their industry members
and their unique needs is very important for the state

society leadership. California is one o f the states making
an effort in this area by sponsoring a “new members
welcome program” and monthly assessment surveys,
which are sent to a random sample o f industry CPAs.
■ Newsletters — Regular communication to members in
industry is accomplished by most state societies through
articles and/or special sections in state society maga
zines and newsletters.
Several states, including Kentucky, New Jersey, Texas
and Washington have developed separate newsletters
which combine practical guidance on a variety o f topics
with state society news for CPA financial managers.
■ Community Involvement — A number o f state society
“industry” committees sponsor projects which benefit all
members o f the profession and others in the business
community as well.
Notable among these are Accounting Career Days in
Georgia and Tennessee. The Georgia industry group is
also coordinating the state society’s participation in the
1996 Atlanta Olympic games.
■ Employment Services — Many states are now offering
career counseling, employment referral services, and
mentoring programs to help individual members with
their careers.
These are just a few o f the many activities sponsored
by state society industry committees. You are encouraged
to contact your state society office to learn more about
what programs are available and how you can get involved.

The Alternative Minimum Tax Doesn’t Apply to My Company
(O r Does It??)
Continued from page 1
if the ID C ’s had been capitalized and amortized over
120 months.
■ Reserve for bad debts by financial institutions.
■ Private Activity Bond Interest Income.

Adjustment items
■ Excess depreciation on real estate placed in service
after 1986.
■ Excess depreciation on personal tangible property
placed in service after 1986.
■ Long term contracts accounted for by the completed
contract method.
■ Passive activity losses.
■ Post-1986 amortization o f pollution control facilities.

■ Mining exploration and development costs.

Special adjustments
■ BURP Adjustment (Book Untaxed Reported
Profits) — For tax years prior to 1990.
■ ACE Adjustment (Adjusted Current Earnings) — For
tax years after 1989.
Both the BURP and ACE Adjustments are “tricky”
and in some cases require three sets o f books.
Thornton advises CPA financial managers who are
not completely familiar with A M T to proactively consult
with a tax specialist on specific A M T issues that may arise
in their companies.

The Financial Manager's Report is a publication of the AICPA Members in Industry Executive Committee and is mailed four times per year to all AICFA members in
industry as an insert to The CPA Letter. Opinions of the authors are their own and do not necessarily reflect policies of the Institute.
The Committee and Staff welcome your input on ways to make FMR more responsive to your needs. Please address comments in writing to AICPA, Industry Member
Programs, 1211 Avenue of the Americas, New York, NY 10036-8775.
Members in Industry Executive Committee
Chairman, David A. Summers, Summers & Associates, Walnut Creek, CA
Communications Chair, Olivia Kirtley, Vermont American Inc., Louisville, KY
AICPA Staff: FMR and Industry Member Programs
Jay L. Rothberg, V.P. Member & State Relations
(212) 596-6005
Thomas J. Lemmon, Sr. Technical Manager
(212) 596-6122
Michele A. Rodin, Project Manager
(212) 596-6126
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Selecting the Best Markets for Your Company’s Export Sales
byJames E. Denny, CPA
Thefollowing is the second of two articles designed to assist CPA
financial managers as more US companies enterforeign markets.
It is adaptedfrom How U.S. Companies Can Profit in
Foreign Markets, the AICPA’s new self-study CPE course,
written byJim Denny, a Chicago-based CPA and international
business and taxation consultant.
Before beginning the process o f selling beyond the
water’s edge, the exporter needs to identify which foreign
markets will be the better prospects for a particular prod
uct. While the U.S. market is relatively homogeneous and
products are almost universally accepted in most areas,
the same is not true for the remainder o f the world. Given
the size o f the global market, it is extremely important for
the beginning exporter to target his or her exports.
The process o f selecting the best markets involves
four basic steps: product assessment, information gather
ing, comparison shopping, and market analysis. The
March issue of FMR discussed product assessment and
information gathering. This article will focus on compari
son shopping and market analysis.

Comparison Shopping
After seeking the advice and counsel o f experts in
the exporting community, it is very useful to do some
basic “comparison shopping” o f the various markets.
Comparison shopping is really the process o f investigating
the competition in various overseas markets. This involves
primary research about a potential target country by
consulting published material and soliciting the opinions
o f people living in the market.
■ Analyze trade statistics. There are several ways to con
duct this primary research. The first is to consult trade
statistics published by the U.S. Department o f
Commerce (USDOC) for the current level o f imports
and exports o f your product category for a particular
country. Heavy imports o f silicon computer chips from
Japan, for example, indicate that Japan may have a
comparative advantage in the sale and manufacture o f
this product and thus would not be a good export market.
■ Consult overseas publications. “Clipping services” are
available to investigate topics or subjects in overseas
markets. Clipping services are provided by certain
marketing research firms who will accumulate
information by conducting word searches from large
databases o f information.
■ Use in-country contacts. One way to get in-country
information about a product’s sales potential is by
directly contacting the commercial officer at the
U.S. Foreign Commercial Service (USFCS) post in a
particular country’s U.S. embassy. The officer is
responsible for monitoring local economic and market
conditions and has access to a wide array o f information
and contacts in the local market.

Market Analysis
The final step in sizing up the world market is to
make some assessment o f the basic impediments that your
product might encounter in certain markets. Once you
have assembled all o f the pertinent information,

it is time to identify the best markets by examining the
different factors that are unique to each market:

■ What are the cultural differences that might affect
marketability?
In France, corn is commonly viewed as an animal
feed and not fit for human consumption. Thus, market
ing canned corn or sweet corn would prove difficult in
that country until it gains consumer acceptance. You
can learn more about dealing with cultural differences
in the good books on the topic available in most book
stores. Additionally, coping with cultural differences is
frequently a topic at international business seminars
and conferences.

■ Are there any special import licensing requirements,
unreasonable tariffs, or quotas that might affect the
product?
Import restrictions and high tariffs might cause
an imported product to be priced out o f the market, as
compared to local suppliers.

■ What is the nature of the infrastructure and transpor
tation system in the country?
Transportation costs to certain parts o f the world
might make a product prohibitively expensive in some
markets. Similarly, the lack o f transportation might make
it difficult or impossible to meet delivery deadlines.

■ Are there any restrictions on the export of the product
from the U.S.?
Although the Berlin Wall has fallen and the Warsaw
Pact was dissolved, the U.S. still imposes export licensing
requirements on some high-tech products such as certain
high-speed computers. Having to obtain an export
license will add to the time and expense for the export
sale. Lists o f products which require export licenses can
be obtained from the USDOC and other federal agencies.
Information about the import restrictions o f a particular
country can usually be obtained from the embassy or
consulate o f that country.

■ What is the level o f competition in the foreign market?
Although the demand for your product may be
strong, domestic producers or other, lower-cost
imports may have a choke-hold on the market, making
entry expensive.

■ What are the distribution channels for your product?
Some markets pose significant challenges for certain
products. The exporter needs to assess the normal distri
bution channels and commonly used trade terms. Also,
sales commissions and types o f distributor agreements
should be examined.

■ What is the level of local economic development?
Big-ticket items may not be in heavy demand in
underdeveloped economies. Conversely, seemingly poor
countries might have a wealthy upper class eager for
new products.

■What is the availability of financing in the foreign
market?
There might be a healthy demand for the product
but very little credit available to potential importers.
Similarly, importers may be restricted in their ability to
Continued on page 4

The Financial Manager’s Report

AICPA /May 1994 ■ 3

More New Self-Study Coursesfor CPA Financial Managers
Selected Readings for Financial Executives —
SERIES 2 — All New Articles!
SRFE — Series 2 includes a diverse collection o f recent
articles that are relevant to the work o f CPA financial
managers. The articles capture the latest management
and technical wisdom on a wide array o f topics that
can have a significant impact on your business. Topics
covered in this edition o f the popular Selected Reading
series run the gamut from environmental liability to
the pitfalls o f commercial leases, from T Q M in a JIT
environment to managing stress when your company
is downsizing.
The 40 plus articles, from such leading business pub
lications as Industry Week, Corporate Controller and Inc., are
conveniently packaged in two separate volumes, by topic,
for reference ease. You’ll also receive a companion study
guide to organize your reading.
Recommended CPE Credit: 8 hours
Format: Text
Series 2 (Product # 731451CLF) $79.00
Still Available — Series 1 (Product # 731450CLF) $79.00

NEW! Investment Strategies in the ’90s
In today’s world o f low interest rates and volatile
securities markets, investors are faced with increasingly
complex investment choices. This course equips the CPA
financial manager, who is not an investment specialist,
with a working knowledge o f investment strategies for
today’s economy. It is applicable to any CPA who is
responsible for investing personal or corporate funds.
This brand-new course shows you how to establish
investment objectives, and how to evaluate fixed income

Selecting the Best Markets for Your
Company’s Export Sales Continued from page 3
purchase dollars to pay for imports.

■ What modifications will be required to conform to the
local market?
The product may require conversion to metric
sizes or different voltage capabilities. Some product
modifications may require significant capital investment.
Many markets, on the other hand, will require little or
no product modification.

Rules o f Thumb
A general rule o f thumb for international marketing
is that you can sell just about anything just about any
where. There are several improbable export success
stories that are often cited as examples.
Italy, world famous for quality footwear, is a highly
profitable market for Timberland Shoes, made in the
Northeastern U.S.; CalPacific in California capitalized on
Japan’s lumber shortage by exporting chopsticks to that
country; and STP actually exports oil to the Middle East.
The decision to market in one country or another
might be based on rational and quantitative analysis using
the resources discussed above. Oftentimes, however, the
decision is based on other practical considerations. The
potential exporter might chose to target Eastern Europe
because she is a recent immigrant who speaks the lan
guage. An exporter might also have friends or family living
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investments, common stocks and mutual funds.
Course highlights include:
■ Step-by-step analysis o f the investment process.
■ What investment advice a CPA can and cannot give.
■ Model portfolios for each investor type.
■ Strategies to predict and time the market.
■ Summary o f relevant 1993 tax law changes.
Recommended CPE Credit: 8 hours
Format: Text (Product # 735915CLF) $119.00

REVISED! FASB/APB REVIEW
With up-to-date disclosure illustrations, lots o f exercises,
and a challenging case study, this course provides
practical treatment o f the requirements o f the latest
pronouncements, through SFAS #117 and including SFAS
#114, Accounting by Creditorsfor Impairment of a Loan, and
SFAS #115, Accountingfor Certain Investments in Debt and
Equity Securities.
You’ll also get an up-to-date look at the most recent
FASB statements that particularly affect small and
medium-sized businesses. The course includes realistic
case studies, numerous flowcharts and examples, and
thorough reference materials on financial reporting
and disclosure.
Recommended CPE Credit: 16 hours
Format: Text (Product# 730102CLF) $159.00

To order: Call 1-800-862-4272 (dept. #1), fax to
1-800-362-5066, or write the AICPA Order Department,
P.O. Box 2209, Jersey City, NJ 07303-2209. These
courses are also available through your state society.

Fax Survey a Successfor
Management Accounting Division
The March issue o f FMR included a fax survey developed
by the AICPA Management Accounting Executive
Committee to enhance its understanding of the
management accounting concepts and practices in use
today among AICPA members in industry. As o f April 15,
more than 700 surveys have been returned, and more
continue to come in every day. The responses will be
tabulated, and a full report on the survey results will
be included in the September issue of FMR. Our fax
lines remain open if you have not yet completed and
returned the survey and wish to do so now. The fax num
ber is 201-938-3660. For those of you that did respond,
thank you for your interest in management accounting.
overseas who can help facilitate sales in a certain market.
What is essential — especially for the smaller com
pany new to exporting — is to focus on a small number o f
markets, often only one market. It stands to reason that
beginning in a foreign country is a learning process.
The more you learn about the market, the more
successful you will be.
How U.S. Companies Can Profit in Foreign Markets
(Product # 731475CLF), is available for $119 for
8 hours CPE credit by calling the AICPA Order Depart
ment 1-800-862-4272.
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From the Editor’s Desk...
Welcome to my first edition as editor for FYI. I look forward to bringing you
the latest developments in accounting education including news on innovative teaching methods,
curriculum development, available CPE, and other programs, scholarships and recruitment initia
tives of the AICPA Academic and Career Development Division.
I joined the Academic and Career Development Division in February, 1994 as Manager of
Education Programs and, in addition to my editorial duty on FYI, serve as staff aid to the
Curriculum and Instruction Subcommittee of the AICPA Academic and Career Development
Executive Committee. The main objective of this Subcommittee is to improve the quality of
accounting education and promote the availability of quality accounting programs.
As a New York State licensed CPA with ten years of public, industry and education experience
obtained respectively at KPMG Peat Marwick, The Bank of New York, Merrill Lynch and the
AICPA’s CPE Division, I hope to offer a perspective that recognizes the necessary interrelationship
between education and today’s real-world business needs.
I encourage you to express your views and contribute your awareness of accounting educa
tion developments. Thank you for your readership.
Elizabeth Scifo Koch
Editor

News and Notes
1994 Program Calendar
June 1-3

Loyola College’s,

“Trends in Computerized
Accounting Education Conference,”
Baltimore, Maryland. See demonstrations
and exhibits from numerous accounting
software/hardware vendors and textbook pub
lishers. Contact Barry Rice (410) 617-2474
for more information.
June 13 Women and Family Issues
Conference, “Achieving a Balance in the

Accounting W orkplace: Gender, Upward
M obility, W ork and F a m ily ,” Sheraton
New York Hotel and Towers, New York, N.Y
Features the latest research on women’s sta
tus and work/family initiatives and a keynote
speech by Lynn Martin, former Secretary of
Labor. Cosponsored by the AICPA, Catalyst
and the NYSSCPAs. Contact AICPA Meetings
and Travel Division at (201) 938-3232 to
register.
August 10-13 Am erican Accounting
Association’s (AAA) 1994 Annual M eetin g,
New York Marriott Marquis Hotel, New York,
N.Y Please be sure to stop by and visit with
AICPA VIPs and education staff who will be
on duty at the AICPA booth.

November 4 -5 AICPA Accounting
Educator’s M ini-C onference, “ Innovations
in Accounting P edagogy,” Portland, Oregon.
See opposite page for program details and
to register.

AICPA Fellowships and
Award Programs
Sixty applications includ
ing thirty renewals were
received as of April 1 , 1994 for the AICPA’s
1 9 9 4 -9 5 Doctoral Fellow ship Program which
encourages practicing CPAs with at least
five years experience to consider a career
change to academe. The AICPA awards up to
$225,000 annually in fellowships to account
ing Ph.D. students.
Forty nominations were received, and are
under review, by the Curriculum and Instruction
Subcommittee for the AICPA Outstanding
Educator Award. The Award is designed to
recognize full-time college accounting
educators distinguished for excellence in
teaching and for active involvement in the
accounting profession. The winner will be
announced at the May 2 3 -2 5 , 1994 AICPA
Spring Council Meeting.

Eighty applications were received for the

1994 P rofessor/Practitioner Case D evelop
ment Program . The program is designed to
encourage the development and use of realworld-based cases in accounting curriculum
by requiring professors and practitioners to
collaborate on case development. Eight win
ners will present their cases at the AICPA
Accounting Educator’s Mini-Conference in
Portland, Oregon this year. In addition, the
eight case winners as well as four alternates
will be published in a compendium and will be
distributed to accounting program administra
tors by the end of 1994.
The 1 9 9 3 -9 4 AICPA Directory of
Accounting Education is now available! The
directory contains information on over 1000
programs in the U.S. offering baccalaureate,
masters, and doctoral degrees in account
ing. It is a valuable reference for students,
career advisors, human resource personnel
and others who want to know about account
ing education opportunities. To obtain a
copy of the directory, please call the AICPA
Order Department at (800) 862-4272 and
ask for product #872550. Order soon as
supplies are limited. The cost to educators
is $35.00.

Rick Elam

Dates of the Uniform CPA Exam

year 2000. Moreover, with computer

Viewpoint:

ination have been a bone of contention

administration comes the possibility that

for decades. The May date conflicts with

the Exam can be redesigned to take

CPA Examination
Dates
“Computer administra
tion of the Exam
seems likely around
the year 2000.”

the end of the semester at some schools,

dramatically less time to complete. If

resulting in students concentrating on

experiments with computer adaptive

the Exam instead of their coursework.

testing prove successful, there is a good

The November date distracts CPA firm

chance that candidates could complete

staff from

the Exam in less than half the time

billing chargeable hours.

Further, offering the Exam only twice

A number of barriers stand in the

problems finding proper accommoda

way of rapid movement to computer

tions for thousands of candidates. The

administration of the Exam. The neces

A IC PA took a step toward resolving part

sary technology is in the very early

of the problem by recommending that

stages of development and lacks proven

state legislation require candidates to

reliability. There are only a limited,

complete their education before apply

though

ing to take the Exam. The effect of that

sites. State boards of accountancy are

requirement is to remove the conflict

committed through legislation to give

between the coursework and prepara

the Exam on specific dates. There are

tion for the Exam.
N ew technology is peeking over the
horizon that could allow candidates to
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presently required.

each year continues to create logistical

growing,

number of testing

individuals and organizations that have
big vested interests in continuing the cur
rent system for administering the Exam.

reserve space at a testing center and

However, in light of the benefits of

take the Exam on a date that is conven

computer Exam administration it is like

ient for them. Computer administration

ly all of these barriers will be overcome

of the Exam seems likely around the

in the next few years. □
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AICPA Academic and Career Development Division

announces
T H E 1994 A C C O U N T IN G E D U C A T O R S
M IN I-C O N F E R E N C E

“INNOVATIONS IN ACCOUNTING PEDAGOGY”
N o v e m b e r 4—5, 1994 in P o rtlan d , O re g o n

in cooperation with the
School of Business Administration, Portland State University
THE 1994 AICPA
Accounting Educators Mini-Conference
November 4-5, 1994 at Portland, Oregon

PROGRAM
Thursday, November 3
5:00p -

9:00p Registration

R E G IS T R A T IO N F O R M

Friday, November 4
7:00a 7:00a -

5:00p Registration
8:00a Continental Breakfast

Registration Fee: $195 (A IC PA MEMBERS) /$ 225 (NON-M EM BERS)

8:00a - 10:00a Plenary: Cooperative Learning
(Philip Cottell, Miami University of Ohio)
10:00a-10:20a Break
10:20a - 11:20a CONCURRENT SESSIONS:

Restructuring Accounting Principles Courses
( Thomas Edmonds, University of Alabama at
Birmingham; Alison Drews-Bryan, Clemson
University; Jack Zeller, Kirkwood Community
College)
11:30a - 12:30p CONCURRENT SESSIONS repeated
12:30p 1:30p -

1:30p Luncheon
3:00p CONCURRENT SESSIONS:

Please register m e fo r the 1994 A IC P A Accounting Educators
M ini-C onference. (Check one):
□ Please bill my credit card: □ MasterCard □ Visa $_______ Amount
Fax only credit card registrations to 201-938-3169
Complete the following information:
Card # _________________________Exp. Date_________________________
Signature__________________________________________________________
□ My check for $________ payable to AICPA is enclosed.
(Full payment must accompany registration.)
M ail to: AICPA Meetings Registration, PO Box 2210, Jersey City, NJ 07303-2210.
BATES # ______________________________
(AICPA use only)

Incorporating Oral Communication Skills into
Principles Courses (Barbara Scofield,
Southeastern Louisiana University)

Developing Instructional Cases for Principles
Courses (Michael Van Breda, Southern

Registrant’s Last Name

First

Nickname

MI

Methodist University)
College or University Name or Affiliation

3:00p -

3:30p Break

3:30p -

5:00p CONCURRENT SESSIONS:

Incorporating International Topics in Principles
Courses (Judy Ramaglia, Pacific Lutheran

Room Number or Mail Drop

Street Address

University)

Recruiting Students into Accounting Programs

Post Office Box

(Nita Clyde, University of Texas-Arlington)
6:30p - 8:00p Reception
8:00p - 10:00p Computer Workshops

Saturday, November 5

City

AICPA Membership Number—
Required f o r Discounted Registration

7:00a - 12:00p Registration
7:00a - 8:00a Continental Breakfast

Zip Code

State

Area Code &
Daytime telephone

8:00a - 10:00a CONCURRENT CASE SESSIONS

1994

Professor/Practitioner Cases

10:00a - 10:30a Break
10:30a - 12:30p CONCURRENT CASE SESSIONS repeated
12:30p - 1:45p Luncheon Banquet and Adjournment
2:00p -

4:00p Computer Workshops

Name and telephone number of individual to contact in case of emergency
HOTEL INFORM ATION: Reserve your hotel accommodations directly. Call the Portland Hilton at (503)
226-1611 by October 3, 1994. After October 3, rooms will be on a space-available basis only. Identify yourself
as an attendee o f the AICPA Accounting Educators Mini-Conference in order to obtain our group rate o f $95 for
a single or double room. To guarantee your mom for late arrival, a credit card number or first night's deposit
is required.
CANCELLATION PO LICY: Full refunds will be issued on written cancellations received by October 14, 1994.

CPE: 15 hours maximum
1993-94 Program Committee: Richard Fern, Chair (Eastern
Kentucky University); Gary Lawrence (US Dept, o f Education);
Leonard E. Berry (Georgia State University); Jean W yer (Coopers
& Lybrand).

Written cancellations received after October 14 but before October 28, 1994, will be issued a refund less a $25
administrative charge. No refunds will be issued on cancellation requests received after October 28, 1994.
A IR LIN E DISCOUNT: United Airlines is offering an exclusive discount for this conference. Call them at (800)
521-4041 and refer to File #541IR to receive 5% o ff the lowest available fare or 10% o ff regular coach fare. (The
AICPA is not liable for penalties incurred if you cancel or change your airline reservations.)
FOR FURTHER INFORM ATION: Call the AICPA at (201) 938-3232.

Register early as space is limited!
May 1994
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FYI Interviews
Pacioli on Fraud

them. For many of the bigger merchants

chants use three books to keep order to

several pages have to be used in one day.

edition of Pacioli’s
Summa de Arithmetica,

Pacioli:

Transactions

must

be

entered day by day, one under the other,
in such a way that it may be easy to trace

If someone would wish to do something
crooked, he could tear out one of the

describe the Memorandum a bit more?

pages and this fraud could not be discov

Pacioli: The memorandum book is

ered, as far as the dates are concerned,

a book in which the merchant shall put

for the days would follow properly one

down all his transactions, small or big,

after the other. Therefore, for this and

as they take place, day by day, hour by

other reasons, it is always good to num

hour. In this book he will put down in

ber and mark each single page in all the

detail everything that he sells or buys,

books of the merchants.

and every other transaction without

FYI: How would I keep track of bank

leaving out a jot; who, what, when,

accounts in an age when there were no

where, mentioning everything to make

mechanical or electronic devices for

it fully as clear as possible. This book is

maintaining records?

Pacioli: If you had accounts in sev

and in it entries should be made in the

eral banks you must see that you keep

absence of the owner by his servants.

these accounts very clearly and obtain

FYI: Why do you caution merchants

good written evidence as to debits and

about the possibility of fraud in their

credits in the handwriting of the clerks

bookkeeping?

in those institutions. Because in these

Pacioli: Many merchants keep

offices they often change their clerks,

their books in duplicate. They show one

and as each one of these clerks likes to

to the buyer and one to the seller, and

keep the books in his own way, he is

this is very bad, because in this way they

always blaming the previous clerks, say

commit perjury.

ing that they did not keep the books in
good order. They are always trying to

a merchant is showing an honest set

make you believe that their way is bet

of books?

ter than all the others, so that at times

Pacioli: All the merchants books

they mix up the accounts in the books

should be taken and shown to a certain

of these offices in such a way that they

mercantile officer such as the Consuls in

do not correspond with anything. Woe

the City of Perosa employ. Each page in

to you if you have anything to do with

each of the books should be numbered

these people.

and marked with a special mark described

FYI:

Thank you for spending this

on the first page. The description on the

time with us and congratulations on the

first page should be in the handwriting of

500th anniversary of your book. □

the clerk who will make entries in the
book. The said officer will record the
details about the merchants books in his

Geometrica, Proportioni et

records. The officer will attach the seal of

Proportionalita at the AICPA’s

his office to make the books authentic. He

office in New York on the 6th floor.

about maintaining an audit trail?

iar with the Journal and Ledger. Can you

FYI: Is there any way to assure that

featuring the 1494

What does your treatise say

their accountants. Our readers are famil

kept on account of volume of business,

S o mesee an exhibit

FYI:

The following continues an interview
with Luca Pacioli that was conducted by
FYI using the Time-Warp node of Internet.
FYI: Friar Pacioli, in your book
Summa de Arithmetica Proportioni et
Proportionalita you recommend that mer

will be able to attest to the authenticity of
those books for any case in court when
they might be produced.

My thanks to John B. Geijsbeek for
his translation of the original Pacioli
Treatise and to Professor Richard G.
Vangermeersch for his contribution to
making this conversation with Fr. Pacioli
possible.
Rick Elam, April 1994.

Published five times each academic year by the AICPA Academic and Career Development Division, 1211 Avenue of the Americas, New York, NY 10 036-877 5, telephone (212) 596-6 219. Except
where otherwise copyrighted, reproduction of the material in the publication is encouraged and permitted if source acknowledgement is made and a copy of the reproduction is sent to the editor. In
addition we welcome submissions for consideration for publication. Please send all submissions and inquiries to the editor at the address above. Opinions expressed in the publication do not neces
sarily reflect policy of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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Disciplinary
Actions

Under the automatic disciplinary
provisions of the Institute’s bylaws,
the following members have had
their memberships:
— Terminated because o f final
convictions o f crimes punishable
by imprisonment for more than
one year:
■James E. Sylvester of Honolulu on Jan. 27,1994, upon
his plea of guilty o f failure to file a tax return.
■ Cleon E. Point of Kokomo, Ind., on Dec. 22,1993, upon
his plea of guilty of ‘'willful failure to collect or pay over tax.”
— Terminated following revocation of his CPA certifi
cate by his state accountancy board:
■ Martin E. Fishell o f Berrien Springs, Mich., on Feb. 17,
1994, for “conduct discreditable to the public accounting
profession.”

Two Firms Terminated from QR Program
The enrollment of the firm of Solomon & Solomon of Dix
Hills, N.Y., was terminated from the AICPA’s Quality Review
Program effective Feb. 11, and the enrollment of the firm
of Michael A. Gryp, CPA, of Alexandria, Va., was terminated
effective Feb. 24, because the firms failed to submit to the
entities administering their reviews certain required qualityreview documents in connection with the most recent
reviews of their accounting and auditing practices.

AICPA Comment Letters on Federal
Government Proposals Available
Copies of the following AICPA comment letters on fed
eral legislation and regulation affecting the accounting
profession are available by calling the AICPA Fax Hotline
at 201/938-3787 on a fax machine and following the
voice cues and specifying the document number.
■ U.S. Office of Management and Budget revisions to
Compliance Supplement for Single Audits o f State and
Local Governments (document # 240)
■ Securities and Exchange Commission proposed simpli
fication of foreign company registration and reporting
requirements (document # 250)
■ U.S. Department of Labor proposal on disclosures to
employee benefit plan participants and beneficiaries
(document #310)
■ U.S. Department o f Agriculture interim rule on Coop
erative Agreements for the Development o f Foreign Mar
kets for Agricultural Commodities (document # 320)
■ U.S. Environmental Protection Agency proposed regu
lations on Financial Assurance Mechanisms for Local
Government Owners and Operators of Municipal Solid
Waste Landfill Facilities (document # 330)
■ U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
interim rule on Housing Financial Agency Risks—Shar
ing Program (document # 340)
■ U.S. Public Health Service proposed regulations on
Medical Facility and Construction and Modernization
(document # 350)
For more information, members should contact the
AICPA Washington staff.

Annual Report of Ethics Division
Investigation Activity
January 1-December 31,1993
January 1-December 31,1992
The following is a statistical report from the Professional
Ethics Division of investigation activity for the years
ended Dec. 31,1992, and 1993. The AICPA and the
state CPA societies participate in theJoint Ethics
Enforcement Program. This report includes investiga
tions conducted by state societies resulting in findings of
ethics code violations.

Activities
Investigations open at
start of period:
Active
Deferred—Litigation
Subtotal
Add: Investigations opened
during period
Subtotal
Less: Investigations closed
during period
Total
Investigations open at
end of period:
Active
Deferred—Litigation
Total
Disposition of Closed Cases*
Trial Board/Settlement
Letter of Required Corrective
Action
No Violation
Complaint Dismissed
Complied with Follow-up
No Jurisdiction
Transfer/Return to State Society
Automatic Termination
or Suspension
Complaint Withdrawn
Other
Total

AICPA
Ethics Division
1993
1992

446
235
681

411
228
639

424
1,105

418
1,057

471
634

376
681

413
221
634

446
235
681

68

49

121
92
115
39
4
10

118
85
63
16
9
11

8
2
12
471

18
1
6
376

*Letters of required corrective action and trial board
decisions usually require respondents to attend certain
CPE courses and thereafter submit examples of their
workproducts for ethics division review. At December
31, 1993, and 1992, there were, respectively, 176 and
132 case investigations being monitored for CPE atten
dance and follow-up review.
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The IRS recently issued temporary
and proposed regulations explain
ing the procedures for applying
retroactively the intangibles amor
tization provisions of the 1993 Omnibus Budget Recon
ciliation Act. The effective date of these regulations is
Mar. 15, 1994. Taxpayers who acquired intangible prop
erty after July 25, 1991, or who acquired intangibles
under a written, binding contract that was in effect on
Aug. 10,1993, may make the election, which applies to
all intangible property acquired during that period by
the taxpayer or a taxpayer under common control with
the electing taxpayer.
Generally the election must be made on the tax
payer’s timely filed income tax return for the taxable
year that includes Aug. 10, 1993. If, as a result of the elec
tion, it is necessary to file amended returns, they must
also be completed and filed. An election must be
attached to all affected tax returns. Special rules apply to
partnerships for which a section 754 election was in
effect to adjust the basis of partnership property. If a
partner has an increase in basis as the result of the appli
cation of section 734 or 743(b), the basis increase will be
treated as if a new intangible was acquired on the date of

the basis adjustment. IRS Notice 94-41 released Apr. 11,
states that a section 734(b) adjustment will be treated as
a retroactive election attributable to an acquisition by the
partnership, not the partner. Comments on the pro
posed regulations are due to the IRS by May 16,1994.
For more information, see the Federal Register, Mar. 15.

AICPA Urges Senate to Amend
Telecommunications Bill
The AICPA has registered its opposition with Congress
to the auditing provisions included in telecommunica
tions legislation moving through Congress that would
open the local telephone market to competition and lift
all line-of-business restrictions on the seven regional Bell
operating companies. The Senate bill, S. 1822, includes a
provision requiring the independent auditor of a Bell
operating company to be selected by and to work at the
direction of the state regulatory commission of each state
in which the Bell company provides local exchange ser
vice. The bill also includes a requirement that indepen
dent auditors performing such audits be rotated.
The AICPA has initiated discussions with Senate staff
and has submitted written comments urging these provi
sions be removed. Currently the Senate Commerce, Sci
ence and Transportation Committee is holding a series
of hearings on S. 1822. Similar legislation in the House
does not include the objectionable auditing provisions.

The CPA Letter

IRS Issues Rules on How
to Apply New Intangibles
Law Retroactively
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Highlights of
What’s Inside
AICPA, State
Societies Establish
CPA JOB BANK

Council Approves Accrediting Members Providing Specific CPA
Services, Non-CPA Ownership in Firms
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More Than 45,000
Members Contribute
to Minority
Scholarship
Program
2
U.S. General
Accounting Office
Endorses Internal
Control Guidance
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ED on Compliance
Auditing Issued, SAS
No. 73 and Auditing
Interpretation
to Come
4
Annual Members’
Meeting, Fall
Council Take
on New Format

7

AICPA Urges
Congress to Remove
Disincentives for
Fully Funding
Pension Plans
8

The next issue of
The CPA Letter will

be a combined issue
for the months of
July and Aug., to be
published the
beginning of Aug.

The Institute’s governing Council over
whelmingly agreed with a task force recom
mendation that the AICPA should accredit
various niches o f CPA services. However,
the process for accreditation will change—
accreditation programs approved by the
AICPA Board of Directors now will be sub
mitted to Council for final approval—and
the requirements for members to obtain
credentials will be standardized. The vote
took place at the Council’s spring meeting
on May 23-25.
Also at the meeting, the Council voted
to accept the recommendations of the Task
Force on Non-CPA Ownership and allow
non-CPA employees to become owners in
firms under certain conditions. An article
about and the text of the recommendations will
appear in the Aug. Journal of Accountancy.
In other actions, the Council:
■Presented the second annual AICPA Public
Service Award to Leon “Lonnie” Stockwell III
of Baton Rouge, La.
■Approved a budget for 1994—95 which
includes a 5% increase in membership dues.
■Voted to elect FrankJ. Katusak as AICPA
Secretary and Edward W. Niemiec as Assis
tant Secretary upon the retirement of Donald

J. Schneeman on May 31. Schneeman had
been with the Institute for 30 years and
served as Secretary since 1976.
■ Heard from the chair o f the Special
Committee on Assurance Services that the
committee will consider the opportunities
arising from emerging trends—most
importantly information technology and
the economics o f attestation— as well as
the potential market demand for assurances
in non-traditional information and the reg
ulatory barriers that currently inhibit new
assurance-service development.
At the Spring governing Council meet
ing, Council members viewed a 20minute videotape highlighting the
major programs and projects that state
CPA societies and the AICPA are work
ing on for the benefit o f members.
Members interested in obtaining a copy
of the “1994 Spring Council Update”
video (VHS format only), should con
tact the AICPA Order Department (see
page 7). Price: $8 (includes shipping
and handling). Orders must be received
byJuly 15. Allow 3-4 weeks for delivery.

Supreme Court Rules Individuals Cannot Bring
Certain Federal Securities Suits
On Apr. 19 the U.S. Supreme Court ruled
there is no implied private cause o f action
for aiding and abetting violations of Section
10(b) of the Securities and Exchange Act of
1934 and SEC rule 10(b)-5. The decision
was handed down in the case o f Central Bank
ofDenver N.A. v. First Interstate Bank ofDenver
andJack Naber.
Individuals may still bring suits against
those they believe have violated the securi
ties laws. The ruling relates only to causes of
action for aiding and abetting such wrongs.
Pleased with the court’s decision, the
AICPA said it is important progress in curb
ing abuses of the federal securities laws,

while still providing investors with adequate
remedies for manipulative and deceptive
practices by professionals. Section 10(b) as
well as other provisions, such as various state
laws and actions alleging common law fraud
and negligence, have been and will con
tinue to be the mechanisms plaintiffs will
use against wrongdoers.
Further reforms of the liability system
are still needed, the Institute believes, to
protect professional service firms from abu
sive securities suits. Legislation that would
help to restore balance and fairness to the
litigation system is pending in Congress
( The CPA Letter, May).

AICPA
News
Briefs
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AICPA, State Societies
Poll Shows CPAs See Economy Improving
Establish CPA JOB BANK Company spending and employment should increase in

The AICPA and participating state
CPA societies recentlyjoined with
Job Bank USA to offer members a
nationwide employment referral
service. Through this service, mem
bers seeking new career opportuni
ties and members looking for new employees will have
access to the CPA JOB BANK. Members are able to main
tain on file for one year current resumes containing
information on their work experience, proficiencies,
education and geographic preferences.
Confidentiality will be maintained with no resumes
being released without the member’s prior approval.
Individuals who belong to the AICPA or to a participating
state society will pay $50 for an annual listing. Individuals
who belong to both the AICPA and a participating state
society will pay $41. Members who are unemployed or
seeking seasonal employment will pay $32. Job Bank
USA’s regular price for this service is $125.
Candidates who do not have a resume can obtain
assistance on resume development. Participants in the
Job Bank will also receive a quarterly newsletter, toll-free
access to telephonic counseling on theirjob searches, and
discounted access to services, books and other resources
for effective job search and career management.
Employers will be able to search the CPA JOB BANK
for $250 per search. All candidates will be pre-screened
and contacted byJob Bank’s professional recruiters to
confirm their qualifications and interest. Responses to
employer searches will usually be completed within 48
hours. Reduced fees will be available for multiple
searches, and if the Job Bank cannot provide two or
more suitable applicants for a position vacancy, credit for
a future search will be given.
For more information or to enroll, call 800/939-1040.

Member Discount Policy Revised
Effective Aug. 1, 1994, there will be two list prices for
each AICPA publication— one for members and another
for nonmembers. The nonmember price will be approxi
mately 10% higher than the member price. Discounts
for quantity purchases will continue, as well as discounts
for educators, colleges and booksellers. The member dis
count o f 10% on orders over $100 will no longer apply.

Auditing Procedure Study Issued
A new Auditing Procedure Study, Auditing with Computers
(No. 021057CL), describes computer-assisted audit tech
niques that can be used in a financial statement audit,
their advantages and disadvantages, and the typical audit
tasks those tools can accomplish. This APS supersedes the
AICPA Auditing Guide Computer-Assisted Audit Techniques.
Price: $25 (available July 1). To order, contact the AICPA
Order Department (see page 7).
The CPA Letter (ISSN 0094-792x), June 1994, is published monthly, except bimonthly
Feb./Mar. and July/Aug. Publication and editorial office: 1211 Avenue of the Americas,
New York, NY 10036-8775,212/596-6200. Second-class postage paid at New York,
NY and at additional mailing offices. Copyright © 1994, American Institute of Certified
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the year ahead, and so too will interest rates, according
to a poll taken o f CPAs at the AICPA’s Spring National
Industry Conference. Many o f the CPAs who attended
the conference are chief financial officers, corporate
controllers or other senior financial executives of large
and small businesses across the country.
More than 460 CPAs responded to questions ranging
from health care reform and stock-based compensation
to employment and the general health of the economy.
Approximately 74% of survey respondents said they saw
the economy improving over the next 12 months. Fully
89% said they expected long-term interest rates to rise
moderately or significantly. About 65% said their compa
nies’ expenditures would rise moderately or significantly.
Employment was expected to go up or at least to remain
the same over the next year by 84% of respondents.

More Than 45,000 Members Contribute
to Minority Scholarship Program
With more than 45,000 AICPA members answering the
call for contributions to the Institute’s Minority Scholar
ship Program, the AICPA Minority Educational Initiatives
Committee, on behalf of the AICPA Foundation, wants to
thank all contributors for their support. The funds will be
used to award scholarships to deserving minority account
ing students for the 1994—95 academic year.
The AICPA Scholarships for Minority Accounting
Students are competitive merit- and need-based awards
of up to $5,000 for outstanding minority accounting stu
dents who show significant potential to become CPAs.
To be eligible, students must have completed at least 30
semester-hours of college work (with at least 6 hours in
accounting), be enrolled on a full-time basis, and main
tain an overall grade point average o f at least 3.0. The
application deadline isJuly 1.
Scholarships are awarded by the MEIC and funded
by the AICPA Foundation from monies contributed by
the AICPA, public accounting firms, individual CPAs and
others. Contributions to the scholarship program aid the
committee in its efforts to increase minority representa
tion in the accounting profession. For more information,
call Gregory Johnson of the Academic and Career Devel
opment Division at 212/596-6227.

Public Meeting Notices
For detailed agendas, call 800/862-4272 (dept. #6)
three weeks prior to these meetings.
Accounting Standards Executive Committee: July 26-27, New York
Auditing Standards Board: Aug. 2-3, New York

Other Meetings
Personal Financial Planning Executive Committee: Aug. 18, Denver
Quality Review Executive Committee: Aug. 1-3, Chicago

Public Accountants, Inc. Postmaster Send address changes to The CPA Letter, Circ.
Dept., Harborside Financial Ctr., 201 Plaza Three, Jersey City, NJ 07311-3881.

Geoffrey L. Pickard
Vice-President—Communications

Eilen J. Goldstein
Editor
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U.S. General Accounting Office Endorses Internal Control Guidance
The Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission (COSO) announced that the U.S.
General Accounting Office now supports the COSO
Report, Internal Control—Integrated Framework, as a result
of a new addendum to that document. In a letter to
COSO, Comptroller General Charles A. Bowsher stated
“the COSO Framework merits general acceptance for
evaluating the effectiveness of internal controls.”
Significantly, Bowsher stated, “Substantial benefits
will come from more widespread adoption of public
reporting by managements on internal controls over
financial reporting and safeguarding of assets.” He went
on to “challenge COSO to take supporting actions to
achieve the full potential benefits of the COSO Report by
actively working toward widespread adoption by the busi
ness community of public reporting on internal controls.”
Welcoming the GAO’s endorsement, Gaylen Larson,
COSO’s chair, said it was the outcome of successful dis
cussions about the scope of a management report on
internal control. Larson said the COSO Report catego
rizes controls into those related to effectiveness and effi
ciency of operations, compliance with applicable laws
and regulations, and reliability of financial reporting.
According to Larson, COSO has now agreed that a
management report on internal control “should also
cover controls over the unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of assets that could have a material effect on
the financial statements.” He emphasized that those “safe-

Disciplinary
Actions

As a result o f decisions by hearing
panels of the Joint Trial Board, the
following members have had their
AICPA and state CPA society mem
berships terminated:
■James F. Belfiore of Simsbury,
Conn.—for failing to comply with
the panel’s requirement that he
provide evidence of completion of specified CPE courses
( The CPA Letter, Sept. 1992).
■ Stanley B. Eisenberg of Albany, N.Y.—for failing to
comply with the panel’s requirements as a condition of
its accepting his membership resignations.
In May 1993, the AICPA’s governing Council voted to
authorize the Professional Ethics Executive Committee to
resolve ethics cases by settlement, in addition to its exist
ing authority to conclude cases by referral to the trial
board, letters of required corrective action, or findings of
no violation. Settlement agreements may affect member
ship status in both the AICPA and state CPA societies
and, in that connection, provide for publication of the
member’s name in The CPA Letter and society publication
upon review of the agreement by the trial board division.
The following have entered into such agreements:
■ Albert M. DeBiccari of White Plains, N.Y., settled charges
of violating Rule 202—Compliance with Standards by fa il
ing to comply with GAAS in his audit of a client’s financial
statements. Without admitting or denying the charges,

guarding controls” do not constitute a separate category
themselves, but are found in each of the three categories
defined by COSO. The new addendum, he continued,
deals only with reporting and does not change the defini
tions in the COSO Report, but resolved the GAO’s con
cerns and will ensure that managements that decide to
report publicly on internal control will do so in a manner
that meets the expectations of all interested parties.
Larson also said COSO would accept the GAO’s
challenge to work actively to encourage managements to
include reports on internal control in their annual
reports to shareholders, following the guidance in the
COSO Report and the new addendum.
COSO was formed in 1985 and consists of five
accounting associations, including the AICPA. COSO
sponsored the work of the independent National Com
mission on Fraudulent Financial Reporting (the “Tread
way Commission”) . The COSO Report, Internal
Control—Integrated Framework, was issued in Sept. 1992 in
response to a recommendation by the Treadway Com
mission to develop a definition of internal controls and
guidance for evaluating a system of internal controls that
could gain general acceptance by managements, audi
tors and users of financial statements.
The COSO Report’s new addendum (No.
990008CL) is being sent to those who purchased the
original report. Copies can also be ordered from the
AICPA Order Department (see page 7). Price: $3.

Mr. DeBiccari agreed to being expelled from membership
in the AICPA and the New York State Society of CPAs.
■ Lawrence H. Kaufman of New York City and Arnold
Shaffer of Mineola, N.Y., settled charges of violating Rule
201—General Standards and Rule 202—Compliance with
Standards by failing to exercise due professional care and
by failing to comply with GAAS in their audits of two sepa
rate and unrelated employee benefit plan engagements.
Under the terms of the settlement agreements, the mem
bers, without admitting or denying the charges, agreed to
the suspension of their memberships in the AICPA and
the New York State Society of CPAs for two years, during
which time they each are required to complete 80 hours
of specified CPE courses and to submit a list of audits
done within the suspension period from which one
engagement will be selected for review by the Institute’s
Technical Standards Subcommittee. A second work prod
uct may be requested at the end of their suspension peri
ods at the discretion of the subcommittee.
■ Nicholas M. Goddard of Minneapolis settled charges of
violating Rule 101—Independence by participating in an
audit engagement when he was not independent with
respect to the client. Under the terms of the settlement
agreement, Mr. Goddard admits to the charge of a viola
tion of independence standards, and agrees to the sus
pension o f his membership in the AICPA and Minnesota
Society of CPAs for one year, within which time he is
required to complete successfully a continuing educa
tion course in professional ethics.
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ED on Compliance Auditing Issued, SAS No. 73 and Auditing
Interpretation to Come
The Auditing Standards Board has
issued an exposure draft o f a pro
posed SAS titled Compliance Auditing

Considerations in Audits of Governmen
talEntities and Other Recipients of GovernmentalFinancial
Assistance (No. 800069CL). When final, the document
would supersede SAS No. 68, Compliance Auditing Applica
ble to Governmental Entities and Other Recipients of Governmen
talFinancial Assistance (AICPA, Professional Standards, vol. 1,

AU sec. 801). The proposed SAS provides generic guid
ance for practitioners engaged to perform compliance
audits of governmental entities and other recipients of
governmental financial assistance. The proposed SAS,
when final, will not require frequent revision and updat
ing because it does not identify compliance requirements
or specify the form o f reporting. The comment deadline
on the exposure draft isJuly 29.
In July, the Auditing Standards Board will issue State
ment on Auditing Standards No. 73, Using the Work of a
Specialist (No. 060445CL). SAS No. 73 will supersede SAS
No. 11 (AICPA, Professional Standards, vol. 1, AU sec. 336)
and the two related interpretations. The new statement,
which is effective for audits o f financial statements for
periods ending on or after Dec. 15, 1994, provides guid
ance for auditors who use the work o f a specialist as evi
dential matter in performing an audit in accordance
with generally accepted auditing standards. The SAS
applies to auditors who use a specialist’s work as eviden
tial matter in performing substantive tests to evaluate
material financial statement assertions, whether—
a. The specialist is engaged or employed by
management.
b. The specialist is employed by the auditor’s firm
and has been engaged by management to provide
advisory services.
c. The specialist is engaged by the auditor.
Also next month, the Audit Issues Task Force o f the
Auditing Standards Board will issue an auditing interpre
tation o f SAS No. 41, Working Papers (AICPA, Professional
Standards, vol. 1, AU sec. 339), tided “Providing Access to
or Photocopies o f Working Papers to a Regulator.” The
interpretation provides guidance (a) for auditors who
are requested by a regulator pursuant to law, regulation
or audit contract to provide the regulator access to (and
possibly photocopies of) audit working papers and (b)
for auditors who are not required by law, regulation or
audit contract to provide access to working papers but
have received a request from a regulator to provide such
access. The auditing interpretation also provides guid
ance for auditors when access to the working papers is
requested by a regulator prior to completion o f the audit
and when a regulator engages an independent party to
perform the working paper review on its behalf. The
interpretation will be published in the July 1994Journal
ofAccountancy (“Official Releases”).
To obtain the exposure draft on compliance
auditing (for those not on the standing order list to
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receive exposure drafts, one copy is free, each additional
costs $5) or a copy o f SAS No. 73, contact the AICPA
Order Department (see page 7).

Audit Risk Alerts to Be Available
Three new industry Audit Risk Alerts— Employee Bene
fit Plans Industry Developments— 1994 (No. 022131CL),
Not-for-Profit Organizations Industry Developments— 1994
(No. 122132CL), and State and Local Governmental
Developments— 1994 (No. 022130CL) are scheduled for
issuance byJune 30. Audit Risk Alerts are intended to
focus auditors’ attention on current economic, regula
tory and professional developments that can have a sig
nificant effect on the audits they perform. The alerts
can help auditors increase the efficiency of audit plan
ning by giving them concise and relevant information
to enhance their understanding about how current
developments might impact their clients and also will
help auditors to control audit risk by focusing their
attention on matters that may require special audit con
sideration. Price: $6.50 each. To order, contact the
AICPA Order Department (see page 7).

FASB Issues Technical Bulletin
on Statement 115
The Financial Accounting Standards Board has
released a technical bulletin that clarifies the scope of
its Statement 115, Accountingfor Certain Investments in
Debt and Equity Securities ( The CPA Letter, Feb./Mar.).
The bulletin is effective for financial statements issued
after Apr. 30,1994. To obtain a copy, call the FASB
Order Department at 203/847-0700, ext 555. Price:
$6.25; some discounts may apply.

GASB Issues Concepts Statement
on Reporting Service Efforts and
Accomplishments
The Governmental Accounting Standards Board has
issued a concepts statement on service efforts and
accomplishments reporting. The statement is the sec
ond in a series of GASB Concepts Statements. The state
ment does not require specific SEA reporting measures;
rather, it highlights the important role SEA reporting
should play in financial reporting and encourages state
and local governments to experiment with SEA mea
surement, reporting and use. The concepts statement
can be used as a guide in this experimentation.
The statement identifies the elements o f SEA
reporting and the characteristics that information
should possess before becoming part o f the financial
statements.
To obtain a copy, call the GASB Order Depart
ment at 203/847-0700, ext. 555. Price: $9.
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AICPA PROFESSIONAL SUITE
This team of seven software packages performs your mechanical accounting and auditing work and gives
you valuable time to work with clients and manage your practice. Purchased separately, these packages
would cost $1903.25. As the Professional Suite they’re available at a special price.
Total Cost $895.00 Product No. 016601US
Accountant’s Trial Balance 3.0
• Automates compilations, reviews, and audits by
entering the trial balance onto a screen displayed in
the format of common columnar workpapers
• Presents current net profit or loss and chart of
accounts with current account balances, and shows
details of any accounts without leaving screen

user-definable grouping schedules, analytical proce
dure workpapers, source journals, adjusting journal
entries, reclassifying journal entries, tax journal
entries, and potential journal entries and analysis

• Reflects all entries throughout the trial balance
automatically

• Generates a full range of analytical procedure
workpapers, including comparison of results of up
to 34 ratios to prior year, budget, or industry-entered
averages

• Generates a variety of essential reports and
workpapers, including trial balance, general ledger
listing, lead schedules, chart of accounts listing,

• Exports trial balances and user-definable schedules
to spreadsheets or word processors
LIST PRICE $423.75

ATB Financial Statements 1.2
• Creates financial statements from any ATB trial
balance
• Report-writing feature serves as a combination word
processor/spreadsheet

• Generates statements including balance sheets,
income statement, cover page, footnotes, supplemen
tal statements, accountant’s report, table of contents,
and statement of cash flows
LIST PRICE $156.00

ATB Consolidations 1.2
• links and combines accounts of related groups into
one consolidated company

• Automatically assigns accounts with matching
account numbers

• Creates master chart of accounts, to which accounts
of separate groups are assigned

• Automatically tracks activity in all companies
consolidated
LIST PRICE $156.00

ATB Conversion 1.5
• Automatically imports data into ATB from general
ledger or workpaper packages, including: ACCPAC
BPI, ACCPAC Plus, ACE, Business Works, Champion,
CYMA, FAST!, FAST-CPA, Great Plains, Macola, MAS
90, One-Write Plus, Open Systems, People’s Choice,
Platinum, Real World, Solomon, Timberline
Medallion, or any ASCH, Lotus, or dBase file

• Transfers data to tax programs including: CCH Com
putax, Lacerte, CLR/Fast Tax, A-plus Tax, AMI Tax
Machine, Digitax Business Returns, Ron Callis
Tax
LIST PRICE $280.00
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Depreciation
• Tracks how all your assets are depreciated, from
using double-declining balance on a company’s
books to applying an AMT preference calculation on
a federal return
• Supports six separate reporting bases: book, federal,
state, AMT, ACE, and “other”
• Reports generated include:
Depreciation schedules by category, G/L account
number, system, or convention; Summarized

worksheet information for forms 4255, 4562, 4626,
4797, 6252, and Schedule D; AMT preference
calculation; ACE adjustment calculation; fully
depreciated assets report; undepreciated assets
report; amortization report; Section 179 deduction
report; ITC taken report; basis comparison; depre
ciation account reconciliation; amortization
account reconciliation; Schedule M-1 information;
and overridden calculations
LIST PRICE $495.00

Audit Program Generator 2.0
• Saves you hours of time-consuming audit planning
work
• Maintains a variety of programs and checklists
• Companion checklists available include: audit
programs, disclosure checklists, tax law compliance

checklists, firm administration checklists, and
personal financial planning checklists
• Includes all the audit programs currently in Section
5400 of the AICPA Audit and Accounting Manual
LIST PRICE $295.00

Electronic Research Series - Technical Practice Aids (TPA)
• Powerful Folio™ software for search and retrieval,
with the same research engine used by Novell, FASB,
and other leading industry information providers
• Complete index and word search capabilities
• Selected inquiries and replies received by the
AICPA’s Technical Information Service (TIS),
providing a concise summary of each problem
accompanied by a reply from TIS staff and
references to any applicable standards

Areas covered include Financial Statement Presenta
tion; Assets; Liabilities and Deferred Capital; Capital;
Revenue and Expense; Specialized Industry Problems;
Specialized Organizational Problems; Audit Field
Work; Auditor’s Reports
• Includes Statements of Position of the Accounting
Standards Division, Statements of Position Auditing
Standards Division, Practice Bulletins, and a list of
outstanding Issues Papers for additional reference
LIST PRICE $97.50

If you have ordered any of these products within the last 30 days, please call the order department for
special discount information.

Call toll free 1-800-862-4272 or fax your order to 1-800-362-5066
TO ORDER NOW:

Give operator title, product number, and A IC P A membership number. MasterCard or V IS A accepted. By
mail, send payment to: AIC P A , Dept. CL, P.O. B ox 2209, Jersey City, NJ 07303-2209. Shipping and handling

fees: $50.01 - $150: $6.55; over $150: 4.5% o f order. Sales tax: N ew York City 8.25%; elsewhere in N Y state 4% plus local tax i f applica
ble. Connecticut, N ew Jersey, and Washington, DC 6%; V erm on t 4%. N ew Jersey residents do n ot pay sales tax on shipping and
handling. 10% m em ber discount on orders over $100. I f you are n ot com pletely satisfied, return the product in saleable condition
within 60 days fo r a full refund.
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CPE
News

Group Study

Beginning this month, AICPA/AHI
staff-training seminars are being
presented across the country.
These intensive workshops are
available in three- and five-day for
mats for individuals with four levels
of experience (Supervisory is avail
able in a three-day format only). Hundreds of firms each
year depend on these programs to prepare their newest
staff members adequately for the challenges ahead.
Staff Training—Basic: Learn to bridge the gap
between the theory learned in college and the applica
tion skills needed in practice. Includes training in basic
engagement skills. Staff Training—Semi-Senior: Find out
how to maximize quality and profitability on compilation,
review and audit engagements by approaching technical
and practice problems using common sense and profes
sional judgment. Beginning In-Charge: Enhance planning
skills, make better evidence decisions for improved qual
ity and profitability, improve the firm’s growth, and learn
the “people skills” necessary to work with clients, partners
and assistants. Staff Training—Supervisory: Prepare for
engagement responsibilities, including those dealing with
staff, partners and client personnel.
For a brochure with course details and registration
information, write: LaTanyaJunior, AICPA, Harborside
Financial Center, 201 Plaza Three, Jersey City, NJ
07311-3881; or call 800/862-4272 (dept. #4).

Self-Study Courses
NEW—Education Funding Videocourse—The expenses
of educating children have become one o f the greatest
financial burdens on most families in the country. In this
90-minute video presentation, moderator Lyle EL Benson
Jr., CPA/PFS, CFP, and his guest experts provide guid

ance to CPAs on funding the education of children and
grandchildren. Course highlights include projecting
costs, funding vehicles, tax considerations, investment
strategies and funding methods. Recommended CPE
credit: 8 hours group study and self study. Format: 1 VHS
tape/manual (No. 180150CLG), $129; additional man
ual (No. 350150CLG), $30. NEW-—Investing in Mutual
Funds Videocourse-Mutual funds are playing an increas
ingly important role in meeting the financial needs of
middle- to upper-income individuals. In this 2-hour
video presentation, moderator Howard Safer, CPA/PFS,
and others answer the questions on successful investing
in mutual funds that clients ask and CPAs need to know.
Course highlights include fundamentals, fund diversifi
cation, fund selection and the client/CPA relationship.
Recommended CPE credit: 8 hours group study and self
study. Format: 1 VHS tape/manual (No. 180160CLG),
$129; additional manual (No. 350160CLG), $30.
These courses are available through the AICPA
Order Department (see below) as well as through state
CPA societies.

Conferences
Not-for-Profit Industry Conference, July 7-8, Washington,
D.C. Healthcare Industry Conference, July 7-8, Las Vegas.
Call the AICPA-CPE Division at 800/862-4272 (dept. #3).
To order, write: AICPA Order Department, CL694,
P.O. Box 2209, Jersey City, NJ 07303-2209; order via
fax, 800/362-5066; or call 800/862-4272 (dept.#l).
Ask for Operator CL694. The best times to call are
8:30 to 11:30 a.m. and 2:00 to 5:30 p.m., EST. Orders
for exposure drafts must be written or faxed. Prices
do not include shipping and handling.

Annual Members’ Meeting, Fall Council Take on New Format
The Annual Members’ Meeting and the Fall Meeting of
the AICPA’s governing Council are scheduled for Oct.
24-25,1994, in Boston. The Annual Members’ Meeting
will begin at 9:00 a.m. on Oct. 24, followed by the opening
of the Fall Meeting of Council. Council should adjourn by
about 4:00 p.m. on Oct. 25. AICPA members are invited and
strongly encouraged to attend the Annual Members’ Meeting as
well as participate in the meetings of Council.

The Fall Meeting of Council is being restructured to
emphasize both leadership and major issues. Given the
significant challenges facing the Institute and the mem
bership, the AICPA believes that it must enhance its inter
action with members to address these issues effectively.
The new format involves:
■ A Leadership Day on Oct. 23 for all AICPA committee
chairs and incoming members o f Council.
■ On-site meetings o f several key AICPA committees.
■ Discussions on major issues facing the profession.
■ Joint luncheons and reception.
Participants at the meeting will include members of
Council, all AICPA committee chairs, selected AICPA

committees, AICPA members, executive directors of state
CPA societies, and AICPA executive staff. The luncheons
and reception will be open to all participants, providing
numerous opportunities for interaction.
■ Sunday, Oct. 23
■ Tuesday, Oct. 25
Morning
Morning
Committee Chairs Meeting
Fall Meeting of Council
Afternoon
JOINT LUNCHEON
Orientation session for
Afternoon
incoming Council members Fall Meeting of Council
■ Monday, Oct. 24
Selected committees
Morning
meet
Annual Members’ Meeting
Concurrent
Fall Meeting of Council
Selected committees meet
JOINT LUNCHEON
Afternoon
Fall Meeting of Council
Selected committees meet
Evening
Joint reception
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In a letter to U.S. Senators, the
chairs o f the AICPA’s Tax Execu
tive Committee and the Women
and Family Issues Executive Com
mittee stated their support for domestic employment
( “nanny tax”) reform. Legislation (H .R 4278 and S.
1231) providing for the simplification o f filing such taxes
has passed the House and was approved by the Senate
Finance Committee.
Specifically, the AICPA applauds the use of an annual
reporting form for domestic help Social Security taxes,
believes an annual payroll tax form is needed that is sepa
rate from Form 1040 and estimated-tax filings, and
endorses increasing the threshold for which Social Secu
rity taxes would need to be paid for domestic workers.

AICPA Urges Congress to Remove
Disincentives for Fully Funding Pension Plans
The AICPA recently urged Congress to consider remov
ing certain tax disincentives for fully funding defined
benefit pension plans at a hearing held to consider the
Clinton Administration’s pension reform proposal, H.R.
3396. The measure would reform the federally insured
defined-benefit pension system and improve the security
o f certain pension benefits insured by the Pension Bene
fit Guaranty Corporation.
The AICPA endorsed key reforms included in the
bill to improve plan funding levels, including rules that
would encourage more rapid funding, such as elimina
tion o f the 10% excise tax on certain nondeductible con
tributions. The AICPA opposed one provision o f H .R
3396: the elimination o f the cross-testing method for dis
crimination testing in benefit plans on tax policy and leg
islative procedural grounds. Also, according to the
AICPA, specific measures need to be adopted to correct

shortfalls in the information employees are presently
given about their pensions. The Institute a year ago
launched an effort encouraging workers to educate
themselves about their pensions (The CPA Letter, June
1993). Specifically, the AICPA offered a series o f recom
mendations to increase the amount o f information avail
able to plan participants about the financial status of
their plans—including how much the plan has promised
to pay participants and whether it is adequately funded
to meet those promises, whether its investments are
sound, and whether the pension benefits are insured.

AICPA Helped Convince Senate
to Amend Bankruptcy Bill
The AICPA helped convince the Senate to amend its
recently passed bill to streamline bankruptcy court admin
istration and establish a commission of experts to recom
mend future bankruptcy reforms. In its original form, the
bill (S. 540) contained a provision that would have made
the reimbursement for professional accounting services in
bankruptcy more difficult Bankruptcy professionals
would not have been able to obtain reimbursement for
any services that were duplicative or did not “benefit the
estate.” By adding these additional requirements to the
already strict regulation o f professional fees, the AICPA
was concerned this could have a chilling effect on the will
ingness o f accountants to provide services in bankruptcy.
The amended legislation now makes clear that the deter
mination as to whether the services benefit the estate is
made at the time the service is rendered—not after the
case has been resolved. The AICPA argued that if the ser
vices are deemed reasonable, prudent and appropriate in
the creation or preservation o f value in the bankruptcy
estate at the time o f rendering, fairness dictates that such
services be reimbursed. Also, the bill was amended to state
that reimbursement is prohibited only for unnecessary
duplication. Bankruptcy legislation in the House does not
contain any similar provisions.
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At a press briefing in Washington, D.C., on
June 15, the AICPA announced it had devel
oped six common-sense questions for boards
o f directors to ask about their organizations’
activities in derivative financial instruments
(questions appear on page 3). In assessing
whether derivatives activities are well man
aged and controlled, boards of directors, top
management and audit committees of public
and private enterprises should know the
answers to each of these questions. Given the
fast-changing market for derivatives activities,
no list of questions can be considered defini
tive. The AICPA developed these questions
in the public interest as a starting point for a
necessary dialogue among all decision-mak
ers in organizations that use derivatives.
“We recognize that derivatives have
become important financial tools for many
enterprises,” saidJames A. Johnson, chair
man of the AICPA Financial Instruments
Task Force. “However, the risks and uncer
tainties associated with derivatives—whether
real or perceived;—are creating understand
able concern in many camps. The responsi
bility for managing those risks starts and
ends at the top.”
Mr. Johnson said the AICPA’s recom
mendations build on the corporate gover
nance aspects of a study published by the
Group of Thirty (an international financial

FASB Chairman Testifies on
Derivatives
Calling them an “accounting challenge,”
FASB Chairman Dennis Beresford pro
vided testimony on derivatives before a
House committee inJune. The board
issued a proposal in Apr. that it said
would improve footnote disclosure about
derivatives and is continuing to work on
the accounting issues; a final standard on
disclosures is expected this fall.
policy organization) and the General
Accounting Office’s recent report on public
policy issues. “Asking the AICPA’s questions
will help focus the necessary oversight o f an
entity’s derivatives activities. In turn, active
involvement by boards of directors in this
issue could help allay some of the public’s
concerns,” Mr. Johnson said.
The questions were widely distributed
to federal regulatory agencies; all members
o f Congress; and other business and finan
cial organizations, including the Financial
Executives Institute, the American Account
ing Association, and the American Bankers
Association. Representatives of both the
national and trade media attended the
press briefing.

AICPA Tells Congress to Step Up Efforts on CFO Act
In testimony before a House committee, the
AICPA said implementation o f the Chief
Financial Officers Act of 1990 so far has
shown how much the government and pub
lic could benefit by full implementation of
the act Most o f the progress made high
lights the considerable weaknesses in the
government’s financial management system,
according to the testimony.
“The AICPA believes that our country
can no longer afford to treat federal finan
cial management as an afterthought,” said
Joseph Moraglio, vice president-federal gov
ernment. “Neglect o f this vital function over
the years has contributed to poor allocation

of scarce federal resources, inefficient oper
ations, and at times outright fraud.”
Moraglio also noted that the benefits of
the CFO Act are becoming apparent.Prob
lems are being identified and corrected; bet
ter controls are being installed to reduce
fraud, waste and abuse; and policy makers
will begin to receive more reliable and timely
financial data—but there is more potential to
be realized. The AICPA also supports pend
ing legislation to expand the audit require
ments to the entire federal government
To obtain a copy of the AICPA’s testimony,
dial 201/938-3787 from a fax machine, follow
the voice cues, and select document no. 401.
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Survey Shows Firms
Need to Keep More
Women Supervisors

A recent survey shows that while
26% of new partners are women—
generally consistent with the repre
sentation of each sex among the
pool of available candidates—turnover is higher among
women than it is among men, especially in the senior
and supervisory ranks.
Real and perceived barriers to the upward mobility
o f women were identified by managing partners as long
hours, increased travel, the demands o f client service,
and the perception that women leave accounting after
having children (the survey showed that 89% o f women
who took maternity leave returned to their firms). Man
aging partners also noted increased concern about
quality-of-life issues for both men and women CPAs,
particularly among younger professionals.
The survey o f more than 5,000 accounting firms was
commissioned by the AICPA’s Women and Family Issues
Executive Committee. Early findings were presented at a
June 13 conference sponsored by the committee; the
New York State Society of CPAs; and Catalyst, a national
nonprofit research organization.

Free Guide on Donations Offered
Accountants with corporate clients can receive a free
guide that shows how corporations can earn a federal
income tax deduction by donating their excess, inactive
inventory to charity.
The guide is offered by the National Association for
the Exchange of Industrial Resources, a nonprofit orga
nization, and is available by calling 800/562-0955 or by
faxing a request to 309/343-0862.

PFS Exam Scheduled for Sept. 23
The next examination for members interested in obtain
ing the Personal Financial Specialist designation is Sept.
23. State societies nationwide will be providing their
offices as testing sites. For exam information and an
application (No. G00055CL), contact the AICPA Order
Department (see page 10).
Presently there are more than 880 CPAs who have
earned the designation; an additional 59 members
passed the exam given in Jan.

AICPA Elijah Watt Sells Award Winners
Announced
Susan Steiner o f Tampa, Fla., has won the AICPA Elijah
Watt Sells Gold Medal Award for receiving the highest
score on the Nov. 1993 Uniform CPA Examination. The
silver and bronze awards went to Michelle Engle o f Mon
ticello, Ill., and Juzer Abdeali Haji o f Saudi Arabia,
respectively.
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bimonthly Feb./Mar. and July/Aug. Publication and editorial office: 1211 Avenue of the
Americas, New York, NY 10036-8775, 212/596-6200. Second-class postage paid at
New York, NY and at additional mailing offices. Copyright © 1994, American Institute of
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Prudential Introduces Two New
Mortgage Options
The AICPA’s member affinity program with Prudential
Home Mortgage hasjust been enhanced with the addi
tion o f two new mortgage options. A 20-year fixed-rate
mortgage is now available; previously there were only 15year and 30-year fixed-rate loans. A new adjustable-rate
mortgage gives borrowers a fixed payment for 10 years
with annual adjustments thereafter. This ARM offers
lower payments than the standard 30-year fixed-rate
loan, and interest cannot rise more than 5% above the
initial interest rate over the life of the loan. For informa
tion or to apply, call 800/272-1210.

AICPA Videos Win Awards
Two videos produced by the AICPA Communications
Division’s Video Services unit have won awards of excel
lence. A student-recruitment video, “Accounting: The
One Degree with 360 Degrees of Possibilities,” took first
place in the American Corporate Video Awards 1994
competition. The video, which also was nominated for a
Golden Reel Award at the International Television Asso
ciation’s conference, wasjudged with 120 other entries
in the area o f “Colleges/Universities.”
At the 15th Annual Telly Awards, both the recruit
ment video and the Institute’s biannual news program,
“1993 AICPA Spring Council,” were given bronze awards
for excellence. The Telly Awards showcase and give
recognition to cable television and non-network film and
video productions.

Firms Expelled from PCPS, Terminated
from QR
The firm of Daniel J. Weinberg in Boca Raton, Fla., was
expelled from the Private Companies Practice Section effec
tiveJune 3, 1994, because a PCPS hearing panel found the
firm violated the membership requirements of the section
by failing to have a peer review of its accounting and audit
ing practices in accordance with established standards.
Effective Mar. 11, 1994, the enrollment of the firm
of Roderick M. Kawata of Tucson, Ariz., in the AICPA’s
Quality Review Program was terminated because the sole
owner of the firm resigned from the Institute during the
course o f a quality review, rather than taking the actions
deemed necessary as a result of the review.

Public Meeting Notices
For detailed agendas, call 800/862-4272 (dept. #6) three
weeks prior to these meetings.

Accounting Standards Executive Committee:
Sept. 13-14, N ew York______________
O ther Meetings

Personal Financial Planning Executive Committee:
A ug. 18, Denver

Certified Public Accountants, Inc. Postmaster Send address changes to The CPA Letter,
Circ. Dept, Harborside Financial Ctr., 201 Plaza Three, Jersey City, NJ 07311-3881.

Geoffrey L. Pickard
Vice-President— Communications

Ellen J. Goldstein
Editor
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Questions About Derivatives (see article on page 1)
Following are specific questions the AICPA has developed about derivatives activities. The AICPA hopes these ques
tions can help top management and boards of directors of all types of enterprises gain a better understanding of
their entities’ derivatives activities.
1. Has the board established a clear and internally consis
tent risk management policy, including risk limits (as
appropriate)?
Are our objectives and goals for derivatives activities
clearly stated and communicated? To what extent are
our operational objectives for derivatives being achieved?
Are derivatives used to mitigate risk or do they create
additional risk? If risk is being assumed, are trading lim
its established? Is the entity’s strategy for derivatives use
designed to further its economic, regulatory, industry
and/or operating objectives?
2. Are management’s strategies and implementation poli
cies consistent with the board’s authorization?
Management’s philosophy and operating style create an
environment that influences the actions o f treasury and
other personnel involved in derivatives activities. The
assignment o f authority and responsibility for derivatives
transactions sends an important message. Is that message
clear? Is compliance with these or related policies and
procedures evaluated regularly? Does the treasury func
tion view itself, or is it evaluated, as a profit center?
3. Do key controls exist to ensure that only authorized
transactions take place and that unauthorized transac
tions are quickly detected and appropriate action is
taken?
Internal controls over derivatives activities should be
monitored on an ongoing basis, and should also be sub
ject to separate evaluations. Who is evaluating controls
over derivatives activities? Do they bring the appropriate
technical expertise to bear? Are deficiencies being iden
tified and reported upstream? Are duties involving exe
cution o f derivatives transactions segregated from other
duties (for example, the accounting and internal audit
functions)?
4. Are the magnitude, complexity and risks of the entity’s
derivatives commensurate with the entity’s objectives?
What are the entity’s risk exposures, including deriv
atives? Internal analyses should include quantitative and
qualitative information about the entity’s derivatives
activities. Analyses should address the risks associated
with derivatives, which include:
■ Credit risk (the possible financial loss resulting from a
counterparty’s failure to meet its financial obligations)
■ Market risk (the possible financial loss resulting from
adverse movements in the price of a financial asset or
commodity)
■ Legal risk (the possible financial loss resulting from a
legal or regulatory action that could invalidate a finan
cial contract)
■ Control risk (the possible financial loss resulting from
inadequate internal control structure)
Are our derivatives transactions standard for their
class (that is, plain vanilla) or are they more complex? Is

the complexity o f derivatives transactions inconsistent
with the risks being managed? The entity’s risk assess
ment should result in a determination about how to manage
identified risks of derivatives activities. Has management
anticipated how it will manage potential derivatives risks
before assuming them?
5. Are personnel with authority to engage in and monitor
derivative transactions well qualified and appropriately
trained?
Who are the key derivatives players within the
entity? Is the knowledge vested only in one individual
or a small group? The complexity o f derivatives activi
ties should be accompanied by development o f person
nel. For example, do employees involved in derivatives
activities have the appropriate technical and profes
sional expertise? Are other employees being appropri
ately educated before they become involved with
derivatives transactions? Does the entity have personnel
who have been cross-trained in case of the absence or
departure o f key personnel involved with derivatives
activities? How do we ensure the integrity, ethical values
and competence o f personnel involved with derivatives
activities?
6. Do the right people have the right information to
make decisions?
What information about derivatives activities are we
identifying and capturing, and how is it being communi
cated? The information should address both external
and internal events, activities and conditions. For exam
ple, are we capturing and communicating information
about market changes affecting derivatives transactions
and about changes in our strategy for the mix o f assets
and liabilities that are the focus of risk management
activities involving derivatives? Is this information being
communicated to all affected parties?
Are the analysis and internal reporting of risks the
company is managing and the effectiveness o f its strate
gies comprehensive, reliable and well designed to facili
tate oversight? The board should consider derivatives
activities in the context of how related risks affect the
achievement of the entity’s objectives—economic, regu
latory, industry or operating. For example, do derivatives
activities increase the entity’s exposure to risks that
might frustrate, rather than further, achievement of
these objectives?
Do we mark our derivatives transactions to market
regularly (and, if not, why not)? Do we have good sys
tems for marking transactions to market? Have the sys
tems been tested by persons independent o f the
derivatives function? Do we know how the value of our
derivatives will change under extreme market condi
tions? Is our published financial information about deriv
atives being prepared reliably and in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles?
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Technical Sections Are Provided for Members Offering Specific CPA Services
The AICPA’s voluntary membership sections serve CPAs
with special interests in the areas o f tax, personal finan
cial planning, management consulting services and infor
mation technology. Each o f these sections offers its
members a variety o f benefits.
Taxation
Among the publications members o f the Tax section
receive automatically are the annual Tax Practice Guides
and Checklists and other topical practice guides. In addi
tion, members receive the monthly Tax Adviser magazine
and a quarterly newsletter. To follow developments in
specific areas o f technical or tax practice interest, section
members also receive agendas, minutes and major corre
spondence o f technical, practice support, and policy and
government committees.
In keeping with emerging technology, the tax sec
tion has utilized its aggregate buying power to negotiate
discounts with most o f the companies that produce tax
research software on CD-ROM. Publications from other
organizations, including the Internal Revenue Code, are
available at a discount as well.
Personal Financial Planning
Members o f the Personal Financial Planning section ben
efit from a strong media relations campaign that strives
to enhance continually the public’s awareness o f CPAs as
financial planners. CPAs who are knowledgeable on a
wide range o f financial planning topics frequently are
interviewed by national print and broadcast media.
Helping CPAs to sharpen their PFP skills, the section
sponsors an annual technical conference to which sec
tion members receive a reduced registration fee. Section
members are also entitled to the PFP Manual, a
bimonthly newsletter, vendor discounts and numerous
practice aids.
Management Consulting Services
Members o f the Management Consulting Services sec
tion are entitled to an exhaustive list o f technical, small

business, and industry consulting aids; practice adminis
tration aids; special reports; marketing brochures; and
other publications. A quarterly newsletter keeps section
members informed about emerging issues and services
to help CPAs recognize opportunities that can develop
into consulting services engagements. Also available is a
data base referral service that puts members with special
ized expertise in touch with each other to share informa
tion. Vendor discounts provide savings on publications,
software, and other products designed to make consult
ing work more effective and efficient.
Information Technology
For CPAs who want to capitalize on the “Information
Superhighway,” there is the Information Technology
membership section. Practice aids and technology bul
letins have been produced to explain such things as
image processing and optical character recognition,
memory management, and computer disaster recovery.
A quarterly newsletter provides information on a range
o f information technology subjects. Technology Alerts are
issued as needed when a technology becomes “hot,” such
as fax-on-demand systems and the audit concerns of
faxed material.
Section members’ software research time and costs
are reduced by using complimentary introductory copies
o f ICP’s InfoROM software directory on CD-ROM. Sub
scriptions are available to members at discounted prices.
Other vendor discounts provide significant savings on
technology products and services.
Application Information
To obtain information on and applications for the mem
bership sections, write: AICPA Membership Administra
tion, Harborside Financial Center, 201 Plaza Three,
Jersey City, NJ 07311-3881; or call 201/938-3100. Mem
bership begins Aug. 1 and expires July 31,1995. Fees are
as follows: Tax-$95, PFP-$115, MCS-$100, and IT-$100.
Non-CPAs employed by CPA firms may enroll in techni
cal sections as “section associates”; different fees apply.

Members Invited to Participate in Annual, Council Meetings
AICPA members are invited and encouraged to attend
this year’s Annual Members’ Meeting and fall meeting o f
Council in Boston on Oct. 24-25. The meetings have
been expanded and restructured to allow for greater
interaction among the profession’s leadership. A Leader
ship Day on Oct. 23 preceding the annual member and
fall Council meetings for AICPA committee chairs and
incoming members o f Council will focus on major goals
for the year, issues that must be addressed, and provide a
forum for interaction with other leaders o f the Institute.
On-site meetings o f several key committees will also take
place. Members are invited to attend the Committee
Chairs’ Meeting, Annual Members’ Meeting, meeting o f
Council, and the luncheons and reception.
For more information and registration material, con
tact AICPA Meetings & Travel at 201/938-3232. The
participants and format for these meetings are as follows:
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Sunday, Oct 23
LeadershipDay

Morning
Committee Chairs’ Meeting
Afternoon
Incoming Council Members’
Orientation Session
I Monday, Oct 24
Morning
Annual Members’ Meeting
Concurrent
Fall Meeting of Council
Selected Committees Meet
JOINT LUNCHEON
Afternoon
Concurrent
Fall Meeting of Council

(Monday afternoon— cont.)

Selected Committees Meet
Joint Reception
I

Tuesday, Oct 25

Morning
Fall Meeting of Council
JOINT LUNCHEON
Afternoon
Concurrent
Fall Meeting of Council
Selected Committees Meet
A registration form will appear
in the Sept. CPA Letter.
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Directory o f AICPA Services

(Clip for reference)

Below is a list of the direct telephone numbers for frequently called AICPA services and activities. To order publications,
call the Order Department and not the issuing division. All address andjob change information should be mailed or faxed
to Membership Records in N.J. (the changes will be made automatically for all publications included in your member
ship). Also, all accounting and auditing practice questions should be directed to the Technical Information Hotline.
212/596-6200
AICPA, New York
Fax number
212/596-6213
AICPA, New Jersey
201/938-3000
Tie-line
212/318-0500
Fax number
201/938-3329
AICPA, Washington
202/737-6600
Fax number
202/638-4512
800/TO-AICPA
AICPA CPE Course Information
AICPA Political Action Committee
202/434-9205
Academic and Career
Development Division
212/596-6222
Advertising (Journal ofAccountancy, The Tax Adviser)
Classified
201/938-3293
Display
201/938-3295
General Accounting
201/938-3244
Accounting and Review Services
212/596-6031
Accounting Research Association
201/938-3280
Accounting Standards
212/596-6165
Audit & Accounting Guides
212/596-6196
Auditing Standards
212/596-6036
Benevolent Fund
201/938-3479
Committee Appointments
212/596-6096
CPA Client Bulletin, CPA Client Tax Letter
CPA HealthCare Client Letter

— Subscriptions
(Order Department)
800/TO-AICPA
— Editorial
201/938-3301
The CPA Letter (editorial)
212/596-6112
Division for CPA Firms (public file information)
outside New York State
800/272-3476
within New York State
212/596-6100
Private Companies Practice Section
212/596-6145
212/596-6141
SEC Practice Section
Examinations (The Uniform CPA Exam) 201/938-3429
Federal Government Affairs
202/434-9209
Federal government
(regulatory matters)
202/434—9209
Legislation (congressional matters)
202/434-9205
General Counsel
212/596-6245
Industry Member Programs
212/596-6122
Information Technology
212/596-6010
International Relations
212/596-6125
Joint Trial Board
212/596-6102
Journal ofAccountancy (editorial)
201/938-3292
Library Services
800/TO-AICPA
Fax number
212/596-6287
Management of an Accounting Practice 212/596-6139
Management Accounting
201/938-3011
Management Consulting Services
201/938-3503
Meetings and Travel
201/938-3232
Member Programs and Benefits
212/596-6129
New York
1211 Avenue of the Americas
New York, NY 10036-8775

Membership Admissions/Records
Fax number
Minority Initiatives
National Automated Accounting and
Retrieval Services (NAARS)
Order Department
Fax number
Credit and Collections
Personal Financial Planning/
PFS Designation
The Practicing CPA (editorial)
Professional Ethics
Public Meeting Notices/Agendas
Public Relations and Communications
Quality/Peer Review
State Legislation, Legislative Relations
State Society Relations
Subscriptions and Publications
Customer Service
Taxation (not for technical inquiries)
The Tax Adviser (editorial)
Technical Information Hotline
Women and Family Issues

201/938-3100
201/938-3108
212/596-6227
201/938-3248
800/TO-AICPA
800/362-5066
201/938-3460
800/TO-AICPA
212/596-6146
201/938-3190
800/TO-AICPA
212/596-6106
201/938-3030
202/434-9257
212/596-6247
201/938-3333
202/434-9226
201/938-3444
800/TO-AICPA
212/596-6226

Affinity Programs
Insurance Programs
Rollins Hudig Hall
Life
800/223-7473
Disability
800/221-4722
Group
800/221-3019
Long-Term Care
800/453-0567
Personal Liability Umbrella
800/221-3021
Professional Liability
800/221-3023
National General Insurance Co
Automobile
800/847-2886
Home
800/847-7233
Retirement Programs (T. Rowe Price) 800/38-AICPA
Car Rental (Hertz)
800/654-2210
Car Rental (National)
800/227-7368
Computers (Dell Corporation)
800/568-8313
Overnight Delivery
(Airborne Express)
800/MEMBERS
Credit Card (Marine Midland Bank) 800/850-3144
Employment Referral Service
(CPA JOB BANK)
800/939-1040
Home Mortgages and
Equity Loans (Prudential)
800/272-1210
Long Distance Telephone (Sprint)
800/473-0898
Xerox Corporation
800/832-6979, ext. CPA

NewJersey

Washington, D.C.

Harborside Financial Center
201 Plaza Three
Jersey City, NJ 07311-3881

1455 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW
Washington, DC 20004-1081
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Index of Articles — July/Aug. 1993 to June 1994
The following is a summary o f articles featured in The CPA Letter from July/Aug. 1993 through June 1994. The
articles selected represent many o f the articles to which members might refer in the future.
____
Issue

Article

Issue

Accounting & Auditing

Legislation (federal and state)

A IC P A Unveils Financial Reporting Reforms and
Proposals for M ore Rational Tort System
July/Aug. 1993

A IC P A Backs Senate Bill on Liability Reform

May 1994

A IC P A Focuses Attention on Fair L abo r
Standards Legislation

Oct. 1993

A SB Issues SSAE on Com pliance Attestation

Dec. 1993

Auditors Alerted to Inventory Fraud

Sept. 1993

(T h e ) A uditor’s Responsibility to Detect Fraud

J a n . 1994

Bank Lending Officers to U se Prescribed Forms
Derivatives Deserve M anagem ent and
Auditor Attention

Nov. 1993
Sept. 1993

FASB Issues Statements 1 1 4 , 11 5, 116
and 117

July/Aug. 1993

A IC P A H elp ed Convince Senate to
A m en d Bankruptcy Bill

June 1994

A IC P A Tells Congress Liability System
N eeds Fixing

Sept. 1993

A IC P A U rges Congress to Remove Disincentives
fo r Fully Funding Pension Plans

June 1994

Litigation Reform Bill to Be Introduced
in Senate

Jan. 1994

FASB Issues Technical Bulletin
on Statement 115

June 1994

FASB Proposes Standards fo r Stock
O ption Accounting

Speech Endorsing Securities Litigation Reform
Delivered at Key Person Conference
Feb./M ar. 1994

Sept. 1993

State Progress on Limiting Legal
Liability Continues

Guidance fo r Independent Auditors W hen
to Provide Access to o r Photocopies
o f W orkpapers to Regulators

July/Aug. 1993

PC P Executive Committee Recommends
Transfer o f Peer Review Administration

Dec. 1993

Statement o f Position 94-1, Two Exposure Drafts
o f Proposed SOPs Issued

May 1994

July/Aug. 1993

Statements o f Position 93-7, 93-8 Issued

Feb./M ar. 1994

Use o f C O S O Criteria O ver SAS N o. 55
Preferred fo r SSAE N o. 2 Engagements

Sept. 1993

Nov. 1993
May 1994

Solutions to W o rk L o a d Compression
Problem Sought

Oct. 1993

Subchapter S Reform Bill Introduced in Senate

Jan. 1994

Subchapter S Reform Bill Introduced in H ouse

June 1994
Oct. 1993

W om en and Family Issues Committee Testifies
Before Glass Ceiling Commission
Feb./M ar. 1994

Professional
S e p t 1993

A IC P A Enters National Health Care Debate

A pr. 1994

A I C P A State Societies Establish C P A J O B B A N K

June 1994

A IC P A ’s Student Recruitment Cam paign Expanded Oct. 1993
Annual Report o f Ethics Division
Investigation Activity

IRS Issues Rules on H o w to A pply N ew
Intangibles Law Retroactively

T ax Change W ill A id Victims o f Natural Disasters

June 1994

T ax and Family Issues Committees Endorse
“N anny T ax ” Reform

“A IC P A Associates” Section Established
June 1994

Tax
IRS Begins Market Specialization Program

Supreme C ourt Rules Individuals Cannot Bring
Certain Federal Securities Suits

U pdate on State Form-of-Practice Legislation

Statement on Standards fo r Attestation
Engagements N o . 2 Issued

U.S. General Accounting Office Endorses
Internal Control Guidance

Jan. 1994

May 1994
Sept. 1993

May 1994

Council Approves Accrediting M em bers Providing
Specific C P A Services, N o n -C P A Ownership
in Firms

June 1994

Highlights o f Board o f Directors’ July M eeting

Sept. 1993

Highlights o f Board o f Directors’
Recent M eeting (Nov. 1993)

Jan. 1994

Highlights o f Board o f Directors’
Recent M eeting (Feb.)

Feb./M ar. 1994

M ore Than 45,000 M em bers Contribute to
Minority Scholarship Program

Industry
A IC P A ’s First Outstanding C P A in Industry
A w ard Given

May 1994

Benchm arking Project Reports Initial Results

A pr. 1994

June 1994

PCPS Survey Shows Litigation Increasing, CPAs
Remain Trusted Advisers

Oct. 1993

T o p T en Technologies List fo r 1994
Com piled by A IC P A

May 1994

Note: Original copies of articles are not available. Written requestsfor photocopies of up to three articles are permitted; a selfaddressed, business-sized envelope with $.29 in postage must be provided. Send requests to: AICPA, 1211 Avenue of the Americas,
New York, N Y 10036-8775, Attn: CPAL Index. Name of article(s) and respective issue(s) must be clearly identified in the request.
No telephone orders will be accepted, nor will unstamped envelopes. For articles to be sent via fax or overnight mail, contact the
AICPA Library at 800/862—4272, dept. #7 (there are chargesfor these services).
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Article

AICPA
A m erican
Institu te o f
C ertified
P u blic
A cco u n tan ts

July 1994

Division for CPA Firm s— Professional Issues Task Force

P ractice A le r t
AUDITING INVENTORIES — PHYSICAL OBSERVATIONS

n o . 9 4 -2

NOTICE TO READ ERS
This practice alert is intended to provide auditors with information that may help them improve the efficiency and effectiveness of their
audits. This document has been prepared by the SEC Practice Section Professional Issues Task Force and is based on the experiences of
the individual members of the task force and matters arising from litigation and peer reviews. It has not been approved, disapproved or
otherwise acted upon by any committee of the AICPA.

Introduction

T

he inventories o f most com m ercial entities,

- C onsigned inventory, inventory that is rented,

especially those o f manufacturers or distrib

or traded-in items for which credits have not

utors, are material to their financial state

been issued.

ments. By its nature, accounting for inventories is

com p lex and generally involves a great deal o f
detail and is therefore susceptible to inadvertent

- D ilu ted inventory so it is less valuable
(e.g., adding water to liquid substances).
■ Increasing or otherwise altering the inventory

errors. For similar reasons and the fact auditors

counts for those items the auditor did not

test only a portion o f the inventories, there exists

test count.

more than a low risk for manipulation i f m anage
m ent is disposed toward financial statem ent fraud.
T h is practice alert discusses some ways in
which inventory frauds have been perpetrated and
presents information that m ight help preven t such
frauds from going undetected. It deals primarily
with issues related to the physical existence o f
inventories. It does not cover matters pertaining
to inventory obsolescence, pricing or costing.

■ Program m ing the com puter to produce
fraudulent physical quantity tabulations or
priced inventory listings.
■ M anipulating the inventory counts/compilations
for locations not visited by the auditor.
■ D ou ble-cou nting inventory in transit
betw een locations.
■ Physically m ovin g inventory and counting it
at tw o locations.
■ Including in inventory merchandise recorded

Inventory Fraud Schemes/Techniques

as sold but not y et shipped to a customer

Unfortunately, in many cases o f inventory fraud,

( “ bill and hold sales” ).

client personnel at various levels know in gly
participated and assisted in the scheme.
T h e fo llow in g are exam ples o f inventory frauds:
■ Including inventory that is not what it is
claim ed to be or valuing nonexistent inventory.
Exam ples are:
- E m p ty boxes or “ hollow squares” in
stacked goods.
- M islab elled boxes containing scrap, obsolete
item s or low er value materials.

■ Arranging for false confirmations o f inventory
held by others.
■ Including inventory receipts for w hich corres
ponding payables had not been recorded.
■ O verstating the stage o f com pletion o f work-inprocess.
■ R econ cilin g physical inventory amounts to
falsified amounts in the general ledger.
■ M anipulating the “ roll-forward” o f an inventory
taken before the financial statement date.

CONTINUED ON PAGE 2

A uditing Inventories

—

Physical Observations

Planning Considerations

W hen the observation requires the use o f person

E ven though there are numerous ways inventory

nel from another office or another C PA firm, adequate

frauds can be orchestrated, a w ell planned audit—

planning also enables the auditor to provide clear,

appropriately execu ted with professional skepti

com prehensive instructions about the scope o f the

cism— can thwart many inventory falsification

engagem ent, the important risk factors, the rele

schemes. T h e audit procedures to be applied stem

vant controls, c u to ff procedures, and the expected

from and are responsive to the auditor’s assessment

level o f reliance to be placed on internal controls.

o f risk (i.e., W hat could go wrong?). T h e use o f
analytical procedures (e.g., review o f prelim inary

The Actual Physical Count

high-to-low inventory-value listings or comparison

■ T h e risk o f inclusion o f duplicate or fictitious

o f year-to-year quantities) in planning the audit

items is higher in areas and for items not test

often helps id en tify inventory locations, areas or

counted by the auditor. Testin g some counts

items for specific attention or greater scrutiny

made by all count teams at locations visited and

during and after the physical count.

ensuring that hard-to-count items are test counted

T o plan an appropriate and effe c tiv e inventory

helps m inim ize the risk o f misstatement.

observation, it is important for the engagem ent team

■ A p p ly in g analytical procedures to the final

leaders to have an understanding o f the clien t’s

priced-out inventory summarizations can help

business, its products, its com puter processing

id en tify inventory items that m ight require

applications and relevant controls before the

additional audit scrutiny.

physical count occurs, including kn ow led ge o f

■ Although client personnel are often helpful to the

the physical inventory or cycle count procedures

auditor making test counts, making test counts o f

and the inventory summarization, pricing and

which client personnel are unaware provides added

cu toff procedures.

assurance. T h e auditor can also record the details

W h en a client plans to count inventories at

o f some quantities that the auditor did not actually

various dates or at a date other than that o f the

count for comparison with the final inventory

financial statements, the early consideration o f its

listing. Also, the auditor needs to maintain appro

business, internal controls and their effectiveness,

priate control over the audit work papers so the

and cu toff procedures is especially important.

client is not aware o f the details o f the test counts.

H eigh ten ed risks or the lack o f adequate internal

■ Because the description on a container may not

controls may suggest that the inventory should be

always match the goods inside, it is a good idea

taken and observed at year end.

to open some containers or packages. C hecking

An appropriate understanding o f the clien t’s

for em p ty containers or “ hollow squares” (i.e.,

business systems, relevant com puter processing

spaces betw een stacks o f boxes) and verifying the

applications and inventory procedures helps

units o f measure on tags or count sheets are mean

determ ine the experience needed by the personnel

ingful procedures. W hen observing work-in-process

assigned to observe the physical count and their

inventory, the auditor also needs to consider the

individual responsibilities. Assigning junior

reasonableness o f the recorded stage o f completion.

personnel to observe the count at a com plex

■ W h en incorrect counts are observed, the auditor

manufacturing operation may or may not be

considers the nature and significance o f the

prudent, depen din g on the extent o f on-site

errors and w hether to increase the extent o f test

supervision provided. Similarly, work-in-process

counts or expand other procedures. Recounts o f

inventory presents completion/valuation issues

particular areas or the w ork o f particular count

that may call for a more experienced auditor.

teams may be necessary.
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A uditing Inventories

—

Physical Observations

Inventories Held for or by Others

■ Scanning inventory tags or count sheets for
unusual or unreasonable quantities and

Ascertaining w hether all inventory items on

descriptions is a useful technique to verify

hand are the property o f the client can be difficult

their propriety. Subsequent to the physical

in some situations. A clien t’s procedures for iden ti

count, it may be desirable to test large or

fying, segregating and exclu ding from inventory

unusual inventory quantities or items with

goods held on consignm ent should be considered.

large extended values that w ere not test

Requ estin g information from selected suppliers

counted during the observation.

about such goods helps in this regard. O nce
consignm ent goods have been identified, noting

■ T h e need to m onitor the clien t’s control over
the physical count tags or sheets used should

the descriptions, quantities, serial numbers and

not be dow nplayed or overlooked. Paying close

shipping advice numbers for some items w ill

attention to tag/count sheet control procedures

help the auditor determ ine w hether those items

helps avoid the inclusion o f im proper items

w ere properly exclu ded from the clien t’s

and ensures appropriate items are included in

inventory.
W h en a client consigns inventory to others

the final inventory listing.

or stores merchandise at a third-party location,
Multiple Locations

written confirmation o f the goods held is ordinarily

K n ow led ge o f all inventory locations is necessary

obtained directly from the custodian. I f such

to prevent the exclusion o f any area(s) from

goods are significant in amount, one or more o f

audit consideration. F ollow in g are a fe w matters

the procedures discussed in A U section 331.14,

for auditors to consider related to m ultiple

“ Inventories H eld in Public Warehouses,” which

inventory locations.

include visits to such locations and observation
o f physical counts, may be appropriate.

T o help discourage the shifting o f inventory
from one location to another, the merits o f
taking the physical inventory at all significant

Use of Specialists

locations at the same tim e should be considered.

An auditor is not expected to possess the

W h en the physical count at each significant

expertise o f a specialist trained or qualified in

location w ill not be observed, inform ing

another profession or occupation. Consequently,

m anagem ent that observations

will be

use o f a specialist in certain situations to deter

perform ed at some locations without advance

m ine quantities (e.g., stockpiled materials,

notice m ight help discourage the manipulation

mineral reserves) or to value special-purpose

o f the quantity or quality o f the inventory. For

inventory (e.g., high-technology materials or

locations not visited, the auditor may perform

equipm ent, chemicals, works o f art, precious

alternative procedures to detect material mis

gem s) or to measure the stage o f com pletion o f

statements. C om preh ensive analytical proce

long-term contracts may be appropriate. I f the

dures subsequently applied to priced-out

specialist used is affiliated or otherwise has a

inventory summarizations may be one such

relationship with the client, the auditor w ill want

technique (e.g., the analysis o f year-to-year

to consider the need to perform procedures or

inventories by location, the relationship o f

otherwise test some or all o f the specialist’s

inventory to sales levels, etc.). H ow ever, the

assumptions, methods and findings. T h is w ill

auditor needs to rem em ber that analytical proce

provide information about the reasonableness

dures may not always detect erroneous changes

o f the findings. Alternatively, the auditor could

in inventory.

engage another specialist for this purpose.
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A u d itin g Inventories— Physical Observations
Post-Observation Matters

affiliates, locations or departm ents are tested

T h e extent o f audit procedures required normally

to ascertain their existence and to determ ine

increases when the inventory observation is

the propriety o f their inclusion or exclusion.

perform ed at a date other than the balance
sheet date. T h e extent and nature o f the increase

Conclusion

depends on the nature o f the clien t’s business,

Unfortunately, there are no fo o lp ro o f methods

the type o f inventory, inventory turnover period,

for assuring that all inventory counts are free

the records maintained, the strength o f the related

from inadvertent or intentional misstatement. N o

internal controls, and the tim e interval betw een

audit w ill necessarily detect all fraudulent activity,

the observation and the date o f the balance sheet.

especially w hen collusion to mislead the auditors

Interim physical inventories or the clien t’s use o f

occurs among client personnel or w ith third

cycle count programs present different audit risks

parties. H ow ever, understanding the clien t’s

warranting careful assessment o f controls, and by

business, its count procedures and controls and

extension, differen t audit tests. T h is assessment

a resulting careful assessment o f w here and how

o f audit risks and k ey controls and the focused

quantity error m ight occur helps reduce the risk

testing thereof, along with appropriate analytical

o f inadvertent or intentional misstatement.

procedures, are important audit procedures to

Appropriate planning for the physical inventory

consider in these circumstances. T h e guidance

observation together with healthy audit skepti

in A U section 313, “ Substantive Tests Prior to

cism can e ffe c tiv e ly reduce the incidence o f

the Balance-Sheet D a te,” is relevant in these

inventory misstatements.

circumstances.
T estin g significant items in the reconciliation o f

T h is practice alert is not a com p lete list
o f all audit procedures, nor is every procedure

the physical inventory to the general ledger helps

discussed herein applicable in all circumstances.

iden tify inadvertent errors along with intentional

Additional information on this important subject

misstatements. Significant reconciling items for

is provided in the A IC P A ’s A u diting Procedures

those locations w here the physical counts w ere not

Study,

observed by the auditor generally m erit scrutiny.

$25). T h e A IC P A O rder D epartm ent may be

Goods in-transit and inventory transfers betw een

reached at 1-800-862-4272.

Audits o f Inventories (Product N o. 021045MJ,

Comments or questions on this a le rt should be directed to the AICPA Division for CPA Firms at 1-800-C P A -FIR M .
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Accounting
& Auditing
News

AcSEC Withdraws
Practice Bulletins 7 and 10

The Accounting Standards Execu
tive Committee has voted to with
draw Practice Bulletin 7, Criteriafor
Determining Whether Collateralfor a
Loan Has Been In-Substance Fore
closed, and Practice Bulletin 10,
Amendment to Practice Bulletin 7, because the underlying
issues about substantive repossessions have been
addressed in the Financial Accounting Standards Board’s
Statement 114, Accounting by Creditorsfor Impairment of a
Loan. The practice bulletins are withdrawn as of the
effective date of Statement 114 (fiscal years beginning
after Dec. 15, 1994) or immediately for entities that have
early-adopted FASB Statement 114.
FASB Statement 114 clarified that paragraph 34 of
FASB Statement 15 was intended to apply to a troubled
debt restructuring or other circumstances in which a
debtor surrendered property to the creditor and the
creditor was in possession of the asset with or without
having to go through formal foreclosure procedures.
Similarly, the SEC amended its interpretive guidance
to inform registrants that have adopted Statement 114
that they should not apply the portion of the SEC’s
Financial Reporting Release No. 28 that addresses
accounting for substantive repossessions of collateral
(Federal Register, May 19).

FASB Not to Require Stock Option
Disclosure for 1994
The Financial Accounting Standards Board has said it
would not require companies to disclose in their 1994
financial statements additional information about
stock options granted in 1994, as would have been
required by the board’sJune 1993 exposure draft on
stock-based compensation. The board also said the
decision has no effect on the timing of the expenserecognition provisions proposed in the exposure
draft, which would require companies to record an
expense in the income statement for the cost of stock
options granted to employees beginning in 1997.

FASB to Address Nuclear
Decommissioning Costs
The Financial Accounting Standards Board has
added to its agenda a project to address accounting
for decommissioning of nuclear power plants. The
board also agreed to seek information from other
industry groups about removal or site restoration
obligations that may be similar to decommissioning
and to consider whether decisions reached on
accounting for decommissioning should be applied
to other industries.

GASB Issues Statement 24 on Grants
The Governmental Accounting Standards Board has
other financial assistance ( The CPA Letter, Feb./Mar.).
issued its Statement 24, which establishes accounting and The statement is effective for periods beginning after
financial reporting standards for certain grants and
June 15, 1995, with earlier application encouraged.

Revised NAIC Statement Instructions Now Require
Schedule of Assets and Liabilities
The National Association of Insurance Commissioners’
Life, Accident and Health Annual Statement Instructions
have recently been revised to require insurers that file
audited statutory financial statements in accordance with
the NAIC Instructions to include with their financial
statements a “Supplemental Schedule of Assets and Lia
bilities,” which is illustrated in paragraph 9 of the NAIC
Instructions. The NAIC Instructions also require the
auditor to issue a report on the supplemental schedule
as to whether the information is fairly presented in rela
tion to the financial statements taken as a whole. These

requirements are effective for filings of Dec. 31,1994,
statutory financial statements.
The AICPA’s Insurance Companies Committee has
reviewed the information currently required to be
included in the supplemental schedule and believes all
the information is either directly related to the basic
financial statements or derived from accounting records
that are tested by auditors. Accordingly, in reporting on
the Supplemental Schedule of Assets and Liabilities, audi
tors should follow the guidance in SAS No. 29, Reporting
on Information in Auditor-Submitted Documents.

Audit and Accounting Guide Exposure Draft Issued
An exposure draft o f the AICPA Audit and Accounting
Guide Audits of Brokers and Dealers in Securities (No.
800071CL) has been issued. It would supersede the
AICPA audit and accounting guide of the same name
(and subsequent editions of that guide with conforming
changes). The new guide incorporates new accounting
and financial reporting requirements issued by the
FASB and AcSEC, as well as auditing standards issued by

the Auditing Standards Board since publication o f the
1985 edition of the guide. It proposes to prohibit the
combining o f subordinated debt with stockholders’
equity in the GAAP statement of financial condition,
which is currently an accepted practice, while recogniz
ing that such presentations would continue to be accept
able for SEC filings under Rule 17a-5. Price: First copy
free; each additional $6 member, $6.75 non-member.
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AICPA
Disciplinary
Actions

Under the automatic disciplinary
provisions of the Institute’s bylaws,
the following members have had
their memberships:
—Terminated because of final
convictions of crimes punishable
by imprisonment for m ore than
one year:
■ Michael L. Welshans of Martinsburg, W.Va., on Mar. 24
after pleading guilty to assault during bank robbery.
■ Warren C. Nachmann of Cheltenham, Pa., on May 2
after pleading guilty to conspiracy, wire fraud and bank
fraud. His membership had been suspended effective
July 1 7 , 1992, following the suspension of his CPA certifi
cate and license by the Pennsylvania State Board of
Accountancy ( The CPA Letter, Jan. 1993).
■ Gregory Boutte of Beaumont, Texas, on Apr. 1 follow
ing a circuit court of appeals decision affirming his con
viction for wire fraud, submitting false claims to a federal
agency, and making false claims to a federal agency. Mr.
Boutte’s membership had been suspended pending the
appeal of his conviction (The CPA Letter, June 1993).
• Clayton E. Cameron o f Fairfax, Va., on Mar. 10 after
pleading guilty to making false statements and conceal
ing facts in relation to documents required by ERISA.
■ Bruce Berndt of Farmington Hills, Mich., on May 2
after pleading guilty to a “corrupt offer and promise to
pay a sum of money to a public official.”
■ Thomas G. Perkins of Scottsboro, Ala., on May 2 after
pleading guilty to failure to file income tax returns.
—Suspended following suspension of his CPA certifi
cate by his state accountancy board:
■ Ronald P. Konkle of Vacaville, Calif., from Nov. 27,
1993, to Dec. 2 7 , 1993, for practicing public accountancy
without a license.
As a result of decisions by hearing panels of the Joint
Trial Board, the following have had their memberships:
—Terminated for failing to cooperate with the AICPA
or their state CPA society ethics committees in discipli
nary investigations of complaints:
■ Steven R Tavel of Brooklyn, N.Y.
■ Thomas L. Benedict of Chicago, Ill.
■ Kenneth M. Clare of San Diego, Calif.
■ Norman A. Pruett of Winslow, Ariz.
■ Michael Dubois of Orange, Texas.
■ William P. Donovan of New London, Conn.
■ Israel Gottesman of North Woodmere, N.Y.
—Terminated from the AICPA and their state CPA
societies for failing to comply with directives included in
letters of required corrective action issued by the AICPA
and their state societies:
■ James A. McClean of Palatine, Ill.
■ Scott Belsley of Richardson, Texas.
■ Maurice M. Kratter of Sarasota, Fla.
—Suspended:
■ Bruce Frank Kalem of Indianapolis, Ind., from the
AICPA and the Michigan Association of CPAs from Dec.
4, 1993, to Dec. 4, 1994, for making a misleading entry in
the financial records of an employer to decrease the
insurance expense of a subsidiary of that company.

8

The CPA Letter-July/August 1994

—Suspended as a result of the acceptance of guilty pleas
by the Joint Trial Board in lieu of trial board hearings:
■ Robert E. Malone of Orland Park, Ill., from the AICPA
and the Illinois CPA Society from Aug. 3 , 1993, to Aug. 3,
1995, for fa iling to comply with their rules on profes
sional competence, compliance with standards, and com
pliance with accounting principles in connection with a
review report of a client. He is also required to success
fully complete 80 hours of specified CPE courses within
the suspension period.
■ William A. Bronec Jr. of Riverside, Ill., from member
ship in the AICPA from Nov. 4 , 1993, to Nov. 4 , 1994, for
violating the acts discreditable rule by trading securities
on the basis of insider information while aware that such
information was illegally obtained.
—Admonished:
■ William B. Montag of Mankato, Minn., for auditing an
entity in which a family member was a general partner in
violation of the independence rule. He is also required
to successfully complete a course in professional ethics.
■ H erbert J. Mortland of Clayton, Mo., for failing to exer
cise due professional care, failing to comply with profes
sional standards, expressing an opinion that financial
statements were presented in accordance with GAAP
when they were not, and failing to follow standards
a n d /o r procedures or other requirements in govern
mental audits.
■ D. Spencer Nilson of Salt Lake City for lacking inde
pendence by owning direct financial interests in his audit
client through a limited partnership of which he was a
general client and through his IRA. He is also required
to complete 40 hours of specified CPE courses and a
course on professional ethics and, if he continues as
principal, owner, manager or employee of an accounting
firm or as a sole practitioner engaged in the attest func
tion after June 3 0 , 1995, he is required to complete 40
additional hours of specified CPE by June 3 0 , 1996.
As a result of investigations o f alleged violations of
the codes of professional conduct of the AICPA a n d / or
state CPA societies, the following ethics cases have been
resolved by settlem ent agreements with the Professional
Ethics Executive Committee:
■ On Apr. 15, 1994, Marshall E. Rutland IV of Gaithers
burg, Md., settled charges of violating Rule 202—Com
pliance with Standards by failing to comply with GAAS in
connection with his audit of the financial statements of a
client. Without admitting or denying the charges, Mr.
Rutland agreed to a two-year suspension of his AICPA
membership and the completion of 120 hours of speci
fied CPE courses during the suspension period.
■ O n May 31, 1994, Darryl J. Shapiro of Great Neck,
N.Y., settled charges of violating Rule 202—Compli
ance with Standards/A uditing Standards in connection
with his audit of an employee benefit plan. W ithout
admitting or denying the charges, Mr. Shapiro agreed
to a two-year suspension of his m em bership in the
AICPA and the New York State Society o f CPAs, to
complete 80 hours of specified CPE courses during the
suspension period, and to submit one work product for
review by the Professional Ethics Division.
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(Disciplinary Actions—continued)
■ On May 3 1 , 1994, Gene S. Pianka of Wethersfield, Conn.,
settled charges of violating Rule 102—Integrity and Objec
tivity by making misleading entries in the accounting
records of a municipality while employed as finance direc
tor. Without admitting or denying the charges, Mr. Pianka
agreed to a one-year suspension of his AICPA membership
and to the completion of a CPE course in professional
ethics during the suspension period.

CPE News

Annual Tax U pdate is a new course

that explains how the IRS and the
courts have been handling critical
new issues since enactment of the
Omnibus Budget Reconciliation
Act of 1993. It brings members up
to date on the most important fed
eral tax developments relating to
individual income taxes, business taxes, estates and trusts,
employment taxes and tax procedures. M embers who
order the course by Aug. 31 will receive a 25% discount
(course available S ept 1). Author: Dorinda DeScherer.
Recommended CPE credit: 8 hours. Format: 2 audiocas
settes/workbook (No. 740052CLH). Price: $89 (dis
counted price); additional workbook (No. 740053CLH),
$59.50 (discounted price).
The 1994 G overnm ent/N onprofit Accounting and
Auditing Videocourse is anew 2-hour video presentation,
moderated by W.A. Broadus Jr., CPA, in which experts
explain the latest pronouncements of the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board, the AICPA, the General
Accounting Office, the Office of Management and Bud
get, and the President’s Council on Integrity & Efficiency.
Recommended CPE credit: 8 hours group study and self
study. Format: 1 VHS tape/m anual (No. 182602CLH).
Price: $129; additional manual (No. 352602CLH), $30.
These courses are available through the AICPA
O rder Departm ent (see page 10) as well as through state
CPA societies.

Conferences
National Governmental Accounting and Auditing U pdate,
Aug. 15-16, Washington, D.C., and Sept. 22-23, Tempe,
Ariz., recommended CPE credit: 16 hours. Small Firm
Conference*, Aug. 17-19, Seattle, recommended CPE
credit: up to 28 hours. National Conference on Savings
Institutions*, Sept. 7-9, Washington, D.C., recommended

■ On June 1 1 , 1994, Joseph F. Hurley of Needham,
Mass., settled charges of violating Rule 201 (b)—Due Pro
fessional Care, and 202—Compliance with Standards by
failing to comply with GAAS in his audit of financial
statements of an employee benefit plan. W ithout admit
ting or denying the charges, he agreed to a two-year sus
pension of his membership in the AICPA and the
Massachusetts Society of CPAs and to complete 80 hours
of specified CPE courses within the suspension period.

CPE credit 21 hours. Public Relations Conference*, Sept.
28-30, Chicago, recommended CPE credit 18 hours.
For more information, call the AICPA-CPE Division
at 800/862-4272 (dept. #3, option #2). For conferences
indicated by
contact AICPA Meetings 8c Travel Ser
vices at 201/938-3232.

Seminars
Combine leisure and learning at the MGM Grand in Las
Vegas Aug. 8-10. This three-day event is for the CPA in
industry or in public practice with business clientele.
Attend one to three days of CPE and select from two dif
ferent seminars on each day. Recommended CPE credit
ranges from 6 to 18 hours. Courses cover such critical
areas as current corporate tax management issues, cor
porate tax-saving techniques, and an update of account
ing and auditing standards. To receive immediate
information on this Leisure Learning Cluster, call
800/862-4272 (d ep t #4).
Starting at the end of Aug. are presentations of the
AICPA Individual Incom e Tax R eturns W orkshop and
C orporate Incom e Tax Returns W orkshop written by
renowned tax expert Sidney Kess, JD, LLM, CPA. Attend
the workshops that prepare thousands of CPAs to handle
the rigors of tax season and year-long tax planning. Over
the past 30 years, more than 400,000 experienced CPAs
have participated in these workshops. This year’s pro
grams will focus on the latest developments and how to
work with the effects of OBRA ’93 as well as tax planning
tips and strategies. To obtain more information on these
programs including dates, locations and registration
information, dial 201/938-3787 from a fax machine, fol
low the voice cues, and select document no. 701, or
write: LaTanya Junior, Kess-CPA Letter, AICPA, Harbor
side Financial Center, 201 Plaza Three, Jersey City, NJ
07311-8775.

Practitioner Comments on Electronic Filing o f Tax Returns Sought
Practitioner input on electronic and other alternative
methods of filing tax returns, including scannable forms,
is sought by the AICPA Tax Division. The Internal Rev
enue Service expects it will require most returns to be
filed electronically by the year 2000, and the AICPA
wants to ensure that the accounting profession has a say
in how this plan is implemented.
The IRS Commissioner has said the IRS is “con
vinced that electronic filing and related technological
improvements will improve the efficiency of the filing
process for both AICPA members and the IRS, and will

accelerate the time at which account information is
accessible for taxpayer assistance and compliance pur
poses.” Adding that taxpayers, practitioners and the IRS
all benefit from the elimination of errors under the elec
tronic filing program, the commissioner said the error
rate this year on electronically filed returns was .5%,
compared to the usual 15-17% for paper returns.
The Institute urges members to send comments by
Sept 12 to: Lloyd Strickland, AICPA Tax Practice 8c Proce
dures Committee, Strickland & Co., PC, 4144 Carmichael
Road, Montgomery, AL 36106.
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AICPA
New
Products &
Publications

The Marketing Advantage: How to
Get and Keep the Clients You Want
(No. 090404CL) will provide firms
with a one-stop source for guidance
on how to market accounting ser
vices. To produce the book, the
Management of an Accounting
Practice Committee interviewed
more than two dozen leaders in the field of CPA firm
marketing, including managing partners, marketing
directors and consultants. Price: $77.25 member, $84.95
non-member.
For accounting professionals who want to enhance their
skills and productivity with WordPerfect software, there
is WordPerfect in One Hourfor Accountants (No.
090085CL). The publication provides instructions for
typing and printing text; creating and saving files; retriev
ing a stored file; and sequentially retrieving, revising,
printing and saving a file. Also offered is information on
how to set up files and directories and how to edit text
using WordPerfect’s commands. Price: $15.50 member,
$17 non-member.
Accounting Education: A Statistical Survey 1992-1993 (No.
G00103CL) profiles accounting education over the last
25 years and highlights trends in curriculum develop
ment, faculty characteristics and student data. It is the
sixth survey in the series and marks the 25th anniversary
since the first study was conducted. Price: Free.

MCS Issues Practice Aids
The Management Consulting Services Division has pub
lished three new practice aids. Price: $14.50 member,
$15.95 non-member.
Dental Practices (No. 055150CL) describes the prac
tices, trends and critical operating issues CPA practition
ers may address during an engagement for a
dental-practice client. Key topics include the impact of
technology, capital requirements, typical activities, areas
of business risk, performance measures and typical MCS
engagements. Illustrative checklists and forms, a sample
MCS report, sample charts of accounts, and sources of
additional information are included.
Nursing Homes (No. 055153CL) examines the nurs
ing-home industry, discusses current industry trends,
identifies critical operating issues, and assists practition
ers in identifying and delivering consulting services that
can be provided to nursing-home clients. Also discussed
is Medicare and Medicaid reimbursement for the hom e’s
services. Illustrative exhibits and checklists and sources of
additional information are included.
Assisting Clients in Developing Credit and Collections
Policies (No. 055154CL) describes how practitioners can
help clients create credit and collections policies and
procedures or evaluate those already in place. It will help
practitioners to identify the sources and types of credit
and collections engagements, increase clients’ awareness
of the need to control credit and collections, and iden
tify opportunities for follow-up engagements.
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Year-End Tax-Planning Materials
Available
21 Money-Saving Tax Tips: A CPA’s Guide to YearEnd Tax Planning (No. 889528CL) is an eight-panel
brochure outlining tax changes that will affect
individuals in 1994 and listing proven tips for
reducing tax liability. Price: $23/100 member,
$25/100 non-member.
Building a Solid Tax Plan (No. 889515CL) is a
slide presentation for CPAs to deliver to general
audiences. The presentation includes 35 color
slides and a script. Topics covered range from
basic tax-saving strategies to specific actions an
individual can take to reduce tax liability. Price:
First set $155 member, $170 non-member; each
additional $70 member, $75 non-member.
Tax-Saving Ideas fo r 1994 (No. 890675CL) is a
20- to 25-minute speech summarizing recent tax
law changes and providing tips for individuals to
lower taxable income and maximize deductions. It
includes an interview guide with 20 questions CPAs
may receive during media interviews. Price: $5.25
member, $5.75 non-member.
Tax-Trimming Tipsfor Small Businesses: A Guide
from CPAs (No. 889531CL) is an eight-panel
brochure that summarizes tax law changes affect
ing small businesses in 1994 and lists tax-saving tips
the small business owner can use to lower tax lia
bility. Price: $23/100 member, $25/100 non-mem
ber.
Tax-Planning Tips fo r the Small Business
Owner (No. 890669CL) is a 20- to 25-minute
speech describing various organizational forms
and accounting methods as well as their advan
tages and disadvantages. It also provides numerous
tips the small business owner can use to lower
income and employment taxes. Price: $5.25 mem
ber, $5.75 non-member.

Ethics Issues Exposure Draft
The Professional Ethics Division has issued an omnibus
exposure draft (No. 800072CL) containing five proposed
changes to the AICPA Code ofProfessional Conduct. Com
ments are due Oct. 26. Price: First copy free; each addi
tional copy $6 member, $6.75 non-member.

To order, write: AICPA O rder Department, CL894,
P.O. Box 2209, Jersey City, NJ 07303-2209; order via
fax, 800/362-5066; or call 800/862-4272 (dept. #1).
Ask for Operator CL894. The best times to call are
8:30 to 11:30 a.m. and 2:00 to 5:30 p.m., EST.
Orders for exposure drafts must be written or faxed.
Prices do not include shipping and handling.
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Nominations Sought for Outstanding CPA in Business and Industry
The AICPA Members in Industry Executive Com
m ittee invites AICPA m em bers and m em bers of
state CPA societies to nom inate candidates for the
1995 O utstanding CPA in Business and Industry
Award. The award was created to recognize the
achievements o f individual CPAs employed in busi
ness and industry and to prom ote the CPA designa
tion as the prem ier professional credential for
financial managers.
In choosing the award’s winner, the judges will

place their primary emphasis on the nom inee’s busi
ness achievements. Their secondary emphasis will be
placed on the nom inee’s contribution to the growth
and enhancem ent of the profession.
The award will be presented at the AICPA’s 1995
Spring National Industry Conference. For more infor
mation and nomination instructions, write: Michele
Rodin, AICPA, 1211 Avenue of the Americas, New
York, NY 10036-8775; or call 212/596-6126. Nomina
tions must be received by Oct. 15.

AICPA Urges Estate and Trust Tax Rates Be Restored
The AICPA recently wrote all members of the House
Ways and Means and Senate Finance committees urg
ing that the estate and trust tax rate brackets be
restored to the highest individual income tax rate
brackets (those pertaining to m arried persons filing
separate income tax returns) where they historically
had been. Since the Tax Reform Act of 1986, the rates

have been increasing and the brackets compressing; the
Revenue Reconciliation Act of 1993 continued the
trend. The greatest areas of difficulty arise in instances
where there is a need to accumulate income for non
tax reasons, such as to pay bequests and debts. The
Institute is developing legislative proposals to correct
the problem.

Revised Guide on State and Local Governmental Units to Be Issued
The revised audit and accounting guide Audits of State
and Local Governmental Units (No. 012054CL) will be
issued in early Aug. The guide, prepared by the AICPA
Government Accounting and Auditing Committee, will
be effective for audits of financial statements for periods
ending after Sept. 15, 1994, with earlier implementation
encouraged.
The revised guide incorporates new GASB statements
as well as other accounting guidance, some of which was
in earlier editions of the guide but not addressed in
GASB pronouncements. It also incorporates new AICPA
auditing standards applicable to audits of state and local
governments and the 1988 revision to Government Audit

ing Standards. [Note: The revised Government Auditing
Standards (see related article on page 12) will be incorpo

rated in this revised guide through conforming changes
to be issued in early 1995.] The revised guide supersedes
AICPA Statement of Position 92-7, Audits of State and Local
Governmental Entities Receiving Federal Financial Assistance,

which has been incorporated into it.
The revised guide also includes final guidance from
the Feb. 1993 SOP exposure draft entitled, Reporting on
Separately Issued Summary Financial Information Prepared by
State or Local Governmental Units. Price: $27 member,

$29.75 non-member from the AICPA O rder Department
(see page 10).

Auditors Alerted to Reporting on Health and Welfare Benefit Plans
Statement of Position 92-6, Accounting and Reporting by
Health and Welfare Benefit Plans, prescribes significant
changes in the accounting and reporting by defined
benefit health and welfare benefit plans that are not
fully insured. The SOP requires that benefit obligations
and changes therein be disclosed on the face of the
financial statements. These disclosures include the actu
arial present value, as applicable, of claims payable; pre
miums due under insurance arrangements; claims
incurred but not reported (IBNR); accumulated eligibil
ity credits; and postretirem ent benefits and the changes
therein. The calculation of certain of these obligations
requires determination by an actuary. Some plans may
(1) consider not making the required disclosures
regarding IBNR or postretirem ent benefits or (2) make
disclosures based on estimates developed by plan man
agement without using an actuary.
W hen a plan does not make necessary IBNR or

postretirem ent disclosures or the informative disclo
sures are materially inadequate, the auditor generally
should express a qualified or adverse opinion because
of a material departure from GAAP. When a plan
makes the disclosures based on estimates developed by
plan m anagement without using an actuary, the auditor
should consider the need to use an actuary as part of
the auditor’s evaluation of the reasonableness of the
m anagem ent’s estimate. The opinion should be modi
fied for a scope limitation when the auditor decides to
use an actuary as a specialist and the plan refuses to
provide the actuary with the data needed to complete
the actuary’s work.
The U.S. Department of Labor has indicated it may
reject a filing that includes an auditor’s report expressing
a qualified, adverse or a disclaimer of opinion. Practition
ers should call the Department of Labor at 202/219-8794
with any questions on DOL filing requirements.
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The U.S. Department of Com
merce has open positions for appli
cants seeking experience in
international accounting. The
applicant will conduct mini-audits
of international companies at their
foreign or U.S. locations. CPAs with three years’ experi
ence preferred; international travel required. If inter
ested, write: U.S. Department of Commerce, Room
3087B, 14th and Constitution Avenue NW, Washington,
DC 20230; or call 202/482-2210.

GAO Issues Revised GovernmentAuditing
Standards, Single Audit Recommendations
Report
The U.S. General Accounting Office has issued the final
revised Government Auditing Standards, commonly known
as the “Yellow Book.” The revision is significantly differ
ent from the proposed standards the GAO issued in July

1993. In particular, the final standards will offer guidance
on internal controls in place of the expanded testing
requirements that had been proposed. The revision of the
standards supersedes the 1988 Yellow Book and is effec
tive for financial audits of periods ending on or after Jan.
1, 1995, and for performance audits beginning on or
after Jan. 1, 1995. Early application is permissible. To
obtain a copy of the revised Yellow Book (Stock No. 020000-00-265-4), write: U.S. Government Printing Office,
Superintendent of Documents, Washington, DC 20401;
call 202/783-3238; or fax to 202/512-2250. Price: $4.
For the latest information on AICPA CPE self-study and
video courses, conferences and seminars containing
guidance on the new Yellow Book, call 800/862-4272
(option #3).
The GAO also recently issued its report entitled Sin
gle Audit: Refinements Can Improve Usefulness (GAO/AIMD94-133). The report makes a series of legislative and
administrative recommendations to improve the useful
ness of the single audit process. Copies of the report are
available from the GAO by calling 202/512-6000 or fax
ing an order to 301/258-4066. Price: First copy free;
each additional copy $2.
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Solving Work Load Compression Is a Top AICPA Priority
A proposed solution to the work load com
pression problem plaguing CPAs has been
developed by the AICPA’s Work Load Com
pression Task Force. The AICPA Board of
Directors has zeroed in on solving the work
load problem as one of its top legislative
priorities for 1995.
The proposal is one Congress ought to
accept, the AICPA believes, particularly
since it includes a funding mechanism to
help meet the financing question that mem
bers of Congress will surely raise. Between
now and when the new Congress convenes
in Jan., AICPA representatives will be meet
ing with Treasury Department officials to
get their support for the proposal. When the
104th Congress meets, the Institute will

launch its legislative campaign.
Specifically, the proposal would link a
fiscal-year election for a passthrough entity
with a requirem ent that the entity—rather
than the individual owners—make esti
mated tax payments to the government on
behalf of its owners. Partnerships and S
corporations rem aining on a calendar year
would not be subject to this requirem ent.
An owner would not pay individual esti
mated tax on the entity income, but would
report that income—and take credit for
the estimated tax paid—on the next 1040
form filed.
The CPA Letter will continue to keep
members informed of developments regard
ing the work load compression issue.

Securities Litigation Reform Debated at House Hearings
Proponents and opponents of securities liti
gation reform legislation faced off during
two days of hearings recently before a House
subcommittee. Hearings on H.R. 417, a bill
strongly supported by the accounting pro
fession, gave reform advocates a long-sought
opportunity to argue their cases.
Leading the debate for the proponents
was Rep. Billy Tauzin (D-La.), sponsor of
H.R. 417, who described the law under
which securities class action cases are
brought as “a good law that has gone bad.”
Deloitte & Touche Chairman and CEO J.
Michael Cook’s testimony encouraged Con
gress to adopt a system of proportionate
liability—a key provision of H.R. 417. SEC
Chairman Arthur Levitt supported some of
H.R. 417’s provisions as deterrents to the fil
ing of meritless cases and urged the panel to
work with all parties to seek solutions. Oppo
sition to H.R. 417 was voiced by academi
cians, consumer advocate Ralph Nader and
a partner from a law firm that frequently
files these cases.
Given the crowded schedule Congress
faces before adjournment, it is unlikely to act
further on this issue this year. However, the
AICPA and other supporters of securities litiga
tion reform will continue the battle next year.

Firm s to Reorganize as LLPs
Five of the six largest accounting firms
recently announced they are taking
advantage of the flexibility of organiza
tion allowed by the AICPA’s Rule 505
and state laws to reorganize as limited
liability partnerships. Ernst & Young,
Coopers & Lybrand, Price Waterhouse,
Deloitte & Touche and KPMG Peat Mar
wick may soon be followed by Arthur
Andersen in forming as LLPs as a way to
help protect the purely personal assets
of partners (under an LLP arrange
ment, only partners actually involved in
the wrongdoing in question would have
their personal assets at risk to pay any
judgments; partners not involved in the
wrongdoing would not, although the
firm would still be responsible for the
full judgm ent). The AICPA and state
CPA societies have been lobbying state
legislatures and state accountancy
boards to allow for more flexibility in
forms of organization ever since the
AICPA membership passed changes
broadening Rule 505, “Form of Organi
zation and Name,” back in Jan. 1992.

AICPA
News
Briefs
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Small Firm Advocacy
Committee Formed

The Private Companies Practice
Executive Committee got the goahead from the AICPA Board of
Directors recently to form a stand
ing committee to represent and act
as advocate in all areas of practice
for firms with 10 professionals at most. Over 75% of
PCPS member firms have fewer than 10 professionals; in
total, the “Small Firm Advocacy Committee” will repre
sent some 45,000 firms. Focusing on issues, products and
services specific to smaller firms, committee members
will be drawn from appropriately sized firms.

AICPA, State Societies Join to Provide
Forms, Supplies
The AICPA and participating state CPA societies signed
a national contract with Wallace Computer Services to
provide measurable savings on business forms, including
tax forms, and a full line of office and computer sup
plies. Members will receive a discount of 20% on tax
forms and 36% or more on office and computer sup
plies ordered from the Wallace Catalog. For more infor
mation or to order, members should call 800/782-4892
and indicate they are entitled to the CPA discount
(Contract No. CA 252).

Quiet Discussions with IRS on
Computer-Generated Tax Forms Pay O ff
The AICPA Tax Division has been talking quietly “behind
the scenes” with the IRS to ease the restrictive procedures
the IRS issued in May concerning the use of computergenerated tax forms. Proof the approach paid off came
with the issuance in July of Revenue Procedure 94-51
revising the procedures set out in Revenue Procedure 9434. The 1996 filing season, when the stringent require
ments for the filing of paper federal tax forms were set to
take effect, now appears safe. Revenue Procedure 94-51
states there will be future restrictions on the use of IRSpublished forms or machine-readable substitutes, but the
effective date will be sometime in the future when “the
Service’s new computer systems become operational.”

Report Shows “Supply and Demand”
Remains Constant
Approximately 22,000 new college graduates with account
ing degrees were employed by public accounting firms in
1993, and the demand for new accounting graduates has
remained relatively constant over the past several years,
according to the AICPA’s The Supply ofAccounting Gradu
ates and the Demandfor Public Accounting Recruits—1994

(No. G00100CL). Of the 21,990 new accounting graduates
employed by public accounting firms in 1993, 19,320 had
bachelor’s degrees and 2,670 had master’s degrees.
The CPA Letter (ISSN 0094-792x), September 1994, is published monthly, except
bimonthly Feb./Mar. and July/Aug. Publication and editorial office: 1211 Avenue of the
Americas, New York, NY 10036-8775, 212/596-6200. Second-class postage paid at
New York, NY and at additional mailin g offices. Copyright© 1994, American Institute of
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The report is based on surveys conducted in 1993
and earlier this year of all U.S. colleges and universities
that offer accounting programs, and of public account
ing firms and sole practitioners affiliated with the Insti
tute. It contains, for the first time, data and information
on accounting enrollments and Ph.D. graduates, as well
as more ethnic and gender information than in the past.
Revealed in the report, among other things, is that
more than 50,000 bachelor’s degrees in accounting and
5,330 master’s degrees in accounting were awarded in
the 1992-93 academic year, and that approximately
180,000 students are enrolled in bachelor’s in account
ing programs, with another 12,000 enrolled in master’s
in accounting programs.
To obtain a free copy of the report, contact the
AICPA O rder Department (see page 7).

First National Auto Dealership
Conference Scheduled
The first annual AICPA National Auto Dealership Confer
ence will be held Oct. 31-Nov. 1 in Las Vegas. The confer
ence is geared toward controllers and owners of auto
dealerships and toward independent accountants who are
interested in increasing their knowledge in or entering
this growing niche area. Throughout the two-day pro
gram, participants will hear from a wide variety of top
speakers, from both industry and practice, who will pro
vide their expert views on the tax, accounting, auditing,
legal and other important areas affecting auto dealerships.
Conference highlights include an overview of the
industry by J.D. Power III, top auto industry expert; a
panel that will examine controls to prevent fraud; succes
sion planning in a dealership; and the latest industry
trends and benchmarks. An optional four-hour session
on the third day will provide an in-depth look at using the
AICPA Auto Dealership Integrated Practice Systems Manual.

Recommended CPE credit: 16-20 hours. Registration
fee: $570 on or before Sept 26; $595 thereafter. Group
discounts available. To register, or for a detailed confer
ence brochure, call the AICPA-CPE Division at
800/862-4272 (option #3).

Public Meeting Notices
For detailed agendas, call 800/862-4272 (dept. #6)
three weeks prior to these meetings.
Accounting Standards Executive Committee:
Sept. 13-14, New York
Auditing Standards Board: Oct. 4-6, San Diego

O ther Meetings
Annual Members’ Meeting: Oct. 24, Boston
Council: Oct. 24-25, Boston
Private Companies Practice Executive Committee:
Oct. 23-25, Boston
SEC Practice Section Executive Committee: Sept. 16, New York

Certified Public Accountants, Inc. Postmaster Send address changes to The CPA Letter,
Circ. Dept, Harborside financial Ctr., 201 Plaza Three, Jersey City, NJ 07311-3881.

Geoffrey L. Pickard
Vice-President— Communications

Ellen J. Goldstein
Editor
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Members Invited to Participate in Annual, Council Meetings
AICPA members are invited and encouraged to
attend this year’s Annual Members’ Meeting and fall
meeting of Council in Boston on Oct. 24-25. These
meetings have been expanded and restructured to
allow for greater interaction among those present. A
Leadership Day on Oct. 23 for AICPA committee
chairs and incoming members of Council will focus
on major goals for the year, issues that must be
addressed, and will provide a forum for interaction
with other leaders of the Institute. On-site meetings
of several key committees will also take place. Mem
bers are invited to attend the Committee Chairs’
Meeting, Annual Members’ Meeting, meeting of
Council, and the luncheons and reception. Partici
pants and format follow:

■ Sunday, Oct 23

Leadership Day

Morning
Committee Chairs’ Meeting
Afternoon
Incoming Council Members’
Orientation Session

(Oct. 24—continued)
Afternoon
Concurrent
Fall Meeting of Council
Selected Committees Meet
Evening
Joint Reception
■ Tuesday, Oct. 25

■ Monday, Oct. 24

Morning
Annual Members’ Meeting
Concurrent
Fall Meeting of Council
Selected Committees Meet
JOINT LUNCHEON

Morning
Fall Meeting of Council
JOINT LUNCHEON
Afternoon
Concurrent
Fall Meeting of Council
Selected Committees Meet

To register, complete and mail the form below.
(cut along dotted line)

Registration Form for Annual Members’ and Fall Council Meetings
Send completed form to:
AICPA
Meetings & Registration
P.O. Box 2210
Jersey City, NJ 07303-2210

Bates # ________
(For AICPA Use Only)

Type or print carefully. Photocopy this form for additional registrants. Check where applicable.
AICPA Member

1 □ YES

2 □ NO

Registrant’s Last Name

Member or Customer N um ber____________________

First

MI

Nickname for Badge

Firm Name or Affiliation
Street Address
P.O. Box
State

City

Zip Code

Business Telephone
Name & Telephone No. of Individual to Contact in Case of Emergency
SPOUSE OR GUEST INFORMATION
Spouse or Guest Last Name

First

MI

Nickname for Badge

Additional Guest Last Name

First

MI

Nickname for Badge

Street Address
City

State

Zip Code

Home Telephone
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Highlights o f Board o f Directors’July Meeting
At its meeting on July 21-22, the AICPA Board of
Directors:
■ Approved establishment of a Small Firm Advocacy
Committee under the auspices of the Private Companies
Practice Executive Committee (see article on page 2).
■ Approved revised rules governing deferral of ethics
investigations of members due to related litigation.
■ Approved a proposal that the CPE requirem ent for for
m er members seeking reinstatement would begin in the
year of reinstatement, unless their memberships were
terminated for failure to m eet the CPE requirements.
■ Received reports from the chairs of the Women and
Family Issues Executive Committee, the Minority Initia
tives Committee and the Academic and Career Develop
m ent Executive Committee regarding their efforts to
help the Institute achieve its objective of encouraging
highly qualified people to become CPAs and promoting
outstanding education programs. Also heard from James
Naus, the AICPA representative on the Accounting Edu-

CPE
News

Sept. CPE DIRECT
Study Guide Available

CPE DIRECT, the AICPA subscrip
tion series that enables members to
earn CPE credit for reading certain
Journal ofAccountancy articles and
completing a study guide, is fast
becoming popular among mem
bers. Up to 24 hours a year may be earned for just $129.
The price includes four study guides, issued quarterly,
which are based on designated articles in the three pre
ceding monthly issues of the Journal. The articles will cover
information on a broad range of subjects, including finan
cial accounting, auditing, taxation, international business,
consulting services and human resources. CPE DIRECT
study guides will also contain other readings, checklists or
practice aids to enhance members’ insight The study
guides are released in Mar., June, Sept and Dec.
To receive CPE credit, members need to read the
designated articles in the Journal, complete the study
guide, answer the questions and return the answer sheet
for grading. A passing grade affords the member an
AICPA Certificate of Completion stating that the mem
ber has earned 6 recommended CPE credits in a speci
fied field of study. Six credits in specified fields of study
will be given each time a quarterly answer sheet is sent
in, for a total of 24 credits. Since CPE requirements vary
from state to state, members should contact their state
boards of accountancy for information concerning their
state requirements as to the num ber of CPE credit hours
that must be earned and the acceptable fields of study.
Order now to receive the Sept. study guide—CPE
DIRECT (No. G01049CLI), or to start with the June 1994
issue (No. G01048CLI) or the Mar. 1994 issue (No.
G01046CLI), call the AICPA Order Department (see
page 7; give Operator Code CLI and AICPA membership
number) or state CPA societies.
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cation Change Commission, as to the commission’s
ongoing efforts to improve accounting education.
■ Approved new initiatives to enhance the recruitment of
CPAs into the Institute’s membership and to retain them
once they enter.
■ Received a progress report from the chair of the Tax
Executive Committee relating to efforts to alleviate the
work load compression problem (see article on page 1).
■ Approved a revised charter for the Audit Committee of
the Board of Directors and heard a report from the chair
of the Finance Committee relating to the Institute’s
financial performance.
■ Agreed to support, provided certain conditions are
met, the Florida Institute of CPAs in its effort to defend
the Florida accountancy statute which, among other
things, prohibits CPAs working for commercial organiza
tions from performing non-attest services, in particular
the preparation of financial statements, while holding
themselves out as CPAs.

For more information on CPE DIRECT, call the
AICPA’s CPE Division 800/862-4272 (dept. #3).
C o n feren ces
National Practice M anagement and M arketing Confer
ence*, Oct. 3-5, Atlanta, recommended CPE credit: up to
27 hours. National Advanced Litigation Services Confer
ence, Oct. 20-21, Phoenix, recommended CPE credit: 16
hours. Benchmarking and Financial Engineering Confer
ence*, Oct. 26, New Orleans, recommended CPE credit:
8 hours. National Industry Conference*, O ct 27-29, New
Orleans, recommended CPE credit: 21 hours. National
Conference on Federal Taxes, O ct 31-Nov. 1, Washing
ton, D.C., recommended CPE credit 16 hours. National
Governmental Training Program , Oct. 31-Nov. 2, New
Orleans, recommended CPE credit: 24 hours.
For more information, call the AICPA-CPE Division
at 800/862-4272 (dept. #3, option #2). For conferences
indicated by
contact AICPA Meetings 8c Travel
Services at 201/938-3232.
G ro u p Study
Based on the success of the AICPA 1040 Tax Clinic, this
fall the new AICPA Corporate Tax Clinic will be pre
sented at locations around the country. It was developed
using the same two-day, low-cost, high-benefit formula.
Both courses are geared to tax preparers with one to five
years of experience, seasonal preparers, part-time practi
tioners seeking a refresher and paraprofessionals/support staff with some experience preparing 1040 a n d /o r
1120 and 1120S forms. With presentations taught by top
tax experts, participants will receive full coverage of the
items they need to know to successfully prepare these
forms during tax season. Register early to receive taxclinic discounts. To receive a detailed brochure with
complete course descriptions and registration informa
tion for both clinics, dial 201/938-3787 from a fax
machine, follow the voice cues, and select document no.
702, or call 800/862-4272 (option #4).
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D i v i s i o n f or C P A F i r m s — S E C P r a c t i c e S e c t i o n

P r a c tic e A le r t
ABOUT THE DETECTION AND PREVENTION OF FRAUD TASK FORCE

I

n response to recommendations advanced by the

expose themselves to litigation by initiating or continuing

Public Oversight Board in its March 1993 special

relationships with higher risk audit clients, not because

report, “In the Public Interest— Issues Confronting

of poor audit performance. Accordingly, the task force

the Accounting Profession,” and by the AICPA Board of

developed information on client acceptance and continu

Directors in its June 1993 report, “M eeting the Financial

ance procedures to help firms manage risk. Although

Reporting N eeds of the Future: A Public Com m itm ent

firm management has ultimate responsibility for accept

from the Public Accounting Profession,” the SEC

ing and retaining clients, it is prudent for all engagem ent

Practice Section Executive C om m ittee established a

personnel to be aware of the risk factors that could warrant

D etection and Prevention of Fraud Task Force. T h e

a re-evaluation of the client-auditor relationship in the

task force’s charge is to develop information to assist

event they are encountered during planning or throughout

auditors in the detection of financial fraud and in the

performance of the audit.

m anagement of overall engagem ent risk.
Among its initial determinations, the task force had
concluded that in many instances accounting firms

T h e SECPS Executive Com m ittee and its Detection
and Prevention of Fraud Task Force hope you find the
following information beneficial.

ACCEPTANCE AND CONTINUANCE OF AUDIT CLIENTS
NOTICE T O READERS
This practice alert is intended to provide auditors with information that may help them improve the efficiency and effectiveness of their
audits. This docum ent has been prepared by the SEC Practice Section Detection and Prevention of Fraud Task Force. It has not been
approved, disapproved or otherwise acted upon by any com m ittee of the AICPA.

Introduction
he existing quality control standards promulgated

discussion of specific policies and procedures is intended

by the AICPA (applicable to auditing and account

to be thought-provoking and useful to a firm in assessing

ing and review services) provide that “policies

the particular client acceptance and continuance policies

T

and procedures should be established for deciding
w hether to accept or continue a client in order to minimize

and procedures it may choose to employ in its practice.
Throughout the process, from initial consideration

the likelihood of association with a client whose manage

about accepting or continuing a client to issuance of an

ment lacks integrity.” T he specific policies and procedures

audit report, auditors are faced with risk. T his risk can

established and the nature and extent to which they may

be thought of as having three components:

be docum ented may vary significantly from firm to firm.

■ The entity's business risk—T h e risk that the entity will

T h e following discussion highlights matters that a
firm may wish to consider in connection with establish
ing policies and procedures for client acceptance and

not survive or will not be profitable.
■ The auditor's business risk—T h e risk to the auditor from
association with the client, consisting of the risk of

continuance. T h e extent to which a firm may choose to

potential litigation costs and the related effect on the

employ any of the following is, with the exception of cer

auditor’s reputation and the risk of other costs

tain procedures required by generally accepted auditing

(not related to litigation) such as the effects on fee

standards, largely a matter of professional judgment. T he

realization.
CONTINUED ON PAGE 2

Acceptance and Continuance of Audit Clients
■ The auditor's audit risk—T h e risk that the auditor may

2. Inquire as to the general reputation of high ranking

unknowingly fail to appropriately modify his or her opinion

employees and influential directors and shareholders, as

on financial statem ents that are materially misstated.

well as the entity itself. Carefully consider any matters
that may negatively reflect on m anagem ent’s integrity,

T h e auditor’s business risk may be controlled in part
through policies and procedures established for deciding

ability and attitude. Such inquiries may be directed to the

w hether to accept or continue a client. Selectivity in accept

prospective client’s bankers, legal counsel, underwriters,

ing and retaining clients represents a prudent business deci

and others in the business community. Background

sion on the part of auditors— not a conclusive judgm ent as to

checks obtained by investigative firms may also be useful.

the integrity or lack thereof of client management.

3. Consider management’s response to observations about or

Unfortunately, it may be very difficult to identify when

suggestions for improvements in internal controls made

a potential or existing client may present a significant risk

by the predecessor auditor and/or the internal auditor.

to the CPA firm because of heightened risk of fraudulent

4. Consider the composition and autonomy of the Board

financial reporting or unwarranted litigation stemming from

of Directors and the Audit Comm ittee, including the

the entity’s business risk. T h e establishm ent of a periodic

num ber of independent outside directors.
5. Communicate with the predecessor auditor in accordance

evaluation of all of the relevant risk factors may serve to
heighten professional skepticism and focus attention on the

with the provisions of Statem ent on Auditing Standards

client association decision.

(SAS) No. 7 [AU315]. Inquiries should be directed to the
integrity of managem ent and the reasons for the change

Client Acceptance

in auditor. T h e following situations should be carefully

A statem ent of general firm philosophy is an appropriate

considered in assessing w hether to accept a client:

accompaniment to specific client acceptance policies and

■ T here has been a disagreem ent with the previous

procedures. T h e firm may, for example, want to state that

auditor over accounting principles or practices; finan

clients accepted by the firm should be engaged in legitimate

cial statem ent disclosures; auditing scope; or the Form

pursuits and should not present undue business risks to the

8-K discloses a reportable event as defined in

firm, including damage to the firm’s reputation. For example,

Securities and Exchange Commission Regulation S-K.

the firm may not wish to be associated with a prospective

■ T h e previous auditor resigned or declined to stand for

client that presents an unusually high risk of being involved

re-election or there is no clear reason for the cessation

in litigation or other disputes, even in situations where it

of the client relationship.

appears that the quality and propriety of the auditor’s

■ Access to the predecessor auditor’s working papers

services can clearly be dem onstrated to third parties.

has been denied.

A client acceptance assessment should consider the integrity

■ O ther CPA firms have declined to serve the prospec

of the persons who act in management capacities at the client.

tive client.

Consequently, satisfactory responses to inquiries regarding

■ T here appears to be evidence of “opinion shopping.”

the integrity of managem ent should be a principal objective

6. Read the Form 8-K (or other filing, if applicable) report

of client acceptance procedures. Inquiries about individuals

ing the termination of the predecessor auditor, including

may be supplem ented by background checks and review of

the predecessor auditor’s response to Form 8-K, to

information published in the press or business journals.

identify disagreements, reportable events and other
matters that require discussion with the predecessor

T h e following procedures are ones a firm may consider
performing in connection with a client acceptance assessment:

auditor, legal counsel or management.

1. Obtain an understanding of the client’s business and opera

7. Consider w hether any financial interests or relationships

tions. Consideration should be given to reading available

exist that would impair the appearance of the firm’s

financial information regarding the prospective client such

independence from the client and preclude its expression

as annual reports, registration statements, Forms 10-K,

of an opinion on the entity’s financial statements. T h e

other reports to regulatory agencies, and income tax returns.

firm should consider Rule 101 of the AICPA Code of

2

Acceptance and Continuance of Audit Clients
Professional Ethics. For clients that are public

Client continuance evaluations are most effectively

companies, the firm should also consider the

com pleted before entering into an engagement, signing

requirem ents of the SEC.

an engagem ent letter, or beginning significant work on an

8. Consider w hether the services to be provided are

engagement. Although the client continuance evaluation

compatible with the CPA firm’s policies and w hether

program may be conducted annually, auditors should also

qualified personnel are available, including those

be cognizant throughout the audit that circumstances may

having appropriate industry expertise, and will be able

be encountered that would suggest consideration of

to assist in providing the necessary services.

w hether the client relationship should be terminated.

9. Consider any potential conflicts of interest that could

Engagement Risk Factors

result from the acceptance of a client.
10. Consider the willingness and ability of the prospective

In assessing w hether to accept or continue a client relation

client to pay an acceptable fee.

ship, the firm should consider and address matters related

11. Consider the significance of specific risk factors iden

to (1) the entity’s business risk, (2) the auditor’s business

tified as a result of the above procedures. (Examples

risk, and (3) the auditor’s audit risk. Certain matters or fac

of risk factors are included below.)

tors may be more significant than others. Many of the indi
vidual factors listed below may be present in entities that

Client Continuance

do not present increased engagement risk and that are not

Because of rapid changes in the business environment,

candidates for auditor rejection or resignation. However, a

active consideration of w hether to continue to serve a

combination of the factors has been present in a num ber of

client may help to reduce the auditor’s business risk. T h e

the client business failures of the past. Decisions regarding

same matters considered when the client was accepted

client acceptance and continuation require the exercise of

may be reconsidered in light of the cumulative experience

professional skepticism and judgm ent. In order to assist

with the client in order to highlight issues such as manage

auditors in making the difficult client acceptance and

m ent integrity, changes in management behavior, deterio

continuance decisions, some CPA firms have assigned

rating financial condition, or rapidly changing operational

various weights to the factors the CPA firm believes are

conditions. Such an evaluation also may focus the CPA firm

more critical to the auditor’s business risk. A weighted

on changes in engagement risk and may provide an oppor

“scoring” system can be used to assist the auditor and the

tunity to consider m ethods, short of cessation of the client

CPA firm in evaluating the auditor’s business risk. Other

relationship, to reduce audit risk to acceptable levels.

CPA firms have developed a more extensive list of factors.

Firms may find that an annual client continuance eval

T h e following list is not intended to be all inclusive.

uation program provides an effective framework for active

Circumstances that may lead to a higher assessment

consideration of client continuance. T he annual client contin

of engagem ent risk include:

uance evaluation program may be conducted by having each

1. E ntity’s Business Risk

engagem ent team perform an evaluation considering the

■ Management:

relevant factors in light of their cumulative experience

- Engages in activities indicative of a lack of integrity.

with and knowledge of the client. It also may be helpful

- Is prone to engage in speculative ventures or accept

to have an independent review of the engagem ent team ’s

unusually high business risks.

evaluation performed by an independent firm committee,

- Displays a poor attitude toward compliance with

a partner not associated with the engagem ent or the m an

outside regulatory or legislative obligations.

aging partner. Such an approach allows a CPA firm to evalu

- Engages in complex transactions or innovative deals that

ate the cumulative risk posed by the sum of its clients. In

make the determ ination of the effects on the financial

addition, an independent review team or reviewer may bring

statem ents difficult to assess or highly subjective.

a broader base of experience and perspective to the evaluation

- Lacks a proven track record.

and adds an elem ent of consistency across the CPA firm.

- Is evasive, uncooperative or abusive to the audit team.

3

CONTINUED ON PAGE 4

Acceptance and Continuance of Audit Clients
■ T h e Entity:

3. Auditor’s Audit Risk

- Has products that are new and unproven.

T h e auditor should follow SAS No. 47, Audit Risk and

- Depends on a limited number of customers or suppliers.

Materiality in Conducting an Audit, which provides guid

- Is experiencing a deteriorating financial condition or

ance on the auditor’s consideration of audit risk when

liquidity crisis.
- Is subject to uncertainties that raise substantial doubt
about its ability to continue as a going concern.
- Operates in countries where business practices are
questionable.

planning and performing an audit of financial state
ments. Examples of factors that may increase audit
risk include:
-O perations that are dominated by a single individual.
- Undue emphasis on achieving earnings per share;

- Has an inadequate capital base or is highly leveraged.

maintaining the market price of the company’s stock;

- Is experiencing difficulty in m eeting restrictive debt

or m eeting earnings projections.

covenants.
- G enerates negative cash flows from operations but
reports operating profits.
- Has publicly traded debt outstanding that is below
investm ent grade.
- Is a low tier firm in an emerging or maturing industry
where weak competitors are exiting the market.
- Is subject to unpredictable changes in price and avail
ability of product inputs that cause significant variance
in profitability.
- Is vulnerable to rapidly changing technology.
- Is investing cash from short-term borrowings in
long-term assets.
■ T h e Industry:
- Is undergoing rapid change.
- Is subject to high competition, market saturation,
product obsolescence, or declining demand.
- Has high operating leverage dem onstrated by high
fixed costs and low variable costs.
- Is highly cyclical or counter cyclical.
- Has a low entry barrier.
- Is facing regulations that will adversely impact profitability
throughout the industry.
2. Auditor’s Business Risk

-U nreliable processes for making accounting esti
mates or questionable estimates by executives.
-U nrealistic budget levels that encourage unrealistic
objectives.
- A high volume of significant year-end transactions.
-C om pensation based to a significant degree on
reported earnings.
-A n unnecessarily complex corporate structure.
-P rio r-year financial statem ents that were restated
for correction of an error or irregularity.
-A ttem p ts by m anagement to reduce the scope
of the audit.
-S ubstantial litigation involving the entity’s
business practices.
-M aterial weaknesses or other reportable conditions
in the internal control structure.
- Significant and unusually complex related party
transactions.
-A ffiliates that are unaudited or audited by others.
-M anagem ent espouses aggressive accounting
principles.
- Understaffed accounting departm ent or inexperi
enced personnel.
-F inancial reports not prepared on a timely basis.

- T h e entity is prone to a high num ber of lawsuits or
controversies.
- T here are frequent changes in the entity’s auditors.
- T h e entity plans to engage in an initial public offering
or use the financial statem ents to engage in a debt or
equity offering.
- T h e financial statem ents will be used in connection
with an acquisition or disposal of a business or segment.

Com m ents or questions on this alert should be directed to the A IC P A Division for C P A Firm s at 1 -8 0 0 -C P A - FIRM .
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Interpretation of Ethics Code Issued for Educators
by Harold Q. Langenderfer
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n January 1988, the AICPA mem
bership overwhelmingly adopted
a new Code of Professional Con
duct A significant aspect of the new
Code is that it applies to all members of
the AICPA, including members in
industry, government and education.
The Academic and Career Develop
ment Executive Committee formed a
Task Force on Ethical Behavior for
Accounting Educators to determine
which rules of the Code were applica
ble to members providing educational
services.
Based on the deliberations of the
Educators Task Force, the Academic
and Career Development Executive
Committee and the Professional Ethics
Executive Committee, a decision was
made to issue an Interpretation stating,
in effect, that Rule 102: Integrity and
Objectivity is applicable to AICPA
members performing educational
services. The Interpretation approved
for exposure to AICPA members reads
as follows:

I

Title: Proposed Interpretation Under Rule 102:
Applicability of Rule 102 to Members
Performing Educational Services.
“Educational services (for example, teach
ing full- or part-time at a university, teaching a
CPE course, or engaging in research and schol
arship) are professional services as defined in
ET Section 92.10, and are, therefore, subject to
rule 102. Rule 102 provides that the member
maintain objectivity and integrity, be free of
conflicts of interest, and shall not knowingly
misrepresent facts or subordinate his or her
judgment to others.”

An exposure draft of this Interpreta
tion is available to AICPA members
on request with a comment deadline of
October 31, 1994. If approved by the
members, it will be incorporated into the
AICPA Code of Professional Conduct
To obtain a copy (No. 800072CL), write:
AICPA Order Department, CL894, P.O.
Box 2209, Jersey City, NJ 07303-2209;
order via fax, 800/362-5066; or call
800/862- 272 (dept #1). Ask for Oper
ator CL894. The first copy is free.
continued on page 4 ►

From the Editor’s Desk...
Welcome back and best wishes as you begin the 1994-95 academic year! I enjoyed meeting
many of you at the AICPA Exhibit Booth at the AAA Annual Meeting in New York last month. It was
a great opportunity for us to discuss AICPA programs and activities with you directly. For those
of you who attended, we hope you found it informative as well.
Our next chance to get together will be at the AICPA Accounting Educators Mini-Conference
in November. If you haven’t registered as yet, I urge you to do so immediately since space is
limited. A registration form is provided on page 3 of this issue. You can expect to receive your
next issue of FYI in November 1994, so stay tuned for more information on future programs of
interest. In 1995, issues will be published in January, March and May.
Elizabeth Scifo Koch
Editor

News and Notes
The AICPA Special Committee
on Financial Reporting is
scheduled to issue a Report in
September 1994 based on their comprehen
sive assessment of business information
useful to decision-makers. The Committee
was formed by the AICPA Board of Directors
to address concerns regarding the relevancy
and usefulness of business reporting. The
focus of the Committee’s work has been to
better align business reporting with the infor
mation needs of investors and creditors. The
Report will recommend what types of infor
mation should be made available to others by
management and the extent to which auditors
should report on this information.
Since the Report has significant potential
implications for accounting curricula, the
AICPA Academic and Career Development
Division will be providing materials for edu
cators to facilitate coverage of the Report in
the classroom. These materials will highlight
issues contained in the Report that are perti
nent to courses in accounting, auditing and
information systems. The materials are
scheduled to be developed by November
1994. One copy of the materials will be
distributed to each Accounting Program
Administrator or Chairperson shortly after

Rick Elam

Viewpoint:

The 150-Hour
Requirement and
Curriculum
Development

“Use standard degree
titles and focus on
preparation for
licensed activities.”

development. Faculty should contact the
Accounting Program Administrator at their
school to obtain access to these AICPA devel
oped materials.
Jan R. Williams, University of
Tennessee, Knoxville, has been
selected as the 1994 AICPA
Outstanding Accounting Educator. Dr.
Williams has contributed 25 years of teach
ing, including the past 17 at Tennessee.
He is distinguished for his creative teaching
abilities, leadership in the enactment of
150-hour legislation and his involvement in
the accounting profession. An award will
be presented to Dr. Williams in recognition
of his contribution to accounting education
at the AICPA Annual Members meeting on
October 2 4 -2 5 , 1994.
The AICPA State Legislation
Department now has several
documents available through
the AICPA Fax Hotline, including the state
status of the 150-Hour Education Require
ment. This document can be retrieved by
calling the Fax Hotline at (201) 938-3787
from a fax machine, following the voice cues,
and requesting document #605.

When the AICPA passed a bylaw
amendment requiring new members to
possess at least 150 semester hours of
college education, it was never intended
that the requirement become the title of
a college degree. It simply described a
necessary level of educational attain
ment without limiting the types of
degrees that universities might create to
meet the requirement. Similar language
is now being written into state laws, and
most accounting faculty are reviewing
their curricula to make sure they have a
program which meets the requirement.
Even in states that have not yet passed
the requirement, accounting faculty are
preparing because their graduates will
need to be qualified to work in any state.
Some schools are considering a
new degree titled “150-Hour Program,”
which could be a very bad strategy. The
approval hierarchy at most universities is
accustomed to considering fairly stand

The AICPA granted $200,000 to
CPAs pursuing a career change
to accounting education as part
of the 1994-95 AICPA Doctoral Fellowship
Program. New awards of $5,000 each went
to: Terry A. Baker (University of Kentucky),
Delwyn DeVries (Arizona State University),
Rebecca Lynn Hannan (University of Pitts
burgh), Retha Hurtt (University of Utah), Anne
Leah Jones (Boston University), Kent Klein
(University of North Carolina at Chapel Hill),
Mark Kohlbeck (University of Texas at Austin),
John Joseph Masselli (Georgia State Univer
sity), Rebekah Stuck (University of Nebraska),
Susan Swanger (University of South Carolina
-Columbia) and Barbara Vinciguerra (Drexel
University). Twenty-nine fellowships were
renewed.
Hee-Jae Lee (Yale University) was
awarded $4,000 as the winner of the 1994
John L. Carey Scholarship. This award,
in honor of the former AICPA Chief
Operating Officer, is for Masters-level study
of accounting and is eligible to liberal arts
undergraduates of the University of Georgia,
the University of Illinois at Urbana-Champaign
and Yale University. One Carey Scholarship of
$4,000 was also renewed.

ard types of degree programs, namely
baccalaureate and masters degrees.
Going to the university council or the
state board of higher education for
approval of something called a “150-hour
program” seems to be asking for trouble.
That degree title would also look rather
strange on a resume. Accounting faculty
should use standard university degree
titles when proposing curriculum to meet
the 150-semester-hour requirement.
Selecting a degree type and title is
easy. Defining a curriculum that best pre
pares future CPAs and makes effective
use of a particular college’s resources is
difficult Faculty often debate whether the
future CPA should be defined as
one who possesses certain accounting
related knowledge, skills and abilities or
as a person likely to succeed as an
employee of a CPA firm. Then comes a
discussion of the fact that the majority of
continued on page 4 ►
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AICPA Academic and Career Development Division
announces

T H E 1 9 9 4 A C C O U N T IN G E D U C A T O R S
M IN I-C O N F E R E N C E

“INNOVATIONS IN ACCOUNTING PEDAGOGY”
November 4—5, 1994 in Portland, Oregon
in cooperation with the

School of Business Administration, Portland State University
THE 1994 AICPA
A ccounting Educators M ini-C onference
N ovem ber 4 - 5 , 1994 at Portland, O regon

PROGRAM
Thursday, November 3
5:00p - 9:00p Registration
Friday, November 4
7:00a - 5:00p Registration
7:00a - 8:00a Continental Breakfast
8:00a - 10:00a Plenary: Cooperative Learning
(Philip Cottell, Miami University of Ohio)
10:00a-10:20a Break
10:20a - 11:20a CONCURRENT SESSIONS:
Restructuring Accounting Principles Courses
( Thomas Edmonds, University of Alabama at
Birmingham; Alison Drews-Bryan, Clemson
University; Jack Zeller, Kirkwood Community
College)
11:30a - 12:30p CONCURRENT SESSIONS repeated
12:30p - 1:30p Luncheon
1:30p - 3:00p CONCURRENT SESSIONS:
Incorporating Oral Communication Skills in
the Accounting Classroom (Barbara Scofield,
Southeastern Louisiana University)
Developing Instructional Cases for Principles
Courses (Michael Van Breda, Southern
Methodist University)
3:00p - 3:30p Break
3:30p - 5:00p CONCURRENT SESSIONS:
Incorporating International Topics in Principles
Courses (Judy Ramaglia, Pacific Lutheran
University)
Recruiting Students into Accounting Programs
(Nita Clyde, University of Texas-Arlington)
6:30p - 8:00p Reception
8:00p - 10:00p Computer Workshops
(Eric Denna, Brigham Young University)
Saturday, November 5
7:00a - 12:00p Registration
7:00a - 8:00a Continental Breakfast
8:00a - 10:00a CONCURRENT CASE SESSIONS
1994 Professor/Practitioner Cases
10:00a - 10:30a Break
10:30a - 12:30p CONCURRENT CASE SESSIONS repeated
12:30p - 1:45p Luncheon Banquet and Adjournment
2:00p - 4:00p Computer Workshops repeated

CPE: 15 h o u rs m axim um
1993—9 4 Program C om m ittee: Richard Fern, Chair (Eastern
Kentucky University); Gary Lawrence (US Dept. o f Education);
Leonard E. Berry (Georgia State University); Jean Wyer (Coopers
& Lybrand).

REGISTRATION FORM
R e g is tra tio n Fee: $195 (AICPA MEMBERS)/ $225 (NON-MEMBERS)

Please re g ister m e fo r th e 1994 AICPA A ccounting Educators
M ini-Conference. (Check one):
□ Please bill my credit card: □ MasterCard □ Visa $_____ Amount
Fax o n ly credit card registrations to 201-938-3169
Complete the following information:
Card # ___________________ Exp. Date____________________
Signature______________________________________________
□ My check for $______ payable to AICPA is enclosed.
(Full payment must accompany registration.)
M ail to : AICPA Meetings Registration, PO Box 2210, Jersey City, NJ 07303-2210.
BATES # _________________________
(AICPA use only)

Registrant’s Last Name

First

MI

Nicknam e

College or University Name or A ffiliation

Street Address

Room N um ber o r M ail Drop

Post O ffice Box

C ity

State

AICPA Membership Num ber—
Requiredfor Discounted Registration

Z ip Code

Area Code &
D aytim e Telephone

Name and telephone num ber o f individual to contact in case o f emergency
HOTEL INFORMATION: Reserve your hotel accom m odations directly. Call the Portland Hilton at (503)
226-1611 by October 3, 1994. After October 3, room s will be o n a space-available basis only. Identify yourself
as an attendee o f th e AICPA Accounting Educators M ini-Conference in o rd er to obtain o u r group rate o f $95 for
a single o r double room . To guarantee your room for late arrival, a credit card num ber o r first night's deposit
is required.
CANCELLATION POLICY: Full refunds will be issued o n w ritten cancellations received by October 1 4 , 1994.
W ritten cancellations received after O ctober 14 bu t before October 28, 1994, w ill be issued a refund less a #25
adm inistrative charge. No refunds will be issued o n cancellation requests received after O ctober 28, 1994.
AIRLINE DISCOUNT: U nited Airlines is offering an exclusive discount for this conference Call them at (800)
521-4041 and refer to File # 5 4 1IR to receive 5% o ff the lowest available fare o r 10% o ff regular coach fare. (The
AICPA is n o t liable for penalties incurred if you cancel o r change your airline reservations.)
FOR FURTHER INFORMATION: Call th e AICPA at (201) 93 8 -3 2 3 2 .

Register e a r ly as s p a c e is lim ited!
September 1994

□ Accounting Educators: FYI

3

1994 AICPA Supply/Demand Report Reveals Decline
in New Accounting Graduates
by John Daidone
The number of new accounting
graduates in 1992-93 decreased by 8
percent from the previous academic
year—the first decline in three years,
according to The Supply of Accounting
Graduates and the Demand for Public
Accounting Recruits—1994. Over 50,000

bachelor’s degrees and 5,330 master’s
degrees in accounting were awarded in
the 1992-93 academic year.
The recently issued report is based
on a survey of all U.S. colleges and uni
versities that offer accounting programs,

►The 150-Hour Requirement
continued from page 2

CPAs don’t practice public accounting at
all, but work in industry, education or
somewhere doing something entirely
unrelated to accounting. This leads to
the suggestion that the curriculum
should be guided by the content of the
CPA Examination.
An accounting degree can never

► Interpretation of Ethics Code
continued from page 1

Recognizing that educator mem
bers are subject to the entire Code
of Ethics, the Educators Task Force
identified four Rules as being particu
larly relevant to educator members
with respect to their teaching, research
and scholarship responsibilities. These
rules are:
Rule 102: Integrity and Objectivity. This rule
relates to conflicts of interest, misrepre
sentation of facts, and subordination of
one’s judgment.

and public accounting firms and sole
practitioners affiliated with the Institute.
Overall, 864 schools and 21,191 firms
and practices were surveyed.
On the “demand” side, there was
a slight decrease (2 percent) in the
number of new accounting graduates
employed by firms/practices in 1993 vs.
1992. Overall, just under 22,000 new
accounting graduates were employed
by firms/practices, a figure relatively
consistent with that of previous years.
Both the “supply” and “demand”
surveys were expanded to obtain addi
tional information for the 1994 report

On the supply side, data on accounting
enrollments and Ph.D. graduates are
reported for the first time, as well
as detailed gender and ethnic/racial
data for accounting graduates. On the
demand side, detailed gender and ethnic/
racial data for professional staff—
including CPAs and partners/owners—
have been included.
For a copy of The Supply of Account
ing Graduates and the Demand for Public
Accounting Recruits — 1994 (Product

#G00100), contact AICPA Order Depart
ment, P.O. Box 2209, Jersey City, NJ
07303-2209; (800) 862-4272. Z

meet all the varied needs of large CPA
firms because they are conglomerates
offering all sorts of services. The fact
that CPAs often progress out of public
accounting during their careers only
suggests that what they know is very
useful in other areas. The CPA Examina
tion is far too narrowly focused to be a
realistic guide for a university degree.
The best way to design a curricu
lum to meet the 150-hour requirement is

to focus on preparing students for the
specific tasks that CPAs are licensed to
perform. The curriculum should enable
graduates to prepare financial state
ments and perform audits. That basic
curriculum should be enhanced with
broadening experiences as recom
mended by the Accounting Education
Change Commission and it should meet
all college, university and accreditation
requirements. Z

care, adequate planning and supervision,
and having obtained sufficient relevant data
to serve as a reasonable basis for a conclu
sion or recommendation.

Recognition by the AICPA that
educator members are covered by the
AICPA Code of Professional Conduct
is an important first step in what
should be a continuing evolution in the
development of ethical guidelines for
educators in carrying on their profes
sional activities. Z

Rule 202: Compliance with Standards. This
rule relates to education members who
perform both education services and other
professional services. Members perform
ing both types of services are required to
comply with all of the rules with respect to
all non-education professional services that
are covered by Rule 202, such as being a
tax preparer, an expert witness, an auditor
or consultant, etc.

Rule 201: General Standards. This rule encom

Rule 501: Acts Discreditable. Discreditable

passes the standards related to performing
professional services with competence, due

acts include discrimination based on race,
color, religion, sex, age, and national origin.

Harold Q. Langenderfer is the KPMG
Peat Marwick Professor of Accounting
Emeritus a t the University o f North
Carolina. A form er chair of the
Education Executive Committee (now
Academic and Career Development Exec
utive Committee), Dr. Langenderfer is
presently serving as chair of that body’s
Ethics Task Force.

Published five times each academic year by the AICPA Academic and Career Development Division, 1211 Avenue of the Americas, New York, NY 10 036-877 5, telephone (212) 5 9 6-6 219. Except
where otherwise copyrighted, reproduction of the material in the publication is encouraged and permitted if source acknowledgement is made and a copy of the reproduction is sent to the editor. In
addition, we welcome submissions for consideration for publication. Please send all submissions and inquiries to the editor at the address above. Opinions expressed in the publication do not nec
essarily reflect policy of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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THE
FINANCIAL
MANAGER’S
REPORT
A Quarterly Update for CPAs in Business & Industry ■ September 1994

Fall Industry Conference Program Set
The CPE Liaison Subcommittee of
the Members In Industry Executive
Committee is proud to sponsor
the AICPA 1994 Fall National

Here is just a sample:
■ The Role of Strategic
Performance Measures in
Business Analysis;
■ Controlling Health Care
Benefit Costs;
■ How to Get More Stress
Into Your Life;
■ How to Successfully
Integrate Your Business and
Finance Functions;

Industry Conference, October
27-29, 1994 at The New Orleans
Marriott. Immediately preceding
the Industry Conference on October
26th will be the Benchmarking

and Financial Reengineering Con
ference. (See page 4.)
Layne Longfellow
The Fall National Industry
Conference will follow the same
successful format as prior Fall and Spring Conferences.
Over two and one-half days, you can earn up to 21 hours of
CPE credit while sharing experiences with more than 700 of
your fellow industry CPAs.
The featured speakers o f this Fall’s conference
include Edith Weiner, a nationally renown futurist who will
share her predictions on the trends of the future as they
affect business and Stuart Varney, CNN’s business news
anchor who will discuss America’s place in the global
economy. To open our conference, Layne Longfellow will
present his moving and enlightening presentation — “Our
Finest Hour: America in the 21st Century Environment.”
In addition to a comprehensive FASB review and cor
porate and individual tax updates, there is a very exciting
program of concurrent sessions from which to choose.

Stuart Varney
REGISTRATION INFORMATION
The registration fee for the conference is $550,
and includes general and concurrent sessions, handout
materials, three continental breakfasts, two luncheons,
refreshment breaks, and a cocktail reception “Out In
the Bayou.” There is a special price o f $535 if you
register before September 27, 1994. If three or more
register from the same company at the same time, the
registration fee will be $495 each (that’s more than
10% off the total registration).
There are further discounts if you register for both
the National Industry Conference and the Benchmarking
and Financial Reengineering Conference together. For
more information, call the AICPA Meetings & Travel
Division at 201-938-3232.

Creating a Service Culture in Your Organization
by Peggy Morrow

One o f the most important elements o f a customer ser
vice program is the establishment of a customer service
culture. If the entire organization doesn’t point toward
the customers and acknowledge them as the focal point
o f the whole process, you cannot hope to achieve quality
customer service.
Yes, the interpersonal skills and professional image
of front-line employees are critical for success, but if you
believe that training in these skills alone can guarantee
the success o f a customer service program, you are setting
yourself up for failure.
Management must lead the way and everyone in
the organization must understand that it is their job to
take care o f the customer or to take care of someone
who does. This is known as the culture of an organization,
and it takes a long time and some basic behaviors and
elements to establish one that is fanatical about serving
the customer.
The Financial Manager’s Report

Here are some just some o f the ways to help create
a customer service culture in your organization.
1. Management must embody the service philosophy of
the company at all times. “Walking your talk” is one
of the most important factors in the eventual success of
any service excellence program. If you can’t practice
what you preach, how can you expect others to do it?
The Home Depot, a firm that is very good at
customer service, indoctrinates everyone, from
the top down, in the importance o f the customer.
So when a group of high-level managers is visiting a
store and they see a customer obviously looking for
something, they stop what they are doing and ask, “Are
you finding everything you need?” They realize that
nothing is so important as the customer, not even their
high-level fact-finding trips and meetings. And because
they model the behavior they want, everyone in the
stores eats, breathes, and believes that the customer
comes first.
Continued on page 6
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Environmental Liability! Courses Highlight CPE Course Offerings
Under anti-pollution laws passed in recent decades, businesses
of all sizes face staggering environmentalfin an cial and legal
liabilities. These two new AICPA courses have been developed to
help CPAs guide their company's operations.

NEW! Environmental Liability — Self Study
This course will enable CPA financial managers to recog
nize environmental problems, measure and account for
cleanup costs, and find and apply relevant accounting
guidance.
Course materials include the new AICPA survey of
financial reporting practices, Illustrations o f Accounting
fo r Environmental Costs, with many examples of how
companies have disclosed environmental liabilities in
their annual reports to stockholders.
Author: Michael Ramos, CPA CPE Credit: 8 hours
Format: 3 Audiocassettes/Workbook (740912CLI) $119.00
Additional Workbook (740913CLI) $69.50

Available 10/1 — Environmental Alert Videocourse
This course shows you the steps that you can take to mini
mize your company’s risk of violating environmental laws
and regulations. Course highlights include: Most frequent
types of environmental violations; areas of inquiry during
a financial audit or review; criminal law implications for
company and individual officers; evaluating your compli
ance program; structuring operations and acquisitions to
minimize the risk of environmental legal liabilities.
M oderator/Author: John S. Guttman, JD
CPE Credit: 8 hours

The CPAJob Bank

—

Format: 1 VHS Tape/Manual (180230CLI) $129.00
Additional Manual (350230CLI) $30.00

Leading the Controller’s Department — Seminar
Enhance your success as a controller or financial
administrator. Here is all the need-to-know on how to
expertly manage personnel as well as financial and tech
nological resources. Written by an experienced CPA
financial executive and noted CPE program developer,
John Purtill, this course will help you become aware of
the litigation traps resulting from interviewing, evaluat
ing and terminating employees. This course also provides
an overview of the Americans with Disabilities Act, the
Family and Medical Leave Act, a discussion of sexual
harassment issues and much more.
Level: Intermediate CPE Credit: 8 hrs.
Other courses you won’t want to miss: Advanced

Cash Management: Maximizing Your Cash Flows, The
Complete Guide to Pension and Profit-Sharing Plans,
Budgeting — Practical Information, Techniques and
Ideas, Today’s Corporate Tax Management Issues for
CPAs in Industry.
These courses are offered across the nation.
For specific dates and locations of the presentations
convenient to you, call 1-800-862-4272, option 4. To
order self study programs: Call 1-800-862-4272 (dept.
#1), fax to 1-800-362-5066, or write the AICPA Order
Department, P.O. Box 2209, Jersey City, NJ 07303-2209.

These courses are also available through your state society.

An Important New Service for Financial Managers

The AICPA, and more than 35 participating state CPA
societies, announced the establishment of a nationwide
employment referral service on June 1.
Through this service, members seeking new career
opportunities and members looking for new employees
will have access through a toll-free number to the newly
established CPAJOB BANK. According to Jay Rothberg,
AICPA Vice President-Member and State Relations, the
Job Bank was established, “as a result of the AICPA’s
recent survey of its industry members. The respondents
to the survey ranked a national job registry as their
most-sought after new member service.”
Individuals seeking employment who belong to the
AICPA or a participating state society will pay $50 for an
annual listing. Individuals who belong to both will pay
$41. Members who are unemployed or seeking seasonal
employment will pay $32. Confidentiality will be main

tained with no resumes being released without the
member’s prior approval.
Employers seeking CPA candidates will be able
to recruit locally, regionally, or nationally for $250 per
search. All candidates will be pre-screened by professional
recruiters. If a firm conducts two or more searches a year,
a discounted fee is available. Members are encouraged to
inform their company’s Human Resources Department
about this service.
The CPAJOB BANK is being administered by Job
Bank USA. Job Bank USA has been in the employment
referral business since 1987 and has more than 200
professional association clients, including the Society
of Human Resources Management, Institute of Electrical
and Electronic Engineers, American Bar Association,
and National Society of Professional Engineers.
To obtain more information or enroll,
call 1-800-939-1040.

The Financial Manager’s Report is a publication of the AICPA M em bers in Industry Executive Committee and is mailed four times per year to all AICPA members in
industry as an insert to The CPA Letter. Opinions of the authors are their own and do not necessarily reflect policies of the Institute.
The Committee and Staff welcome your input on ways to make FM R more responsive to your needs. Please address comments in writing to AICPA, Industry Member
Programs, 1211 Avenue of the Americas, New York, N Y 10036-8775.
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The Challenge of Fraud
byJohn J. Hall, CPA

Few issues facing organizations today can cause as much
confusion as fraud. Experts say that fraud is on the rise.
Published reports indicate that fraud related losses often
exceed one percent o f revenue. The effect on the bottom
line can be proportionally higher and may materially
effect an organization’s performance.
At the same time, few managers and their organiza
tions are adequately prepared to handle all of the issues
and dangers that fraud presents. An organized approach
to fighting fraud is critical. Every manager must know
what to do — and what not to do — when faced with a
possible fraud situation.

ELEMENTS OF THE FIGHT
The fight against fraud takes place on three levels.
First, organizations must institute a comprehensive fraud
prevention program. This program would include effec
tive screening of new employees, vendors, contractors and
others in accordance with law and contract. It should also
include periodic rescreening of these individuals and
organizations as time passes and circumstances change.
Managers must condition themselves to ask this question
about employees and long-term vendors and contractors
“If I just met this person today, would I put them into the
position o f trust which they now occupy?”
In addition, reduction of opportunity through
the existence of effective controls and other measures is
critical. You should make it more difficult for a potential
thief to commit the fraud in the first place. Be sure that
your internal control decisions include consideration of
what kinds o f fraud can be perpetrated, and by whom.
Reductions in staffing as a result of reengineering and
downsizing may result in greater opportunity for thieves
to steal because there is less checking of transactions.
Finally, potential thieves must believe that they
will in fact be caught and punished if they should steal.
Publication and open discussion of prior losses is impor
tant. Employees and others want and need to know that
thieves are caught and effectively punished.
The second level at which organizations must be
willing to fight fraud includes timely detection when fraud
does occur. Managers must have knowledge of fraud expo
sures and symptoms within their areas of responsibility.
They must know what can go wrong, and they must know
what it looks like when these problems do occur. They
must be alert for the symptoms and behavior indicators of
wrongdoing, and they must follow through on these signs
to the extent necessary to determine whether the sign
they are looking at is an isolated issue, or one of many.
The symptoms o f fraud may be in operating reports,
budget and variance analyses, reconciliations, paid checks
and other documents. Fraud losses may show up in the
form of inventory shortages, credit memos, adjustments
to customer accounts, write-offs, fictitious vendors, fail
ures during production, complaints from customers and
dozens of other ways. The challenge comes from not
over-reacting to these signs, and from getting past the
“I don’t know” stage to the “It does look like a real prob
lem!” stage. Avoid the tendency to explain these signs
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away by assuming “they are probably all right. ” The only
way to know for sure is to follow through on all symptoms
observed. Get past conjecture. Get to the facts.
The third level o f the battle against fraud covers the
actual handling of cases which surface. Some of these
issues include: conducting the actual investigation, identi-

ASSESSING YOUR ENVIRONMENT
The key to developing an environment which is hostile
to fraud is to assess your situation. To do so, start with
the questions below. “Yes” answers indicate that you are
probably on the right track. “No” answers might indi
cate an area for immediate attention.
1. Does your organization have a written policy spelling
out action to be taken in case o f suspected wrongdoing?
2. Is unacceptable behavior defined in writing in this
policy or in a separate code o f conduct?
3. Can concerned individuals report suspected wrong
doing confidentially o r w ithout fear o f retaliation?
4. Does the organization term inate the employment
o f known perpetrators without regard to position,
perform ance or length o f service? Are the cases
reported to law enforcem ent where appropriate?
5. Does the audit com m ittee or the board require
and receive a w ritten report o f all known cases o f
wrongdoing?
fying and removing the perpetrator, reporting to law
enforcement and the bonding company, dealing with the
morale and publicity implications that usually accompany
fraud cases, recovering losses through civil suits, and
correcting the control deficiencies that allowed the fraud
to occur. Some organizations can handle most of these
issues, few can effectively handle them all.
We must get the fraud issue into the hands of those
equipped to handle it as soon as possible. Well-meaning
but uninformed managers represent one of the greatest
threats to the effective handling of fraud. They can unin
tentionally expose the organization to legal and other
dangers by taking actions which are not appropriate.

CONCLUSION
In each organization, someone must step up and
take the lead in the fight against fraud. We have presented
some things you can do as a CPA financial manager.
Develop and implement a fraud handling policy which
instructs all employees about their fraud prevention and
handling responsibilities. Organizations with hot lines
have found that these are effective in helping people who
have knowledge of fraud related problems come forward.
Finally, develop the personal and institutional
courage to meet this issue head on. Do not let it remain
hidden in write offs and shortages. Bring it out into the
open where we can fight it.
John H all is a consultant with Courtenay Thompson &
Associates of Dallas. He specializes in fra u d prevention, detection
and handling seminars fo r managers and auditors. He will be
a featured speaker at the Fall N ational Industry Conference.
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Management Accounting Executive Committee Announces Fax Survey Results
In the M arch/April issue of the FMR, the Management
Accounting Executive Committee (MAEC) published a fa x
survey to collect information about you and your company,
and the management accounting concepts and practices that
you use in your work. Over 8 5 0 members responded to this
survey, indicating a strong interest in the efforts of the
Committee. Following are some of the highlights of the survey
results, along with some information on the Committee’s
interpretation of what these results mean.

Current State of Management Accounting
The survey attracted a high percentage of respondents
in leadership positions in the accounting and finance
function. Fully 85% are in management roles in the
finance area, with another 10% in key management
positions that are not directly related to finance.
Sixty percent of the respondents say they are very
involved in strategic decision-making for their compa
nies, yet most are relying on the “old tools” of financial
management to a great extent: 33% use planned/
standard costing, 63% are focused on budgeting to
a great extent, and 46% employ variance analysis as a
primary tool. If we include companies that use these
tools to at least a moderate extent, the percentages
climb to 59%, 87% and 77%, respectively.
The use o f non-financial performance measures
(NFPM) is rapidly gaining acceptance, with 71 % respond
ing that NFPM are used to at least a moderate extent in
conjunction with financial measures of performance.
During the 1980s, finance departments were greatly
expanded to analyze how well or poorly a company was
doing. The trend of the 1990s is for corporate “rightsizing” at the expense of finance department staff and
support. The study results indicate that 50% of the
respondents report about the same or fewer resources
(employees, office space, computer support) within the
last five years.
With respect to technical management accounting
issues, such as Activity Based Costing (ABC), what we
learned was no surprise to the MAEC: ABC is not a big
seller with the business community. In fact, it can be
termed as a non-event of the past with 85% o f the
respondents indicating that their companies had not
adopted ABC. On the other hand, ISO 9000 may be
termed an event o f the future. To date, only about 5000
companies in the U.S. have become certified in ISO
9000, but 47% o f the respondents that are not currently
certified note that their companies plan to become
ISO 9000 certified in the near future.
Comments provided by the respondents were

very revealing, and indicate that change is coming fast.
Many of you commented that greater computer usage
has resulted in fewer people in the accounting and
finance function but that the quality and professional
qualifications of employees has increased. On the
other hand, through the AICPA/The Hackett Group
Joint Benchmarking Study of Finance we learned that
accounting managers spend up to two-thirds of their
time on transaction processing, rather than decision
support or control and risk management. If lower-level
employees are being replaced with high-level employees,
and transaction processing is not yet highly automated,
then there must be an increase in the amount of time
spent by management employees on transaction
processing activities. This trend toward non value-added
activities concerns the MAEC.

Challenges Facing CPA Financial Managers
When asked about the greatest challenge faced
in management accounting, there were several recur
ring themes. Among them: (1) managing cash flow,
(2) maintaining the quality of information reported to
management with a smaller finance staff, (3) eliminating
information overload — identifying the value-adding
information for different levels of users, (4) providing
accurate information on a timely basis, and (5) keeping
up with technology.
These comments from survey respondents tell us
two things: (1) the MAEC is on the right track in its belief
that long overdue changes are taking place in manage
ment accounting and that the profession is facing
important challenges that could threaten its existence
if it does not respond aggressively, and (2) the AICPA
should be leading the profession in adapting to these
changes at the risk of becoming victims of the changes.
The survey also told us that you need help in “keep
ing up,” specifically with: (1) changing tax regulations
at the federal and state levels, (2) new FASB statements
and AICPA statements o f position, (3) national issues
such as health care reform, (4) the alphabet soup of
acronyms: ADA, ISO, TQM, IRS, DOL, EDI, EFT, etc.,
and (5) doing business globally.
We’ll be telling you about some new MAEC projects
and Industry Member programs to give you that help in
future issues of the FMR.
Meanwhile, we would be happy to have additional
input from you. Please address your comments to:
John F. Morrow, CPA, Director - Management Account
ing, American Institute of CPAs, Harborside Financial
Center, 201 Plaza Three, Jersey City, NJ 07311-3881

AICPA Benchmarking and Financial Reengineering Conference
On Wednesday, October 26 at the New Orleans
Marriott the Management Accounting Division is spon
soring a full day program that will give you the tools to
become a change agent for your company’s efforts to
achieve greater productivity and profits. Beginning with
an overview of how to benchmark 27 varied finance
functions, this program will show you how to develop a
best practice vision, build an effective reengineering
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proposal and sell change to senior management. The
last two hours of the conference will be devoted to
roundtable sessions that will allow participants to share
their questions, concerns, and experiences with each
other and with our panel of experts.
Details are on page 12 of the Fall National Industry
Conference Brochure. Call AICPA Meetings & Travel at
201-938-3232 for the brochure and registration information.
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Your Department’s PC Investment: Discovering Economic Leverage
byJack C. McClure

Are you getting full value from your computers in your
own department? Is your investment too high? Or too
low? Do you know how to tell?

The Key is Relationship
Minimizing the costs o f technology will not
necessarily produce improved economics. Instead,
the route to the highest benefits is through an under
standing o f the relationship between technology costs
and other costs, and knowledge of how technology is
used to enhance the productivity o f other assets (which,
for financial departments, means people assets).
This relationship between technology and other
costs can be illustrated by taking a small financial depart
ment, with a typical 70% of a total budget of $1 million
reserved for personnel costs. As we will demonstrate
later in this article, 3% or $30,000 is a typical annual
budget for technology in such a department. We believe
that a wise use o f technology would be to double the
technology budget, which nonetheless would remain a
very small piece o f the pie. In this scenario, a very rea
sonable expectation is that the department should see a
headcount reduction (through normal attrition), which
will more than cover the additional $30,000 technology
E x a m p le C o s ts fo r a 1 5 -P e rs o n F in a n c ia l D e p a rtm e n t
(A ll N ew E q u ip m e n t)
# of
Units

Unit
Cost

Total
Purchase
Cost

Annual
Upgrade
Costs

Equipm ent:
Desktop PCs (486/66)
Portable PCs (486SL)
Printers —
LaserJet 4 Plus
Printers —
Individual Laser or Inkjet
FAX/Modem Boards
Tape Backup
LAN File Server
LAN cards
LAN cabling and installation
Miscellaneous equipment
Total Equipment

12
3

$1,850
2,400

$22,200
7,200

$2,220
720

7

1,450

10,150

508

4
3
1
1
16
Site
15

500
100
800
4,000
125
1,500
200

2,000
300
800
4,000
2,000
1,500
3,000
$53,150

0
0
0
400
0
150
300
$4,298

$1,647.65

$358.13

372.05
2,019.70
134.65

358.13
23.88

675
1,200
4,200
1,250
3,000
4,500
2,250
$17,075

203
360
1,2600
375
900
1,350
675
$5,123

Monthly lease cost —
(36 months, 3.1 %/month)
Maintenance reserve
0.7% /m onth (Hardware)
Total Per-Month Costs: Equipment
Per-Person Equipt. Cost

$2,377.83
$158.52

investment, plus experience a boost in productivity for
the remaining workers o f 10%.
The main point here is this: personnel costs are the
great majority of costs in financial groups, and technol
ogy is very small in comparison, so using this leverage
wisely yields substantial improvement.
Recent AICPA survey data showed that technology
costs ranged from 2% to 5%. We believe these percent
ages are also typical of company financial departments.

Example Costs for A Financial Department
Figure 1 shows example costs for a for a 15-person

financial department. In this figure, we’ve used costs of
all new equipment, as a highest-cost scenario. To convert
a capital cost to a monthly cost we’ve used a factor o f
3.1% per month for a commercial lease, with a 36-month
term. In addition to the purchase of the equipment, you
will have maintenance expenses (we’ve used 0.7% per
m onth). And you’ll be upgrading most o f the items
during their useful lives, so we’ve used a factor o f 10%
o f purchase cost for a yearly upgrade budget during
the 3 years (the lease factor assumes 100% replacement
after 3 years). The result in Figure 1 is about $160 per
person per month for equipment.
Software costs include a budget for upgrading to
newer versions, for which we’ve assumed 30% annually
on most packages. We’ve used a four-year life on soft
ware, since financial executives typically change software
less frequently than we replace hardware.
The result shows hardware, software, maintenance
and upgrades (HSMU for short) of about $215 per per
son per month. For most financial departments, who are
still using some equipment that is fully depreciated and
software that is fully amortized, a more representative fig
ure is $150 per person per month or less. As a final check
on the percentage of technology costs to total budget,
Figure 2 shows a sensitivity analysis. Total budget (not just
personnel costs) divided by number o f staff ranges from
$4,000 to $7,000 per month in this figure.
Total Costs
per Staff
Mem ber
$4,000
5,000
6,000
7,000

$100
2.5%
2.0%
1.7%
1.4%

Computer Costs
Per-Person Per-Month
$150
$200
5.0%
3.8%
3.0%
2.5%
2.1%

4.0%
3.3%
2.9%

$250
6.3%
5.0%
4.2%
3.6%

Softw are:
DOS 6.X
15
Windows 3.1
15
Lotus Suite: 1-2-3, Approach, etc. 15
WordPerfect for Windows
5
Supp. Accounting Software
Site
Utility & Other Programs
15
Network Software
15
Total Software

45
80
280
250
3,000
300
150

Monthly/lease amortization
(48 months, 2.4% /m onth)
Total Per-Month Costs: Software
Per-Person Software Cost

$836.68
$55.78

$409.80
409.80
27.32

$426.88
426.88
28.46

Total Per-Person Costs:
Equipm ent & Softw are

$214.30

$161.97

$52.33

Figure 1.
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Figure 2.
These examples put the costs in context; the range is
from under $150 to perhaps $250 per month. Any way you
look at it, these costs are very low compared to people costs.
Our major investment should be in people. We
deliver competent services, and we want the best profes
sionals we can afford. Since we have these great people,
we want them to have effective tools so that they can be
most productive. And with technology so inexpensive
and potentially productive, that’s where leveraged
economic benefit occurs.
Continued on page 6
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Creating a Service Culture

Continued from page 1

2. Management must make the measurement of service
quality and feedback from the customer a basic part
of all employees’ work experience. And this informa
tion must be available and understood by everyone,
no matter what their level. The entire organization
must become obsessed with listening to the voice of
the customer.
3. Management must be very clear about specifying
exactl y what behaviors constitute excellent customer
service. And you must do this with both your
external and internal customers.
The US Post Office has posters proclaiming that
their standard of service is to help each customer in
five minutes or less. And tacked to each terminal is the
acronym, “GIST.” This helps to remind them that the
parts of the service interaction are to greet, inquire,
suggest and thank.
4. Management must make sure that everyone receives
recognition for the things that are going well. D on’t
make the mistake o f only mentioning the poor per
formance areas; reward employees for what they are
doing well and involve them in brainstorming ways to
improve things that are not.
5. Management must create a large “WIIFM” (What’s
in it for me?”) for exhibiting excellent customer

Your Department’s PC Investment

Training and Development

Doubling the Technology Budget

Budget #1

Total

Budget #2

$700,000
30,000
270,000

70%
3%
27%

$640,000
60,000
270,000

66%
6%
28%

$1,000,000

100%

$970,000

100%

Per-Person Costs:

15 Staff People

13 Staff People

Personnel
Technology
All Other

Annual
$ 46,667
2,000
18,000

Monthly
$3,889
167
1,500

Annual
$49,231
4,615
20,769

Monthly
$4,103
$385
$1,731

Total

$66,667

$5,556

$74,615

$6,219

Per-Person Costs for Equipment & Software:
Per-Person Costs available for training:

$214
$171

Figure 3.
In Figure 3, we’ve continued our example of
doubling the technology budget. Staff attrition reduces
the staff from 15 to 13, and we’re able to pay the remain
ing 13 people a higher average salary. The per-person
per-month technology budget goes from $167 to $385.
So if our hardware, software, maintenance and upgrades
are $215, this leaves $170 per person per month available
for training and development. And this is where the
major opportunities for increased productivity lie.
The Financial Manager’s Report

Peggy Morrow is a professional speaker and training consultant
and will be a presenter at the Fall N ational Industry Conference
in New Orleans. She may be reached at 800—3 7 5 —1982.

Continued from page 5

Many successful companies have adopted a budget
that doubles their technology investment. Sometimes
it’s a one to three-year commitment to “catch up,” other
times it’s a longer-term commitment when they see the
economic impact.
Personnel
Technology
All Other

service behaviors and keep the idea constantly in the
forefront. This is why your recognition and reward
program is so important in achieving a true customer
service-oriented culture. Make it worth their while to
give excellent customer service.
D on’t think it always has to be a cash reward.
Extra time off or an article in the company newsletter,
a plaque awarded at a special recognition dinner,
tickets to events tied to an employee’s interests, or a
simple written note are all ways to reward the kinds of
behaviors you want to see more of.
6. Management must establish policies that are
“customer friendly” and that show concern for
the customers. Eliminate all routine, rigid policies
and guidelines. Knock yourself out to be a company
that is easy to do business with.
7. Remove those employees who do not exhibit the
behaviors necessary to please customers. One o f the
strongest messages you can give about the importance
of customer service is to terminate those employees
who are not customer focused.

Probably the biggest single mistake made by financial
departments is failing to provide first-class staff training.
This is not only a disservice to the staff people, it’s bad
economics, as shown by these figures.
The options available for the delivery o f technology
training range from individual self-study courses to
on-site training led by outside instructors or your own
trained staff, to more expensive customized training
packages. The technology itself allows for great flexibility
and economy. For example, you can receive remote
training, with the instructor in another city or state, and
conducting the class by using a modem and a speaker
phone. Several o f these options can be combined to
comprise a well thought-out training plan.

Conclusion
Understanding the economics o f your technology
investment will form the foundation for more profit
able decisions.
Technology is a very small percentage o f total costs,
and the principal cost (70% or so) is people. That’s the
way it should be, with people as our major assets. And,
since this cost relationship is so disparate, there is great
opportunity to leverage small technology costs into big
personnel efficiencies in financial departments.
J ack C. McClure is Editor-in-Chief of The QUANTUM PC
Report for CPAs. This article is based on his upcoming presen
tation at the Fall N ational Industry Conference in New Orleans.
A package of materials on this topic (audiotape, outline and
diskette) is available fo r $ 1 9 by calling 1 -8 0 0 -3 2 5 -8 8 5 8 .
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Accounting
& Auditing
News

GASB Issues Guide for Statement 14, Schedules Hearings on
Financial Reporting

The Governmental Accounting
Standards Board has released an
implementation guide for its State
ment 14, The Financial Reporting
Entity. To obtain a copy, contact
the GASB Order Department at 203/847-0700, ext 555.
The GASB also has scheduled public hearings on the
financial reporting model for state and local govern
ments and for governmental colleges and universities.
Two recently published GASB invitations to comment
are the basis for the hearings that will be held around

the country in Oct. and Nov. One sets forth two alterna
tive financial reporting models for the basic financial
statements o f state and local governments along with the
underlying objectives and features o f each. The other
sets forth three alternative financial reporting models for
the basic financial statements of colleges and universi
ties, also with information about the underlying objec
tives and features o f each model. Comments on the
invitations to comment are due Oct. 31. One copy of
each is available without charge until that date from the
GASB Order Department (see paragraph above).

Audit and Accounting Guide Exposure Draft Issued
An exposure draft o f the proposed Audit and Account
ing Guide Banks and Savings Institutions (No. 800073CL)
that combines and would supersede the current Industry
Audit Guide Audits of Banks and the Audit and Account
ing Guide Audits of Savings Institutions was issued Aug. 31.
Comments are due Nov. 30. The guides are being com

bined to reflect the common regulatory structure result
ing from the FDIC Improvement Act and other recent
legislation. Copies of this exposure draft are available
from the AICPA Order Department (see page 7). Price:
First copy free; each additional $6 member, $6.75 non
member.

Information Offered on “Compliance Reviews" of Processors for EFT Associations
Some electronic funds transfer associations or networks
require their members who process transactions to com
plete a “compliance review.” For example, financial insti
tutions with automated teller machines that access one
or more EFT associations or networks may be required
to undergo such reviews.
In some cases, these reviews may require the involve
ment of an independent CPA. The CPA may be asked,
for example, to complete a financial institution’s ques
tionnaire pertaining to compliance with the EFT associa
tion’s operating rules and procedures related to internal
controls over security and sign a “certification” statement
that the institution is in compliance with such operating
rules and procedures.
Engagements of this nature are governed by the
AICPA’s Statement on Standards for Attestation Engage
ments No. 3, Compliance Attestation (AT sec. 500). CPAs
who are asked to perform such engagements should

determine whether the actions they require conflict with
SSAE No. 3. For example, the certification statement the
CPA is asked to sign may extend his or her responsibility
significantly beyond the limits of professional standards by
“certifying” that the entity is in compliance. In some cases,
the statement the CPA is asked to sign refers to profes
sional standards that do not apply to such services, such as
“generally accepted auditing standards.” In addition, the
statement may refer to the CPA’s review of compliance;
however, SSAE No. 3 prohibits review services related to
compliance, permitting only examination (assuming cer
tain conditions exist) or agreed-upon procedure engage
ments. Furthermore, compliance questionnaires often ask
for responses to questions about compliance without pro
viding sufficiently objective criteria for determining when
compliance does or does not exist Practitioners with
questions should call the AICPA’s Technical Information
Hotline at 800/862-4272 (dept. #2).

FASB to Simplify Loan Impairment Standard, Publishes Special Report
The Financial Accounting Standards Board has voted
that Statement 114 on loan impairment should become
effective for fiscal years beginning after Dec. 15, 1994.
The FASB said it had received requests to delay the
effective date so that implementation issues arising
from the statement’s income-recognition provisions
could be resolved. However, the FASB instead decided
to let the new standard simply allow creditors to use
existing methods for recognizing interest on impaired
loans. The proposal did not change Statement 114’s
requirements on how loan impairment should be
measured.
In a comment letter sent to the FASB in June, the
AICPA’s Accounting Standards Executive Committee

had supported retaining the Dec. 1994 effective date.
AcSEC believes the board could resume consideration of
income recognition in future sections o f the board’s
financial instruments project.
Also, the FASB has published a special report enti
tled Future Events: A Conceptual Study of Their Significance
for Recognition and Measurement. The study resulted from
the efforts o f a working group of representatives from
standard-setting bodies in Australia, Canada, the United
Kingdom and the United States, as well as staff o f the
International Accounting Standards Committee. For a
copy of the study, priced at $10 each, contact the FASB
Order Department at 401 Merritt 7, P.O. Box 5116,
Norwalk, CT 06856-5116; 203/847-0700, ext. 555.
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AICPA Opposes Proposed GATT Changes in Taxation o f Inventory Transactions
The AICPA voiced strong opposition to Congress and
the Department of the Treasury about one of the Clin
ton Administration’s proposals to fund the Uruguay
round modifications to the General Agreement on Tar
iffs and Trade. The Administration has targeted changes
to the taxation of inventory transactions as part of the
solution to its search for $12 billion to compensate for
the loss of tariff income.
In a letter to members of the Senate Finance and
House Ways and Means Committees and senior Treasury
officials, the AICPA stated it was against the proposed
changes. The proposals would disallow the lower of cost
or market inventory m ethod for all taxpayers after 1994;
would prohibit, prospectively, the use of components of
cost in determining LIFO inventory for businesses utiliz

ing the LIFO inventory method; and would simplify sig
nificantly the price index computation for any taxpayer
presently on (or electing in the future) the use of LIFO
inventories.
The Senate Finance Committee approved a GATT
financing package by a narrow 11-9 vote that includes
these changes to the taxation of inventory transactions,
despite the Institute’s opposition. House members are
now considering the proposals, and the Institute is
pleased that a num ber of Ways and Means Committee
members have registered their opposition to the inven
tory accounting changes.
To obtain a copy of the AICPA’s letter to members
of Congress, dial 201/938-3787 from a fax machine,
follow the voice cues, and select document no. 305.

AICPA O ffers Members 24-Hour Access to Information Via Fax Hotline
Employing innovative technology, the AICPA recently
established the AICPA 24-Hour Fax Hotline to enable
members to obtain pertinent information from a fax
machine 24 hours a day, seven days a week. Current com
m ent letters, conference brochures and registration
forms, CPE information, AcSEC actions and legislative
news are some of the types of documents that can be
retrieved on the Fax Hotline.
While this service is still in its infancy, the AICPA
plans to make available most of the information mem
bers currently request by mail or telephone. To access
the hotline, simply dial 201/938-3787 from a fax
machine, follow the voice cues, and when prompted,

enter the three-digit document number; follow the rest
of the cues, and the docum ent will immediately emerge
from the fax machine. Document numbers are obtained
either by noting them when provided in articles in mem
bership publications or by referencing them in the quar
terly list to be published in The CPA Letter. A list of all
items available through this service at any given time may
be obtained via the Fax Hotline.
In the future, the Institute plans to combine fax-ondemand with interactive voice-response systems. Mem
bers will not only be able to request information at any
time, they will be able to interact with the AICPA at their
convenience.

Mentors Sought for Minority Scholarship Recipients, Scholarship Winners Announced
The AICPA Minority Initiatives Committee is seeking
CPA volunteers to serve as mentors to accounting stu
dents who have been awarded AICPA Minority Scholar
ships. Involvement with the student might include giving
advice on interviewing techniques, assistance with
resume writing, sharing personal experiences and pro
viding insight into the profession.

Disciplinary
Actions

As a result of investigations of alleged
violations of the Code of Professional
Conduct of the AICPA and/or state
CPA societies, the following ethics
cases have been resolved by settle
ment agreements under the Joint
Ethics Enforcement Program:
■On June 2 4 , 1994, Theo W. Antos
Jr. of Wheeling, Ill., settled charges of violating Rule
102—Integrity and Objectivity and Rule 201A—Compe
tence in connection with professional services rendered
for an employee benefit plan. Without admitting or deny
ing the charges, Mr. Antos agreed to be expelled from
membership in the AICPA and the Illinois CPA Society.
■On July 19, 1994, Orlin L. Julius of Plymouth, Minn.,
settled charges of violating Rule 202—Compliance with
Standards, Rule 203—Accounting Principles and Rule
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Additionally, the AICPA has named the winners of
its minority scholarship program for the 1994-95 acade
mic year. The program awarded a total of $444,000 to
190 undergraduate and 24 graduate students.
Members interested in becoming mentors or those
wanting a complete list of scholarship winners should
contact Gregory Johnson at 212/596-6227.

501—Acts Discreditable— (Interpretation 501-3) in con
nection with his audit of a federally assisted housing proj
ect. Without admitting or denying the charges, Mr. Julius
agreed to a two-year suspension of his membership in
the AICPA and the Minnesota Society of CPAs, to com
plete 80 hours of specified CPE courses during the sus
pension period, and to submit one work product to the
Professional Ethics Division for review.
Correction: The July/Aug. issue of The CPA Letter incor
rectly stated that Mr. Joseph F. Hurley of Needham,
Mass., has been suspended for two years. The settlement
agreement with Mr. Hurley provided that he be sus
pended during the time he completed 80 hours of speci
fied CPE courses. Mr. Hurley has complied with the terms
of the agreement and is now a member in good standing
of the AICPA and the Massachusetts Society of CPAs.
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Exposure Draft Issued on Financial Statements o f Insurance Enterprises
The AICPA has issued an exposure draft of a proposed
statement of position, Auditor’s Reports on Statutory Finan
cial Statements ofInsurance Enterprises (No. 800075CL).
The proposed SOP, for which comments are due Oct.
12, would be applied to audits of financial statements for
years ended on or after Dec. 1 5 , 1995. The proposed
SOP rescinds SOP 90-10, Reports on Audited Financial
Statements ofProperty and Liability Insurance Companies, and
clarifies auditors’ reporting on the statutory financial
statements of insurance enterprises, including mutual

life insurance enterprises.
The proposed SOP discusses matters that auditors
should include in their reports when issuing limited or
general distribution reports and issues that should be
evaluated when considering issuing limited distribution
reports on statutory financial statements.
One copy of the exposure draft has been mailed to
those on the standing order list to receive exposure
drafts; others may obtain one free copy through the
AICPA O rder Departm ent (see below).

Economic Outlook Bright for Small Business Owners, PCPS Survey Finds
The economy is looking good, according to a recent sur
vey conducted by the Private Companies Practice Sec
tion. A majority of the small businesses responding
reported last year’s revenues exceeded those of 1992 and
were optimistic about prospects for 1994. It was the fifth
annual PCPS Small Business Survey.
More than two-thirds of the 197 small business own
ers responding said their 1993 revenues had outpaced
those of 1992—marking a steady upward trend for the
past three years. In addition, more than three-fourths of

New
Products &
Publications

The AICPA’s Integrated Practice
System Engagement Manuals offer
the guidance members need to per
form high-quality, cost-effective
engagements. Updated editions of
four manuals will soon be released.
The manuals’ authors bring many
years of auditing and accounting
experience in these specialized industries. Automatically
mailed annual updates ensure members will be kept cur
rent with the latest authoritative pronouncements. Special
offer:O rder one title and get 10% off the second title—
order three titles and save 20% off the total.
Not-for-Profit Organizations Audit Manual (No.
008847CL) helps members fulfill challenging audit and
reporting requirements with ease. A choice of audit
approaches allows members to handle a small association
or a large, federally funded organization with equal effi
ciency. The manual supplies the latest requirements—
the June 1994 Yellow Book, FASB Statements 116 and
117, and the AICPA projects on accounting for joint
costs and consolidations. Plus: this manual includes a
four-hour self-study CPE course. Price: $110 member,
$120 non-member.
Bank Audit Manual (No. 008858CL) is the most com
prehensive source of easy-to-use guidance for handling
audits of banks and trust departments and directors’ exam
inations. The manual’s unique ABC System audit approach
helps CPAs identify high-risk areas and design the best
audit approach, and the specially tailored forms, programs
and checklists save members valuable time. Bonus—this
edition includes a new comprehensive appendix focusing
on derivatives and other high-risk investments. Added Plus:
includes a four-hour self-study CPE course. Price: $165
member, $180 non-member. Avail. Sept. 15.

respondents said they expect 1994 revenues to rise.
Also revealed in the survey is that debt reduction is a
top priority for the nation’s small business owners, with
almost half of those responding saying that a significant
profit would be used to reduce debt. Respondents also
said they had been hiring new employees over the past
year to improve operating results.
Members interested in obtaining a copy of
the survey’s summary report should call PCPS at
800/CPA-FIRM.
Auto Dealership Engagement Manual (No. 008862CL)
provides a wealth of information about the industry and
the unique operations of auto dealerships. The only one
of its kind, this manual offers all the customized tools
needed to complete these engagements. Price: $110
member, $120 non-member. Avail. Oct. 15.
Construction Contractors Audit Manual (No. 008850CL)
offers vital information on the industry and its operating
characteristics. The authors discuss the special issues to
be faced in contractor audits, such as determining which
contracts to test and performing site visits. Included are
all the programs, forms and checklists needed to perform
an efficient, high-quality au d it Plus: a four-hour self-study
CPE course comes with the manual. Price: $110 member,
$120 non-member. Avail. O c t 15.
Guide to Planningfor Divorce (No. 017205CL) focuses on
the practice management, psychological and financial
issues facing the CPA with clients preparing for or in the
midst of a divorce. Also included is guidance on retire
m ent planning, estate planning and tax planning for
couples getting divorced. Copies of the guide have been
sent to members of the Personal Financial Planning
membership section. Price: $20 member, $22 non-mem
ber.
To order, write: AICPA O rder Department, CL994,
P.O. Box 2209, Jersey City, NJ 07303-2209; order via
fax, 800/362-5066; or call 800/862-4272 (dept. #1).
Ask for O perator CL994. The best times to call are
8:30 to 11:30 a.m. and 2:00 to 5:30 p.m., EST.
Orders for exposure drafts must be written or faxed.
Prices do not include shipping and handling.
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Office of the Comptroller of the
Currency is accepting applications
through Dec. 30,1994, for its twoyear Professional Accounting Fellow
ship Program. The position is
scheduled to begin next Apr.
Fellows participate in the study and development of
accounting and reporting policy for national banks, per
form research and evaluation of specific bank practices,
and provide assistance to national bank examiners and
the industry on bank accounting and reporting issues.
Candidates generally should have a minimum o f five
years’ experience in public accounting. Academic expe
rience at the college level or banking industry experi
ence would also qualify. For more information, call the
OCC at 202/874-5180.

Education Department Issues Final Rules
Incorporating OMB Circular A-110 Into
Grants Requirements
Final rules from the Department of Education incorpo
rate requirements of OMB Circular A-110, Uniform
Administrative Requirementsfor Federal Grants and Agree
ments Awarded to Institutions of Higher Education, Hospitals,
and Other Non-profit Organizations, into certain grants. The

Education Department made certain changes in imple-

menting OMB Circular A-110. One important change is
to require that records be retained by grant recipients
for five years, instead of the three years required under
OMB Circular A-110 (Federal Register, July 6).

AICPA Comment Letters on Federal
Government Proposals Available
Copies of the following AICPA comment letters on fed
eral regulation affecting the accounting profession are
available by calling the AICPA Fax Hotline at
201/938-3787 from a fax machine, following the voice
cues, and specifying document numbers.
■ U.S. Department of Education interim final regulations
on Student Assistance General Provisions, Federal Family
Educational Loan Program, and Federal Pell Grant Pro
gram (document no. 300).
■ U.S. Department of Education proposal on exceptional
performance standards for lenders, servicers and guar
anty agencies participating in the Federal Family Educa
tion Loan Program (document no. 301).
■ SEC statement regarding disclosure obligations of munic
ipal securities issuers and others (document no 302).
■ SEC proposed rules on reconciliation of the accounting
by foreign issuers for business combinations, financial
statements of significant foreign equity investees and
acquired foreign businesses of domestic issuers and finan
cial schedules, and selection of reporting currency for
financial statements of foreign private issuers and reconcil
iation to U.S. GAAP for foreign private issuers with opera
tions in a hyperinflationaiy economy (document no. 303).
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A News Report to Members

Highlights of
What’s Inside

Special Committee on Financial Reporting Releases
Recommendations

Search for New
AICPA President
Underway

SOPs 94-2, 94-3 and
94-4, and Practice
Bulletin 12 Issued 4

After three years of research into the chang
ing needs of investors and creditors, the
Special Committee on Financial Reporting
released its final report containing recom
mendations to improve the relevance and
usefulness of business reporting. Areas of
business reporting the special committee
focused on include financial statements, the
additional types of beneficial information
companies could provide to investors and
creditors at reasonable cost, and the extent
to which auditors should report on the vari
ous elements of that information.

Survey Results on
Women and Family
Issues Published
7

Improving Business Reporting—A Customer
Focus, Meeting the Information Needs of Investors
and Creditors (No. 019305CL) will be packaged
with the Oct. Journal of Accountancy. A com

2

POB Panel Calls for
Improved Auditing
and Corporate
Governance
3

ABA Policy on Audit
Inquiry Letters to
Employee Benefit
Plan Attorneys
Emphasized
8
IRS Issues Revenue
Procedure on
Installment Payments
of 1993 Taxes
8

prehensive 150-page report (No. 019303CL)
will be published next month.
“Our research has confirmed that, with
the profound changes we’ve seen in business,
traditional financial statements and other
forms of business reporting often fail to meet
some of the most critical information needs
of investors and creditors,” said Edmund
Jenkins, chair of the special committee.
The committee’s unprecedented
research involved learning directly from
financial-information users what they felt
would be helpful in their decision making.
The committee also scrutinized analysts’
reports and other documents showing how
financial information is used, and con
ducted a survey of investors and creditors.
The key goals of the report are to
encourage companies to provide more infor
mation about plans, opportunities, risks and
uncertainties; focus business reports more
on the factors that create longer-term value,
including nonfinancial measures indicating
how key business operations are performing;
and better align information reported exter
nally with the highly useful management
information distributed internally.
“The next step is for standard setters
and regulators to study our recommenda
tions thoroughly and determine specifically
how they should be adopted and in what

M odel o f Business R eporting,
M ajor Com ponents
I. Financial and Non-Financial Data
(A) Financial statements and related
disclosures
(B) High-level operating data and perfor
mance measurements that manage
ment uses to manage the business
II. Management’s Analysis o f Financial and
Non-Financial Data
Reasons for changes in the financial,
operating and performance-related data,
and the identity and past effect of key
trends
III. Forward-Looking Information
(A) Opportunities and risks, including
those resulting from key trends
(B) Management’s plans, including
critical success factors
(C) Comparison of actual business
performance to previously disclosed
forward-looking information
IV. Information About Management and
Shareholders
Directors, management, compensation,
major shareholders and transactions and
relationship among related parties
V. Background About the Company
(A) Broad objectives and strategies
(B) Scope and description of the
business and properties
(C) Impact of industry structure on the
company

time frame,”Jenkins said.
A press packet distributed to national and
trade press outlets resulted in solid news cov
erage of the AICPA Special Committee’s
report. Articles or editorials have appeared in
the Wall StreetJournal, Accounting Today, Crain’s
Chicago Business, CFO magazine and others.
Members may receive one free copy of
the full report after Nov. 15 by writing or fox
ing a request to the AICPA Order Depart
m ent (see page 7). Additional copies of the
full report cost $20 member, $22 non-mem
ber; additional copies of the abbreviated
version cost $3 member, $3.30 non-member.

AICPA
News
Briefs
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Search for New AICPA
President Underway

The search process has begun for a
new AICPA President to succeed
Philip Chenok who will leave the
post June 30, 1995 (The CPA Letter,
May). Korn/Ferry International, an
executive-recruitment firm, has
been retained to assist in the process. Position specifica
tions currently are being developed, and the AICPA is
expecting to report to the governing Council in the fall
its progress on finding a replacement. Members are
invited to submit the names of candidates to be consid
ered for the post; send information to Leonard Pfeiffer,
Vice President, Korn/Ferry International, 900 Nine
teenth Street NW, Suite 900, Washington, DC
20006-2105.

Materials to Increase Firm Visibility
Available
Members interested in increasing their firms’ business
through brochures, slide presentations, speeches, client
newsletters and the like may want a copy of a new cata
log, Promotional and Marketing Resources for CPAs. The
products listed in the catalog will help CPAs to attract
new clients and improve relations with existing clients,
and to educate the business community and general
public about CPA services. For a free copy, send a selfaddressed, business-sized envelope with $.29 in postage
to: American Institute of CPAs, Attn: CATALOG, Com
munications Division, 1211 Avenue of the Americas, New
York, NY 10036-8775. Copies are being mailed automati
cally to all members of the Personal Financial Planning
and Management Consulting Services member sections.
Also useful is a 46-page booklet designed to help
CPAs plan and implement public relations activities, Pub
lic Relations Guide for CPAs (No. 889633CL). The booklet
includes step-by-step procedures for conducting press
interviews, issuing news releases, appearing on radio and
TV talk shows and addressing groups. Price: $6.75 mem
ber, $7.50 non-member through the AICPA Order
Department (see page 7).

Benchmarking and Financial
Reengineering Conference Scheduled
Launching a benchmarking and financial reengineering
initiative requires commitment at the top of the organi
zation and follow-through at all levels for that transfor
mation to be successful. As a first step in this process, the
AICPA Management Accounting Division will offer a
one-day Benchmarking and Financial Reengineering
Conference on Oct. 26 in New Orleans. This conference
will immediately precede the Fall National Industry Con
ference scheduled for Oct. 27-29 at the same hotel.
In conjunction with its benchmarking partner, The
The CPA Letter (ISSN 0094-792x), October 1994, is published monthly, except
bimonthly Feb./Mar. and Aug./Sept. Publication and editorial office: 1211 Avenue of the
Americas, New York, NY 10036-8775, 212/596-6200. Second-class postage paid at
New York, NY and at additional mailing offices. Copyright© 1994, American Institute of
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Hackett Group, the AICPA has put together a program
for finance executives addressing benchmarking as a first
step, developing a best-practice vision, building an effec
tive proposal and selling change to management. Partici
pants will have the opportunity to review key points or to
obtain more information from the discussion leader of
their choice during an afternoon roundtable discussion
session. A general question-and-answer session will round
out the day.
Registration fee: $205. Recommended CPE credit: 8
hours. Individuals who register for both this conference
and the National Industry Conference may receive spe
cial discounts. For additional information, call AICPA
Meetings & Travel Services at 201/938-3232.

Statement of Position on Risks and
Uncertainties Due Out in December
On Aug. 31, the Financial Accounting Standards Board
did not object to the final issuance of the proposed state
m ent of position, Disclosure of Certain Significant Risks and
Uncertainties. The provisions of the SOP, which is
expected to be issued in Dec., will be effective for fiscal
years ending after Dec. 15, 1995.

Directory o f CPA Firms Now Available
A Directory of Members of the Division for CPA Firms of the
American Institute of CPAs has been published by the Pri
vate Companies Practice Section. Organized by state, the
directory gives the names of every member firm in the
state and the cities in which they have offices. About
7,000 local and regional firms are listed in the directory,
along with all the national firms. Information about the
size of a firm, the name of its managing partner and that
person’s phone num ber will be provided to those who
call the division’s 800 line—800/CPA-FIRM. Members
wishing a free copy of the directory, or a copy of a firm’s
most recent peer review report, may call that 800 num
ber as well.

P ublic M eeting N otices
For detailed agendas, call 800/862-4272 (dept. #6)
three weeks prior to these meetings.
Accounting Standards Executive Committee:
Oct. 25-26, New York
Auditing Standards Board: Nov. 15-17, New York
O ther Meetings
Annual M embers’ Meeting: Oct. 24, Boston
Council: Oct. 24-25, Boston
Private Companies Practice Executive Committee:
Oct. 23-25, Boston
Quality Review Executive Committee:
Oct. 17-18, Seattle

Certified Public Accountants, Inc. Postmaster: Send address changes to The CPA Letter,
Circ. Dept, Harborside Financial Ctr., 201 Plaza Three, Jersey City, NJ 07311-3881.

Geoffrey L. Pickard
Vice-President— Communications

Ellen J. Goldstein
Editor
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FASB to Issue Statement on Derivatives, Publishes Preliminary Views
The Financial Accounting Standards Board has agreed
to issue a statement that would require more complete
disclosures of information about derivative financial
instruments, such as forward, futures, swap and option
contracts. The statement, expected to be published in
early Oct. and effective for calendar-year 1994 financial
statements with a one-year delay for entities with less
than $150 million in assets, will apply to all business
enterprises and not-for-profit organizations.
The statement will expand on FASB Statements 105,
which deals with off-balance-sheet risk, and 107, which
requires disclosures about the fair value of financial
instruments. It will require disclosures about the
amounts, nature and terms of derivatives that do not fall
under Statement 105. For derivatives held for trading
purposes, the statement will require disclosure of the
average fair value balance of positions during the report
ing period and the net gains or losses occurring from
trading activities, including identification of the deriva
tives from which the gains or losses arose and where
those amounts are reported in the income statement.
For other instruments, the statement will require disclo
sures about the objectives for holding the derivatives,
how they are reported in the financial statements, and
hedging of anticipated transactions.
The FASB also has published its preliminary views on
the issue of which entities should be included in consoli
dated financial statements. Comments are due Dec. 31.
Generally, a parent company would be required to
consolidate all its subsidiaries (those entities it “con
trols”) , unless control is temporary when an entity
becomes a subsidiary. “Control” would be defined as

Update on NPO Exposure Draft
On Sept. 10, 1993, the AICPA issued an exposure
draft of a proposed statement of position, Accounting
for Costs of Materials and Activities of Not-for-Profit Orga
nizations and State and Local Governmental Entities that
Include a Fund-Raising Appeal (a revision of SOP 87-2,
Accountingfor Joint Costs of Informational Materials and
Activities of Not-for-Profit Organizations that Include a
Fund-Raising Appeal) . The comment period expired

Jan. 10, 1994, and approximately 300 comments let
ters were received. The Not-for-Profit Organizations
Committee and the Accounting Standards Executive
Committee expect to consider the comment letters
in the fourth quarter of 1994 and the first quarter of
1995, respectively.
power over a company’s assets—the power to use or
direct the use of the individual assets of the subsidiary
to achieve the objectives of the parent. The require
m ent would apply to business enterprises and not-forprofit organizations that control other entities,
regardless of the legal form of the controlling or con
trolled entity. Present standards for consolidation
policy are primarily directed at business enterprises
formed as stock corporations.
To obtain a copy of the statement on derivatives dis
closures, or the preliminary views document (one copy
of which is free until Dec. 31), call the FASB O rder
Department at 203/847-0700, ext. 555; or write: 401
Merritt 7, P.O. Box 5116, Norwalk, CT 06856-5116.

POB Panel Calls for Improved Auditing and Corporate Governance
A special advisory panel form ed by the Public Over
sight Board has issued a report recom m ending several
steps to enhance the relationship between a company’s
independent auditor and its board of directors, as well
as suggestions to strengthen the professionalism of
auditors.
Strengthening the Professionalism of the Independent
Auditor recommends that auditors look at the board of

directors—not corporate management—as the client,
and communicate qualitative judgm ents about account
ing principles, disclosures and estimates to both senior
m anagement and boards of directors. It also says the
POB, SEC and other bodies should support initiatives to

enhance the independence of boards of directors and
their accountability to shareholders. While the panel
found no present need for additional regulations or leg
islation to address the conflict-of-interest aspect of audi
tor independence, it did urge the SEC to “take the lead
in helping the profession reduce exposure to unwar
ranted litigation.”
AICPA President Philip Chenok said the accounting
profession accepts the challenges put forth by the POB
panel and applauds the panel’s call to the SEC to help
find a solution to the litigation problem.
Copies of the report are available by calling the POB
at 203/353-5300.

Next PFS Exam Scheduled for January; PFP Conference Follows Exam
The next Personal Financial Specialist Exam is scheduled
for Jan. 8, 1995. For information and an application, con
tact the AICPA O rder Department (see page 7) and
request product num ber G00055CL, the “Personal Finan
cial Specialist Accreditation Information” package. A list
of Personal Financial Specialists can also be obtained
from the O rder Department by requesting the “List of
CPA Personal Financial Specialists” (No. G00616CL).
Immediately following the PFS exam is the Personal

Financial Planning Division’s Eighth Annual Technical
Conference, “Addressing Client Needs in a Changing
Environment.” The conference will be held at the Pointe
Hilton at Tapatio Cliffs, in Phoenix, Ariz. , on Jan. 9-11.
Registration fee: $595 for PFP section members and
Personal Financial Specialists, $710 for all others. A $100
early-bird discount is available through Oct. 15. Members
interested in receiving a conference brochure should call
AICPA Meetings & Travel Services at 201/938-3232.
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ASB to Issue Exposure Drafts on Agreed-Upon Procedures

The Auditing Standards Board has
agreed to issue two exposure drafts
on agreed-upon procedures. A pro
posed statement on auditing stan
dards, Engagements to Apply
Agreed-Upon Procedures to Specified
Elements, Accounts, or Items of a Financial Statement (No.
800076CL), would supersede SAS No. 35 on special
reports. A proposed statement on standards for attesta
tion engagements, Agreed-Upon Procedures Engagements
(No. 800077CL), would supersede paragraphs 4 3 , 44 and
59 through 62 of SSAE No. 1, Attestation Standards. In
addition, the proposed SSAE would amend SSAE No. 1;
SSAE No. 2, Reporting on an Entity's Internal Control Struc
ture; and SSAE No. 3, Compliance Attestation.
Significant provisions of the proposed statements
include delineating the conditions for performance of
an agreed-upon procedures engagement; eliminating
negative assurance from agreed-upon procedures
engagements covered by the statements; and determin
ing the nature, timing and extent of agreed-upon proce
dures, including the involvement of internal auditors.
The significant difference between the proposed state

ments is that the proposed SSAE requires a written asser
tion as a condition of engagement performance and the
proposed SAS does not because assertions are embodied
within the elements, accounts or items of a financial
statement.
The ASB has also agreed to issue an exposure draft
of a proposed Omnibus Statement on Auditing Standards
and Statement on Standardsfor Attestation Engagements—
1994 (No. 800078CL). The proposed statement will
amend SAS No. 72, Lettersfor Underwriters and Certain
Other Requesting Parties. The am endm ent provides report
ing guidance and an example of a letter that may be
issued when one of the parties identified in paragraphs
03, 04 and 05 of SAS No. 72, such as a placement agent
in connection with a municipal bond offering, requests a
comfort letter but does not provide the representation
letter described in paragraphs 06 and 07 of SAS No. 72.
The three exposure drafts are expected to be avail
able in late Oct. from the AICPA Order Department (see
page 7). Comments on them are due Jan. 3 1 , 1995. A copy
of each will be mailed to those on the standing order list
to receive exposure drafts; for others, one copy is free and
each additional costs $6 member, $6.75 non-member.

SOPs 94-2, 94-3 and 94-4 , and Practice Bulletin 12 Issued
The Accounting Standards Executive Committee has
issued Statement of Position 94-2, The Application of the
Requirements ofAccounting Research Bulletins, Opinions of the
Accounting Principles Board, and Statements and Interpreta
tions of the Financial Accounting Standards Board to Not-forProfit Organizations (No. 014881CL). The project was
undertaken because some believe the application of
those pronouncements to NPOs is unclear. The SOP pro
vides that not-for-profit organizations should follow the
guidance in effective provisions of the pronouncements
listed in its title, except for specific pronouncements that
explicitly exempt NPOs. Also, it includes appendices that
list each pronouncem ent and the pronouncem ent’s
applicability to NPOs, as well as interpretive comments
concerning the application of certain pronouncements.
The SOP is effective for financial statements issued for
fiscal years beginning after Dec. 15, 1994, except for
NPOs that have less than $5 million in total assets and
less than $1 million in annual expenses. For those orga
nizations, the effective date is for fiscal years beginning
after Dec. 1 5 , 1995. Earlier application is permitted.
AcSEC also has issued SOP 94-3, Reporting ofRelated
Entities by Not-for-Profit Organizations (No. 014882CL). The
SOP amends and makes uniform the guidance concern
ing reporting related entities in the AICPA Audit and
Accounting Guides Audits of Voluntary Health and Welfare
Organizations, Audits of Colleges and Universities and Audits
of Certain Nonprofit Organizations, as well as SOP 78-10,
Accounting Principles and Reporting Practicesfor Certain Non
profit Organizations. The guidance in the SOP focuses on
both investments by NPOs in for-profit entities and finan
cially interrelated NPOs. The SOP provides that NPOs
should consolidate entities in which the NPO has a con

4

trolling financial interest through direct or indirect own
ership of a majority voting interest, unless control is likely
to be temporary or does not rest with the majority owner,
in which case consolidation is prohibited, as discussed in
FASB Statement No. 94. Also, the SOP provides guidance
on the circumstances that would result in consolidation or
detailed disclosure in the notes to the financial statements
in circumstances in which an NPO controls another NPO,
but does not have a controlling financial interest through
direct or indirect ownership of a majority voting interest
The effective date is the same as the effective date of
SOP 94-2, though the two SOPs are not required to be
adopted concurrently if one is adopted early.
SOP No. 94-4, Reporting ofInvestment Contracts Held by
Health and Welfare Benefit Plans and Defined-Contribution
Pension Plans (No. 014801CL), specifies the accounting
for health and welfare benefit plans and defined-contri
bution pension plans for investment contracts issued by
either an insurance enterprise or other entity. It is effec
tive for financial statements for plan years beginning after
Dec. 1 5 , 1994, except that the application of the SOP to
investment contracts entered into before Dec. 31,1 993, is
delayed to plan years beginning after Dec. 1 5 , 1995.
Practice Bulletin 12, Reporting Separate Investment
Fund Option Information ofDefined-Contribution Pension
Plans (No. 033158CL), clarifies the disclosure require
ments of paragraph 3.23k of the AICPA Audit and
Accounting Guide Audits ofEmployee Benefit Plans. PB 12
is effective for plan years beginning after Dec. 4 5 , 1993.
Copies of the SOPs, at $8 each per member or $9
each per non-member, and the practice bulletin at $6.25
member, $7 non-member, are available through the
AICPA O rder Department (see page 7).

The CPA Letter-October 1994

Disciplinary
Actions

U nder the automatic disciplinary
provisions of the Institute’s bylaws,
the following members have had
their memberships:
—Terminated because of final
convictions of crimes punishable
by imprisonment for more than

one year:
■W.C. Hatfield of Dallas on May 6 following a circuit
court of appeals decision affirming his conviction for
conspiracy, bank fraud, misapplication of funds, unlaw
ful participation in loans and money laundering. Mr.
Hatfield’s membership had been suspended pending the
appeal of his conviction ( The CPA Letter, Nov. 1992).
■ Robert G. Bartlett of Santa Monica, Calif., on June 13
after pleading guilty to grand theft by embezzlement and
for the revocation of his CPA license by the California
Board of Accountancy.
■ Nickolas Hrkman of Pittsburgh, Pa., on June 14 after
pleading guilty to conspiracy and filing a false income
tax return.
—Terminated following revocation of their CPA
certificates or licenses by their state accountancy boards:
■ Richard E. Reiss of Bloomington, Minn., on June 6 for
applying for and using credit cards in the name of a for
mer client without the client’s consent.
■ Morris Moskowitz o f Staten Island, N.Y., on June 6 for
failing to file corporate tax returns for clients, for failing
to return records to clients upon request and for practic
ing as a CPA while his license was suspended.
■ Gary D. Gullick of Lyon, Miss., on May 24 for the revo
cation of his license to practice for willfully making or
filing a false report or willfully failing to file a report
required by federal or state law.
■ Rodney F. Sparks of Houston on May 23 following an
Agreed Consent O rder for violating the Texas State
Board’s Rules of Professional Conduct relating to com
petence, auditing standards, accounting principles and
other professional standards.
—Suspended pending the outcome of his appeal:
■ Keith E. Dolgaard of Tucson, Ariz., on May 24 after
being found guilty of conspiring to make and receive
unlawful payments to influence the operator of an
employee benefit plan, violating the Racketeer Influence
in Corrupt Organizations (RICO) Act and unlawfully
receiving payment to influence the operation of an
employee benefit plan.
—Suspended following suspension of their CPA
certificates, licenses a n d /o r permits by their state
accountancy boards:
■Albert P. Cappadozy of Johnston, N.Y., from Sept. 29,
1993, to Jan. 1 4 , 1994, for professional misconduct
involving criminal convictions of driving while intoxi
cated and for fa iling to indicate such convictions on the
registration application for his CPA license.
■Judy D. Windisch of Gilbert, Ariz., from Apr. 18 to Aug.

AICPA
7 for engaging in the practice of funding overdraft bank
balances with insufficient funds checks drawn on other
bank accounts.
■John C. McDaniel of Casper, Wyo., from May 4 for a
period not less than five months or more than two years
for failing to demonstrate compliance with quality review
requirements.
■Junell A. Mackey of South Pasadena, Calif., from Mar.
20 to Apr. 9 for willfully violating California’s Business
and Professions Code by failing to follow the standards
for the preparation of compilation and review reports on
financial statements of clients.
As a result of investigations of alleged violations of the
Code of Professional Conduct of the AICPA a n d /o r state
CPA societies, the following ethics cases have been
resolved by settlement agreements under the Joint Ethics
Enforcement Program:
■ On June 2 7 , 1994, Tullio Falini Jr. of West Chester, Pa.,
settled charges of violating Rule 201B—Due Professional
Care, Rule 202—Compliance with Standards, Rule 501—
Acts Discreditable and Rule 505—Form of Organization
and Name in connection with his performance of a gov
ernm ent audit. W ithout admitting or denying the
charges, Mr. Falini agreed to a two-year suspension of his
membership in the AICPA, to complete 80 hours of spec
ified CPE courses during the suspension period and to
submit a sample of his work product to the Professional
Ethics Division for review.
■ On June 2 7 , 1994, Ralph H. Winter of Fords, N.J., set
tled charges of violating Rule 201B—Due Professional
Care, Rule 202—Compliance with Standards and Rule
203—Accounting Principles in performing audits of the
financial statements of two clients. Without admitting or
denying the charges, Mr. W inter agreed to a two-year sus
pension of his membership in the AICPA, to complete
80 hours of specified CPE courses during the suspension
period and to submit a sample of his work product to the
Professional Ethics Division for review.
■ On Aug. 1 , 1994, Gary D. Kramer of Hastings, Minn.,
settled charges of violating Rule 201—General Standards,
Rule 202—Compliance with Standards, Rule 203—
Accounting Principles and Rule 501—Acts Discreditable
in connection with his audit of the financial statements of
a federally assisted housing project Without admitting or
denying the charges, Mr. Kramer agreed to a one-year
suspension o f his membership in the AICPA, to complete
56 hours of specified CPE courses during the suspension
period and to submit one work product to the Profes
sional Ethics Division for review.
■ On Aug. 1 , 1994, Joseph C. Stanisky of Lower Burrell,
Pa., settled charges of violating Rule 202—Compliance
with Standards and Rule 501—Acts Discreditable in con
nection with his audit of the financial statements of fed
eral financial assistance programs. Without admitting or
denying the charges, Mr. Stanisky agreed to a two-year
suspension of his membership in the AICPA, to com
plete 80 hours of specified CPE courses during the sus
pension period and to submit one work product to the
Professional Ethics Division for review.
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AICPA’s Integ rated P ractice System Presents: T he Engagem ent M anuals
The Engagement Manuals are part o f one

CPE course* focusing on pertinent topics. Look for C PEC
redit to find

system designed to be the solution to virtu

Manuals that feature this great new benefit!

ally all your engagem ent problems — the
AICPA’s Integrated Practice System. The
System’s three com ponents work together
or stand alone to make your busy season

The Software — especially Audit Program Generator and Accoun
tant’s Trial Balance — drastically reduces the time you spend per
forming manual tasks.

The Training, such as self-study courses and instructional sessions at

more efficient, productive, and profitable.

AICPA conferences, helps you im plem ent the Manuals and Software

The Engagement Manuals, detailed below, are written by noted
experts to actually walk you through a successful engagement. Each

in your practice for maximum results.

one includes a full com plem ent o f current practice aids, as well as

* There is a nominal charge for exam grading.

guidance for audit engagements on applying the appropriate audit

For more information on the Integrated Practice System, please call

approach. This year, six Manuals also feature a four-hour self-study

201/938-3073.

Integrated
Practice System
Engagement
Manuals

Com prehensive Engagem ent
M anual gives you everything you need to

Bank A udit M anual guides you through carefully planning

complete a variety o f engagements profitably.

ing high-quality audits that m eet the demands o f today’s complex

You’ll receive step-by-step guidance on using

accounting and regulatory environment for banks. The ABC System

and designing an effective audit strategy. You’ll be assured o f perform

the unique ABC System (which shows you

helps you identify high-risk areas and design the right mix o f tests.

how to achieve the best balance between tests

BONUS! Now includes an appendix focusing on over 60 different deriv

o f controls and substantive tests) and on an
approach which relies entirely on substantive testing. You can efficiently

atives and other high-risk instruments. Three volumes

CP
EC
redit

No. 008858YN M ember $165 Non-member $180

tailor your audit strategy to any engagem ent.You’ll also receive basic
guidance for compilations and reviews. Four volumes C PECredit

C redit U nion A udit M anual highlights proven strategies

No. 008860YN M ember $165 Non-member $180

for performing efficient audits and supervisory committee audits.
You’ll find detailed audit programs and checklists that ensure com

Small Business Audit M anual is what you need if your firm

pliance with professional standards. Two volumes

uses a substantive approach in all its audits. The System’s Walk-Through

No. 008852YN Member $110 Non-member $120 Avail. 10/30

CP
EC
redit

Approach (an all substantive testing approach), helps you understand
the basics o f your clients’ internal control structure, without worrying
about a formal risk assessment and tests o f controls. Two volumes

CP
EC
redit

No. 008856YN M ember $110 Non-member $120

C onstruction C ontractors A udit M anual gives you
vital information on the industry and its operating characteristics.
The Manual guides you through special issues, such as determining
which contracts to test, performing site visits, and a NEW chapter on

Com pilation and Review M anual gives you practical

the surety industry. Two volumes C PEC
redit

advice on handling these engagements — including guidance on when

No. 008850YN Member $110 Non-member $120 Avail. 10/30

SSARS do and do not apply. Special topics, such as cash- and tax-basis
financials and CIRAs, are thoroughly explained. And this year, a new

Q uality C ontrol M anual fo r CPA Firm s

shows you

chapter on attestation engagements has been added. Two volumes

how to prepare for a successful peer or quality review. You’ll learn

No. 008854YN M ember $110 Non-member $120 Avail. 11/15

how to build a strong quality control system, step by step. A compre

Auto D ealership Engagem ent M anual brings you a

your disposal. One volume

wealth o f information about the industry and the unique operations

No. 008845YN M ember $110 Non-member $120

o f auto dealerships. It also features chapters on consulting services

SAVE: O rder 1 title, and get 10% o ff the 2nd title - order 3 titles
and save 20% o ff the total!

hensive system o f forms, checklists, and other practice aids is at

and the unique tax issues faced by dealerships. The only one o f its
kind, this Manual gives you the customized practice aids you’ll need
to complete these intricate engagements. Two volumes

No. 008862YN M ember $110 Non-member $120

To O rder: Call 1-800-862-4272
o r fax 1-800-362-5066

N ot-for-Profit O rganizations A udit M anual

When ordering by phone, give operator YN code.

offers expert advice and a comprehensive array o f practice aids to help

VISA and MasterCard accepted

you avoid compliance and reporting snags that often surface in these

Sales Tax: In New York City 8.25%; elsewhere in NY State 4% plus

complex audits. You’ll also receive expert guidance on applying FASB

local tax if applicable; CT and NJ 6%; Washington, DC 7%; VT 5%.

116 and 117. Two volumes

CP
EC
redit

No. 008847YN M ember $110 Non-member $120
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Shipping & handling: $50.01-$160: $7.25; Over 160: 4.5% o f order.
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Survey Results on Women and Family Issues Published
A 1993 survey of 5,000 public accounting firms revealed
that 26% of all new partners in public accounting firms
are women, but turnover is higher overall among women
than it is among men, especially in the senior and super
visory ranks of the larger firms. Though results vary for
different levels and different sized firms, firms overall
seem to be promoting on a fair basis, given the available
talent pools of males and females. At the same time,
higher turnover among females at lower levels had a
cumulative effect on the lower percentages of female
employees at upper ranks.
The survey also showed that sick and emergency
child care top the list of firms’ family-friendly programs,

CPE
News

New Tax Training
Videocourses Available
from $129

Sid Kess and other renowned tax
experts analyze the latest tax devel
opments and provide tax planning
strategies in new videocourses. Save
10% when ordering 3 or 4 complete courses, 20% when
purchasing 10—49 additional manuals. The courses are
available through the AICPA O rder Department or state
CPA societies.
F ree P review V ideo o f Sid K ess V id eo co u rses
For an advance look at the courses, call 800/862-4272
(dept. #1) and ask for a free Kess preview video (No.
111500CLJ). No obligation to buy. Limited quantities.
The new 1994 Tax Developments for Businesses
videocourse is a 2-hour video providing in-depth cover
age of new tax developments affecting limited liability
companies, S corporations, C corporations and partner
ships. Recommended CPE credit: 8 hours group and self
study. Format: 1 VHS tape/m anual (No. 119327CLJ),
$129; additional manual (No. 119527CLJ ), $30.
1994 Tax Developments for Individuals is a new 2hour videocourse that provides in-depth analysis of new
income, estate and gift tax developments affecting individ
uals. Recommended CPE credit: 8 hours group study and
self study. Format: 1 VHS tape/manual (No. 119406CLJ),
$129; additional manual (No. 119416CLJ), $30.
1994 Corporate Tax Returns is a new 3-hour video
highlighting key changes in the corporate tax law affect
ing preparation of 1120 and 1120S returns for the 1994
tax year. Recommended CPE credit: 16 hours group
study and self study. Format: 2 VHS tapes/manual/looseleaf (No. 112560CLJ), $199; additional m anual/looseleaf
text (No. 112562CLJ), $80; additional manual only (No.
112561CLJ) $50.
1994 Individual Tax Returns is a new 3-hour video
that highlights key changes in the individual tax law
affecting preparation of 1040 returns for the 1994 tax
year. Recommended CPE credit: 16 hours group study
and self study. Format: 2 VHS tapes/m anual/looseleaf

with 32% of firms offering them. Fewer firms offer flexi
ble spending accounts (20%), paternity leave (19%) and
elder care leave (10%). The larger the firm, the more
likely it is to offer these programs.
To order an executive summary (No. 876799CL) of
the quantitative survey results, work groups with smalland medium-sized firm managing partners and inter
views with managing partners of the six largest firms, call
the AICPA O rder Department (see below). Price: $3
member, $3.50 non-member. The full report of quantita
tive survey results (No. 876800CL) is also available for
$25 member, $27.50 non-member. For more informa
tion, call Cecelia Manley at 212/596-6226.
(No. 113550CLJ), $199; additional m anual/looseleaf
text (No. 113552CLJ), $80; additional manual only (No.
113551CLJ), $50.
C o n feren ces
N ational Conference on Banking,* Nov. 3-4, Washing
ton, D.C., recommended CPE credit: 16 hours. Credit
Unions Conference, Nov. 7—8, New Orleans, recom
mended CPE credit: up to 21 hours. N ational Small Firm
Conference,* Nov. 9-11, New Orleans, recommended
CPE credit: up to 28 hours. Annual Conference on the
Securities Industry, Nov. 16-17, New York, recom
mended CPE credit: 14 hours. For more information,
call the AICPA-CPE Division at 800/862-4272 (dept. #3,
option #2). For conferences indicated by
contact
AICPA Meetings & Travel Services at 201/938-3232.
G ro u p Study
Nationally recognized tax expert Janice M. Johnson, CPA,
JD, is the author of the new AICPA seminar, “Mastering
the 1995 Tax Season: An Annual Update,” and together
with other well-known tax experts, will be presenting this
seminar nationwide. She has appeared on CNN, CNBC,
CBS TV and radio, and the MacNeil/Lehrer Show, and is
widely quoted in The Wall StreetJournal, The New York Times,
Business Week, Forbes and USA Today. This one-day update
course will be packed with tax information affecting indi
viduals, businesses, corporations, estates and employee
benefit planning. It will show how the Omnibus Budget
Reconciliation Act of 1993 affects 1994 tax returns and has
created opportunities to amend returns and receive tax
refunds, as well as make tax-saving elections. To receive
detailed course information, dial 201/938-3787 from a
fax machine, follow the voice cues, and select document
no. 703, or call 800/862-4272 (option #4), or write:
LaTanya Junior, AICPA, Harborside Financial Center,
201 Plaza Three, Jersey City, NJ 07311-3881.

To order, write: AICPA O rder Department, CL1094,
P.O. Box 2209, Jersey City, NJ 07303-2209; order via
fax, 800/362-5066; or call 800/862-4272 (dept. #1).
Ask for Operator CL1094. Orders for exposure
drafts must be written or faxed. Prices do not
include shipping and handling.
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An audit inquiry letter to an
employee benefit plan’s attorney is
the auditor’s primary means of
corroborating the information
provided by plan management
concerning litigation, claims and assessments. In 1975,
the American Bar Association approved a “Statement of
Policy Regarding Lawyers’ Responses to Auditors’
Requests for Information,” which is set forth in Exhibit
II to Statement on Auditing Standards No. 12, Inquiry of
a Client's Lawyer Concerning Litigation, Claims, and Assess
ments. Audit inquiries to plan lawyers should be made in

the context o f the ABA/AICPA understanding, as dis
cussed in SAS No. 12.
The ABA recently informed the AICPA that plan
attorneys are frequently receiving audit inquiry letters
that are not in the context o f the ABA/AICPA under
standing. The AICPA Audit and Accounting Guide
Audits ofEmployee Benefit Plans suggests that such audit
inquiry letter to the plan’s lawyer include in the “pend
ing or threatened litigation” or “unasserted claims and
assessments” section certain matters specific to employee
benefit plans. Those matters include:
a. Breach of fiduciary responsibilities
b. Prohibited party in interest transactions and other
transactions prohibited by ERISA
c. Loans or leases in default and reportable to the
DOL
d. Events reportable to the PBGC
e. Events that mayjeopardize the plan’s tax qualifica
tion status
f. Legal actions brought by the plan on behalf of
plan participants and beneficiaries
g. Review or inquiry by the DOL, the IRS or other
regulatory agency o f the plan’s activities or filings since
the last audit
The matters described in a through g above should
not be listed as “other matters,” and the letter should

refer to specific matters disclosed by management, or
should expressly state that management has advised the
auditor that there are no such matters.

IRS Issues Revenue Procedure on Installment
Payments o f 1993 Taxes
The IRS has issued Revenue Procedure 94-58 that details
guidance about the two options taxpayers may use in
making installment payments o f 1993 taxes: They may
either apply a Form 1040 overpayment or send a sepa
rate check or money order to the IRS. As a part o f the
Revenue Reconciliation Act of 1993, Congress provided
taxpayers the election to pay in three equal annual
installments their additional 1993 income taxes resulting
from the retroactive increase in the tax rates. The install
ments are due each Apr. 15, beginning Apr. 15,1994.
Reminder-notice vouchers will be mailed in Jan. by
the IRS to all deferral taxpayers, who can attach the pay
ment with the voucher and return it in the pre-addressed
envelope provided. Or, the payment may be made by
application of any overpayment with the Form 1040; the
taxpayer will be required to make a notation on the dot
ted portion o f line 62 o f Form 1040 and indicate the
amount of the installment payment. Taxpayers electing
to make the second and third payments via the overpay
ment on their return are cautioned that the IRS will
apply such a designated payment first to any other out
standing federal tax liability. Thus, taxpayers could lose
their deferral elections if the overpayment is used to
offset a prior tax liability.
The IRS said it has established two manual safe
guards to ensure that the notation on Form 1040 is input
during return processing. The AICPA has urged the IRS
to use its existing data base of all taxpayers electing the
installment payment o f 1993 taxes as an additional safe
guard to prevent the erroneous issuance of penalty
notices for failure to pay the second and third install
ment payments. The Institute has suggested that the IRS
institute a 100% quality review of affected taxpayers’
Forms 1040 for 1994 and 1995 to verify that the line 62
notation was not simply overlooked by the agency.
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ABA Policy on Audit Inquiry
Letters to Employee Benefit
Plan Attorneys Emphasized
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“From now on, there will be no doubt the
Institute is responsive to its members,” said
new AICPA Chair of the Board Robert
Israeloff in his acceptance speech last
m onth at the Annual Members’ Meeting,
where he announced the creation of the
Member Outreach Program. A cornerstone
of Israeloff s term, the effort is designed to
optimize the level of service the AICPA pro
vides and to formalize a way to obtain feed
back directly from members.
Saying “We want our members to know
someone, anyone, on a first-name basis at
their Institute,” Israeloff described how he
envisioned the program which involves
more than 300 staffers, starting with group
vice-presidents, each being responsible for
about 1,000 members. Implementation will
be two-fold: Members are encouraged to
contact their AICPA staff liaisons whenever
they have a problem or do not know where
to turn for specific assistance from the
Institute; throughout the year liaisons will

attempt to contact all the AICPA members
assigned to them in an effort to introduce
themselves to their designated members and
elicit comments or suggestions.
The responsibility of AICPA liaisons is
to direct those members who are unsure of
whom to contact on a specific issue or to
help those who require information beyond
what could be provided by the existing
sources of assistance, such as the AICPA
Library, Customer Service Department,
Technical Information Hotline and O rder
Department. (The direct dial numbers for
AICPA departments that members are most
likely to call are listed in the “Directory of
AICPA Services” featured on page 5.
Members should keep handy this directory,
which is updated and published in The CPA
Letter twice a year.) Members who serve as
Key Persons should continue to be in con
tact with the D.C. office. The alphabetical
listing of AICPA staff liaison/mem ber
assignments appears on pages 6-8.

Clinton Signs “Nanny Tax” Bill Passed by Congress
Directory of AICPA
Services
5
Listing of Staff
Contact/Member
Assignments
(see “New Outreach
Program...” article on
cover)
6-8
Tax Division’s Tax
Season Materials
Available
Next Month
10
IRS Issues New
Electronic Filing
Program
Procedures

12

A “nanny tax” bill passed by Congress and
signed by President Clinton updates and
simplifies how employers will report and pay
Social Security taxes for domestic employ
ees. Covered are such employees as baby
sitters, housekeepers and yard workers.
The bill includes two provisions sup
ported by the AICPA—an increase in the
reporting threshold and an exemption for
employees under the age of 18. The AICPA’s
recommendation that employers report the
payment of Social Security taxes by continu
ing to file IRS Form 942 separate from Form
1040 was not adopted by Congress.
Specifically, the Social Security Domestic
Employment Reform Act of 1994 will, among
other things, increase the reporting thresh
old from $50 quarterly to $1,000 annually;
replace the present quarterly filing system by
employers using Form 942 with an annual
reporting and payment system using a
revised Form 1040 for years 1995 through
1997 (beginning in 1998, employers would

either increase their quarterly estimated tax
payments or increase the taxes withheld
from their own wages to cover their share of
domestic employee Social Security tax); be
retroactive to Jan. 1, 1994, thus making eligi
ble for refunds those employers and employ
ees who have paid Social Security taxes dur
ing 1994 if the employee’s wages were below
the $1,000 ceiling; protect employees who
receive refunds in 1994 from loss of Social
Security wage credits during 1994 (to ensure
there is no loss of credit, employers who
would have been required to file a Form W-2
will still be required to do so and will be
required to report wages paid for the whole
year in the “Social Security wages” box, even
though the employer will receive a refund of
any Social Security taxes paid); exempt
domestic workers under the age of 18, unless
the individual’s principal occupation is
household employment; and cover domestic
farm employees (who now must be treated as
farm employees).

AICPA
News
Briefs
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Communications Audit
Underway

Having told the Institute, “We get
so much mail from you,” members
will be pleased to hear the AICPA
Communications Division is spear
heading an effort to conduct an
Institute-wide communications
audit; The AICPA will be sorting through the myriad of
printed material mailed by the various departments and
outside vendors to assess its frequency, content, timing
and usefulness, as well as the overall volume of material
that actually lands in members’ mailboxes. It is hoped
the audit will uncover, among other things, opportuni
ties for consolidation and elimination, resulting in
reduced mail and lower mailing costs. A random sam
pling of the membership will be surveyed to obtain mem
bers’ views on how the Institute and its vendors could
streamline the flow of information. The end result of the
audit should be less mail that is more effective in keep
ing members informed.

Florida Board o f Accountancy Settles
with IDS Services
Certified public accountants working for commercial
organizations in Florida may perform non-attest services,
including the preparation of financial statements, as
long as they do not hold out as CPAs or represent the
statements to be in compliance with statements on stan
dards for accounting and review services, according to a
settlement agreement in the case of IDS Financial Services,
Inc. and Stephen M. Miller v. the Florida Board of
Accountancy and Florida Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The AICPA supported the Florida Institute
in its defense of the Florida accountancy statute prohibit
ing CPAs in non-CPA firms from holding out as CPAs
when performing such services (The CPA Letter, Sept.).
The agreement is in line with the Uniform
Accountancy Act that the National Association of State
Boards of Accountancy and the Institute approved in
1992. However, some predict the holding-out issue is not
yet dead and will likely resurface.

PFS Exam Waiver Granted for CPAs with
CFP, ChFC Designations
A proposal to waive the Personal Financial Specialist
examination for CPA financial planners holding a valid
Certified Financial Planner or Chartered Financial
Consultant specialty designation has been approved by
the AICPA Board of Directors. The proposal requires
applicants to comply with all other conditions of the PFS
program, including AICPA membership, 250 hours of
experience per year for three years prior to PFS applica
tion, six references and reaccreditation every three years.
More than 4,000 CPAs have the CFP designation,
The CPA Letter (ISSN 0094-792x), November 1994, is published monthly, except
bimonthly Feb./Mar. and Aug./Sept. Publication and editorial office: 1211 Avenue of the
Americas, New York, NY 10036-8775, 212/5 96-6200. Second-class postage paid at
New York, NY and at additional mailing offices. Copyright© 1994, American Institute of
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and 660 CPAs have the ChFC accreditation. Currently,
more than 900 CPAs are enrolled in the PFS program.
The PFS examination waiver period will be in effect
for two years, starting Jan. 1 , 1995, and concluding Dec.
3 1 , 1996. To receive additional information on how to
apply for the PFS designation by obtaining a waiver for
the PFS examination, contact the AICPA Order
Department (see page 11) for a free copy of the PFS Test
Substitution Packet (No. G00105CL).

Committee Members Wanted
There will be approximately 600 openings for AICPA
members who would like to serve on an Institute com
mittee beginning Oct. 1995. To apply, write: Committee
Appointments Coordinator, AICPA, 1211 Avenue of the
Americas, New York, NY 10036-8775; or fax L.J. Vendura
at 212/596-6213. Members will receive a Committee
Booklet listing current committees, objectives, major
projects and estimated time commitments, as well as a
biographical form to complete. To ensure being consid
ered for the 1995-96 committee year, the biographical
form must be returned by Feb. 15, 1995.

Airborne Express Lowers Member Rates
Effective Nov. 1, AICPA members participating in the
Airborne Express member affinity program will pay
$8.75 for a standard 8-oz. overnight express letter, com
pared to the previous rate of $9.25, and pay $7.50 when
using an Airborne Express drop box. Members shipping
20 or more overnight packages per m onth are eligible
for lower rates. Current participants will be notified of
this change directly by Airborne Express. For more infor
mation or to enroll, call 800/636-2377.

Additional Auto Dealership Conference
Scheduled
The Las Vegas location of the Auto Dealership
Conference (Oct. 31-Nov. 1) has been sold out.
Members wishing to attend the program may register for
the new second run of the conference to be held in New
Orleans on Dec. 5-6. For more information or for
prom pt registration, call 800/862-4272 (dept. #3).

Public Meeting Notices
For detailed agendas, call 800/862-4272 (dept. #6)
three weeks prior to these meetings.
Accounting Standards Executive Committee:
Dec. 8-9, New York
Auditing Standards Board:
Nov. 15-17, New York; Dec. 13-15, New York
Professional Ethics Executive Committee:
Jan. 20, Scottsdale, Ariz.

Certified Public Accountants, Inc. Postmaster Send address changes to The CPA Letter,
Circ. Dept., Harborside Financial Ctr., 201 Plaza Three, Jersey City, NJ 07311-3881.

Geoffrey L. Pickard
Vice-President— Communications

Ellen J. Goldstein
Editor
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Member to
M em ber...
Chair’s
Corner

Hello, I’m Bob Israeloff, the new
chair of the AICPA Board of
Directors. It is my intention to
write a column for each issue of
The CPA Letter during my term in
order to provide our members with
an update, comments and analysis
on the important issues affecting
our organization and the profession.
I have long believed that the leadership of the
Institute must improve its performance communicating
with the membership as to the events of the day. While
we do a better job than most give us credit for, I am aware
of a widespread perception that the leadership is some
what distant and remote from the members. This column
is an attempt to reverse that perception, and I am always
available to discuss matters of importance with you.
To further our member communications effort, we
have instituted a staff liaison/outreach program through
which each AICPA member will have a staff person
assigned to h im /h er to be available to provide assistance
in situations that may not be satisfied through normal
channels (please see the article on page 1 of this issue).
This initiative is an attempt to move the Institute staff
closer to the membership and become more aware of
members’ needs. The outreach program make take a lit
tle time to perfect, so please be patient—we’re trying.
Another linchpin of my activity focus for the next year
is to make a “full-court press” on the work load compres
sion challenge. Regaining the use of fiscal years for pass
through entities is absolutely essential to a very large seg
m ent of our members. I have made it clear to our execu
tive staff and our Tax Executive Committee that finding a
solution to this challenge is as important as obtaining tort
reform. We are going to mobilize our resources and put

the spotlight on both of these major thrusts at the same
time. We have already begun to discuss the work load
compression issue with the Treasury Department. We are
going to identify and recruit potential allies from indus
tries which have been deprived of the use of fiscal years
that they would choose for logical reasons—like closely
held retail businesses and seasonal vacation industry busi
nesses. We will enlist any consultants we need and we will
use our Key Person Program to help us persuade mem
bers of Congress to sponsor and support our views.
The coming year promises to be momentous for
another reason—we will have a new chief executive offi
cer at the AICPA, a new president, for the first time in 15
years. Philip Chenok is retiring after giving dedicated
and constructive leadership to our Institute since 1980. I
will have a unique opportunity to be the first chairperson
to work with our new leader when the Search
Committee, the board of directors and the governing
Council conclude the selection process.
And once the new president is chosen, I believe it
appropriate for us to take a look at whether future CEOs
must be CPAs as m andated by our current bylaws. Many
other associations have leaders not specifically licensed
in their particular fields. Many of our state CPA societies
have executive directors who are not CPAs. The world is
changing rapidly, and perhaps some of the qualities that
we need to lead our Institute could best be brought to us
by a non-CPA. There are many arguments, of course, on
the other side, and we will appoint a committee to look
at the issue during the spring and summer months. I’d
like to hear from you on this topic.
These are just a few of the myriad of issues and activ
ities that we will be dealing with in the coming months. I
will keep you informed of developments in the future. I
look forward to working with all o f you during the year.

Highlights o f Board o f Directors’ September Meeting
At its meeting on Sept. 22-23, the AICPA Board of
Directors:
■Authorized the AICPA to admit into membership
Canadian Chartered Accountants who received their
reciprocal CPA certificates from a recognized state
licensing agency after having passed the Canadian
Chartered Accountants Uniform CPA Examination.
■Approved submitting to the governing Council at its
fall meeting the Revised Organizational Structure and
Functions of the Private Companies Practice Section and
revised implementing resolutions of Council giving
effect to the combination of the PCPS peer review pro
gram and the quality review program effective with
reviews commencing Apr. 3, 1995. Also agreed that all
state CPA societies should be requested to administer the
combined program in their states or arrange to have the
reviews administered by another state CPA society.
■Approved waiving the Personal Financial Specialist
examination requirem ent for a two-year period for all
AICPA members who hold a valid Certified Financial
Planner or Chartered Financial Consultant designation
based on examination and who comply with all other
requirements of the PFS program (see article on page 2).

■Received a presentation from the chairman of the SEC
and heard reports from the chairs of the Auditing
Standards Board, the Public Oversight Board and the
POB’s Panel on Independence.
■Received and approved for wide distribution the final
report of the Special Committee on Financial Reporting.
■Approved the AICPA financial statements for the fiscal
year ended July 3 1 , 1994.
■Received the results of research commissioned by the
Institute underlying the development of a national com
munications initiative that would aggressively generate
awareness and understanding of the appropriate image
and unique value of a CPA.
■Heard a presentation from the Management Accounting
Executive Committee on the impact on CPAs of major
changes occurring within the accounting/finance func
tions within industry.
■Discussed a position description and candidate profile
for the CEO search and approved the document for
distribution to Council.
■Approved the Board of Examiners’ initiatives in devel
oping a program for use of computer adaptive testing in
the CPA exam by the year 2000.
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Audit Risk Alert—1994 and Industry Alerts to Be Available
The AICPA issues audit risk alerts that provide auditors
with overviews of current economic, industry, regulatory
and professional developments that may affect the audits
they perform this year. These alerts can help auditors
control audit risk by focusing their attention on areas
that may require special audit consideration and
increase audit efficiency by giving them concise and rele
vant information to help them understand how current
developments might impact their clients. The risk alert
series consists of Audit Risk Alert—1994 (No. 022141CL,
to be available next month) which describes matters of
general interest, 18 industry-specific audit risk alerts that
cover developments in a wide variety of industries, and
the Compilation and Review Alert—1994 (No. 060668CL,
see next m onth’s CPA Letter for an overview of this alert.)
Following is an overview of the key subjects discussed
in Audit Risk Alert—1994:
■ Implications of the current economic environment—discusses
how the current economic environment and rising inter
est rates raise concerns as to whether: 1) appropriate
market rates are used to determine certain financial
statement amounts, 2) assets, particularly intangibles, are
valued properly and 3) an increased risk of material mis
statement exists in an entity’s financial statements.
■ New auditing and attestation pronouncements—provides an
overview of SAS No. 73, Using the Work of a Specialist; SSAE
No. 3, Compliance Attestation; and several new auditing
interpretations.
■ Audit problems to watchfor—discusses numerous prob
lems auditors should be aware of related to fraud detec
tion, passed audit adjustments, analytical procedures,
confirmations, faxes as audit evidence, legal letters and
several developments related to the role computers play
in an audit.
■ Audit communication and reporting issues—provides
reminders about auditors’ reports containing goingconcern explanatory paragraphs, dual-dating of reports
and reaudit engagements.
■ Recurringpeer and quality review comments—includes
certain reminders for auditors based on frequently recur
ring peer and quality review letters of comment.
■ Lessonsfrom litigation—discusses lessons learned from
litigation, including client acceptance and continuance
policies.
■ New GAAP requirements—provides an update on new
accounting standards in the GAAP hierarchy and their
related audit implications. Discussions focus on, among
other things, derivatives, contributions received and
made, investments in securities, and advertising costs.

■ Accounting issues—provides an overview of several
accounting issues, including restructuring charges
caused by downsizing, loan provisions and environ
mental matters.
■ Accounting pronouncements soon to be issued—discusses
upcoming generally accepted accounting principles,
including impairment of long-lived assets and risks and
uncertainties.
Following is a list of the 1994 industry-specific audit
risk alerts that will be available next month:
■ Agribusiness (No. 022151CL)
■ Banks and Savings Institutions (No. 022146CL)
■ Casinos (No. 022150CL)
■ Construction Contractors (No. 022156CL)
■ Credit Unions (No. 022147CL)
■ Employee Benefit Plans (No. 022131CL), issued 6/94
■ Federal Government Contractors (No. 022153CL)
■ Finance Companies (No. 022154CL)
■ Health Care (No. 022161CL)
■ High-Technology Enterprises (No. 022152CL)
■ Insurance Companies (No. 022145CL)
■ Investment Companies (No. 022143CL)
■ Not-for-Profit Organizations (No. 022132CL),
issued 6/94
■ Oil and Gas Producers (No. 022148CL)
■ Public Utilities (No. 022155CL)
■ Real Estate Companies (No. 022149CL)
■ Securities (No. 022144CL)
■ State and Local Governments (No. 022130CL),
issued 6/94
Copies of the alerts will be available from the AICPA
O rder Department (see page 11). Price: $10 each for
Audit Risk Alert—1994 and Compilation and Review Alert—
1994 for members, $11 for non-members; and $6.25
each for the industry alerts for members, $7 for non
members. (The risk alert series is also included in the
loose-leaf service for audit and accounting guides.) The
Audit Risk Alert—1994 is also available in WordPerfect
electronic format (No. 022142CL) for $10 member, $11
non-member.
In addition, a new self-study course, Auditing Update: A
Study Guide to the Audit Risk Alert—1994 (No. 730109CL),
will be available Jan. 1 , 1995. The course comes with the
Audit Risk Alert—1994 and a companion study guide.
Recommended CPE credit: 4 hours. Price: $49. The selfstudy course will be available from both the AICPA Order
Department (see page 11) and state CPA societies.

FASB Issues Standard on Loan Impairment and Takes Other Actions
The Financial Accounting Standards Board issued its
Statement 118 on loan impairment that simplifies
Statement 114 (The CPA Letter, Sept.). Statement 118
becomes effective concurrent with Statement 114—for
fiscal years beginning after Dec. 15, 1994. Copies of the
statement are available for $11 from the FASB O rder
Department, 401 Merritt 7, P.O. Box 5116, Norwalk, CT
06856-5116; 203/847-0700, ext. 555.
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The FASB also issued a proposed interpretation that
would permit offsetting receivables and payables repre
senting repurchase and reverse repurchase agreements
in the balance sheet under certain conditions, as well as
a proposal to delay the effective date of its Interpretation
40 on the applicability of generally accepted accounting
principles to mutual life insurance and other enterprises.
Comments on both proposals were due Oct. 31.

(Clip for reference)
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D irectory o f AICPA Services
All address and job change information should be mailed
or faxed to Membership Records in N.J . (the changes will
be made automatically for all publications included in your
membership).

AICPA Staff Contact:
Phone Number: ___
Office Location:

AICPA, New York
212/596-6200
Fax number
212/596-6213
AICPA, New Jersey
201/938-3000
T ie-line
212/318-0500
Fax number
201/938-3329
AICPA, Washington
202/737-6600
Fax number
202/638-4512
AICPA CPE Course Information
800/TO-AICPA
AICPA Fax Retrieval (dial from fax machine)
201/938-3787
AICPA Political Action Committee
202/434-9205
Academic and Career Development
212/596-6222
Advertising (Journal of Accountancy, The Tax Adviser)
Classified ads
201/938-3293
Display ads
201/938-3295
General Accounting
201/938-3244
Accounting and Review Services
212/596-6031
Accounting Research Association
201/9 3 8 -3 2 8 0
Accounting Standards
212/596-6165
Audit & Accounting Guides
212/596-6196
Auditing Standards
212/596-6036
Benevolent Fund
201/938-3490
Committee Appointments
212/596-6096
CPA Client Bulletin, CPA Client Tax Letter
CPA HealthCare Client Letter
— Subscriptions (Order Department)
800/TO-AICPA
— Editorial
201/938-3301
The CPA Letter (editorial)
212/596-6112
Division for CPA Firms (public file information)
— outside New York State
800/272-3476
— within New York State
212/596-6100
Private Companies Practice Section
212/596-6145
SEC Practice Section
212/596-6141
Examinations (Uniform CPA Exam)
201/938-3429
Federal Government Affairs
202/434-9209
Federal government (regulatory matters)
202/434-9209
Legislation (congressional matters)
202/434-9205
General Counsel
212/596-6245
Industry Member Programs
212/596-6122
Information Technology
212/596-6010
International Relations
212/596-6125
Joint Trial Board (disciplinary actions)
212/596-6098
Journal of Accountancy (editorial)
201/938-3292
Library Services
80 0 /T O-AICPA
Fax number
212/596-6287
Management o f an Accounting Practice
212/596-6139
Management Accounting
201/9 3 8 -3 0 11
Management Consulting Services
201/938-3503
Meetings and Travel
201/93 8 -3 2 3 2
Member Programs and Benefits
212/596-6129
Membership Admissions/Records
201/93 8 -3 1 0 0
Fax number
201/938-3108

Minority Initiatives
212/596-6227
National Automated Accounting and
Retrieval Services (NAARS)
201/938-3248
Order Department
800/TO-AICPA
Fax number
800/362-5066
Credit and Collections
201/938-3460
Personal Financial Planning/
PFS Designation
80 0 /T O-AICPA
The Practicing CPA (editorial)
212/596-6146
Professional Ethics
201/938-3177
800/TO-AICPA
Public Meeting Notices/Agendas
Public Relations and Communications
212/596-6106
Quality/Peer Review
201/938-3030
State Legislation, Legislative Relations
202/434-9257
State Society Relations
212/596-6247
Subscriptions and Publications
Customer Service
201/938-3333
Taxation (not for technical inquiries)
202/434-9226
The Tax Adviser (editorial)
201/938-3444
Technical Information Hotline
8 0 0 /T O-AICPA
(auditing and accounting practice inquiries)
Women and Family Issues
212/596-6226

New York
1211 Avenue of the Americas
New York, NY 10036-8775

NY

NJ

DC

(circle one)

Affinity Program s
Insurance Programs
Aon Insurance Services
Life
Disability
Group
Long-Term Care
Personal Liability Umbrella
Professional Liability
National General Insurance Co
Automobile
Home
Retirement Programs (T. Rowe Price)
Car Rental (Hertz)
Car Rental (National)
Computers (Dell Corporation)
Credit Card (Marine Midland Bank)
Employment Referral Service
(CPA JOB BANK)
Forms, Supplies (Wallace)

800/223-7473
800/221-4722
800/221-3019
800/453-0567
800/221-3021
800/221-3023
800/847-2886
800/847-7233
800/38-AICPA
800/654-2200
800/227-7368
800/568-8313
800/850-3144
800/939-1040
800/782-4892
(Contract no. CA252)

Hom e Mortgages and
Equity Loans (Prudential)
800/272-1210
Long Distance Telephone (Sprint)
800/473-0898
Overnight Delivery (Airborne Express)
800/MEMBERS
Xerox Corporation
800/832-6979, ext. CPA

NewJersey
Harborside Financial Center
201 Plaza Three
Jersey City, NJ 07311-3881

Washington, D.C.
1455 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW
Washington, DC 20004-1081
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Listing o f Staff Contact/Member Assignments (see article on page 1)
Below is the listing of AICPA staff contact/m em ber assignments explained in the article on page 1. Members should
use their last names to locate their staff liaisons. Upon finding their staff liaisons, members are encouraged to write
that person’s name, telephone num ber and office location where indicated on the “Directory of AICPA Services”
featured on page 5 (clip and save the directory for future reference).
Members with Last Nam e...

AICPA Contact

A—Adams, B.

Donald Adams

Adams, C.—Ahlgren)

Walling Almonte

Ahlgren—Alexaniam

Joan Elizabeth Anderson

Alexanian—Alpineq

Susan Anderson

Alpiner—Anderson, B.

Claudia Ascione

Anderson, C.—A ndrew

Dale R. Atherton

Andrews—Archeq

Christopher Bacey

Archer—Arvom

Sheri B. Bango

Arvon—Austri
Austria—Baggin

Members with Last Name...

AICPA Contact

Clark, T.—Clufe

Shirley Crawford

201/938-3233

NJ

NJ

Cluff—Cohen, Q.

Patricia A. Cummings

212/596-6196

NY

201/938-3323

NJ

Cohen, R.—Collins, J.

Raymond Cuneo, Jr.

212/596-6064

NY

201/938-3352

NJ

Collins, K.—Connerr

Nadine A. Cunningham

212/596-6020

NY

201/938-3075

NJ

Conners—Cooncd

Julia Esposito

201/938-3505

NJ

201/938-3253

NJ

Coonce—Corq

John Daidone

212/596-6220

NY

212/596-6108

NY

Corr—Cowam

Irene Dajka

201/938-3203

NJ

202/434-9201

DC

Cowan—Crawford, K.

Dave Dasgupta

212/596-6111

NY

Marie T. Bareille

201/938-3299

NJ

Crawford, L.—Crottr

Arline Dederick

201/938-3572

NJ

Maria Beck

202/434-9204 DC

Crotts—Cunningham, J

Dan Deitz

201/938-3288

NJ

Baggio—Bakkn

Joseph Bentz, Jr.

201/938-3584

NJ

Cunningham, K—Dagf

Yolanda deJesus

201/938-3422

NJ

Bakko—Baranskh

Phyllis Bernstein

201/938-3808

NJ

Dagg—Daniels, D.

Linda Delahanty

201/938-3416

NJ

201/938-3221

NJ

201/938-3262

Baranski—Barnex

Carol Bertolotti

201/938-3570

NJ

Daniels, E.—Davinh

Josephine DeLosReyes

212/596-6216

NY

Barney—Bartom

Bruce Howard Biskin

201/938-3421

NJ

Davini—Dawsom

Anita Dennis

201/938-3285

NJ

Barton—Baumblats

James Dean Blum

201/938-3419

Dawson—Deel

Nina Suzanne Diamond

201/938-3201

NJ

Baumblatt—Becj

Susan Lynn Bolmer

212/596-6039

NJ
NY

Deem—Deltorn

Francine Diana

201/938-3880

NJ

Beck—Belaiq

Robert Boos

201/938-3479

Deltoro—Derb

Rachel Dichter

201/938-3567

NJ

Belair—Benity

Celeste Booth

212/596-6013

NJ
NY

Derba—Deyn

Robert F. DiCorcia

201/938-3392

NJ

Benitz—Bergerom

Donna Borowicz

201/938-3210

NJ

Deyo—Dillarr

George N. Dietz

201/938-3179

NJ

Bergeron—Bersr

Joseph Boutureira

201/938-3710

NJ

Dillars—Dobid

Julie Dilley

201/938-3051

NJ

Berss—Biggh

R. Bruce Brasell

201/938-3014

NJ

Dobie—Donnelly, G.

Lisa Dinackus

202/434-9276 DC

Biggi—Black, G.

Edith Breitner

201/938-3176

NJ

Donnelly, H.—Doverr

Francesca DiPietro

201/938-3435

NJ

Black, H.—Bletg

Richard Bruder

201/938-3482

NJ

Dovers—Droppld

Sheila Dolan-Manner

201/938-3453

NJ

Bleth—Bodni

Jeanm arie Brusati

201/938-3405

NJ

Dropple—Dunbaq

Patricia Donius

201/938-3353

NJ

Bodnia—Bonfif

Luis E. Cabrera

201/938-3059

NJ

Dunbar—Duy

Lynn Drake

202/434-9214 DC

Bonfig—Bostateq

Barbara Ann Capek

212/596-6014

NY

Duz—Eckers

Patricia Ann Duane

201/938-3349

NJ

Bostater—Boyanoskh

James Carey

201/938-3017

NJ

Eckert—Ehrif

George Durk

201/938-3174

NJ

Boyanoski—Brail

Emma Jeanette Carlson

201/938-3517

NJ

Ehrig—Elliott, P.

Stuart Eisenberg

201/938-3481

NJ

Braim—Brehk

Matthew C. Carr

201/938-3198

NJ

Elliott, R.—Engelteq

Rick Elam

212/596-6006

NY

Brehl—Brimlex

Michael Frederick Chen

201/938-3213

Carol Ann J. Fagan

201/938-3401

NJ

Carmela Chinnici

212/596-6114

NJ
NY

Engelter—Eskh

Brimley—Brooksheaq

Eski—Ewelk

Kimberly Falco

201/938-3442

NJ

Brookshear—Brown, L.

Gennaro Cicalese

201/938-3171

NJ

Ewell—Faric

Madelaine Feldman

201/938-3293

NJ

Brown, M.—Brunnes

Kristine Cicardo

201/938-3028

Carol Ferguson

202/434-9243 DC

Joseph M. Ciccone

212/596-6229

NJ
NY

Farid—Feenex

Brunnet—Bueckeq

Feeney—Fernander

Helen Figueroa

201/938-3676

NJ

Buecker—Burgin

Gene Cioffi

201/938-3449

NJ

Fernandes—Finazzn

H erbert Finkston

201/938-3175

NJ

Burgio—Burtcg

Carla Ciuffo

201/938-3322

NJ

Finazzo—Fisher, K.

Nick Fiore

201/938-3444

NJ

Burtch—Byingtom

Hal Clark

201/938-3248

Gretchen Flschbach

201/938-3180

NJ

Byington—Callahal

James Salisbury Clark

NJ
202/434-9229 DC

Fisher, L.—Fleming, K.
Fleming, L.—Fom

Peter Fleming

201/938-3286

NJ

Callaham—Canahah

Sarah Cobb

201/938-3290

NJ

Fon—Foster, F.

Joanne Mary Flood

201/938-3561

NJ

Canahai—Cargilk

Susan S. Coffey

201/938-3177

NJ

Foster, G.—Frangipand

Richard Flynn

201/938-3295

NJ

Cargill—Carrabind

Arlene Cohen

201/938-3534

NJ

Frangipane—Freeman, P.

Mary Foelster

202/434-9259 DC

Carrabine—Casell

Nancy Cohen

212/596-6010

NY

Freeman, Q.—Frittr

Sharon Free

201/938-3077

NJ

Casella—Cavedn

Sheila D. Colclasure

202/434-9263 DC

Fritts—Furbers

William Norris Free, Jr.

201/938-3202

NJ

Cavedo—Chancx

Mary Conte

201/938-3109

Furbert—Gallarc

Gary Freundlich

201/938-3021

NJ

Chancy—Chen, L.

Brian Cooney

NJ
202/434-9218 DC

Gallard—Gardx

Anita Meola

212/596-6136

NY
NJ

Chen, M.—Chmielory

Jeryl A. Costello

201/938-3450

NJ

Gardy—Gaugham

Selma Friedman

201/938-3291

Chmielorz—Ciaravinn

Joseph Cote

201/938-3535

NJ

Gaughan—Georgd

Thomas Fritz

202/434-9279 DC

Ciaravino—Clark, S.

Katharine W. Coveleski

201/938-3391

NJ

George—Gibbom

Susan Frohlich

201/938-3181
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Small Employer Strategies for Controlling Health Care Costs
While CPA fin a n c ia l m anagers aw ait changes in the health
care landscape that may or not be com ing from Washington
or the state capitol, there are some strategies that sm all busi
nesses can employ to help m anage their employee health care
benefit costs. According to M a ria n M ancuso Sutton a n d
Jim M ichaud, speakers a t the AICPA 1 9 9 4 F all N a tio n a l
In dustry Conference, many o f the strategies listed below can
be applied no m atter w hat the regulatory regime in which an
employer operates.

1. Examine Traditional Supplier Relationships —
As with any provided service, frequent reevaluations
and comparisons are necessary to ensure the appro
priate and cost effective relationships are in place.

2. U nderstand the Balance in All Elements of
Total Com pensation — W hen com paring your
health benefit package to other employers in anti
cipation o f com m unicating to your em ployees
about benefits, understand the context o f the total
com pensation package, including traditional and
non-traditional elem ents.

3. Take Care in the Selection and M anagement of Man
aged Care Programs — Managed care options are
likely to be available in most states. Making the appro
priate choice and com municating the benefits o f
choosing that provider to your employees is essential.

4. Make Effective Use o f Coordination o f Benefits —
With the growing trend toward two wage earner
families, this can be an important source o f savings.
Your em ployees must keep you apprised o f changes
in the coverage available to them.

5. Im plem ent Appropriate Cost Sharing in Employee
Contributions and Benefit Design — The key word
here, in com m unicating to em ployees, is appropri
ate. This must be com m unicated in win-win terms.

6. U nderstand and Benefit From the Evolving Role
o f Employer Coalitions and Purchasing G roups —
Participation in private purchasing cooperatives
are giving small com panies the opportunity to exer
cise some muscle when shopping for em ployee
health plans.

MIEC Participates in AICPA Annual Meeting
The Members in Industry Executive Comm ittee was
am ong the key AICPA Comm ittees invited to hold
their first m eeting o f the 1994-95 com m ittee year in
conjunction with the AICPA Annual M eeting in
Boston during the last week o f October.
MIEC Chairman David Summers, along with
the chairs o f the Professional Issues and CPE Liaison
Subcommittees, participated in a Leadership Day on
Sunday, October 23. This m eeting, along with the
Annual Members and Council m eeting over the next
few days, provided an excellent opportunity to interact
with AICPA leadership and talk with other com m ittee
leaders about how to best m eet the needs o f AICPA
members in business and industry.
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The chairs o f 80 AICPA com m ittees took part
in the discussion, which was led by current AICPA
Chairman D on Tarantino and incom ing chairman
Bob Israeloff. Following the them e o f collaboration,
com m unication and innovation, many o f the com mit
tee chairs in attendance, the future leaders o f the
profession, laid out the important activities o f their
respective committees.
The key item on the agenda for the MIEC m eeting
on Tuesday and Wednesday, October 25 and 26, was
the developm ent o f a strategic planning docum ent for
AICPA industry m em ber programs. Chairman Sum
mers hopes to present a final docum ent to the AICPA
Board o f Directors som etim e in 1995.
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Improving Business Reporting & Other Professional Issues
sional issues from the point o f view o f CPAs
em ployed in business and industry.

• The final report o f the AICPA Special Comm ittee
on Financial Reporting was delivered to AICPA
members with the October issue o f the Journal of

The subcom m ittee members discussed their
participation in an AICPA Accounting Standards
Division project to make accounting standards
more “user-friendly.” The project will address sev
eral attributes o f technical standards that make
them less than friendly, including structural com 
plexity, the subjectivity o f language, accessibility and
retrievability and the consistency o f principles. We
will keep FMR readers inform ed as this project
moves forward.

Accountancy. Improving Business Reporting— A
Customer Focus, Meeting the Information Needs of
Investors and Creditors is a 20-page brochure which

summarizes the recom m endations o f the Special
Committee. The AICPA Board o f Directors has
established a coordinating com m ittee to work with
standard setters, regulators and reporting com pa
nies to im plem ent the recomm endations.
The Members in Industry Executive Comm ittee
encourages all CPAs in business and industry to
carefully review the 20-page report, which includes
19 specific recom m endations and outlines a com 
prehensive m odel o f business reporting. Members
should also consider requesting the com prehensive
150-page report o f the com m ittee when it becom es
available after November 15.
O ne free copy p e r m em ber will be available by
writing (P.O. Box 2209, Jersey City, NJ 07303-2209)
or faxing (800-362-5066) the AICPA Order Depart
m ent after that date.

Also on the agenda were the AICPA’s draft
Accounting Guide Environmental Remediation Liabili
ties, and the FASB’s projects on Earnings Per Share
and Disaggregated Disclosures. The subcommittee
has also drafted a response to the latest Omnibus
Proposal o f the Professional Ethics Division. Staff
from the Institute’s Auditing Standards Division also
m et with the subcom m ittee to discuss ways in which
input from an industry m em ber perspective can be
provided early in the standard-setting process.
If you would like more information on
particular projects o f the Professional Issues Sub
com m ittee, please write to Thomas J. Lemm on,
CPA, Senior Technical Manager, Industry Member
Programs, AICPA, 1211 Avenue o f the Americas,
New York, NY 10036-8775.

• The Special Comm ittee report was only on e o f the
items on the agenda when the Professional Issues
Subcom mittee o f the Members in Industry Execu
tive Comm ittee m et on Septem ber 21st. The charge
o f the subcom m ittee is to provide input on profes

Upcoming AICPA Conferences of Interest to CPA Financial Managers
November 3 - 4 , 1994

National Conference on Banking

November 1 6 -1 7 , 1994

Annual Conference on the Securities Industry New York, N Y
National Construction Conference Las Vegas, N V

D ecem ber 5-6, 1994

Washington, D C

April 2 6 - 2 8 , 1995

Conference on C urrent SEC Developments Washington, D C
Employee Benefits Conference New Orleans, LA

May 4 - 6 , 1995

Spring National Industry Conference

January 1 0 -1 1 , 1995

Indian Wells, CA

For more information on any o f these programs, call the AICPA Meetings & Travel Department at 201-938-3232.

The Financial Manager’s Report is a publication of the AICPA Members in Industry Executive Committee and is mailed four times per year to all AICPA members in
industry as an insert to The CPA Letter. Opinions of the authors are their own and do not necessarily reflect policies of the Institute.
The Committee and Staff welcome your input on ways to make FM R more responsive to your needs. Please address comments in writing to AICPA, industry Member
Programs, 1211 Avenue of the Americas, New York, N Y 10036-8775.
M em bers in Industry Executive Com m ittee
Chairman, David A. Summers, Summers & Associates, Walnut Creek, CA
Communications Chair, Robert H. Brewer, Praxair, Danbury, CT
AICPA S taff: FMR and Industry M em ber Program s
Jay L. Rothberg, V.P. Member & State Relations
(212) 59 6-6005
Thomas J. Lemmon, Sr. Technical Manager
(212) 596-6122
Michele A. Rodin, Project Manager
(212) 596-6126
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E ditorial A dvisory Board
Douglas P. Bums, General Rubber Company, South Hackensack, NJ
Randolph E. Christianson, Beverage W holesalers, Fargo, ND
Stephen Curran, Bay State Gas Company, W est Borough, MA
Gayl W. Doster, East Greenwich, Rl
Edward Dudley, Asea Brown Boveri, Inc., Windsor, CT
Raymond C. Hamill, The Trump Company, Waukesha, W l
Olivia F. Kirtley, Vermont American Corp., Louisville, KY
Paul K. Mendenhall, Price Development Co., Salt Lake City, UT
L. Eldon Miller, Consultant, Salado, TX
Florine N. Nath, Aspen Imaging, Louisville, CO
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Interviewing Staff in Other Technical Disciplines
As CPA Financial Managers advance in their careers and
take on broader responsibilities, they can fin d themselves hav
ing to make hiring decisions regarding technical Staff in other
non-finance disciplines. The following article is reprinted
with permission from The Interviewer’s Edge, a newsletter
published by Management Team Consultants, Inc., 1010 B.
Street, Suite 403, San Rafael, CA 94901. The numberfor
subscription information is 4 1 5 -4 5 9 -4 8 0 0 .

For technical hires, technical com petence must
be confirm ed in the interviewing process, usually by a
technical specialist. N o matter how these interviews
are conducted, there are certain inherent risks in tech
nical interviews. Standards m ight be set unreasonably
high and no on e gets hired, or the focus is narrowly
aimed at technical skills so the interviewer misses evi
dence o f other important qualities, such as, whether
this candidates is a quick learner, resourceful, adapt
able, etc. The question is how to assess technical skills
while avoiding som e o f these risks.
H ere are just three o f the several approaches used
by technical experts at our client com panies to assess
technical com petence.
Candidates are asked to describe the
most technically challenging project they have worked
on in the past year. If the candidate is a student, it can
be a school project. They are asked to “walk through”
the project, describing in detail what they did, how
they did it, with whom, etc.

Project Analysis.

The interviewer probes for specific details and
listens for evidence o f technical knowledge and confi
dence as the candidate describes h is/h er work.
“If. . . Then ” Questions. The interviewer continually
probes technical knowledge and com petence by pre
senting problems and observing how the candidate
solves them. For example: “If you were to have a code
failure, then what would you do?” If that answer is satis
factory then a m ore challenging situation would be
presented with another “i f . .. th en ” question.
Competency Scales. The candidate is asked to rate
h is/h er com petency in a given area on a 1-10 scale.
“In terms o f applications software, how do you rate
your com petence in C++ on a 1-10 scale?” The inter
viewer then pegs his questions at whatever level is
claimed by the candidate. Questions that are more or
less challenging are used if it is apparent the candi
date’s self assessment is too high or too low. An
alternative to the numbers is to use a continuum
question, such as “where does your com petence fall
between entry level and superstar?”

These techniques offer a few ways to confirm
technical com petence. W hen other members o f an
interview team use behavior-based interviewing, the
candidate’s fit with the organization and h is/h er per
form ance factors-intellectual ability, interpersonal
skills and motivation will also be accurately assessed.

Puzzled by the Latest Pronouncement, Call the Technical Hotline
A recent survey o f AICPA members in industry indicated that
2 9 % were not aware of a long-standing Institute service, the
Technical Hotline. For the 2 9 % , and as a reminder to the
other 71% , here’s a brief description o f this valuable toolfor
CPA financial managers.

The AICPA’s Technical H otline service was
form ed in the 1950’s to provide members with techni
cal advice on accounting and auditing topics. The
H o tline service has grown significantly since that time
— today, a staff o f 12 CPAs answer over 55,000 calls per
year from members in industry, governm ent and pub
lic practice on a wide variety o f technical topics.
Q uestions range from quick inquiries about the effec
tive date o f a new pronouncem ent to com plex puzzles
about how to apply accounting rules to a particular
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com pany’s situation. (Note: As a matter o f policy, the
staff does not answer tax or legal questions.)
Callers are generally given an answer “on the
spot.” However, some questions require contacting
other organizations, such as the FASB and GASB, to
obtain clarification or up-to-the-minute information.
Although H otline responses are nonauthoritative (that
is, they are the personal opinions o f staff), whenever
possible, callers are provided with the cites to any rele
vant literature.
CPA financial managers em ployed by com pany’s
moving into new lines o f business have found the H ot
line to be particularly helpful. If you find yourself in
n eed o f some help with a thorny technical problem,
we encourage you to call the Technical H otline at
1-800-862-4272, choosing option #2 from the m enu.
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New Self-Study and Video Courses for CPA Financial Managers
NEW! Selected Readings fo r Financial Executives:
Series 3 (Available December 1, 1994)

NEW! 1994 Accounting Standards U pdate
V ideocourse

Covering everything from technical topics to m anage
m ent issues, you’ll find nearly 50 articles that can
sharpen your insight, expand your outlook and add to
your financial m anagem ent skills.

In this 2-hour video, m oderated by John F. Hudson,
CPA, experts explain recent FASB and AcSEC pro
nouncem ents and how they apply to your professional
activities.

Some o f the issues covered include:
• Accounting for derivatives: m anagem ent o f
a derivatives portfolio.
• How FASB 106 and 401 (k)s are reshaping
retiree benefits.
• Avoiding 401 (k) traps.
• How to reduce group health care costs.
• Disaster analysis.
• The Superfund Act that has transformed the
real estate industry.

Course highlights include:
• SFAS #114, Accounting by Creditors fo r Impairment
of a Loan.

• SFAS #115, Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt
and Equity Securities.

• SFAS #116, Accounting fo r Contributions Received and
Contributions Made.

• SFAS #117, Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit
Organizations.

• FIN #39, Offsetting of Amounts Related to Certain
Contracts.

Recom m ended CPE Credit: 8 hours
Format: Text (730538CLK) $79.00

Recom m ended CPE Credit: 8 hours group study
and self study

Format: 1 VHS Tape/M anual (182202CLK) $129.00
Additional Manual (352202CLK) $30.00

To order: Call 1-800-862- 4272 (dept. #1), fax to 1-800-362-5066, or write the AICPA Order Department, P.O.
Box 2209, Jersey City, NJ 07303-2209. These courses are also available through your state society.

AICPA CPE Seminars: Tools for CPA Financial Managers
Advanced Cash Management:
Maximizing Your Cash Flows
This advanced course is designed for cash, investment
and asset managers and treasurers to enable them to
identify opportunities to improve cash m anagem ent
as well as develop short-term investment and borrow
ing programs.

Level: Advanced
Recom m ended CPE Credit: 8 hours

O ther courses you won’t want to miss:
The Com plete Guide to Pension and ProfitSharing Plans
Budgeting—Practical Inform ation, Techniques
and Ideas
Today’s Corporate Tax M anagem ent Issues for
CPAs in Industry
Leading the Controller’s D epartm ent

These courses are offered across the nation. For specific dates and locations o f the presentations convenient to
you, call 1-800 -8 6 2-4272, option 4.
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Need for Change in Management Accounting
ecent studies of the AICPA
Management Accounting Exec
utive Committee (MAEC)
demonstrate that significant changes
are taking place within the accounting
and finance function in industry.
Results of the AICPA Benchmarking
Project, sponsored jointly with The
Hacket Group, indicate that manage
ment accountants are spending too
much time on low value-added activi
ties, like transaction processing, and
not enough time on high-value-added
activities like decision support, control
and risk management. According to
MAEC, this situation can’t continue in
today’s lean corporate environment,
and management accountants must
re-invent themselves to remain com
petitive, and employed. MAEC is
advocating a new role for the manage
ment accountant as a strategic
business partner, capable of interpret
ing real-time business data as support
for business decisions.

R
AICPA Management
Accounting
Executive Committee
Releases Findings

in this issue...
Need for Change in
Management Accounting
Findings Released....,.................... 1
Rick Elam —
150-Hour Requirement and
Corporate Accountants.................. 2
Update: AICPA Special Committee
on Financial Reporting.............................2
Upcoming AICPA Supply/Demand
Questionnaire.......................................................... 2

Educators can utilize these find
ings in shaping future management
accountants. As the business world
moves more and more toward a global
orientation, management accountants
are faced with problems and opportu
nities that they would not have
dreamed about five to ten years ago.
Some of the challenges cited by over
850 management accountants in
response to a recent fax survey were:
managing cash flow in a global econ
omy, providing accurate information
on a timely basis with smaller finance
staff, controlling information overload,
increasing regulatory requirements
and advances in technology, to name
just a few.
MAEC will continue to study the
changing role of the management
accountant, and seeks to understand
the future of the finance function.
FYI will keep you up to date on
MAEC’s findings. □

From the Editor’s Desk...
Earlier in the year, I promised to bring you a practical perspective from CPAs in the work
force. This November, FYI covers an array of current issues facing the accounting profession.

Minority Fellowships and Scholarship
Awards Distributed........................................... 2

and the resources of the Information Age. Greater demands are being placed on the accounting

Practice Alerts Issued by AICPA
SEC Practice Section..................................... 3

done for a client, creditor, investor or management itself. W ith knowledge of these trends, educa

Findings are out on Women’s Status
and Work/Family Initiatives................. 3
AICPA Information Technology
Membership Section..................................... 4

The role of the accountant is changing, based on the needs of the business community
profession to be more efficent and to add value to the business decision-making process, whether
tors can help prepare accounting students to face these new challenges effectively. I hope that
this issue of FYI connects you with information on current initiatives and resources available at
the AICPA today and in the future.
Elizabeth Scifo Koch
Editor

Rick Elam

Viewpoint:

150-Hour
Requirement
and Corporate
Accountants

AICPA and the Accounting Education
Change Commission will play in taking
actions suggested in the report is not
evident at this point. The results seem to
fit with the AICPA’s Best Practices
Benchmarking Study and various
AICPA efforts to assist educators.
The IMA/FEI study and recom
mendations do not address appropriate
education for future certified public
accountants, except to point out that:
“Nearly two-thirds of the respondents
believe that there is either a major
difference or some difference in the
knowledge and skills necessary for
entry-level accountants in corporations
versus those in public accounting firms.”
Some opponents of the 150-hour
requirement may erroneously suggest
that the IMA/FEI study undermines
the 150-semester-hour requirement to
become a CPA. In fact, the majority of

The Institute of Management
Accountants (IMA) and the Financial
Executives Institute (FEI) have issued a
“Joint IMA/FEI Position Statement on
the Results of a Survey: ‘What Corporate
America Wants in Entry-Level Account
ants.’” The position statement and
related press releases take a fairly hard
swipe at the academic community for
paying too much attention to educating
future CPAs and not enough to prepar
ing students to start their careers in
corporate accounting.
I applaud this important joint effort
to identify the knowledge and skills
management accountants need before
they join corporate America. Many
accountants start their careers in indus
try, and this study should be viewed as a
call to action to corporations and indus
try to participate more vigorously in the
academic preparation of accountants.
What role organizations such as the

continued on page 4 ►

News and Notes
The Academic and Career
Development Division will be
sending a packet of teaching

materials related to the Report just issued
from the Special Committee on Financial
Reporting to all accounting program admin
istrators. The Committee has come up with
far-reaching recommendations on the types
of information that should be made available
by management to meet the needs of invest
ors and creditors, and the extent to which
auditors should report on this information.
The packet will include a reproducible
copy of a brochure which summarizes the
committee’s work and recommendations,
a hard copy of a slide presentation, and
suggested approaches for using these
materials in the classroom. Follow up
with your program administrator by early
December to get a copy of these materials.
The AICPA is granting permission to schools
to reproduce an unlimited number of copies
for use in the classroom.

Note to Administrators of
Accounting Programs:
Please watch your mail, as you

2

will soon be receiving a questionnaire for the
AICPA’s annual supply/demand survey. The
AICPA needs your assistance again this year
as we gather data to be used for the following
publications: The Supply of Accounting Grad
uates and the Demand for Public Accounting
Recruits, and The AICPA Report on Minority
Accounting Majors, Graduates, and Public
Accounting Professionals. Data will also be
used to update information in our database
of schools that offer accounting programs.
Your prompt response is requested as it is
essential for us to continue to provide current
and relevant information about accounting
education in the United States.

Thomas Lopez (Arizona State University)
and Winifred Scott (Florida State University).
Two of these awards were funded by the
joint Robert Elliot/KPMG Peat Marwick/AICPA
Fund for African-American Doctoral Students.
Information and applications can be obtained
by calling Paulette Myers at (212) 596-6223.

Scholarship awards to minority
accounting students in undergraduate and

Annual awards of $12,000 are
made to minority doctoral can
didates pursuing a Ph.D. degree
in accounting. For the 1994-95 academic year,
two new minority doctoral fellowship awards
were made to Michael Flores (Texas Tech Uni
versity) and Lookman Folami (Georgia State
University). Six fellowships were renewed to
Cheryl Allen (University of Georgia), Daisy
Banks (Michigan State University), Paquita
Davis (University of Michigan), Bettye
Rogers-Desselle (University of Houston),

graduate programs totalling $444,000 were
made. Partial support of this program is pro
vided by Arthur Andersen & Company and the
Connecticut Society of CPAs. Applications for
this scholarship program can be obtained by
writing to the AICPA Order Department, P.O.
Box 2209, Jersey City, NJ 07303-2209
(please refer to product #870110). Requests
can also be faxed to (800) 362-5066.
Please note that FYI is now
available to all members of
the AIPCA (not just accounting
educators) through a “fax-back” system,
described in the November issue of The CPA
Letter. You, as an educator member of the
AICPA, will continue to automatically receive
FYI. There is no need for you to use the
fax-back system to get FYI.
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Practice Alerts Issued by AICPA SEC Practice Section

Information
Provided on Current
Audit Concerns

Two practice alerts have been
recently issued by the newly formed
Professional Issues Task Force (PITF)
of the AICPA SEC Practice Section. The
PITF is responsible for addressing pos
sible practice issues that appear to
present audit concerns for practitioners
and for disseminating information as
appropriate in the form of practice
alerts. Although the practice alerts are
non-authoritative and have not been
approved, disapproved or otherwise
acted upon by any AICPA committee,
they are a valuable source of practical
information to accounting educators.
The practice alerts allow you to
keep abreast of the latest audit and
accounting issues as they occur in prac
tice, so you can cover them in class.
With an understanding of these issues,
a prospective accounting student can be
better prepared once they enter the
accounting profession.

Practice Alerts issued in 1994 include:
Dealing with Audit Differences
(February ’94)
Auditing Inventories — Physical
Observations (July ’94)
Acceptance and Continuance of Audit
Clients (September ’94)*

To obtain copies of the practice
alerts, dial (201) 938-3787 from a fax
machine, follow the voice cues, and
select the document number(s):
□ 260, for SECPS Practice Alert No. 94-1,
Dealing With Audit Differences,
□ 261, for SECPS Practice Alert No. 94-2,
Auditing Inventories — Physical
Observations, and
□ 262, for SECPS Practice Alert, Acceptance
and Continuance of Audit Clients.

FYI will continue to let you
know about future practice alerts as
they are issued.
*This practice alert was issued by the SEC
Practice Section Detection and Prevention of
Fraud Task Force. □

Findings are out on Women’s Status and Work/Family Initiatives
in Public Accounting
Cecelia Manley

Survey and Report
Results Available

In August 1994, the AICPA released
findings of its recent study to establish
baseline statistics on professional wom
en’s status at all levels within public
accounting firms and to determine
whether and how firms are addressing
work/life balance issues. Survey find
ings revealed that 26 percent of all new
partners in public accounting firms are
women, but turnover is higher overall
among women than it is among men,
especially in the senior and supervisory
ranks of the larger firms.
Though results vary for different
levels and different sized firms, for firms
overall promotions correspond propor
tionately to the percentages of people by
gender in the pools from which promo
tions are made. At the same time, higher
turnover among females had a cumula
tive effect on the lower percentages of
female employees at the partner level.

In focus groups and interviews,
managing partners identified various
real and perceived barriers to women’s
upward mobility, including long hours,
increased travel, the demands of client
service and the perception that women
leave their firms after having children.
In fact, the survey showed that 89% of
the women who took a maternity-related
leave of absence did return to their
firms. Sick and emergency child care
top the list of firms’ family-friendly pro
grams, with 32% of firms offering them.
Fewer firms offer flexible spending
accounts (20%), paternity leave (19%)
and elder care leave (10%). The larger
the firm, the more likely it is to offer
these programs.
To order an Executive Summary of
the quantitative survey results, Women’s
Status and Work/Family Initiatives in
continued on page 4 ►
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Keeping up with Technology

AICPA Special
Membership
Section Available

►The 150-Hour Requirement
and Corporate Accountants
continued from page 2

the respondents to the study said that
corporate accountants should have at
least 150 semester hours of education,
but many felt education beyond the
baccalaureate degree could happen
while the accountant was employed in
a corporation. The President of IMA is
quoted as saying: “We strongly support
additional hours of education after,

► Women’s Status and
Work/Family Issues
continued from page 3

You would probably agree that
keeping up with technology is impor
tant, yet difficult To make this task
easier, you might be interested in joining
the AICPA Information Technology (IT)
Membership Section. It’s open to all
AICPA members in good standing and
qualifying non-CPAs. Benefits include
the following products and services:
• A subscription to the IT Section’s
quarterly newsletter covering new
developments in technology. InfoTech
Update will provide you with useful
information on such subjects as:
electronic data interchange (EDI),
executive
information
systems
(EIS), bar code technology, memory
management, image processing and
pen technology.
• IT Division’s practice aids and
technology bulletins that will help
increase your skills and expand your
knowledge of information technology.
Prior publications sent to IT members

include: CPA Firm Technology
Planning Guide, Image Processing
and Optical Character Recognition,
Memory Management, Executive
Information Systems, Computer
Disaster Recovery Planning Guide
and Microcomputer Security.
• Technology alerts — one-page releases
on up-to-the-minute topics. Recent
alerts have included Before Disaster
Strikes: 12 Steps to Minimize Com
puter Losses, Fax Modem Capabilities,
and What’s Hot, What’s Not in Infor
mation Technology.
• A wide range of vendors discount

offerings. Prior offerings have in
cluded a discount on ICP’s InfoROM
— a software directory on CD-ROM
subscription service.
For more information, contact
Nancy A. Cohen, CPA, of the AICPA
Information Technology Membership
Section at (212) 596-6010 or fax
(212) 596-6024. □

rather than before, the entry-level
accountant begins employment.”
That approach is fully compatible
with the 150-semester-hour require
ment for new CPAs. It allows students
who want to become CPAs the option
to gain business experience while com
pleting the 150-hour requirement. The
AICPA’s long-standing position on the
150-hour requirement for new CPAs
only specifies that education should be
completed before sitting for the
Uniform CPA Examination.

We fully support the efforts of the
IMA/FEI to improve the quality of
accounting education and expect to
work with them in this effort. □

call the AICPA
Order Department at 1-800-862-4272
and refer to product #876799 ($3.00 for
AICPA members, $3.50 for nonmem
bers, plus shipping and handling). The

full report of quantitative survey
results, product #876800, is also avail
able at $25.00 for AICPA members and
$27.50 for nonmembers plus shipping
and handling. □

Public Accounting,

To obtain a copy of the IMA/FEI Position
Statement discussed in Rick Elam’s Editorial,
related press releases, and an order form for
a copy of the full study, DIAL 201-938-3787
FROM YOUR FAX MACHINE, follow the voice
cues and SELECT DOCUMENT NO. 200.

Published five times each academic year by the AICPA Academic and Career Development Division, 1211 Avenue of the Americas, New York, NY 10 036-877 5, telephone (212) 596-6 219. Except
where otherwise copyrighted, reproduction of the material in the publication is encouraged and permitted if source acknowledgement is made and a copy of the reproduction is sent to the editor. In
addition, we welcome submissions for consideration for publication. Please send all submissions and inquiries to the editor at the address above. Opinions expressed in the publication do not nec
essarily reflect policy of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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Gregory Furke
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NY

Kornbluth—Kramer, M.

Sherry Knox

212/596-6120

NY
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Marlene Gallagher
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NY
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212/596-6219

NY
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NJ

Kromm—Kumaq

Joel Koppelman
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Lack—Lammerr

Charlotte Kruman
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Paul Geoghan
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NY
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Linda Ann Lach

201/938-3571

NJ

Graham, N.—Greem

Howard S. Gerner

201/938-3480

NJ

Langmack—Lassaq

Lesli Laffie

201/938-3445

NJ

Green—Gregorin

Kim M. Gibson

201/938-3025

NJ

Lassar—Lawr

Edward Lake, Jr.

201/938-3334

NJ

Gregorio—Grittom

Frederick R. Gill

212/596-6162

NY

Laws—Lee, B.

Edward Michael Lanigan

201/938-3294

NJ

Gritton—Guardabascin

Andrew R. Gioseffi

201/938-3581

NJ

Lee, C.—Leh

Eva D. Lem

201/938-3237

NJ

Guardabascio—Gutiahq

Graham George Goddard

212/596-6146

NY

Lei—Leriar

Thomas Lemmon

212/596-6122

NY

Gutiahr—Haglunc

Albert F. Goll

212/596-6161

NY

Lerias—Levx

Anthony Lendez

212/596-6142

NY

Hs^lund—Halleq

Richard D. Grant

201/938-3562

NJ

Levy—Liebbd

Donna Letters

201/938-3882

NJ

Haller—Hamsteac

Joshua Grauer

202/434-9277 DC

Liebbe—Linkr

Moshe Levitin

201/938-3064

NJ

Hamstead—Hanssem

James Green

202/434-9269 DC

Links—Lloverar

Julianne Lewis

201/938-3511

NJ

Hanssen—Harpeq

Leonard Green

201/938-3705

Lloveras—Long, J.

John Lewison

201/938-3348

NJ

Harper—Harss

Steven Greene

212/596-6109

NY

Long, K.—Lovelesr

Joanne Lindstrom

212/596-6286

NJ
NY

Harst—Hatcheq

Gaetana Barbano-Grinder

212/596-6179

NY

Loveless—Lugrind

Raymond Lipay

201/938-3035

NJ

Hatcher—Hayforc

Daniel Miller Guy

212/596-6214

NY

Lugrine—Lynch, R.

Holly Locascio

201/938-3211

NJ

Hayford—Hegstrol

Alisande Hall

201/938-3101

NJ

Lynch, S.—Macmeanr

Domenic Lofaso

201/938-3451

NJ

Hegstrom—Henderson, H.

Thomas John Haller

201/938-3321

NJ

Macmeans—Maiersom

Kevin Loo

212/596-6009

NY

Henderson, L—Herinj

David Handrich

212/596-6145

NY

Maierson—Mandav

Leonard Lorensen

201/938-3249

NJ

Herink—Heutmakeq

Hedy H anna

201/938-3403

NJ

Mandava—Marciann

Amparo Loza

201/938-3242

NJ

Heutmaker—Hill, H.

Leonard Hecht

201/938-3184

NJ

Marciano—Marrisom

Janet Luallen

201/938-3037

NJ

Hill, I.—Hirschh

Melanie Heim

201/938-3509

NJ

Manison—Martin, R.

Marie MacBryde

201/938-3297

NJ

Hirschi—Hoffman, E.

Michele H erbert

212/596-6149

NY

Martin, S.—Mastandunn

Ian Allister MacKay

202/434-9253 DC

Hoffman, F.—Hollex

Israel J. Herskowitz

201/938-3185

NJ

Mastanduno—Maugeq

Erin P. Mackler

201/938-3586

NJ

Holley—Hoodx

Susan Williams Hicks

202/434-9206 DC

Mauger—McAfoor

Leonard Mark Mai

201/938-3214

NJ

Hoody—Horwity

J. Thomas Higginbotham

202/434-9205 DC

McAfoos—McClanatham

Janice Maiman

212/596-6095

NY

Horwitz—Howsom

Roberta Hinds

201/938-3469

NJ

McClanathan—McDadd

Albon Platt Man

201/938-3564

NJ

Howson—Hughes, C.

Cynthia Ann Hiris

212/596-6044

NY

McDade—McGeadx

Jane Mancino

212/596-6029

NY
NY

Hughes, D.—Huntingtom

George E. Hoffmann

212/596-6144

NY

McGeady—McKann

Cecelia Manley

212/596-6226

Huntington—Iannott

Anita Horn

202/434-9231

DC

McKanna—McMahom

William Mara

201/938-3577

NJ

Iannotta—Isgrif

Jo h n F. Hudson

212/596-6262

NY

McMahon—McVox

Catherine Mathews

212/596-6148

NY

Isgrig—Jacobsom

John Hunnicutt

202/434-9203 DC

McVoy—Melh

Jo h n McCauley

201/938-3460

NJ

Jacobson—Jarej

Linda J. H untley

201/938-3061

NJ

Meli—Merscg

Linda McKenna

202/434-9261

DC

Jarek—Jerarc

Laura E. Inge

212/596-6135

NY

Mersch—Michaelr

Dionne McNamee

202/434-9224 DC

Jerard—Johnson, F.

Shantaram Jibodh

201/938-3241

NJ

Michaels—Miller, B.

Vincent M. Melita, Jr.

201/938-3039

NJ

Johnson, G.—Johnson, S.

Gregory Johnson

212/596-6227

NY

Miller, C.—Miller, R.

Susan L. Menelaides

201/938-3058

NJ

Johnson, T.—Jones, J.

Karen H. Jones

201/938-3031

NJ

Miller, S.—Minturm

Patricia Meyer

212/596-6046

NY

Jones, K.—Juchniewicg

Douglas Kadow

201/938-3320

NJ

Minturn—Modeckh

Johnnie Middleton

201/938-3468

NJ

Juchniewich—Kalteq

Seth Jay Kadushin

212/596-6016

NY

Modecki—Montgomerx

Marie Dorothy Mikolajczyk

201/938-3580

NJ

Kalter—Karlim

Allan Kaplan

201/938-3483

NJ

Montgomery—Moosbruggeq

Richard Miller

212/596-6245

NY

Karlin—Kavanewskx

Monte Kaplan

201/938-3499

NJ

Moosbrugger—Morris, C.

Elaine Milone

201/938-3218

NJ

Kavanewsky—Kelleheq

Arthur Robert Kappel

201/938-3063

NJ

Morris, D.—Mosr

Anna Moa

201/938-3485

NJ

Kelleher—Kempe

Edward Stuart Karl

202/434-9228 DC

Moss—Mullam

Michael Molaro

212/596-6125

NY

Kempf—Kerstinf

Irene Kassimis

201/938-3888

NJ

Mullan—Murphy, P.

Steven Frank Moliterno

201/938-3065

NJ

Kersting—Kil

Brian Katz

201/938-3243

NJ

Murphy, Q.—Myrolc

Tracy Monaghan

212/596-6011

NY

Kim—Kipo

Colleen Katz

201/938-3456

NJ

Myrold—Navek

Nilda I. Montalvo

201/938-3332

NJ

Kipp—Klein, H.

Thomas P. Kelley

212/596-6199

NY

Navel—Nelson, Q.

Mary Mooney

201/938-3411

NJ

Klein, I.—Knieseq

Janet Kelly

201/938-3563

NJ

Nelson, R.—Newmyeq

Joseph Moraglio

202/434-9209 DC

Knieser—Kog

Dolores Kivetz

201/938-3526

NJ

Newmyer—Niewohneq

Lianne Morales

201/938-3772

NJ

Koga—Kornblutg

Leigh Walter Knopf

212/596-6132

NY

Niewohner—Norric

Lauren M. Moran

201/938-3080

NJ
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(S taff C ontacts— C o n tin u ed )
Members with Last Name...

AICPA Contact

Norrid—Oaklex

William Joseph Moran

201/938-3502

Oakley—Odonahud

John Morrow

201/938-3011

Odonahue—Oliveq

Andrew Mrakovcic

Members with Last Name...

AICPA Contact

NJ

Sinkhorn—Slaybaugg

Elma Satterfield

201/938-3047

NJ

NJ

Slaybaugh—Smith, C.

Angela Sayyed

201/938-3355

NJ

212/596-6017

NY

Smith, D.—Smith, L.

Annette Schumacher

202/434-9212 DC

Oliver—Opligeq

Daniel Mucisko

212/596-6110

NY

Smith, M.—Smoradn

Murray Schwartzberg

201/938-3194

Opliger—Ostrx

Patricia Jean Mulligan

201/938-3484

NJ

Smorado—Sommeq

Neil Selden

201/938-3069

NJ

Ostry—Padom

Karen Mullin

201/938-3399

NJ

Sommer—Spauldinf

Laurie Seltzer

201/938-3217

NJ

Padon—Panx

Mark F. Murray

212/596-6137

NY

Spaulding—Sprankld

Andy Seto

201/938-3235

NJ

Pany—Parmam

Boris Musich

212/596-6047

NY

Sprankle—Stankn

Carol Keller Shaffer

202/434-9268 DC

Parman—Patterson, K.

Annette Naime

201/938-3102

NJ

Stanko—Steffen

John M. Sharbaugh

202/434-9257 DC

Patterson, L.—Pearson, M.

Cecil Nazareth

201/938-3043

NJ

Steffena—Stepib

Michael Sheehan

201/938-3239

NJ

Pearson, N.—Pepd

Karen L. Neloms

212/596-6037

NY

Stepic—Stierheil

Judith M. Sherinsky

212/596-6031

NY

NJ

Pepe—Peskinc

Dowlan Nelson

201/938-3560

NJ

Stierheim—Storevij

Barbara Shildneck

201/938-3284

NJ

Peskind—Pettkd

Glen Nelson

201/938-3565

NJ

Storevik—Stronf

Ileane Silver

212/596-6051

NY

Pettke—Pickarc

Edward W. Niemiec

201/938-3590

NJ

Strong—Sullivan, G.

Maggie Simmons

202/434-9221

DC

Pickard—Piroskn

Richard G. Niles

201/938-3578

NJ

Sullivan, H.—Svetij

Alan Smith

201/938-3432

NJ

Pirosko—Poinsets

Antonio Nunez

201/938-3337

NJ

Svetik—Sylverr

Christine Speers

201/938-3331

NJ

Poinsett—Porteq

Nancy Orloff

202/434-9208 DC

Sylvers—Tankeq

Armanda Squadrilli

212/596-6019

NY

Porter—Powlar

Gerald W. Padwe

202/434-9226 DC

Tanker—Taylor, M.

Simmona Denise Steele

212/596-6052

NY

Powlas—Primaver

Barbara Pages

201/938-3582

NJ

Taylor, N.—Teskd

William R. Stromsem

202/434-9227 DC

Primavera—Purdul

Kathleen Phillips

212/596-6066

NY

Teske—Thomas, P.

Richard Stuart

212/596-6163

NY

Purdum—Rackeq

Geoffrey Pickard

212/596-6299

NY

Thomas, R.—Thornelk

Jeanne Summo

212/596-6030

NY

Racker—Ramstac

Jeffrey Pieper

201/938-3260

NJ

Thomell—Tituskim

Kevin Sweeney

201/938-3431

NJ

Ramstad—Rax

Linda Carole Pierce

212/596-6048

NY

Tituskin—T orrer

Loretta Szabo

212/596-6157

NY

Ray—Reed, R.

Ahava Zipporah Goldman

201/938-3424

NJ

Torres—Trethewax

Mary Anne Tait

201/938-3513

NJ

Reed, S.—Reinhery

Arthur Podorefsky

201/938-3576

NJ

Tretheway—Tucker, G.

Edwin M. Tamman

201/938-3216

NJ

Reinherz—Reynolds, J.

Robert Rainier

201/938-3283

NJ

Tucker, H.—Tyleb

William Charles Tamulinas

212/596-6102

NY

Reynolds, K.—Richardson, H

Rosalynd M. Rambert

212/596-6124

NY

Tylec—Vaak

Joel M. Tanenbaum

212/596-6164

NY

Richardson, I—Rilex

Kathy Rangoon

NJ

Vaal—Vanhoosem

Arleen Thomas

212/596-6159

NY
NJ

201/938-3452

Riley—Roba

David Ray

201/938-3379

NJ

Vanhoosen—Velchecj

Desmond Thompson

201/938-3234

Robb—Robinson, L.

Shelly Recchio

201/938-3671

NJ

Velcheck—-Vinch

Tammy Tien

201/938-3189

NJ

Robinson, M.—Rogalskh

Caroline Maldonado

201/938-3178

NJ

Vinci—Vosr

Peter Tuohy

201/938-3448

NJ

Rogalski—Rooham

Arthur Renner

212/596-6060

NY

Voss—Walcheq

Michael Anthony Tursi

201/938-3071

NJ

Roohan—Rosenthak

Charles Rhuda, Jr.

201/938-3420

NJ

Walcher—Wallerx

Shirley Twillman

202/434-9220 DC

Rosenthal—Rousd

Laura Richards

212/596-6113

NY

Wallery—Ward, K.

Carrie Vaccaro

201/938-3410

Rouse—Rudov

Cecilia Robin

201/938-3296

NJ

Ward, L.—Water

Emily Vassar

201/938-3081

NJ

Rudow—Rutg

Mark Robinson

202/434-9273 DC

Wates—Webeq

Jeannette E. Vera

212/596-6067

NY

Ruth—Saffim

Michele Rodin

212/596-6126

NY

Weber—Weinstocj

Linda Volkert

201/938-3072

NJ

SafFin—Sanbaq

Donna Roethel

201/938-3023

NJ

Weinstock—Welscg

John von Brachel

201/938-3287

NJ

Sanbar—Sarakum

Stephen Rojas

201/938-3196

NJ

Welsch—Westpfahk

Anne Wagenbrenner

201/938-3301

NJ

Sarakun—Scandold

Leticia Batacan Romeo

212/596-6221

NY

Westpfahl—White, O.

Richard Walker

212/596-6008

NY

Scandole—Schelstraetd

Paul Harold Rosenfield

212/596-6156

NY

White, P.—Wieganc

Karyn Waller

201/938-3060

NJ

Schelstraete—Schmidt, J.

Alicia Ross

201/938-3569

NJ

Wiegand—Willadsem

Catherine Wasilko

212/596-6141

NY

Schmidt, K.—Schoolex

Eileen Rubright

201/938-3382

NJ

Willadsen—Williams, S.

Virgil W. Webb III

202/434-9222 DC

Schooley—Schumacheq

Michele Ruggiero

201/938-3240

NJ

Williams, T.—Wilson, L.

Debra Lynn Weingarten

201/938-3446

NJ

Schumacher—Scots

Elizabeth M. Ryan

201/938-3362

NJ

Wilson, M.—Wintersteem

Patrick Westover

201/938-3527

NJ

Scott—Segak

Jodi Ryan

212/596-6105

NY

Wintersteen—Wolfd

Robert Whiteside

201/938-3040

NJ

Segal—Servier

Jessica Sacco

202/434-9255 DC

Wolfe—Wood, R.

Patricia L. Williams

201/938-3559

NJ

Servies—Shaplanc

Steven Sacks

201/938-3501

NJ

Wood, S.—Wright, I.

A. Louise Williamson

212/596-6034

NY

Shapland—Sheltom

Linda M. Safian

201/938-3330

NJ

Wright, J.—Yanf

Lisa Anne Winton

202/454-9234 DC

Shelton—Shirex

Sheryl T. Weiner

201/938-3751

NJ

Yang—Youek

Lois Wolfteich

212/596-6012

NY

Shirey—Sidloskh

Ann Elizabeth Sammon

201/938-3587

NJ

Youel—Zajicej

Gerard Yamall

212/596-6198

NY

Sidloski—Simmondr

Beatrice Sanders

212/596-6218

NY

Zajicek—Ziffeq

Catherine Rose Zaita

201/938-3186

NJ

Simmonds—Sinkhorm

Barbara Sands

212/596-6107

NY

Ziffer—Zygmunt

Stanley Zarowin

201/938-3289

NJ
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Accounting
& Auditing
News

Exposure Draft Issued on Proposed SOP on Real Estate Companies

An exposure draft of a proposed
statement of position, Reporting by
Real Estate Companies of Supplemental
Current Value Information (No.
800079CL), has been released.
Comments are due Jan. 10. This
proposed SOP provides guidance
for the optional reporting of supplemental current-value
information by real estate entities. This supplemental infor
mation may be reported in a separate supplemental bal
ance sheet, or may be presented on the face of the equity’s
general-purpose, historical-cost balance sheet if the infor
mation is clearly identified as supplemental information
prepared on the basis of current value to the entity.
Current value to the entity, as used in the proposed
SOP, refers to the estimated value of a reporting entity’s
assets and liabilities based on the entity’s intent and abil
ity to realize asset values and settle liabilities. Current

value to the entity is based, directly or indirectly, on the
discounted amount of net cash flows expected to be real
ized by the reporting entity and refers to the value of
specific balance-sheet elements and not to the value of
the entity as a whole. The supplemental current-value
information should be accompanied by a disclosure of
changes in revaluation equity.
The proposed SOP should be applied to supplemen
tal current-value information reported for fiscal years,
and interim periods in such fiscal years, beginning after
Dec. 1 5 , 1995. Restatement of comparative annual finan
cial statements for earlier years is encouraged but not
required.
One copy of the exposure draft has been mailed to
those on the standing order list to receive exposure
drafts; others may contact the AICPA Order Department
for copies (see page 11). Price: First copy free; each
additional $6 member, $6.75 non-member.

GASB Proposes Technical Bulletin on Derivatives
The Governmental Accounting Standards Board has
released a proposed technical bulletin that clarifies dis
closure requirements for state and local governments’
derivatives transactions. Comments on the proposal are
due Nov. 28. If finalized, the proposal would be effective
for periods ending after Dec. 15, 1994.
If state and local governments have used, held or
sold derivatives during the period covered by the finan
cial statements, the proposal clarifies that they should

disclose the nature of the transactions and the reason for
entering into them. The disclosure should include a dis
cussion of the entity’s exposure to credit risk, market risk
and legal risk if the risk is over and above what is already
apparent or otherwise disclosed.
One copy of the proposed technical bulletin (prod
uct code GPTB94-a) is available without charge until
Nov. 28 from the GASB O rder Department, 401 Merritt
7, P.O. Box 5116, Norwalk, CT 06856-5116.

Quarterly List o f Items Available on AICPA Fax Retrieval System
In Sept The CPA Letter informed members of a new service
enabling them to obtain documents through their fax
machines 24 hours a day, 7 days a week. The article men
tioned that The CPA Letter would feature a quarterly list of
all items to become available on the Fax Hotline during
the previous quarter; below is the first such list.The others
are scheduled to appear in Jan., Apr. and July.
Document
Number
Item
250
Accounting Educators: FYI, May 1994
251
Accounting Educators: FYI, Sept. 1994
252
Accounting Educators: FYI, Nov. 1994
(Ed. Note: Accounting Educators: FYI is a 4-page newslet
ter covering general developments in accounting educa
tion and programs of the AICPA Academic and Career
Development Division.)
260
SECPS Practice Alert No. 94-1, “Dealing with
Audit Differences”
261
SECPS Practice Alert No. 94-2, “Auditing
Inventories—Physical Observations”
262
SECPS Practice Alert, “Acceptance and
Continuance of Audit Clients”
(Ed. Note: SECPS Practice Alert focuses on audit issues
arising in litigation, peer reviews and firm inspections.)
270
Financial Manager’s Report, May 1993
271
Financial Manager’s Report, Sept. 1993
272
Financial Manager’s Report, Nov. 1993

273
Financial Manager’s Report, Mar. 1994
274
Financial Manager’s Report, May 1994
275
Financial Manager’s Report, Sept. 1994
276
Financial Manager’s Report, Nov. 1994
(Ed. Note: Financial Manager’s Report is a periodic
update for CPAs in business and industry.)
900
Tax Fax Index—List of documents from the
AICPA Tax Division
921
Accuracy-related penalties under Sec. 662,
comments on proposed regulations
922
Employee v. independent contractor, letter
to congressional leadership
923
Health care, letter to congressional leadership
924
S corporations, excerpt only from health
care letter to congressional leadership
925
Lobbying cost allocation, comments on pro
posed regulations
926
Defining lobbying, comments on proposed
regulations
927
Netting overpayments and underpayments
for interest calculations, letter to Asst.
Treasury Secretary
928
Trusts—Income tax rates for estates and
trusts, letter to Congress and a related mem
orandum
929
Trusts—Reporting requirements for grantor
trusts, comments to the IRS
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Tax Division’s Tax Season Materials Available Next Month
Responding to requests from its section members, the
AICPA Tax Division will begin mailing the 1994 Tax
Practice Guides and Checklists earlier this year—beating the
past mailing date by about a month—to ensure practi
tioners have the materials in plenty of time to plan for
the upcoming tax season.
Section members should receive the 1994 Tax
Practice Guides and Checklists (No. 059508CL) by mid-Dec.
The publication provides more than 350 pages of com
pliance-focused and practice-management materials.
The guides and checklists help tax practitioners to com
pete more efficiently and with greater competence—a
distinction that is particularly important in the highly
competitive and highly litigious atmosphere that cur
rently exists. The publication will be given to new Tax
section members who join by Nov. 30.
Those who are not section members may purchase
the product (to be available after Nov. 28) from the
AICPA O rder Department (see page 11). Price: $75
AICPA member, $82.50 non-member.
Also, the practice guides and the checklists are avail
able on diskette this year. Information, including an
order form, is included in the practice guides package (a

CPE
News

December CPE DIRECT
Study Guide Available

CPE DIRECT, the AICPA subscrip
tion series that enables members to
earn up to 24 hours a year of CPE
credit for reading certain Journal of
Accountancy articles and completing
a study guide, costs just $129.
The price includes four study guides, issued quar
terly, which are based on designated articles in the three
preceding monthly issues of the Journal. The articles
cover information on a broad range of subjects, including
financial accounting, management, international busi
ness, computer technology and hum an resources. CPE
DIRECT study guides also contain other readings, check
lists or practice aids to enhance members’ insight. The
study guides are released in Mar., June, Sept. and Dec.
To receive CPE credit, members need to read the
designated articles in the Journal, complete the study
guide, answer the questions and return the answer sheet
for grading. A passing grade affords the member an
AICPA Certificate of Completion stating that the mem
ber has earned 6 recommended CPE credits in specified
fields of study. Six credits in specified fields of study will
be given each time a quarterly answer sheet is sent in, for
a total of 24 credits. Since CPE requirements vary from
state to state, members should contact their state boards
of accountancy for information concerning the state
requirements as to the num ber of CPE credit hours that
must be earned and the acceptable fields of study.
Order now to receive the Dec. study guide, CPE
DIRECT (No. G01050CLK). Or start with the Sept. 1994
issue (No. G01049CLK), the June 1994 issue (No.
G01048CLK) or the Mar. 1994 issue (No. G01046CLK).
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nominal charge to cover manufacturing, duplication and
shipping costs applies).
Tax section members enjoy a host of other benefits
as well, including discounts of up to 50% on commercial
research materials and the latest CD-ROM products. In
addition, section members periodically receive the
AICPA Tax Division Newsletter which keeps them informed
of newsworthy items and provides practical advice.
Further, the Tax Division works hard to ensure that the
collective voice of CPAs is heard on the most important
issues of our time, such as health care reform, indepen
dent contractor status, tax simplification, professional
liability reform, work load compression and electronic
filing. The Tax Division provides comments, testimony
and, in many cases, alternatives to congressional or IRS
proposals under consideration.
AICPA Tax section membership costs $95 per year.
To join the 25,000 colleagues already receiving the bene
fits of Tax section membership or to receive a free copy
of the most recent issue of the AICPA Tax Division
Newsletter, call Rachel Lester at 202/434-9270, or write:
AICPA Tax Division, 1455 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW,
Suite 400, Washington, DC 20004-1081.

CPE Direct is available from the AICPA O rder
Department (give Operator Code CLK and AICPA mem
bership number) and state CPA societies.
C o nferences
National Construction Conference, Dec. 5-6, Las Vegas,
recommended CPE credit: 16 hours. National Auto
Dealership Conference, Dec. 5-6, New Orleans, recom
m ended CPE credit: 16 hours. Fall Tax Division
Meeting*, Dec. 5-7, Phoenix, recommended CPE credit:
8 hours. Personal Financial Planning Technical
Conference*, Jan. 9-11, Phoenix, recommended CPE
credit: 21 hours. Conference on C urrent SEC
Developments*, Jan. 10-11, Washington, D.C., recom
m ended CPE credit: 17 hours. For more information,
call the AICPA-CPE Division at 800/862-4272 (dept. #3,
option #2). For conferences indicated by
contact
AICPA Meetings & Travel Services at 201/938-3232.
G roup Study
The new AICPA C orporate Tax Clinic, developed using
the same two-day, low-cost, high-benefit formula as the
AICPA 1040 Tax Clinic, is being presented around the
country. Both courses are geared to tax preparers with
one to five years of experience, seasonal preparers, parttime practitioners seeking a refresher and paraprofessionals/support staff with some experience preparing
1040 a n d /o r 1120 and 1120S forms. Participants will
receive full coverage of the items they need to know to
prepare these forms successfully during tax season. To
receive a detailed brochure that includes registration
information for both clinics, dial 201/938-3787 from a
fax machine, follow the voice cues and select document
no. 702, or call 800/862-4272 (option #4).
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New
Products &
Publications

The Accounting Profession in the
United Kingdom (No. 010140CL)
describes United Kingdom account
ing and auditing standards and
compares them to those generally
accepted in the United States. Price:
$31 member, $34 non-member.

The Personal Financial Planning Division has published a
Personal Financial Planning Questionnaire (No. 017203CL)
to help members gather and organize the information
needed to better understand their clients, including per
sonal and family information, financial planning goals

Disciplinary
Actions

As a result of investigations of
alleged violations of the Code of
Professional Conduct of the AICPA
a n d /o r state CPA societies, the
following ethics cases have been
resolved by settlement agreements
under the Joint Ethics
Enforcement Program:
■ On July 8, 1994, Leroy P. Studer of Newport Beach,
Calif., settled charges of violating Rule 201B—Due
Professional Care, Rule 202—Compliance with Standards
and Rule 203—Accounting Principles in connection with
his audit of the financial statements of a client. Without
admitting or denying the charges, Mr. Studer agreed to a
two-year suspension of his membership in the AICPA, to
complete 80 hours of specified CPE courses during the
suspension period and to submit one work product to the
Professional Ethics Division for review.
■ Robert J. McGraw Jr. of Westminster, Colo., and Robert
J. McGraw Sr. of Northglenn, Colo., on Aug. 1 and Aug.
9, 1994, respectively, settled charges of violating Rule
201—General Standards, Rule 202—Auditing Standards,
Rule 203—Accounting Principles and Rule 501—Acts
Discreditable of the pre-Jan. 12, 1988, Code of Professional
Conduct in connection with their audit of a federally
assisted housing project. Without admitting or denying the
charges, they agreed to two-year suspensions of their mem
berships in the AICPA and the Colorado Society of CPAs,
to complete 80 hours of specified CPE courses during the
suspension period and to submit one work product to the
Professional Ethics Division for review.
■ On Aug. 11, 1994, John D. Tapp of San Gabriel, Calif.,
settled charges of violating Rule 202—Auditing
Standards in connection with his audits of the financial
statements and construction cost certifications of two
clients. Without admitting or denying the charges, Mr.
Tapp agreed to a suspension of his membership in the
AICPA until Apr. 30, 1995, to complete 56 hours of spec
ified CPE courses during the suspension period and to
submit a sample of his work product to the Professional
Ethics Division for review.
■ On Aug. 11, 1994, Robert L. Mayo of Tallahassee, Fla.,
settled charges of violating Rule 201B—Due Professional
Care, Rule 202—Compliance with Standards, Rule 203—
Accounting Principles and Rule 501—Acts Discreditable
in connection with his audit of the financial statements

AICPA
and objectives, assets, insurance coverage, liabilities,
retirement planning, taxes and recordkeeping. Price: $25
for 25 copies member, $27.50 non-member.
To order, write: AICPA O rder Department, CL1194,
P.O. Box 2209, Jersey City, NJ 07303-2209; order via
fax, 800/362-5066, or call 800/862-4272 (d ep t #1).
Ask for Operator CL1194. The best times to call are
8:30 to 11:30 a.m. and 2:00 to 5:30 p.m. Orders for
exposure drafts must be written or faxed. Prices do
not include shipping and handling.

of a client. Without admitting or denying the charges,
Mr. Mayo agreed to a two-year suspension of his mem
bership in the AICPA, to complete 80 hours of specified
CPE courses during the suspension period and to submit
a sample of his work product to the Professional Ethics
Division for review.
■ On Aug. 11, 1994, Morris S. Gruber of Floral Park, N.Y.,
settled charges of violating Rule 202—Compliance with
Standards/Auditing Standards and Rule 203—
Accounting Principles in connection with his audit of an
employee benefit plan. Without admitting or denying the
charges, Mr. Gruber agreed to a two-year suspension of
his membership in the AICPA and New York State Society
of CPAs, to complete 80 hours of specified CPE courses
during the suspension period and to submit one work
product to the Professional Ethics Division for review.
As a result of decisions by hearing panels of the Joint
Trial Board, the following members have had their
memberships:
— Terminated from the AICPA and his state CPA society:
■ Reider L. Hoff of Brookfield, Wisc., for failing to
respond to requests to document the completion of
required CPE courses.
— Terminated for failing to cooperate with the AICPA
in disciplinary investigations of complaints:
■ Matteo R. Girardi of Barre, Mass.
■ W. Spencer Harris of San Diego, Calif.
■ Wendell Stanton of Billings, Mont.
— Terminated from membership in the AICPA and his
state society as a result of the acceptance of a guilty plea
by the Joint Trial Board in lieu of a trial board hearing:
■Jimmy L. Steele of Center, Texas, for misusing confiden
tial information obtained in his capacity as a member of
the Texas Society of CPAs Professional Ethics Committee.

Elijah W att Sells Award W inners A nnounced
Leanne M. Sardiga of Flossmoor, Ill., has won the
Gold Elijah Watt Sells Award for achieving the high
est score on the May 1994 Uniform CPA Exam.
David Spivak of St. Louis Park, Minn., and R. Todd
White of Urbandale, Iowa, won the silver and bronze
awards, respectively. The awards were presented to
these and the Nov. 1993 winners at the Annual
Members’ Meeting.
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The Federal Home Loan Mortgage
Corporation recently issued a bul
letin containing changes to its Mar.
1993 Compliance Reporting Guide
( The CPA Letter, June 1993). The
guide addresses the scope of com
pliance attestation engagements at institutions that sell
or service mortgage loans under Freddie Mac programs,
sets forth certain procedures to be performed and pre
sents required reporting formats. The changes, which
clarify the guide for certain policy revisions and correc
tions, are effective for reports covering fiscal years end
ing Dec. 31, 1994, and thereafter.
Copies of the bulletin have been given to seller/ser
vicers with instructions to provide copies to independent
accountants. AICPA members can receive a copy by dial
ing 201/938-3787 from a fax machine, following the
voice cues and selecting document no. 306. For addi
tional information, call 800-FREDDIE.

CPA Applicants Sought for SEC
Fellowship Program
The Securities and Exchange Commission is seeking
CPA applicants for three fellowships in the Office of the

Chief Accountant. During two-year terms beginning in
1995, the fellows will study and develop proposed federal
securities rules. Applications are due Dec. 31. For infor
mation, write: Office of the Chief Accountant, SEC, Mail
Stop 9-5, 450 Fifth St. NW, Washington, DC 20549, or
call the SEC at 202/942-4400.

IRS Issues New Electronic Filing
Program Procedures
New electronic filing procedures were issued recently by
the IRS in an effort to combat fraud. The new proce
dures will apply to the upcoming filing season and are
outlined in Revenue Procedure 94-63. Tax practitioners
wishing to use electronic filing must be at least 21 years
of age and a U.S. citizen or have permanent resident
alien status, and are required to submit their fingerprints
so the IRS can check criminal records and authorize a
credit check. CPAs, attorneys and enrolled agents are
exempt from the fingerprinting requirement. The credit
checks, however, will be done on all participants. A firm
may designate a “responsible official” for up to 10 loca
tions or branches of a firm. For example, a firm with 100
locations must designate a minimum of 10 responsible
officials to exempt the remainder of the tax practitioners
employed by the firm from the requirements of the rev
enue procedure. The “responsible official” will be sub
ject to the requirements of Rev. Proc. 94-63.
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At the ballot box in Nov., voters called for
change and incoming Republicans are
determined to produce i t In the U.S. House
of Representatives it likely will be at a whirl
wind pace. Americans can be assured that,
at least in the House, the change will be pro
found. The most pressing need for the
AICPA in this new environment is to find
CPAs who personally know the newly
elected members of Congress.
AICPA Key Persons are the bedrock of
the Institute’s legislative campaigns.
Members who know their members of
Congress, or know well some other member
of Congress, are encouraged to volunteer to
be a Key Person by filling out the form on
page four of the Capitol Account, a special
insert to this issue of The CPA Letter.
Exuberant House Republicans are
using as a master plan their Contract With
America—the docum ent signed by many
House Republican candidates as a pledge to
voters about how they would renew
America.
The Contract includes a promise to vote
on a package of congressional reforms early
in the 104th Congress. Those reforms will
help set the tone for the new GOP House,
which its incoming leaders envision as
leaner and more productive. The guts of the
Contract is its 10-point legislative program.
Included are proposals to enact and send to
the 50 states for ratification a balanced-bud
get amendm ent to the U.S. Constitution, to
limit the num ber of terms members of
Congress may serve, and to reform the wel
fare system.
As Republicans march forward with
their agenda, the AICPA will be on the look
out for areas where the interests of the
accounting profession and congressional
Republicans match. One of the most obvi
ous areas of mutual interest is the section of
the Contract With America that promises limits

to abusive securities lawsuits. Securities liti
gation reform is one of the AICPA’s top leg
islative priorities, and the Institute will take
full advantage of this opportunity to support
reforms that will be meaningful to the
accounting profession.
Although optimistic that at long last the
Congress may consider work load compres
sion, the new Republican control of
Congress makes it difficult to predict how
that will affect the AICPA’s push to enact its
solution to the work load compression prob
lem. A tax bill in the first part of the 104th
Congress is a near certainty. However, no
crystal ball can predict which tax provisions
in the Contract will survive the legislative
process, how they will be paid for, and
whether the AICPA’s work load compres
sion solution can be folded into the tax
package. However, the Institute has begun a
“full-court press” on this issue, in the words
of AICPA Chair Robert L. Israeloff. The
AICPA will be using all its energy to see that
a solution to the work load compression
problem becomes law.
Tax legislation is an area of perpetual
interest to CPAs. The GOP’s short-term tax
agenda includes a capital gains rate cut,
elimination of the marriage penalty, repeal
of the taxation of some Social Security
income for higher-income retirees, a mid
dle-income tax cut through a child-care
credit or some other approach, and
increased incentives for savings. The GOP’s
long-term tax agenda is likely to include
examination of various consumption and
flat-tax proposals as a replacement of the
present income tax system. Obviously, such
a change would have serious implications
for the accounting profession. The AICPA
will be participating in discussions about any
such move to protect the best interests of
the profession and to ensure that Congress
adopts good tax policy.

AICPA
News
Briefs
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AICPA Annual Report
Published

The AICPA’s 1993-94 Annual
Report has been prepared and will
be included in the Dec. issue of the
Journal ofAccountancy. Members are
encouraged to read the report to
learn about the Institute’s major
initiatives, programs and activities this past fiscal year.
Topics covered include the status of the AICPA Board of
Directors’ accounting and disciplinary reforms, manage
ment accounting projects, progress on liability relief for
auditors, and activities of the Tax, Personal Financial
Planning, Management Consulting Services and
Information Technology membership sections.

Members Invited to Submit Nominations
for Educators Award
All AICPA members are invited to nominate an account
ing educator for the 1995 AICPA Lifetime Achievement
in Accounting Education Award. The award is designed
to recognize full-time accounting educators distin
guished for excellence in classroom teaching and for
active involvement in the accounting profession.
Nominees must have a teaching career of at least 20
years. Self-nominations will not be accepted. To make a
nomination, members must submit an official nomina
tion form, a statement supporting the nomination and a
current resume or curriculum vitae of the nominee
before May 1 5 ,1995. To obtain an official nomination
form a n d /o r more information on the award, dial
201/938-3787 from a fax machine, follow the voice cues
and select document no. 249.

AICPA JOB BANK Up and Running
Since the CPAJOB BANK was established this past sum
m er (The CPA Letter, June), more than 40 state societies
have added their support as cosponsors of the program.
In addition, more than 1,000 AICPA members have
enrolled, and more than 100 employer searches have
been conducted. “Although still in its infancy, we believe,
with the state societies’ support, this program has the
potential to be an outstanding member benefit,” said Jay
Rothberg, vice-president, member and state relations.
For more information or to participate, call
800/939-1040.

AcSEC Issues Statement o f Position 94-5
The Accounting Standards Executive Committee has
issued SOP 94-5, Disclosures of Certain Matters in the
Financial Statements of Insurance Enterprises (No.
014883CL), which is effective for financial statements
issued for fiscal years ending after Dec. 15, 1994. The
SOP requires insurance enterprises to make the follow
ing disclosures in their financial statements:
The CPA Letter (ISSN 0094-792x), December 1994, is published monthly, except
bimonthly Feb./Mar. and Aug./Sept. Publication and editorial office: 1211 Avenue of the
Americas, New York, NY 10036-8775, 212/596-6200. Second-class postage paid at
New York, NY and at additional mailing offices. Copyright © 1994, American Institute of
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■ The accounting methods used in their statutory finan
cial statements that are permitted by state insurance
departments and that differ from GAAP
■ Information about their liabilities for unpaid claims
and claim adjustment expenses
The exposure draft of the SOP also had required
that insurance enterprises disclose certain information
about their adjusted regulatory risk-based capital levels.
Though AcSEC continues to believe that disclosure of
risk-based capital levels is desirable, questions were
raised about the legality of such disclosures in certain
states that still need to be addressed. Accordingly, AcSEC
decided it will consider a separate SOP at a later date on
risk-based capital disclosures for insurance enterprises.
In the meantime, insurance enterprises that determine it
is not illegal to disclose regulatory risk-based capital are
encouraged to make such disclosures in their financial
statements.
To obtain a copy of the SOP, contact the AICPA
O rder Department (see page 5). Price: $8 member, $9
non-member.

IRS Sets Shipping Dates for 1994
“Package X” Forms
The IRS has scheduled shipping of its 1994 Informational
Copies ofFederal Tax Forms (Package X). Volume 1 will be
shipped to arrive in practitioners’ offices by mid-Dec.,
and Volume 2 by mid-Jan. No Volume 3 is expected at
this time.

Xerox Offers Rebate on Printers
In addition to its specially discounted member affinity
prices, Xerox is offering AICPA members a $100-$250
cash rebate on its 4500 series desktop laser printers. This
promotional offers expires Dec. 31. To participate, mem
bers should contact their local Xerox representatives.

Public Meeting Notices
For detailed agendas, call 800/862-4272 (dept. #6)
three weeks prior to these meetings.
Accounting and Review Services Committee:
Dec. 16, New York
Accounting Standards Executive Committee:
Dec. 13-14, New York;
Jan. 24-25, Long Boat Key, Fla.
Auditing Standards Board: Dec. 13-15, New York
Professional Ethics Executive Committee:
Jan. 20, Scottsdale, Ariz.
O ther Meetings
Peer Review Board:
Jan. 12-13, Palm Springs

Certified Public Accountants, Inc. Postmaster Send address changes to The CPA Letter,
Circ. Dept, Harborside Financial Ctr., 201 Plaza Three, Jersey City, NJ 07311-3881.

Geoffrey L. Pickard
Vice-President— Communications
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Elections and Actions at Council and Annual Members' Meeting
The AICPA’s governing Council m et on Oct. 24—25 in
Boston. At the meeting, Council elected Robert L.
Israeloff of New York as chair of the AICPA Board of
Directors for 1994-95, and Ronald S. Cohen of South
Bend, Ind., as vice-chair.
In addition, Council elected the following individu
als to three-year terms as directors: Robert K. Elliot of
New York, Kathy G. Eddy of West Virginia, Jerrell A.
Atkinson of New Mexico, Olivia F. Kirtley of Kentucky,
W. Thomas Cooper Jr. of Kentucky and James C.
Treadway of New York. Thomas G. Jordan of Michigan
was elected to a one-year term as director.
In his inaugural speech, Israeloff outlined the priori
ties for his term: solving everyday practice problems,
such as work load compression and unwarranted liability
exposure; underscoring the AICPA’s commitment to
member service; and reinforcing the public’s trust in
CPAs. Israeloff said the Institute already has begun dis
cussions with the Treasury Department to enlist its sup
port for allowing pass-through entities to choose their
own fiscal years to relieve the profession’s “peaks and val
leys,” and he also announced the creation of the
Member Outreach Program (The CPA Letter, Nov.) to
bring AICPA staff and members closer together.
Additionally, Israeloff talked about an upcoming evalua
tion of all the printed material the AICPA mails to its
members, a full-featured electronic bulletin board for
delivering important information to members, and a
planned national communications campaign that would
aggressively promote the appropriate image of CPAs.
In other actions, Council:
■ Approved the combination of the PCPS peer review
program and the quality review program effective with
reviews commencing Apr. 3 , 1995.

CPE
News

Self Study and Videocourses
Annual Tax Update

A new annual tax update course
shows members exactly how the
IRS and the courts have been han
dling critical issues after passage of
the Revenue Reconciliation Act of
1993. It brings members up-to-date
on all the important federal tax developments relating to
individual income taxes, business taxes, estates and
trusts, employment taxes and tax procedures. Full texts
of significant new regulations and rulings are repro
duced. Recommended CPE credit: 8 hours. O rder by
Mar. 3 1 , 1995, and save up to 25% off list price. Format:
3 audiocassettes/workbook (No. 740052CLL), $89 (dis
counted price); additional workbook (No. 740053CLL),
$59.50 (discounted price). Available through the AICPA
O rder Department (see page 5) and state CPA societies.

Group Study
With five major courses being offered nationally this
month and next, there are still opportunities to prepare
for the coming tax season. M astering the 1995 Tax
Season Challenges—An Annual Update is being held in

■ Presented the Outstanding Accounting Educator
Award to Dr. Jan Robert Williams of the University of
Tennessee in Knoxville.
■ Presented the AICPA Gold Medal for Distinguished
Service to Herman J. Lowe, who was chair of the AICPA
Board of Directors 1985-86, and has been a member of
Council since 1985 in addition to periods of prior service
with Council.
■ Heard presentations on the impact of technological
developments on the profession and developed, in
break-out discussion groups, suggestions as to how the
Institute can assist its members in this crucial area.

Video U pdate on Issues Facing
CPAs Available
At its meeting, Council viewed a 21-minute video
tape that summarizes various Institute activities. The
tape, “October 1994 Council Report” (No.
890682CL), also is available to members.
Topics discussed in the video include the status
of legal liability reform, progress on solving work
load compression, charges of the new Special
Committee on Assurance Services, initiatives of the
Women and Family Issues Executive Committee and
objectives of the new minority mentoring program.
In addition, the Management of an Accounting
Practice Committee, Small Firm Advocacy
Committee and Information Technology Research
Subcommittee provide updates.
The video is available from the AICPA O rder
Department (see page 5). Price: $12, including ship
ping and handling.

14 locations. The Sidney Kess Individual Incom e Tax
Returns W orkshop has 29 presentations, and the Sidney
Kess Corporate Incom e Tax Returns Work shop has 8.
The 1040 Tax Clinic has 21 presentations and the
Corporate Tax Clinic offers 6 presentations (the clinics
are for less-experienced tax preparers). To obtain more
information on these programs, including dates, locations
and registration information, dial 201/938-3787 from a
fax machine, follow the voice cues and select document
no. 703 for Mastering the 1995 Tax Season Challenges—
An Annual Update, no. 701 for the Individual Income Tax
Returns W orkshop and the Corporate Income Tax
Returns W orkshop, and no. 702 for the 1040 Tax Clinic
and the Corporate Tax Clinic.
The CPE Division reminds CPAs that CPE is required by
most states to retain a CPA license and is also a member
ship requirement of the AICPA. All AICPA courses qual
ify toward the AICPA CPE requirement and provide rec
ommended CPE credit towards state requirements. To be
put on the AICPA’s priority mailing list for the 1995-96
CPE Seminar Catalog, write: LaTanya Junior, AICPA,
Harborside Financial Center, 201 Plaza Three, Jersey
City, NJ 07311-3881.
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Compilation and Review Alert—1994 to Be Published
The Compilation and Review Alert—1994 (No. 060668CL),
to be available in mid-Dec., is a nonauthoritative practice
aid designed to help accountants plan their 1994 compi
lation and review engagements. Topics for the alert gen
erally come from recent practice questions raised by
CPAs. The alert includes commentary on certain existing
professional standards, suggests ways of implementing
statements on standards for accounting and review ser
vices in unusual circumstances, points out pitfalls that fre
quently occur in compilation and review engagements,
and summarizes new professional pronouncements.
Following is a brief overview of some of the subjects
discussed in the alert:
■Tailoring an Engagement to M eet a C lient's Needs—
presents factors a CPA should consider when recom
mending a level o f service to a client.
■Independence and Client Services—provides examples
of services a CPA might perform for a client—ancillary to
a compilation or review engagement—that could impair
the accountant’s independence.
■Use o f the Term “U naudited” in Com piled and
Reviewed Financial Statements—describes the origin of
the term “unaudited” and explains why the use of this
term is not recommended for compiled or reviewed
financial statements.
■ Going-Concern Considerations—points out the sec
tions of SAS No. 59, The Auditor’s Consideration of an
Entity’s Ability to Continue as a Going Concern, that are
applicable to compiled and reviewed financial state
ments, and discusses the effect of going-concern disclo
sure deficiencies and other going-concern matters on
the accountant’s compilation or review rep o rt
■When to W ithdraw from an Engagement—describes
circumstances in which a CPA may need to consider

withdrawing from an engagement.
■Agreed-Upon Procedures and Debt Covenant Letters—
describes how an accountant may provide a debtcovenant letter to a client for submission to the client’s
bank by performing an agreed-upon procedures engage
m ent under SSAE No. 3, Compliance Attestation.
■Reporting on Budgets—Explains the accountant’s
reporting responsibility when historical financial state
ments are presented with budgeted financial informa
tion for an expired period, and also discusses the special
“disclaimer-for-budgets” when interim historical financial
statements are presented with budgeted financial infor
mation that includes an unexpired period.
■Electronic Pronouncem ents—alerts practitioners to the
availability of certain professional standards in electronic
format for computer use and describes how to obtain
them.
■New GAAP Requirem ents—provides an update on new
accounting standards in the GAAP hierarchy. This sec
tion includes brief discussions of derivative financial
instruments, impairment of loans, contributions received
and made, investments in securities, advertising costs
and employers with ESOPs.
Copies of the alert will be available from the AICPA
O rder Department (see page 5). Price: $10 member, $11
non-member. The Private Companies Practice Section is
providing each member firm with a gratis copy.
In addition, a new self-study course, Compilation and
Review Update: A Study Guide to the Compilation and Review
Alert—1994 (No. 730108CL), will be available Feb. 1.
Recommended CPE credit: 2 hours. Price: $35. The selfstudy course will be available from the AICPA Order
Department and state CPA societies.

Report on Derivatives to Be Issued This Month
A report entitled Derivatives—Current Accounting and
Auditing Literature (No. 014888CL) is about to be issued
by the Financial Instruments Task Force of the
Accounting Standards Executive Committee. During the
last decade, the business community has witnessed an
unprecedented growth in the use and acceptance of
derivatives. That growth can be attributed to the fact that
when derivatives are properly used and monitored, they
help entities manage the risks they face in conducting
their day-to-day business. However, there are many risks
and uncertainties associated with derivatives, including
not only their use but the adequacy of the related
accounting and auditing guidance.
Because of those uncertainties, the AICPA prepared
this report which provides background information on
the basic contracts, risks and other general considera
tion associated with derivatives to provide a context for

discussion of current authoritative accounting and
auditing guidance. Financial statement preparers, audi
tors, investors, creditors and other financial statement
users will find this report beneficial.
The report focuses on derivatives that are not recog
nized in entities’ balance sheets, such as forwards, futures,
swaps and options. The special features associated with
those contracts increase their risks. They may also
increase audit risk; therefore, the report includes a dis
cussion of the auditing literature applicable to derivatives
in the context of an audit of financial statements. The
auditing guidance covers audit objectives and planning,
considerations of internal controls over financial report
ing of derivatives activities, and substantive procedures.
The report will be available after Dec. 5 through the
AICPA O rder Department (see page 5). Price: $7 mem
ber, $7.75 non-member.

GASB to Issue Three Statements on Pensions
At press time, the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board was scheduled to issue on Nov. 22 three statements
on pension plans ( The CPA Letter, Apr.): Financial Reporting
for Defined Benefit Pension Plans, Financial Reportingfor
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Postemployment Health Care Plans Administered by Defined
Benefit Plans, and Employers ’Accountingfor Pensions. To
obtain copies of Statements 25, 26 or 27, respectively, call
the GASB Order Department at 203/847-0700, ext. 555.

Washington, D.C.

December 1994

Congress Wraps Up;
Accounting Profession
Sets 1995 Legislative Agenda
he 103rd Congress came to Washington
in January 1993 amid predictions that
control o f both ends o f Pennsylvania
Avenue by Democrats would bring action and
change; it recessed in October bitterly divided
and tightly gridlocked. The pace o f the Clin
ton Administration’ s early victories, which
often were won on strict party-line votes, could
not be sustained as the health care debate took
center stage and the fragile Democratic unity
fractured. Sensing that the November elec
tions would provide them with a long-sought
opportunity to take control, Republicans
blocked Democrat efforts at every turn. Bills
withered and died in the corroded political
atmosphere, including bills important to the
accounting profession. Still, the accounting
profession won some fights in the 103rd
Congress. It is well positioned to press ahead
with its agenda in the upcoming, Republicancontrolled Congress.

T

Topof1995Agenda
Staked out at the top o f the A IC P A ’ s legis
lative agenda for 1995 are two Herculean tasks:
fixing the workload compression problem
plaguing practitioners and reforming the
nation’ s securities litigation system.

WorkloadCompression
The Institute is poised to launch its cam
paign to win Congressional approval o f a
solution to the workload problem; the solution
was developed by the AICPA's Workload
Compression Task Force this year.
The workload compression proposal would
link a fiscal year election for a passthrough
entity with a requirement that the electing
entity—rather than the individual owners—make
estimated tax payments to the government on
behalf o f its owners. Partnerships and S
corporations remaining on a calendar year
would not be subject to this requirement. An
owner would not pay individual estimated tax
on the entity income, but would report that
income—and take credit for the estimated tax
paid—on the next 1040 form filed.

“ Because o f the 1986 Tax Reform Act, we
have a tax season that falls like an H-Bomb in
the first few months o f the year,” AIC PA Chair
man o f the Board Robert L. Israeloff told AIC PA
Council members in his inaugural address.
Israeloff promised “ a full-court press” to regain
full use o f fiscal years.
Reconnaissance missions are already under
way. AIC PA representatives are meeting with
Treasury Department and IRS officials to secure
them as allies in the profession’ s cause.

SecuritiesLitigationReform
The accounting profession advanced in its
battle to have Congress enact securities litigation
reform legislation during the 103rd Congress.
Senate hearings in 1993 kicked o ff the Congres
sional debate, offering the A IC PA its first oppor
tunity to argue its case before Congress, and led
to the introduction o f a securities litigation
reform bill in the Senate.
“ The current system is broken, plain and
simple,” Jake Netterville, who was then AIC PA
chairman o f the board, told members o f the
(Continued on Page 2)

Note to Readers:
This special edition o f Capitol Account
is appearing as an insert in The CPA
Letter for the first time. It provides a
snapshot o f federal legislative activity
im portant to the accounting profession
during this Congress and a look at what's
ahead. Capitol Account, produced in
the Institute's Washington, D .C. office, is
intended to inform AICPA Key Persons,
state society leaders, and AICPA Council
members about legislative activities in
our nation's capital. For details about
the Key Person Program and how you
can receive Capitol Account regularly,
see page 4.
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Securities Subcommittee. Taking full
advantage o f the forum, Netterville
pressed senators to rewrite the law. He
charged that the present system invites
excessive litigation that saddles busi
nesses and investors with huge costs,
while providing m inimal compensation
for victims o f securities fraud.
Introduction o f S. 1976 by Senator
Christopher Dodd (D-CT), w ho chaired
the Senate hearings, proved that the
profession had successfully argued its
case. AICPA Key Persons played a
pivotal role in signing up more than 20
bi-partisan cosponsors.
The charge for reform in the
House o f Representatives resulted
in hearings in August on H.R.
417, which was introduced by
Rep. Billy Tauzin (D-LA). Rep.
Tauzin is N etterville’s Member o f Con
gress and has been the spur behind the
House push for reform. The hearings
defined the areas o f greatest contention
between the two sides and gave the
Institute the coordinates it needs to plot
strategy for the upcoming Congress.
The inclusion o f a securities litigation
reform provision in the House Republi
cans' Contract With America should be a
big boost in this fight. Two political tasks
face the AICPA—to ensure that when
Congress acts reform provisions are
included with direct benefit to the
profession and to keep up the pressure on
Congress, while withstanding attacks by
the securities litigation bar, consumer
advocate Ralph Nader, and academics
aligned with the opposition.

Tax Initiatives
The AICPA won its long-fought battle
to repeal the onerous 1991 individual
estimated tax rules when President Clin
ton signed the 1993 budget plan into law.
The budget law included the proposal the
AICPA helped draft to restore a prior-year
tax safe harbor to individual taxpayers
who are required to make quarterly estim
ated tax payments. Congress followed
other Institute recommendations, too,
when it put together the final version of
the 1993 tax and budget package.
First, the
law allows

amortization o f intangible assets, includ
ing goodwill, over 15 years and generally
simplifies tax accounting in this area.
Second, the investment tax credit pro
posed by President Clinton, and opposed
by the AICPA on the grounds that it was
too com plex for the likely benefits, was
dropped from the bill. Third, a provision
that would have made more stringent the
standard allowing a preparer to sign a
return with a fully-disclosed controversial
return position was dropped from the bill,
as advocated by the AICPA.
The AICPA also helped defeat a

K ey P ersons Score W ins
cases. AICPA staff succeeded in having
ICPA Key Persons clinched two
the Senate amend two troublesome provi
legislative deals for the AICPA
sions so that they were acceptable. H ow 
this Congress. Both involved
ever, the Senate refused to remove or
provisions that were incidental to mam
amend a third provision. It required fees
moth bills: reform o f the nation’s bank
payable to professionals working on bank
ruptcy laws and overhaul o f the telecom 
ruptcy cases to be contingent on the total
munications industry. N onetheless, had
value o f the estate and on the funds
the provisions remained in the bills, they
available to all creditors.
would have had big consequences for the
When action on the bill shifted to the
accounting profession.
House, the AICPA urged the House
The AICPA flagged for attention the
Judiciary Committee Chairman to act to
bankruptcy reform legislation because
have the provision deleted. The Institute
several o f its provisions w ould have cut
fees for CPAs w ho work on bankruptcy
(Continued on Page 4)

A

Treasury Department plan that targeted
changes to the taxation o f inventory
transactions as a w ay to make up tariff
incom e that w ould be lost under the
General Agreem ent on Tariffs and Trade
(GATT). One o f the proposals would
have repealed the lower o f cost or market
inventory method. The AICPA criticized
both the substance o f the proposals and
the process by which Congress was being
asked to consider them. Happily, Treas
ury’s plan was not in the GATT legisla
tion scheduled to be considered by
Congress after the elections.
The Institute’s drive to assist more than
1.5 m illion o f our country’s small and
fam ily-owned businesses w ill continue
next Congress. During the 103rd Con
gress, bills supported by the AICPA
were introduced that would have
opened up new sources o f investment
and sim plified the rules under which
S corporations operate. The bills
were w idely supported, but Congress
did not act on them.
Tax simplification provisions long
championed by AICPA were included in a
tax simplification bill passed by the
House. The Senate did not act on it.

On O ther Fronts
The AICPA fought for, and won,
important concessions from lawmakers
writing the “Financial Fraud Detection
and Disclosure A ct” and the “Investment
Adviser Regulatory Enhancement and
Disclosure A ct.” The concessions pre
serve significant rights for the profession.
When the bills are reintroduced in the
104th Congress, the AICPA w ill be
vigilantly watching to be sure that the
agreed-upon language is included.
F A SB ’s controversial proposal to
account for stock options triggered Con
gressional debate about whether Congress
should set accounting standards. Fueling
the debate is the business com m unity’s
growing frustration with FASB over what
it considers the setting o f excessive stan
dards. At the eleventh hour in this Con
gress, a bill was introduced to require the
SEC to approve new accounting prin
ciples issued by FASB. What action the
new Republican Congress might take in
this area likely w ill be determined by
FA SB’s action on its stock option pro
posal. In any event, the AICPA w ill fight
to protect private sector standard setting.
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Congress Salvages "Nanny Tax" Bill;
Some Tax Deductions Endangered
axpayers and tax practitioners take
heed: The stalled “nanny tax” bill
was salvaged and sent to President
Clinton by Congress, just before it bolted
for the campaign trail. It is effective for
1994 and will require that IRS change
Form 1040 for 1995 returns. Unfortu
nately, several long-time tax deductions
likely will expire due to Congressional
neglect. Topping the endangered species
list of tax deductions is the health care
deduction that sole proprietors and selfemployed individuals lost at the end of
1993. It was widely expected to be
restored this year.

T

Nanny Tax
The updated and simplified “nanny
tax” law is a boon for employers of dom
estic workers. Gone are multiple and
complex reporting forms and the outdated
threshold at which Social Security taxes
must be paid and reported. The AICPA
and others pushed hard for this bill, and
the AICPA applauds the Congress’s ef
fort. The Institute is pleased two of its
recommendations—to raise the threshold
and to exempt young workers—are part of
the new law. Specifically, the legislation
increases the reporting threshold from
$50 quarterly to $1,000 annually and
exempts domestic workers under age 18,
unless it is their principal job.
The new payment and reporting
system, though simpler than the old, does
not follow the AICPA’s recommendation.
The Institute earlier this year urged Con
gress to continue to have employers
report the payment of Social Security
taxes on IRS Form 942, separate from
Form 1040. Instead, Congress replaced
the present quarterly filing system with
an annual reporting and payment system
using a revised Form 1040 for years 1995
through 1997. Beginning in 1998, em
ployers will either increase their quar
terly estimated tax payments or increase
the taxes withheld from their own wages
to cover their share of domestic employee
Social Security tax.
Those employers and employees who
have paid Social Security taxes during
1994 are eligible for refunds of FICA
taxes if the employee’s wage falls below
the $ 1,000 ceiling. However, those em
ployees will still receive credit for Social
Security coverage if a Form W-2 is filed.

AICPA PAC Picks
3 1 4 W inners

Health Care Deduction
The death of the health care bill also
spelled the death of restoration this year of
the 25% self-employed deduction for
health insurance premiums paid in 1994.
(At press time, there was an outside
chance the 25% deduction would be
attached to the GATT legislation sched
uled to be considered by Congress during
a lame-duck session at the beginning of
December.)
The deduction died at the end of 1993,
but at that time Congress signaled its
intention to reinstate the deduction this
year as part of the bill overhauling the
health care system.
It is “critical that Congress re-establish
the right of self-employed persons to
receive” the deduction, the AICPA told
Congress following the demise of the
health care bill. The Institute suggested it
be attached to the “nanny tax” bill.
Congress chose, instead, to pass the
“nanny tax” bill without amendments.
The outlook for reinstating the deduc
tion during the 104th Congress is uncer
tain.
Democrats are already on record in
support of it. Outgoing Senate Finance
Committee Chairman Daniel Patrick
Moynihan (D-NY) has declared his
support for its retroactive reinstatement
and for raising the deduction from 25% to
100%. The incoming Republican chair
men of the House and Senate tax writing
committees may have other priorities.

Provisions Set to Expire
It's unclear whether a Republicancontrolled Congress increases or decreases
the chance of action on the following tax
provisions that are set to expire at the end
of calendar 1994:
Exclusion for employer-provided
educational assistance. Employees are
allowed to exclude from their gross in
come up to $5,250 of employer-provided
education expenses.
Tax-favored treatment of gifts of
appreciated property to private founda
tions. As a general rule, the amount
deductible for charitable gifts to such
foundations is not the value of the gift at
the time of the donation, but the cost of
the gift when the donor acquired it.

sing its political action com
mittee (PAC) as the vehicle,
the AICPA spoke loudly and
forcefully on behalf on the accounting
profession in the November elections,
racking up an impressive 88% win
rate. Contributions were made to
candidates who support the profes
sion’s interests.
The AICPA backed 358 candidates
in the November general election who
were competing for seats in the U.S.
Senate and House of Representatives.
Of those candidates, 314 won their
races and 44 lost. The coffers o f the
winners received 89% o f the AICPA's
dollars in these races. The split in
contributions between the parties was
nearly even, with 51% of the total
contributions going to Democrats and
49% to Republicans.
Importantly, 79% of the AICPA’s
PAC contributions were distributed to
the candidates in their states by CPAs
or a representative of the state’s CPA
society. The remaining 21% of the
dollars was delivered in Washington,
D.C. by AICPA staff.
PACs have been vilified in recent
years and, despite rhetoric to the con
trary, are not a secret system of fin
ancing elections open only to "Gucciclad" lobbyists and large corporations.
They were created to reform the polit
ical system by limiting the contribu
tions that can be made and providing
public accountability of all monies
donated to political candidates. PACs
are a positive force in the political
process and provide a means for
individuals, such as CPAs, to deliver
a focused message to candidates.
For more information, write
AICPA, Attn: Sheila Colclasure, 1455
Pennsylvania Avenue, N. W., Wash
ington, D.C. 20004, or call her at
202/434-9263.

U

Targeted jobs tax credit. Employers
are allowed a tax credit of up to $2,400
each time they hire a hard-to-employ
applicant.
Orphan drug credit. Developers of
drugs for rare diseases generally are
allowed a 50% credit for testing expenses.
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argued it is appropriate for practitioners
to be fairly compensated for all services
performed at the direction of the estate in
bankruptcy. The AICPA followed up its
efforts with the Chairman by asking the
Chairman’s Key Person to talk with him
about this issue. The Chairman, as a
result of his conversation with his Key
Person, negotiated with the Senate
sponsor of this provision to have it
removed. Congress later passed the
bankruptcy bill, minus the provision
opposed by the AICPA, and sent it to
President Clinton to be signed.
Also targeted for action by the AICPA
was a provision in the telecommunica
tions bill to require mandatory rotation of
firms performing work for the regional
“Baby Bell” companies. AICPA staff
negotiated with Senate staff for months to
get the unprecedented rotation language
removed. Although the AICPA received a
sympathetic hearing on Capitol Hill, one
U.S. senator refused to agree to the
provision’s removal.
Finally, the Institute asked the Key
Person for the chairman of the Senate
Commerce Committee to talk with him
about the impact the rotation provision
would have on the profession and its
clients. The Chairman agreed to remove
the rotation language, if the profession
would not seek further changes to the bill.
The profession agreed, and the committee
approved the bill without the mandatory
firm rotation provision.
Ultimately, Congress ran out of time to
act on the telecommunications bill. It
will be back next Congress and the
AICPA may have to call upon Key
Persons to work their magic again.

AICPA Key Persons:
The Profession's Political Activists
ho’s hard-hitting, gets to the political bottom line, and is located in every
state? AICPA Key Persons. CPAs from across the country, who volunteer
as AICPA Key Persons, are the profession’s most effective lobbyists on
Capitol Hill. These CPAs, leaders in the profession’s advocacy and in protecting the
profession, are as adept at working the political system as in scrutinizing the
numbers in a financial statement. They are the reason that the profession is assured
that Members of Congress will hear our message.
And why do they listen? Because Key Persons personally know the Member of
Congress with whom they are matched in the program. Usually, the Key Persons are
constituents-and Members of Congress always respond to constituents. Or, the Key
Person may be an old school friend or campaign treasurer. Whatever the relation
ship, the program provides the accounting profession with a spokesperson who is
known and trusted by that Member of Congress.
The Key Person Program is the foundation of the Institute’s political and legisla
tive operations and is a cooperative effort between the AICPA and the state societies.
If you know any of your federal officials and would like to participate in the Key
Person Program, please send in the form below. You'll be mailed an information
package explaining how you can become a Key Person. If you have any questions,
please call John Sharbaugh at 202/434-9257.

W

I'd like to be a Key Person for:
My Name:________________
Address:

Telephone:
Please mail to: John Sharbaugh, AICPA, 1455 Pennsylvania Ave., N.W.
Washington, D.C. 20004

If you would like to be added to the Capitol Account mailing list, write AICPA,
Attn: Shirley Twillman, 1455 Pennsylvania Avenue, N.W., Washington, D.C. 20004
or call her at 202/434-9220.
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Member to
Mem ber...
Chair’s
Corner

One of the major problems facing
AICPA members who serve pri
vately owned businesses is the con
cept that when they become “associ
ated” with financial statements, they
must follow all the reporting and
disclosure standards that apply to
publicly held companies. This
places the burden of “standards overload” on local practi
tioners who are merely trying to help small clients—who
usually have no employees with financial expertise—to
manage their businesses.
The rationale offered by standards setters for this
state of affairs is that the profession and the public need
one set of rules for all. They say we cannot have a situa
tion that would lead to a big GAAP and a little GAAP. I
think they’re wrong!
After three years of intensive study, the AICPA’s own
Special Committee on Financial Reporting concluded:
“Users have different needs for information depending
on the circumstances. Because needs for information
and costs of reporting differ, not all companies should
report all types of information in the same frequency,
and in the same time frame. Standardized reporting by
all companies would result in excessive costs and in many
cases, provide more information than is needed. Rather,
the types and timing of information in business report
ing should be customized to meet users’ needs and cost
constraints in the particular circumstances.”
This idea of “different strokes for different folks” is
beginning to take hold around the world. A commission
of England’s Accounting Standards Board has recom
mended that all companies with revenue of less than 2.8
million pounds (slightly over $4 million) be exempt
from all but four of the existing statements of standard
accounting practice.
And our own AICPA members continue to point to
the standards overload problem. From a survey by the

Small Firm Advocacy Committee, we have these quotes:
“Need m ore small company exceptions to GAAP, which is
based upon large company reporting requirements.”
“GAAP requirements have no relativity to small private
companies.”
“Lack of small business GAAP. The waste of time, money,
goodwill and respect trying to make small business conform to
esoteric pronouncements that do not serve any use or value.”

What are possible solutions?
1. A new statement on standards for accounting and
review services that would permit CPAs to issue financial
reports without complying with certain rules if certain
conditions are met.
2. Allow reports to be issued without all disclosures
and adjustments if they are restricted to internal use.
Many legal experts say this would result in stronger mal
practice defenses for CPAs if such reports were used by
third parties in violation of the “internal use only” pro
scription.
3. Create a new management consulting service for
internal management reporting. Perhaps by taking these
reports out of the domain of financial statements, we will
lose some of the emotion and rigid stances that stick to
this issue.
4. Allow CPAs to issue statements on plain paper; no
identification, then no “association,” then no coverage
by standards, then possible lesser liability to third parties;
would be accompanied by certain conditions.
5. A combination of the above.
6. Any other idea put forth by anyone that would
help solve the problem.
I have been told that members believe I favor the
plain paper solution. NOT SO! I will support any deci
sion that allows CPAs to issue financial information to
privately owned businesses on a less cumbersome, more
rational, more economical and more relevant basis. I
hope the committees and staff within the AICPA that are
now working on this issue can reach the right answer.

To contact Bob Israeloff, call 5 1 6 /8 7 2 - 3 3 0 0 orfa x 5 1 6 /8 7 2 -3 1 2 8 .
Advisory Commentsfo r Growth and
Profitability: A Guidefo r Accountants
and Consultants (No. 090408CL)
shows CPAs how advisory com
ments can benefit clients and sup
port practice development, client
retention and practice-manage
ment goals. It comes with charts,
graphs, checklists and questionnaires, and also provides
valuable examples of advisory comments. Price: $45 mem
ber, $50 non-member.

New
Products &
Publications

To help CPAs answer tax-related questions, the AICPA
each year produces tax-season planning materials. Items
for use through Apr. 15 are now available.
Tipsfo r Trimming Your 1994 Taxes: A CPA’s Tax
Preparation Guidefo r Individuals (No. 889533CL) is a twocolor, eight-panel brochure to help individuals organize
the information they need and take advantage of allow

able deductions when preparing their tax returns. Price:
$23/100 member, $25/100 non-member.
T ax Trimming Tips for 1994 Filings: A Guide to
Navigating Your T ax Return (No. 890681CL) is a 20-25

minute speech for general audiences. It alerts taxpayers
to key changes in the tax law and offers tips on how to
trim 1994 taxes. The speech is accompanied by a media
interview guide with 25 questions similar to those CPAs
may receive during interviews with reporters or broad
casters. Price: $5.25 member, $5.75 non-member.

To order, write: AICPA Order Department, CL1294, P.O. Box
2209, Jersey City, NJ 07303-2209; order via fax,
800/362-5066, or call 8 00/862-4272 (dept.#1). Ask for
Operator CLJ 294. The best times to call are 8:30 to 11:30 a.m.
and 2:00 to 5:30 p.m, EST. Orders for exposure drafts must be
written or faxed. Prices do not include shipping or handling.
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Group of Thirty Releases
Report on Bank Supervision
A Washington, D.C.-based think
tank has released a report that
examines the current state of bank
supervision in the United States.
Defining the Roles ofAccountants,
Rankers and Regulators in the United

States cites that change is needed in three areas to

encourage more effective supervision: (1) the perfor
mance of all participants in the supervisory system must
be improved and closer cooperation is needed to
improve the quality of financial reporting and supervi
sion, (2) unnecessary overlap among managers, external
auditors and regulators must be eliminated, and (3) if
cooperation is to be achieved, mistrust must be reduced.
Specific recommendations are made in the report to
improve the cost-effectiveness o f the bank and thrift
regulatory system by improving the performance of
accountants, bankers and regulators, and to bring about
the other suggested changes. The report was prepared
by a study group that included Robert Mednick of
Arthur Andersen & Co., who served on the AICPA Board
of Directors and chaired its Accountants’ Legal Liability
Subcommittee, as well asJ. Thomas Macy of Price
Waterhouse, Daniel Rosenthal of Deloitte & Touche,
and L. William Seidman, the former head of the FDIC.
The Group of Thirty is a non-profit organization that

focuses on international financial issues. For a copy of
the report (which costs $20), write: Group o f Thirty,
1990 M Street, NW, Suite 450, Washington, DC 20036; or
call 202/331-2472.

Information Available on State Insurance
Department Contacts
Statement of Position 94-1, Inquiries of State Insurance
Regulators, which is effective for audits of insurance
companies’ 1994 financial statements, requires auditors
to obtain evidence from state insurance regulators that
permitted statutory accounting practices have been
allowed by the domiciliary state insurance department.
Accordingly, many insurance companies will be asking
their state insurance departments to provide written
confirmation to their auditors about permitted statutory
accounting practices. The AICPA has asked all state
insurance commissioners to 1) identify the person(s) in
the state who has the authority and knowledge to
respond to confirmation requests, and to whom the con
firmations should be addressed, and 2) describe any
administrative procedures or recent notices concerning
SOP 94-1 that the department wishes to be communi
cated to those sending confirmation requests.
To receive the information provided to the Institute
by the insurance departments, dial 201/938-3787 from a
fax machine, follow the voice cues and select document
no. 308, after Dec. 10.
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